
This meeting may be available virtually, in a hybrid format. 
Please check the meeting agenda approximately 72 hours 
before the meeting for additional information. 

Please see https://planning.lacity.org/about/
commissions-boards-hearings for the meeting agenda.

Project Address
Sitio de Proyecto
프로젝트 주소  •  項目地址 
Address ng Proyekto
ծրագրի Հասցե

Proposed Project
Proyecto Propuesto 
프로젝트 제안  •  擬議項目
Iminungkahing Proyekto
Առաջարկվող ծրագիր

Notice of Public Hearing
Aviso de Audiencia Pública  •  공청회통지 
Abiso ng Pagdinig sa Publiko  •  公開聽證會通知 
Հանրային լսումների մասին ծանուցագիր

Traducción
번역 • 翻译
Pagsasalin
Թարգմանություն311

2126 West Adams Boulevard and 2125 West 26th Place, Los Angeles CA, 90018

Plan Approval to review compliance with and effectiveness of conditions imposed in Case No. 
ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) for the existing 3.2 acre Murphy Oil Drill Site. There is no proposed 
expansion of the oil drilling use. This review is authorized by Section 13.01 of the Los Angeles 
Municipal Code (LAMC) and Condition No. 14inCase No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) and will be 
conducted pursuant to LAMC Section 12.24-M. The Zoning Administrator may impose corrective 
conditions or modify existing conditions.

Aprobación del Plan para revisar el cumplimiento y la efectividad de las condiciones impuestas en el 
Caso No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) para el Sitio de Perforación de Petróleo nombrado “Murphy” 
de3.2 acres existente. No hay una propuesta de expansión del uso de la extracción de petróleo. 
Esta revisión está autorizada por la Sección 13.01 del Código Municipal de Los Ángeles
(LAMC por sus siglas en inglés) y la Condición No. 14en el Caso No.
ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) y se llevará acabo de conformidad con la Sección 12.24-M del LAMC.

https://planning.lacity.org/about/commissions-boards-hearings
https://planning.lacity.org/about/commissions-boards-hearings


Actions Requested
Acciones solicitadas  •  요청 된 작업   •   所要求的事項   •   Humiling ng Mga Pagkilos  •  Հայցվող գործողությունները



Case Information
Información del caso  •  케이스 정보   •   案例資訊  •  Impormasyon sa Kaso  •  Տեղեկություններ գործի վերաբերյալ

Case Number(s): Environmental Case Number(s):

Land Use Designation:

Zone:

Council District:

Applicant:

Applicant Representative:

Who’s Receiving This Notice
Quién recibe este aviso  •  본통지를받은사람들  •  誰會收到此通知 
Sino ang Tumatanggap ng Paunawang Ito  •  Սույն ծանուցագիրը ստացող կողմը

You are receiving this notice either because you live on or own property that is on a site  
where a project application has been filed with the Department of City Planning, or because you requested 
to be added to the interested parties list. You are invited to attend this hearing to learn more about the 
proposed project and offer feedback. If unable to attend, you may contact the planner to provide written 
comment, obtain additional information, and/or review the project file.  

Related Case Number(s): Overlay(s):

Community Plan Area:

Assigned Staff Contact Information:

Appellant:

Appellant Representative:

 within 1500 feet of



General Information - Visit our website at planning4la.org/hearings for general information about public hearings and the 
exhaustion of administrative remedies.

File Review - The complete file will be available for public inspection by appointment only. Please email the staff identified 
on the front page, at least three (3) days in advance, to arrange for an appointment. Files are not available for review the 
day of or day before the hearing. 

Agendas And Reports - Commission Agendas are accessible online at planning.lacity.org, by selecting “Commissions & 
Hearings”, the specific Area or City Planning Commission and “Agendas”. Appeal Recommendation Reports are available 
on-line seven (7) days prior to the Commission meeting and are hyperlinked to the case numbers on the agenda. Please 
note that Appeal Recommendation Reports are not prepared for appeals related to Zoning Administrator decisions. 

Be advised that the Commission may RECONSIDER and alter its action taken on items listed on the meeting agenda at any 
time during this meeting or during the next regular meeting, in accordance with the Commission Policies and Procedures 
and provided that the Commission retains jurisdiction over the case. If a Commission meeting is cancelled or adjourned 
due to lack of quorum, all remaining agenda items shall be continued to the next regular meeting or beyond, as long as 
the continuance is within the legal time limits of the case or cases. 

Testimony And Correspondence - Your attendance is optional; oral testimony can only be given at the Commission 
meeting and may be limited due to time constraints. Written testimony or evidentiary documentation may be submitted 
prior to, or at the meeting in accordance to the Commission’s submittal requirements. Commissions function in a quasi-
judicial capacity and therefore, cannot be contacted directly. Any materials submitted to the Commission become City 
property and will not be returned. This includes any correspondence or exhibits used as part of your testimony. 

Requirements For Submission Of Materials - Written materials may be submitted prior to or at the meeting in accordance 
with the submittal requirements below. The case number must be written on all communications, plans and exhibits.

• Regular Submissions – Written materials not limited as to volume must be received by the Commission Executive
Assistant no later than by end of business day Monday of the week prior to the week of the Commission meeting.
Materials must be delivered electronically to the staff and commission email identified on the front of this page.

• Secondary Submissions - All written materials in response to an Appeal Recommendation Report and/or additional
comments must be submitted no later than 48 hours before to the Commission meeting (for Central, South LA and
Harbor APCs, materials must be received no later than by 3:00 p.m., Thursday of the week prior to the Commission
Meeting). Submissions, including exhibits, shall not exceed ten (10) pages and must be submitted electronically to the
Commission identified on the front of this notice.

• Day of Hearing Submissions - Submissions less than 48 hours prior to, and including the day of the Commission
meeting, must not exceed two (2) written pages, including exhibits. Photographs do not count toward the page
limitation. These must be submitted electronically to the Commission email identified on the front of this page.

• Non-Complying Submissions - Submissions that do not comply with these rules will be stamped “File Copy. Non-
complying Submission”. Non-complying submissions will be placed into the official case file, but they will not be
delivered to, or considered by the Commission. The Commission Rules and Operating Procedures are available online
at planning.lacity.org by selecting “Commissions & Hearings” and selecting the specific Commission.

Exhaustion Of Administrative Remedies And Judicial Review - If you challenge these agenda items in court, you may 
be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the public hearing agenized here, or in written 
correspondence on these matters delivered to this agency at or prior to the public hearing. If you seek judicial review of any 
decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.5, the petition for writ of mandate pursuant 
to that section must be filed no later than the 90th day following the date on which the City’s decision became final 
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6. There may be other time limits which also affect your ability 
to seek judicial review. 

Accommodations - As a covered entity under Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act, the City of Los Angeles does not 
discriminate on the basis of disability. To request a reasonable accommodation, such as translation or interpretation, please 
contact the Commission Executive Assistant at  , the Commission Office Main Line at (213) 978-1300 or by 
email at  @lacity.org a minimum of 3 days (72 hours) prior to the public hearing. Be sure to identify the language 
you need English to be translated into and indicate if the request is for oral interpretation or written translation services. If 
translation of a written document is requested, please include the document to be translated as an attachment to your email.



 

 

 

 

MASTER APPEAL FORM 
 

WITH ATTACHMENTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 1 of 4

Related Code Section:  Refer to the City Planning case determination to identify the Zone Code section for the entitlement 
and the appeal procedure. 

Purpose: This application is for the appeal of Department of City Planning determinations authorized by the Los Angeles 
Municipal Code (LAMC). 

A.   APPELLATE  BODY/CASE  INFORMATION 

1.    APPELLATE  BODY 

! Area Planning Commission ! City Planning Commission ! City Council ! Director of Planning 

! Zoning Administrator

Regarding Case Number:   

Project Address:    

Final Date to Appeal:    

2.   APPELLANT

Appellant Identity: 
(check all that apply)

"  Representative 
"  Applicant 

"  Property Owner 
"  Operator of the Use/Site 

"  Person, other than the Applicant, Owner or Operator claiming to be aggrieved 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

! Person affected by the determination made by the Department of Building and Safety

"  Representative 
"  Applicant 

"  Owner 
"  Operator 

"  Aggrieved Party 

3.   APPELLANT INFORMATION 

Appellant’s Name:   

Company/Organization:    

Mailing Address:    

City:      State:     Zip:    

Telephone:     E-mail:   

a.   Is the appeal being filed on your behalf or on behalf of another party, organization or company? 

! Self ! Other:    

b.   Is the appeal being filed to support the original applicant’s position? ! Yes ! No 

APPEAL  APPLICATION

Instructions and Checklist

ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6

2126 W. Adams Blvd. and 2125 W. 26th Place, Los Angeles, CA

03/15/2023

Nicki Carlsen

Alston & Bird LLP on behalf of E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor

Los Angeles California 90071

(213) 576-1128 nicki.carlsen@alston.com

E & B Natural Resources et al



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 2 of 4

4.   REPRESENTATIVE/AGENT INFORMATION 

Representative/Agent name (if applicable):   

Company:   

Mailing Address:    

City:      State:   .  Zip:    

Telephone:     E-mail:   

5.   JUSTIFICATION/REASON FOR APPEAL

a.   Is the entire decision, or only parts of it being appealed? ! Entire ! Part

b.   Are specific conditions of approval being appealed?    ! Yes ! No 

If Yes, list the condition number(s) here:    

Attach a separate sheet providing your reasons for the appeal.  Your reason must state:  

"   The reason for the appeal "   How you are aggrieved by the decision 

"   Specifically the points at issue "   Why you believe the decision-maker erred or abused their discretion 

6.   APPLICANT’S AFFIDAVIT

I certify that the statements contained in this application are complete and true: 

Appellant Signature:    Date:    

GENERAL APPEAL FILING REQUIREMENTS

B.   ALL CASES REQUIRE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS    -    SEE THE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR SPECIFIC CASE TYPES  

1. Appeal Documents 

a. Three (3) sets - The following documents are required for each appeal filed (1 original and 2 duplicates) 
Each case being appealed is required to provide three (3) sets of the listed documents. 

! Appeal Application (form CP-7769) 

! Justification/Reason for Appeal 

! Copies of Original Determination Letter 

b. Electronic Copy  

!  Provide an electronic copy of your appeal documents on a flash drive (planning staff will upload materials 
during filing and return the flash drive to you) or a CD (which will remain in the file).  The following items must 
be saved as individual PDFs and labeled accordingly (e.g. “Appeal Form.pdf”, “Justification/Reason 
Statement.pdf”, or “Original Determination Letter.pdf” etc.). No file should exceed 9.8 MB in size.

c. Appeal Fee

!  Original Applicant - A fee equal to 85% of the original application fee, provide a copy of the original application 
receipt(s) to calculate the fee per LAMC Section 19.01B 1. 

!  Aggrieved Party - The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01B 1. 

d. Notice Requirement

!  Mailing List - All appeals require noticing per the applicable LAMC section(s).  Original Applicants must provide 
noticing per the LAMC  

!  Mailing Fee - The appeal notice mailing fee is paid by the project applicant, payment is made to the City          
Planning's mailing contractor (BTC), a copy of the receipt must be submitted as proof of payment. 

March 13, 2023

Nicki Carlsen

Alston & Bird LLP

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor

Los Angeles California 90071

(213) 576-1128 nicki.carlsen@alston.com

5, 7, 16, 17, 19, 21-28, 32, 33



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 3 of 4

SPECIFIC CASE TYPES - APPEAL FILING INFORMATION

C. DENSITY BONUS / TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITES (TOC)

1. Density Bonus/TOC 
Appeal procedures for Density Bonus/TOC per LAMC Section 12.22.A 25 (g) f.

NOTE: 
-  Density Bonus/TOC cases, only the on menu or additional incentives items can be appealed. 

-  Appeals of Density Bonus/TOC cases can only be filed by adjacent owners or tenants (must have documentation), 
and always only appealable to the Citywide Planning Commission. 

! Provide documentation to confirm adjacent owner or tenant status, i.e., a lease agreement, rent receipt, utility 
bill, property tax bill, ZIMAS, drivers license, bill statement etc. 

D.   WAIVER OF DEDICATION AND OR IMPROVEMENT
Appeal procedure for Waiver of Dedication or Improvement per LAMC Section 12.37 I. 

NOTE: 
-  Waivers for By-Right Projects, can only be appealed by the owner. 

-  When a Waiver is on appeal and is part of a master land use application request or subdivider’s statement for a 
project, the applicant may appeal pursuant to the procedures that governs the entitlement. 

E. TENTATIVE TRACT/VESTING

1.  Tentative Tract/Vesting  -  Appeal procedure for Tentative Tract / Vesting application per LAMC Section 17.54 A. 

NOTE: Appeals to the City Council from a determination on a Tentative Tract (TT or VTT) by the Area or City  
Planning Commission must be filed within 10 days of the date of the written determination of said Commission. 

! Provide a copy of the written determination letter from Commission. 

F. BUILDING AND SAFETY DETERMINATION

! 1. Appeal of the Department of Building and Safety determination, per LAMC 12.26 K 1, an appellant is considered the 
Original Applicant and must provide noticing and pay mailing fees. 

a. Appeal Fee
!  Original Applicant - The fee charged shall be in accordance with LAMC Section 19.01B 2, as stated in the 

Building and Safety determination letter, plus all surcharges.  (the fee specified in Table 4-A, Section 98.0403.2 of the 
City of Los Angeles Building Code)

b. Notice Requirement
!  Mailing Fee - The applicant must pay mailing fees to City Planning's mailing contractor (BTC) and submit a 

copy of receipt as proof of payment. 

! 2. Appeal of the Director of City Planning determination per LAMC Section 12.26 K 6, an applicant or any other aggrieved 
person may file an appeal, and is appealable to the Area Planning Commission or Citywide Planning Commission as 
noted in the determination. 

a. Appeal Fee
!  Original Applicant - The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B 1 a. 

b. Notice Requirement
!  Mailing List - The appeal notification requirements per LAMC Section 12.26 K 7 apply. 
!  Mailing Fees - The appeal notice mailing fee is made to City Planning's mailing contractor (BTC), a copy of 

receipt must be submitted as proof of payment. 



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 4 of 4

G. NUISANCE ABATEMENT

1. Nuisance Abatement - Appeal procedure for Nuisance Abatement per LAMC Section 12.27.1 C 4 

NOTE: 
-  Nuisance Abatement is only appealable to the City Council. 

a. Appeal Fee

! Aggrieved Party the fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B 1. 

2. Plan Approval/Compliance Review
Appeal procedure for Nuisance Abatement Plan Approval/Compliance Review per LAMC Section 12.27.1 C 4. 

a. Appeal Fee

!  Compliance Review  -  The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B. 

!  Modification  -  The fee shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B. 

NOTES 

A Certified Neighborhood Council (CNC) or a person identified as a member of a CNC or as representing the CNC 
may not file an appeal on behalf of the Neighborhood Council; persons affiliated with a CNC may only file as an 
individual on behalf of self. 

Please note that the appellate body must act on your appeal within a time period specified in the Section(s) of the 
Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) pertaining to the type of appeal being filed. The Department of City Planning 
will make its best efforts to have appeals scheduled prior to the appellate body's last day to act in order to provide 
due process to the appellant. If the appellate body is unable to come to a consensus or is unable to hear and consider 
the appeal prior to the last day to act, the appeal is automatically deemed denied, and the original decision will stand. 
The last day to act as defined in the LAMC may only be extended if formally agreed upon by the applicant. 

This Section for City Planning Staff Use Only

Base Fee: Reviewed & Accepted by (DSC Planner): Date: 

Receipt No: Deemed Complete by (Project Planner): Date: 

!  Determination authority notified !  Original receipt and BTC receipt (if original applicant)  



 

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 90071-1410 

213-576-1000 | Fax: 213-576-1100 

 

Alston & Bird LLP      www.alston.com 

Atlanta | Beijing | Brussels | Charlotte | Dallas | Fort Worth | London | Los Angeles | New York | Raleigh | San Francisco | Silicon Valley | Washington, D.C. 
 

Nicki Carlsen  Direct Dial: +1 213 576 1128 Email: nicki.carlsen@alston.com 
 

 

Re: CEQA Appeal Justification for Approval of Plans for 2126 W. Adams Blvd. and 2125 W. 26th 
Place, Los Angeles, CA (“Murphy Site”) (Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6, issued February 28, 
2023 (“Plan Approval”)   

On behalf of E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation (“E&B”), this Office respectfully 
appeals the Zoning Administrator’s issuance of additional and modified conditions in the Plan 
Approval for the above-referenced Murphy Site. This Appeal is timely submitted within 15 days 
of the ZA’s Approval of Plan dated February 28, 2023.   

REASON FOR THE APPEAL:  As specifically identified in the attached appendix, certain additional 
and modified conditions in the Plan Approval are arbitrary, not supported by substantial 
evidence, and the Findings do not explain why they are necessary to alleviate the alleged harm.  
The additional and modified conditions in the Plan Approval has also interfered with E&B’s 
vested rights and its constitutional rights under federal and state law, including the taking of its 
property for public use without the payment of just compensation.   

SPECIFIC POINTS IN ISSUE:  

The Zoning Administrator has abused its discretion in determining that the additional and 
modified conditions included in the Plan Approval are required to (1) increase the protection of 
and to preserve the health, safety and general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of the 
neighborhood or (2) address demonstrated nuisance conditions.  Neither of these determinations 
are supported by substantial evidence.  As discussed specifically in the attached appendix, the 
additional and modified conditions imposed by the Plan Approval are also unduly oppressive on 
E&B. By interfering with E&B’s vested rights without the requisite basis, and by imposing 
conditions that are unduly oppressive, the Zoning Administrator has not proceeded in a manner 
required by law.  

Agencies must make all findings required by applicable law. An agency’s findings must also bridge 
the analytical gap between the raw evidence and the ultimate decision.  The Plan Approval does 
not bridge the analytical gap between the raw evidence and ultimate decision.  For example, while 
the Plan Approval imposes new conditions on the Murphy Site’s operations, it did not make any 
findings (including necessary sub-conclusions) that bridge the analytical gap between the alleged 
harm and the conditions imposed.  In addition, LAMC § 13.01 requires findings based on “actual 
observation and experience with drilling” in order for a Zoning Administrator to impose additional 
conditions or require corrective measures to be taken.   The Plan Approval did not include findings 
based on “actual observation and experience with drilling.”  The Findings also do not demonstrate 
or explain how the conditions would alleviate the alleged harm, and the Findings are not 
supported by the cited evidence.   

http://www.alston.com/


 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
SPECIFIC POINTS IN ISSUE: 
Page 2 

Under the Federal Supremacy Clause and article XI, section 7 of the California Constitution, local 
laws in conflict with general state laws or federal laws are void.  The Zoning Administrator does 
not have authority to regulate areas or enforce local laws that are preempted by general state 
laws or federal laws.  Through the Plan Approval, the Zoning Administrator is purporting to 
regulate areas that are preempted by general state laws or federal laws, including the production 
of oil and gas (such as all “down hole” activities), air quality, hazardous materials, water quality, 
and labor laws.  By regulating areas that are preempted by state and federal law, the Zoning 
Administrator has acted without, or in excess of, their jurisdiction.   

The due process clause of the U.S. Constitution guarantees the right to due process of law before 
a governmental deprivation of property.  The Plan Approval deprives E&B of its property rights as 
operator of the Murphy Site. The due process clause of the U.S. Constitution guarantees the right 
to be free from arbitrary and capricious government action.  As the Plan Approval is arbitrary and 
capricious, the Zoning Administrator did not afford due process before issuing the Plan Approval.   

Similarly, the equal protection clause of the U.S. Constitution guarantees the right to equal 
protection of the laws, requires that similarly situated property be treated similarly.  The Zoning 
Administrator treated the Murphy Site differently from other properties that are similarly 
situated, and there is no basis for this differential treatment.   

E&B has an established vested right to carry on its lawful business at the Murphy Site according 
to the terms of its existing discretionary zoning approvals.   The Plan Approval interferes with 
E&B’s vested rights.  E&B submitted an application for the City to review operations for 
compliance with its existing plan approval.  As good neighbors, E&B entered into discussions with 
the community and proactively suggested new safeguards that are ahead of the existing 
regulatory framework.   However, the City has no evidence to support a need for the additional 
and modified conditions challenged in this appeal.  E&B has an excellent record in compliance and 
safety with no issues with its regulating agency, the California Geologic Energy Management 
Division (“CalGEM”), and no history of emergency actions or spills.  The Zoning Administrator has 
not obtained a substantial nuisance or code enforcement determination such that they have 
established the interests of the public require the Plan Approval and its interference with E&B’s 
vested rights.  The Zoning Administrator has not established that the conditions imposed by the 
Plan Approval are reasonably necessary to accomplish the Plan Approval’s purported purpose. 

To interfere with vested rights, there must be findings of a substantial impairment of public rights.  
The Plan Approval does not include any findings of a substantial impairment of public rights that 
would justify an intrusion on E&B’s vested rights. 

The U.S. and California Constitutions provide that private property cannot be taken for public use 
without just compensation.  A taking occurs when there is a physical invasion of private property.  
The Plan Approval physically invades the Murphy Site by requiring construction thereon.  A taking 
also occurs when a property is deprived of all economically beneficially uses. The Plan Approval 
will temporarily deprive E&B of all economically beneficial uses of the Murphy Site.  A taking also 
occurs when a regulation substantially interferes with the ability of a property owner to make 
economically viable use of, derive income from, or satisfy reasonable, investment-backed profit 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
HOW ARE YOU AGGRIEVED BY THE DECISION:  E&B is the operator of the Murphy Site and holds 
property rights that will be severely impacted by the Plan Approval. 
Page 3 

expectations with respect to the property.  For example, the Plan Approval requires the use of a 
electric workover rig that is not commercially available, which renders E&B unable to feasibly 
conduct maintenance, repairs, or well-servicing on its wells.  The Plan Approval unreasonably 
interferes with E&B’s ability to make economically viable use of, derive income from, and satisfy 
its reasonable, investment-backed profit expectations with respect to the Murphy Site. A taking 
also occurs when a condition of approval is not “roughly proportional” to the impact it seeks to 
address.  The Plan Approval imposes conditions on the Murphy Site that are not “roughly 
proportional” to the alleged impacts it purportedly seeks to address. Therefore, the Plan Approval 
effects a taking of the Murphy Site.  The Plan Approval will take E&B’s private property for public 
use and the City must pay just compensation for the taking.  

HOW ARE YOU AGGRIEVED BY THE DECISION:  E&B is the operator of the Murphy Site and holds 
property rights that will be severely impacted by the Plan Approval.   

HOW DID THE DECISION-MAKER ERRED OR ABUSED THEIR DISCRETION: As discussed above, the 
Zoning Administrator has issued additional and modified conditions to an existing Plan Approval.  
The Zoning Administrator has also made Findings that are not supported by substantial evidence, 
and do not adequately explain how the conditions would alleviate the alleged harm.  The Zoning 
Administrator has also not established that the additional and modified conditions are justified 
by a demonstrated nuisance.  The issuance of the Plan Approval has also interfered with E&B’s 
vested rights and its constitutional rights under federal and state law.   

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

APPENDIX to CEQA APPEAL JUSTIFICATION FOR APPROVAL of PLANS FOR 
MURPHY SITE 

 
Appeal of Specific Conditions:  E&B hereby appeals the following conditions of approval on 
numerous grounds, including that the conditions would serve to create a hazardous operating 
environment, that the conditions would serve to terminate or severely curtail operations, that the 
conditions require the implementation of measures that are not commercially available or 
technically feasible, that the conditions are vague or unclear and occasionally inconsistent, that 
the conditions are unduly onerous and not required of other facilities, that the conditions require 
actions out of the control of the operator, that the conditions do not serve to address the alleged 
concerns, and that the conditions are pre-empted by State or federal law.  

 

1. Condition 5:  This condition prohibits access from 27th Street for the pipeline 
infrastructure installed by Southern California Gas and overseen by the City of Los 
Angeles.  It would have been impractical to access that infrastructure area from Adams (a 
vehicle carrying heavy equipment could not have entered on Adams Boulevard to the 
infrastructure area).   Additional maintenance by SoCalGas may be required and this 
condition should allow SoCalGas to service its equipment and its pipeline infrastructure.  
Further, SoCalGas is not a contractor of E&B.  E&B is simply a customer of SoCalGas 
just like everyone else in the neighborhood.  E&B does not control Southern California 
Gas or its equipment and cannot compel SoCalGas to comply with this condition.   

2. Condition 7:  The condition requires the installation of a 30-foot sound wall after the 45-
foot-high structure is built for any workover, maintenance or drilling rig that exceeds 45 
feet in height.  The City has not identified or provided any evidence that E&B is not in 
compliance with the applicable noise requirements.  Further, a 45-foot-high structure is 
an effective sound barrier by itself.   It is impractical, non-sensical and technically 
infeasible to construct a 30-foot wall within the 45-foot-high structure – the 45-foot-high 
structure would perform the sound barrier function of the 30-foot sound wall.   The other 
requirements to reduce sound such as acoustical blankets (subsections c and d) and sound 
damping acoustical material (subsection e) are also unnecessary given the sound barrier 
function of the 45-foot structure.  E&B should be allowed to demonstrate that the 45-
foot-high structure is sufficient by itself to satisfy any noise mitigation requirement.  In 
addition, while the operator will perform sound monitoring during any drilling, workover 
or maintenance activity, and the operator is willing to provide that information to the City 
as the regulating agency, the City provides no basis for its requirement to provide public 
notification of these results.   

3. Condition 17:  The operator has filed a lawsuit challenging the City’s new oil and gas 
ordinance and has appealed the Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation regarding 
“maintenance” activities.   This condition should conform to the results of those legal 
proceedings.  

4. Condition 19:  While the operator offered proactively to provide fence-line air quality 
monitoring, this condition requires the installation of a new monitor for the evaluation of 



2 

certain constituents using detection limits that are not technically feasible.  The findings 
state that the “existing system may not be set up to monitor all of the mentioned 
production by products so there may be some expense for the operator in meeting this 
Condition . . . .”  (Letter of Determination, p. 60.)  The City has not provided any 
evidence to conclude that any such system is commercially available or technically 
feasible or even reliable, particularly at the noted detection limits.  Also, these detection 
limits appear to be inconsistent with federal and/or state health and safety limits, and 
thus, the City is improperly implying that some health and safety concern exists occurred 
if these detection limits are exceeded.  For example, a typical air sample would normally 
have 200-400 ppb of VOC’s and thus, an exceedance of a detection limit of 10-25 ppb of 
VOCs would not be indicative of anything.  The condition also requires “real-time” data, 
which is also not technically feasible as the data needs to be processed to make it useable.   

5. Condition 21:  This condition requires the operator to maintain a website to distribute to 
the public information on the facility’s operations.   Again, the City has provided no legal 
basis to require public distribution of this information.  The operator is willing to 
maintain the website for notice to the public of activities that require notice and to 
provide emergency contact information and emergency reporting instructions.  

6. Condition 22:  This condition improperly requires notice by “certified mail” – there is no 
legal basis for this requirement.   The website would offer sufficient notice of these 
activities.  There are also notification requirements already in place via the City’s Plan 
Approval process and through SCAQMD. 

7. Condition 23:   This condition requires a “45-foot in height structure enclosing the oil 
production area of the site.”  An “enclosure” often means something that is “enclosed” 
and with a roof.  The condition does not explicitly state that this “enclosure” is required 
to have a roof, and the condition acknowledges the potential use of a rig within the 
structure that exceeds 45 feet.  Given that enclosing the production area with a roof 
would create a hazardous condition, the City should clarify that the 45-foot height 
structure is open air, without a roof.  (The Packard site is open air.)  In addition, it is 
unclear how the HPOZ process can be satisfied within the 24-month time frame, 
particularly if there are administrative appeals or litigation.   In any case, the City should 
indicate that the design of the structure should be compatible with the design of the 
Packard structure.  The so-called “enhanced vapor recovery system” to be installed along 
the top of the 45-foot-high structure is not technically feasible – vapor recovery may be 
applied to pieces of equipment but not to the air generally.  

8. Condition 24:  This condition states: “Amendments shall be made within six months of 
the review following preparation of any amendment.”  Under federal law, the SPCC is 
required to be updated every five years.   The City should clarify that it is not requiring 
an update every six months, but that if an update is made (other than the required 5-year 
update), then the amendment will be provided to the City.   Otherwise, this condition is 
not consistent with and is pre-empted by federal law.  Furthermore, the SPCC 
requirements do not impose a condition for 24/7 staffing, nor do they require a minimum 
of two operators per shift.   The City has no legal basis for mandating the number of 
employees at the site or for controlling the operator’s staffing requirements.  Staffing 



3 

requirements are otherwise regulated by State and/or federal law and the City’s 
provisions in this condition are pre-empted. 

9. Condition 25:   This condition improperly prohibits the importation of “methane” or 
natural gas to power the microturbines.   The operation of the microturbines is essential to 
the operation of the site, and without the microturbines, operations would be effectively 
terminated or severely curtailed.  The City has provided no legal basis for prohibiting the 
use of natural gas from an offsite provider, something virtually every other commercial, 
industrial and residential use is allowed to do.  The findings refer to the prior operator’s 
request for a flare as evidence of excess natural gas on the site, but circumstances have 
changed as the City is well aware, as it approved the installation of the SoCalGas pipeline 
to serve the microturbines.  This condition also improperly prohibits electric drilling, 
workover and maintenance rigs, and the opposition to Condition 26 below also applies to 
this condition. 

10. Condition 26:  This condition requires the use of electric drilling, workover and 
maintenance rigs, although commercially available workover and maintenance rigs do 
not exist, as stated by the Petroleum Administrator. (Letter of Determination, p. 37.)  The 
findings incorrectly state that the Packard site is required to have an electric workover rig 
(Letter of Determination, p. 63).   As for Jefferson, the electric workover rig requirement 
was contested by the operator and never implemented because the site is transitioning to 
other uses.  The City may have been referencing (incorrectly) the rig at the PCEC site on 
Pico Boulevard, but that is a drilling rig (not a workover or maintenance rig) which is 
permanently installed and hard-wired to the electric grid and cannot be moved to be 
utilized elsewhere.   This requirement fails to recognize the current state of technology as 
presented by the City’s own Petroleum Administrator and effectively terminates or 
severely curtails operations at the Murphy site.  In addition, this condition prohibits the 
idling of diesel-powered vehicles, and this condition should clarify that a vehicle is not 
“idle” if it is being used for operations, such as powering equipment on the site.   

11. Condition 27:  This condition acknowledges that an “idle well shall be defined and 
identified per CalGEM’s Well Finder web application.”  The condition should be 
clarified to state that compliance with State’s idle well regulations serve to satisfy the 
City’s regulations regarding idle wells. 

12. Condition 28:  This condition imposes new requirements that are inconsistent with the 
Fire Department’s current regulations (and practice) with respect to fire suppression, 
hydrogen sulfide and methane alerts, and quarterly monitoring.   The operator does not 
control the Fire Department, and the condition should conform to the Fire Department’s 
requirements.   

13. Condition 32:  The operator has filed a lawsuit challenging the City’s new oil and gas 
ordinance and these conditions must conform to the outcome of that legal challenge.  
Further, the operator objects to the imposition of any ordinance provision during the 
pendency of that litigation.   



4 

14. Condition 33:  The City should be required to engage in good faith discussions with the 
operator regarding any settlement of any litigation or any major or material decisions 
pertaining to the litigation.  



 

 

 

 

DETERMINATION 
LETTER  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 72 
 

OFFICE OF ZONING ADMINISTRATION 

200 N. SPRING STREET, ROOM 763 

LOS ANGELES, CA 90012-4801 

(213) 978-1318 

ESTINEH MAILIAN 
CHIEF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

ASSOCIATE ZONING ADMINISTRATORS 

JACK CHIANG 

HENRY CHU 

TIM FARGO 

JONATHAN A. HERSHEY, AICP 

PHYLLIS NATHANSON 

CHARLES J. RAUSCH JR. 

CHRISTINE SAPONARA 

COURTNEY SHUM 

CHRISTINA TOY LEE 

JORDANN TURNER

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

CALIFORNIA 

 
 

KAREN BASS 
MAYOR

LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT  
OF CITY PLANNING 

EXECUTIVE OFFICES 
VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP 

DIRECTOR 

SHANA M.M. BONSTIN 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

ARTHI L. VARMA, AICP 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

LISA M. WEBBER, AICP 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

planning.lacity.org

February 28, 2023 
 
Ted Cordova (A) 
E & B Natural Resources 
249 East Ocean Boulevard 
Long Beach, CA 90802 
  
Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Los 
Angeles (O) 
3424 Wilshire Boulevard 
Los Angeles, CA 90010 
 

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 
APPROVAL OF PLANS 
2126 West Adams Boulevard and 2125 
West 26th Place  
South Los Angeles Community Plan 
Zone: [Q]R4-1-O-HPOZ 
C.D:    10 
D.M.: 123B193 
CEQA: ENV-2021-7445-CE 
Legal Description: Lot A, Tract 9454

 
 
 
Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, I hereby DETERMINE: 
  

based on the whole of the administrative record, that the Project is exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15301 (Class 1), Section 15303 (Class 3), Section 15305 (Class 5), Section 15308 
(Class 8), and Section 15321 (Class 21), and there is no substantial evidence 
demonstrating that any exceptions contained in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA 
Guidelines regarding location, cumulative impacts, significant effects or unusual 
circumstances, scenic highways, or hazardous waste sites, or historical resources 
applies. 

  
Pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) Section 12.24 M, Condition No. 14 in Case 
No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4), and LAMC Section 13.01-E,2(i), I hereby DETERMINE: 
  

that, based on the whole of the administrative record, additional and modified 
conditions are required for the continued operation of the existing Murphy Oil Drill Site 
to increase the protection of and to preserve the health, safety and general welfare of 
the residents and stakeholders of the neighborhood.  The additional conditions are also 
necessary to afford greater protection to surrounding property and to address the 
nuisance conditions which were demonstrated by substantial evidence. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 2 of 72 
 

The additional and modified conditions are:  
 
Note:  The conditions of approval from Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) are in standard 

type and font. The revisions to the Conditions of Approval are in bold print and 
underlined or strikethrough 

 
1. MODIFIED:  The existing and proposed well corridors shall be in substantial 

conformance with plot plans submitted and attached to the file identified as "Exhibit 
No. A-I dated March 27, 2007.  Prior to any clearance on a building permit per 
Condition No. 23, a revised plot plan shall be provided showing the current 
production equipment locations on-site.  Said plot plan shall provide a detailed 
description and inventory of production equipment, such as tanks, vessels, 
compressors, scrubbers, separators, micro-turbines, etc. 

2. All terms and conditions specified under extant ZA Case No. 15227, dated April 5, 
1961, shall be strictly complied with, except as modified/clarified as follows: 

3. All the conditions set forth in Section 13.01-E, 2 as well as Condition Nos. 3,4, 5, 8, 
9, 17, 18, 19, 22, 23, 33, 37, 40, 50, 54, 58, and 59 of Subsection F of Section 13.01 
of the Municipal Code are included in and by reference made a part of this approval 
and shall be complied with to the same extent as if herein restated in detail. 

4. MODIFIED: Landscaping of the site shall be maintained as follows: 

a. With respect to that portion of the drill site south of the cement block wall and 
facing 27th Avenue, the applicant shall: (1) remove the invasive/noxious plants; 
(2) plant and/or maintain 3 to 4 trees (of 24-inch box size) as infill trees along the 
south facing facility wall; (3) plant and/or maintain Ficus or climbing ivy, or similar 
plant-life (grown to 5 gallon size containers) along the South facing facility wall; 
(4) spread and/or maintain wildflower/grass mix in the open areas of south parcel 
(approx. 3/4 ac.); (5) install and/or maintain drip irrigation systems on the new 
plantings along south facing facility wall; (6) provide for temporary watering of the 
grasses and place sprinklers on timers to insure proper maintenance of the grassy 
area; (7) install and/or maintain new or improved cyclone fencing along 27th 
Avenue; (8) improve the appearance of the east fence by painting it; (9) install 
and/or maintain meandering dry creek bed hardscape on the south parcel, 
utilizing recycled broken concrete foundations from Drill Site facilities (final 
placement, configuration and length dependent on pipeline easement and other 
site facility considerations); (10) work with 10th Council District office (or its 
successor office) and Archdiocese to allow future public access. 

b. With respect to that portion of the drill site east of the cement block wall and 
fronting on Adams Boulevard, the applicant shall: (1) install and/or maintain 
new/improved cyclone fencing along Adams, including raising the east facing step 
wall which is only 2-3 feet high; (2) upon receipt of the adjacent property owners’ 
approval, install and/or maintain 2-foot high wrought iron fencing (or equivalent) 
on top of existing block wall (approximately 300 feet); (3) remove graffiti on east 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 3 of 72 
 

wall; (4) improve and/or maintain wall on west side of the parcel by painting and 
installing new cyclone inserts; (5) level and place gravel surface down 
approximately half the depth of the lot and place barriers to protect the remaining 
portion of the lot; obtain permits for use as a temporary parking lot; (6) install 
and/or maintain parking lot lighting; (7) plant and/or maintain ficus/climbing ivy, 
or similar along east and west walls to enhance its appearance (using 5 gallon 
size container plantings); (8) install and/or maintain drip irrigation on new 
plantings; (9) install and/or maintain sprinkler timers. 

c. A yearly review of the landscaping shall be conducted by the applicant with the 
Council District Office and the United Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council. 

5. MODIFIED:  That driveway access for ingress and egress to the drilling site shall be 
provided through the existing driveways fronting on Adams Boulevard. Furthermore, 
that the existing parking area on the enclosed drilling site area for use by vehicles 
employed in drilling and maintaining of oil wells on the property and for parking of 
automobiles of employees engaged in the drilling and production activities shall be 
augmented by additional parking on the area on the East of the drill site, outside of 
the enclosed area, which area shall be leveled and covered with a gravel surface to 
approximately one-half the depth of the lot for use as additional parking for 
employees. and overflow parking for The Athletic Club. Parking on the east side of 
the drill-site, outside of the enclosed area, shall not be used for heavy trucking 
operations or staging or storage of any. All such driveways and parking areas shall 
be regularly washed down, swept or otherwise kept free of accumulated cement, 
dust, or other materials which would produce dust in the use of said facilities.  There 
shall be no access to the site from 27th Street except for maintenance of the 
landscaped area fronting on 27th Street and south of the wall separating the 
landscaped area from the production site.  Additionally, there shall be no 
parking of any vehicles by workers or equipment servicing the site on 27th 
Street.  Any access for the maintenance of any infrastructure for the production 
site such as existing pipes in front of said wall shall be from the existing gate 
at the parking area on the easterly side of the facility with access from West 
Adams Boulevard only. 

6. MODIFIED:  As further amplification of Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F of the 
Municipal Code, except for actual drilling and production operations, which may be 
conducted 24 hours a day, seven days a week, no work shall be conducted on the 
property between the hours of 7:00 p.m. of one day and 7:00 a.m. of the following 
day or on Sundays. While actual drilling operations are being conducted between the 
hours of 7:00 p.m. of and 7:00 a.m., the applicant shall operate its facility in “Quiet 
Mode”. “Quiet Mode” shall mean that where possible, operation components shall be 
covered with acoustical shields/material, that all audible backup alarms shall be 
disabled and replaced with a spotter for safety purposes; operation of the cellar pump 
shall cease; the applicant's employees and contractors shall be prohibited from 
yelling, and the Derrick Man and Driller shall communicate by walkie-talkie only when 
the Derrick Man is on the derrick; no horns shall be used to signal for time for 
connection or to summon crew (except that a horn may be used for emergency 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 4 of 72 
 

purposes only. The applicant shall conduct on-site meetings to inform all personnel 
of quiet mode operations. 

In case of an emergency, all restrictions on the hours of operations shall be 
suspended for as long as is necessary to resolve the emergency situation, and for no 
longer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period necessary to set up and move the 
drilling or workover rig off the premises, and to conduct drilling or re-drilling 
operations as herein authorized, heavy ("permitted” oversized/overweight load) truck 
deliveries shall be permitted from 7:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., on week-days none during 
week-ends and holidays. Deliveries shall be made by approaching the facility off of 
Adams Boulevard exclusively. Delivery trucks are to be staged off-site so as to reduce 
the time that trucks need to wait to enter the facility. If there is not sufficient room 
within the interior of the facility to accommodate a given heavy delivery truck, the 
applicant shall not call for the delivery of such heavy truck unless and until another 
heavy delivery truck parked within the facility is scheduled to leave the facility within 
15 minutes. The maximum number of heavy truck deliveries allowed for moving the 
drilling rig on and off the premises shall not exceed 20 loads per day for a period of 
four days. Except for the four days required to move the drilling rig on and off the 
premises, the number of “permitted” truck deliveries per day (week-days only, none 
on week-ends and holidays) shall be limited to a maximum of ten. The number of 
"non-permitted" truck deliveries per day (week-days only) shall be limited to a 
maximum of ten. The number of "non-permitted” truck deliveries per day (week-ends 
and holidays only) shall be limited to a maximum of five. 

The applicant shall give all abutting property owners written notice (in both English 
and Spanish), served by mail at least seven days prior to the dates when heavy truck 
traffic will commence related to moving the rig in for the drilling or re-drilling of wells.  
The operator shall also provide a landing page on a publicly available website 
where interested parties can sign up for email alerts as a supplemental effort 
for notification purposes. The operator shall provide the web address for the 
publicly accessible website within six (6) calendar months of the final 
determination of Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6. 

7. MODIFIED:  Until a permanent 45-foot high structure is built, in accordance with 
Condition No. 23, and, afterward for any portion of a workover, maintenance or 
drilling rig which exceeds 45 feet in height, the applicant shall install the following 
sound mitigation systems and implement administrative noise controls as follows: 

a. Erect a 30-foot high blanket sound wall on the west, south and east side of the 
any workover, maintenance or drilling rig at the Murphy drilling site (west, south 
and east side property line), with the layout and wall lengths determined after the 
drilling, workover or maintenance rig and equipment positioning has been 
established. Install the sound wall as close as possible to the drilling, workover 
or maintenance rig and associated equipment with no gaps or openings in the 
walls. The sound wall material should have a minimum STC rating of 25. Sound 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 5 of 72 
 

wall gates shall be installed with the same sound loss rating as the wall material 
and the gates shall be closed at all times except for material delivery or pick up. 
The sound wall shall not be maintained for more than 120 continuous days. 
Should unforeseeable mechanical problems warrant the maintenance of the 
sound wall for a period exceeding the 120 continuous days, the applicant shall 
notify the Office of Zoning Administration and Council Office and inform the 
owners and occupants of surrounding property of the reasons for and estimated 
duration of the delay in the dismantlement of the wall. 

b. [Condition 7.b was deleted in Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA4] 

c. To reduce sound from the drilling, workover or maintenance rig’s sub-structure, 
acoustical blankets shall be hung from the exterior of the rig floor down to the 
ground, covering the open area of the rig sub-structure on the side of the rig facing 
the west property line. 

d. The stabbing platform on the rig’s derrick shall be enclosed with STC-25 rated 
acoustical blankets. 

e. To mitigate the drilling, workover or maintenance rig draw works and brake 
noise level, sound damping acoustical material shall be installed and maintained 
during drilling activities. 

f. Position all ancillary noise generation equipment away from the nearest critical 
receptors when feasible and install temporary sound enclosures, where possible 
on all noise generation equipment and operations. 

g. Install vibration isolation pads on shaker units and provide low frequency 
designed sound absorption and barring panels adjacent to the shaker units. 

h. Implement Drill Site "quiet mode" operation procedures including limitation of 
material delivery schedules and other sound mitigation requirements. 

i. To ensure adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any 
unusual or unique noise problems, sound level measurement and testing shall be 
complete as the rig starts up operations. To verify and document sound level 
compliance, continuous sound level measurement and monitoring may be 
considered during all drilling, workover or maintenance activity to ensure adequate 
sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any unusual or unique noise 
problems, sound level measurement and testing shall be complete as the rig starts 
up operations. To verify and document sound level compliance, continuous sound 
level measurement and monitoring may shall be considered during all drilling, 
workover or maintenance activity. The operator shall make known through both 
regular mail and website communication  the results of such measurement and 
monitoring to abutting property owners and residents as required by Condition No. 
21 elsewhere in this Determination. 

8. DELETED: Drilling operations may be conducted seven days per week on a 24-hour 
basis, including any nationally recognized holiday.   Drilling operations for the first 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 6 of 72 
 

three wells identified in the grant clause of the instant determination shall e completed 
within 36 months from the effective date of this determination.  The drilling for the 
following nine wells as hereby authorized shall be subject to a review of plans by the 
Zoning Administrator, without a public hearing, for the purpose of updating the record 
with the well identification and path.  None of the wells hereby authorized shall be 
engaged in a production mode until the vault is complete.   

The first three new wells may be drilled prior to the construction of the new well (vault) 
cellar using temporary cellar rings in substantial compliance with the “Ring Cellar 
Schematic” and the “Construction Plan: Well Cellar Rings” attached hereto (Exhibit 
B) subject to any permitting requirement of the Department of Building and Safety 
and the Department of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources. 

Once these three wells have been completed, they will be shut so that the permanent 
well cellars can be constructed in compliance with plans approved by this grant 
(Exhibit A). During construction of the permanent well cellar, the temporary cellar 
rings shall be removed and the cellars shall be incorporated in the permanent will 
cellar.  Drill operations shall be completed within 36 months from the effective date 
of this determination. 

9. NEW:  All drilling, workover or maintenance rigs and equipment shall be 
removed from the premises immediately after drilling is completed, sump holes 
filled and derricks removed within sixty days after the completion of the work. 

10. NEW:  All oil drilling, production and maintenance operations shall be 
conducted in such a manner as to eliminate, as far as practicable, dust, noise, 
vibration and noxious odors and shall be in accordance with the best accepted 
practices incident to drilling for and production of oil, gas and other 
hydrocarbon substances.  Proven technological improvements in drilling, 
production and maintenance methods shall be adopted as they may become 
available, from time to time, if capable of reducing factors of nuisance and 
annoyance.   

11. MODIFIED: The applicant operator shall permanently post at all of the site's entry 
gates (including those facing West Adams Boulevard and West 27th Street), the 
direct telephone number to the supervisor of the site at that time for residents to call 
and report any ongoing problem or odors.  A call log shall be maintained including 
date and time of call and subject, and date and time of response and action. Said log 
shall be made available at the request of the Office of Zoning Administration.  
Signage shall include instructions to call 911, the SCAQMD or the operator’s  
hotline number in case of noxious odors caused by the operation. Signage 
shall also include the company’s publicly available website where more 
information about activities are made available.  

12. The applicant shall conduct daily inspections of the premises, including the exterior 
of the concrete block wall and the open areas on the east side of the premises and 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 7 of 72 
 

the south side, facing 27th Street. All trash and debris shall be removed from the site 
daily. 

13. All graffiti on the site shall be removed or painted over to match the color of the 
surface to which it is applied within 24 hours of its occurrence. 

14. The authorized use shall be conducted at all times with due regard for the character 
of the surrounding district, and the right is reserved to the Zoning Administrator to 
impose additional corrective conditions, if, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, 
such conditions are proven necessary for the protection of persons in the 
neighborhood or occupants of adjacent property. 

15. MODIFIED:  All lighting on the site shall be shielded and directed onto the site and 
no floodlighting shall be located so as to be seen directly from any adjacent residential 
area.  Any new exterior lighting at the project site shall be located below the 
top of the surrounding containment structure and  property line walls and shall 
be directed onto the site.  Except as directed otherwise by the Office of Zoning 
Administration or other public agency, no lights shall be located on the 
enclosure structure above the height of the surrounding exterior and property 
line walls.  These lights shall be placed and designed to minimize their impact 
on neighboring properties. 

16.MODIFIED: At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should documented 

evidence be submitted showing continued violation of any condition of this grant, 

resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or interference with the peaceful 

enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning Administrator 

reserves the right to require the applicant to file for a plan approval application 

together with associated fees pursuant to LAMC Section 19.01-C (Plan Approval 

12.24-M $1,898 or as in effect at the time of filing), the purpose of which will be to 

hold a public hearing to review the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness 

of these conditions. The applicant shall prepare a radius map and cause a notification 

to be mailed to all owners and occupants of properties within a 500-foot radius of the 

property, the Council Office, and the Los Angeles Police Department’s corresponding 

Division. The applicant shall also submit a summary and any supporting 

documentation of how compliance with each condition of this grant has been attained. 

Upon this review the Zoning Administrator may modify, add or delete conditions. and 

reserves the right to conduct this public hearing for nuisance abatement/revocation 

purposes. 

17. NEW: As further required by Section 13.01-H and I or  Section 12.23-C,4 of the 
Municipal Code, no maintenance acidizing is permitted on an existing 
production or injection well until a determination has been made by the Zoning 
Administrator. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 8 of 72 
 

18. NEW:  An Annual On-site Safety Inspection Report shall be performed by the 
applicant/operator and sent to the Petroleum Administrator and the Office of 
Zoning Administration, listing the inventory of equipment on site, any repair 
work, and / or maintenance done to keep the equipment in good operating 
condition at all times and any safety protocols of the responsible State, 
regional and City agencies. The first Annual Safety Inspection report shall be 
submitted within 45 days of the effective date of this action. 

19. NEW: Within 90 days of the effective date of this action, the applicant shall 
install a fence line air monitoring system which presents real-time air 
monitoring data, along the fence line between the oil drilling and production 
facility and the community. The system shall be designed and installed to 
provide real time data on-line via a website and provide quarterly reports to the 
SCAQMD, the Petroleum Administrator and the Office of Zoning Administration 
for up to three years from the effective date of this action. Monthly reports shall 
also be submitted to the Office of Zoning Administration via e-mail to 
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org. The fence line air monitoring system shall 
monitor for hydrogen sulfide, nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide, carbon dioxide, 
carbon monoxide, methane, benzene, ammonia, hexane, toluene, xylene, and 
other volatile organic compounds, reactive organic gases, and toxic 
substances. The monitoring equipment shall continuously measure Volatile 
Organic Compounds as listed above and Hydrogen Sulfide at the facility fence 
line with detection limits of 10-25 ppb of VOCs and 10 ppb of Hydrogen Sulfide. 

20. NEW:  The applicant shall immediately notify  the Los Angeles Fire Department, 
the Petroleum Administrator, the Office of Zoning Administration, the 
Department of Building and Safety and the local City Council office of an 
emergency, any incident, and/or spill that requires reporting to any State, 
County, or regional agency.  In addition, the operator shall notify the Office of 
Zoning Administration’s Oil Drilling Unit via email to 
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org within 24 hours whenever there is an 
emergency event that includes, but is not limited, to 911 calls for emergency 
services or CalOES hazardous event notifications.  Operator staff can email 
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org for notifications. 

21. NEW:  The applicant shall create a landing page for the public on the company 
website with information on monthly reporting on noise and emission levels at 
the drill site, current and planned operations, emergency contact information, 
emergency reporting instructions, and real time fence line air monitoring data.   
The operator shall have this website completed and in operation within six 
calendar months of the effective date of this action and provide the website 
address information to planning.oildrilling@lacity.org to be included in the 
administrative record.  

22. NEW: The operator shall notify all owners and occupants within 100 feet when 
permitted and approved drilling, redrilling, deepening, rework activities, 
plugging and abandonment and maintenance acidizing activities will 

mailto:planning.oildrilling@lacity.org
mailto:planning.oildrilling@lacity.org


CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 9 of 72 
 

commence for any well(s) at the drill site.   Notification shall be provided one 
calendar week prior to the anticipated start date of the project.  The operator 
shall utilize the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health’s Community 
Health and Safety Notification Plan.  Notification shall be sent by way of 
certified United States Postal Service mail and be stated on the operator’s 
website.  The operator shall also use the landing page on their website for such 
notification.  Rework activities shall be defined as any scope of work that 
requires a CalGEM Notice of Intention permit and maintenance acidizing shall 
be defined as anything that triggers SCAQMD Rule 1148.2 Oil and Gas Well 
Notification 

23. NEW:  Within 24 months of the effective date of this determination, completion 
of all required work shall be verified during the final inspection of the building 
permit and the building permit shall be finalized for an approximately 45-foot 
in height structure enclosing the oil production area of the site.  No oil, gas or 
other hydrocarbon substances may be produced from any well hereby 
permitted unless all equipment necessarily incident to such production is 
enclosed within the 45-foot in height structure. Plans for said enclosure need 
to be submitted to the Department of Building and Safety for all necessary 
reviews, including reviews by other departments and agencies, as appropriate, 
and building permits secured prior to any construction. The operator shall 
provide a height survey if requested by the Department of Building and Safety. 
Notwithstanding the 45-foot height limit for the containment structure, where 
any drilling, maintenance, or workover rig which exceeds the 45-foot in height 
structure, such a rig must also be sound proofed as provided for in Condition 
No. 7. This structure, for the oil production area, shall be of a permanent type, 
of attractive design and constructed in a manner that will minimize, as far as 
practicable, dust, noise, noxious odors and vibrations or other conditions 
which are offensive to the senses, and shall be equipped with such devices as 
are necessary to minimize the objectionable features mentioned above. The 
architectural treatment of the exterior of such structure shall be subject to 
issuance of a Certificate of Compatibility with the approval of the Director of 
Planning, or their designee, after a maximum of two hearings by the Jefferson 
Park Historic Preservation Overlay Zone’s Historic Preservation Board. See 
Exhibit B for the area that shall be enclosed. This area includes, but is not 
limited to: the well cellar, storage tanks, slop tank, compressors, and the 
microturbines. 

a.  Tanks and other equipment and buildings used in extraction and 
production activities shall be maintained on the site in such a manner 
that no portion of the tanks, equipment or buildings other than the upper 
portion of the rig shall extend above the height of the 45-foot permanent 
enclosure. In addition, no portions of the draw-works house, drilling 
equipment buildings, temporary mud and water storage tanks and future 
portable drilling mast used for servicing activities shall extend above the 
height of the 45-foot permanent enclosure.  



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 10 of 72 
 

b. In addition, the workover, maintenance or drilling rigs, that 
measure up to a height of 45 feet and the micro-turbines shall be within 
the 45-foot in height structure. 

c. An enhanced vapor recovery system shall be installed along the 
top of the 45-foot in height enclosure structure for the oil production 
area.  The vapor recovery recordings or report shall be submitted to the 
Office of Zoning Administration (via email to 
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org), the Petroleum Administrator, the State 
Fire Marshal, the California State Resources Board and the South Coast 
Air Quality Management District as required pursuant to city, county, 
state, and federal rules and regulations. 

d.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to act in a timely manner to 
submit a building permit application and comply with all rules and 
requirements in order to secure and final the building permit for the 45-
foot in height structure. It is also the applicant’s responsibility to act in 
a timely manner to apply for and obtain a Certificate of Compatibility 
from the Jefferson Park HPOZ Board.  

24. NEW: A Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan shall be 
submitted via email to planning.oildrilling@lacity.org, annually. Amendments 
shall be made within six months of the review following preparation of any 
amendment.  The updated document shall be submitted to the file to the 
satisfaction of the Bureau of Sanitation Watershed Protection Division, the 
Petroleum Administrator and the Office of Zoning Administration.  This review 
shall include at a minimum, the following: 

• Applicability of new prevention and control technology, which may 
significantly reduce the likelihood of a spill event from the Facility if such 
technology has been field proven at the time of the review; 

• Accuracy of the SPCC Plan as compared to the current facility operation 
and SPCC Regulations; 

• Capacity and structural integrity of secondary containment structures; 
and 

• SPCC inspections and records retention to ensure continuity for a 
minimum period of three years. 

• The site shall be staffed 24 hours a day, seven days a week.  There shall 
be a minimum of two operators per shift so that meal and other breaks 
do not result in the site being unoccupied by staff.    

• The dispersal system for any required odor control product shall be 
placed as far as practicable from any adjacent residential structures to 
the site.  The current location of the system shall be moved to a more 
remote location in the drill site, but away from any open flames or 
ignition sources. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 11 of 72 
 

25.NEW:  All drilling, workover, or maintenance rig operations at the site shall at 
all times be carried on only by electric power.  All other operations on the site 
shall at all times be carried on only by means of electric power.  Power may be 
generated on site by solar voltaic generators or natural gas powered micro-
turbines placed within sound and odor proofed buildings or structures. Any 
methane used for the micro-turbines must come from methane produced as a 
by product from oil extraction.   Methane may not be imported to power micro-
turbines from off-site sources nor may it be pumped to the site from other oil 
production sites in the area.   

- The operator shall limit any microturbine PM emissions to 0,0035 
lbs/mmbtu, or an equivalent reduction in the number and/or size of the 
microturbines, in order to reduce emissions to below local thresholds.  
The applicant will be subject to SCAQMD permit conditions that limit 
emissions from the set of microturbines, not just individual permit units. 

26.NEW:  The use of diesel fueled equipment, including any drilling, workover or 
maintenance rig, is prohibited on the site nor may any backup generators use 
diesel fuel.  Backup generators shall either be solar powered, be plugged into 
the electric power grid or powered by the on-site microturbines.  Diesel 
powered vehicles are permitted on the site.  Said vehicles, however, may not 
idle when on-site and must shut off their engines until they are to be moved off 
of the site or  to another position on the site. 

27.NEW: The operator shall remain in compliance with city, county, state and 
federal regulations specifically regulating idle wells. The operator shall plug 
and abandon idle wells as required by and in accordance with any city, county, 
state and federal regulations that identify a) when a well becomes idle and b) 
requirements to abandon an idle well.  An idle well shall be defined and 
identified per CalGEM’s Well Finder web application. 

28.NEW:  Monitoring Program.  The following measures shall be utilized by the 
operator to maintain regular and assured oversight of the well site in a 
residential neighborhood. 

a. The operator shall install an early alert detection system which will alert 
the Los Angeles City Fire Department (LAFD) of hydrogen sulfide and 
methane leaks.  A protocol for the construction, installation and 
operation of the system shall be established to the satisfaction of the 
LAFD and CalGEM within 90 days of the effective date of this 
Determination letter and submitted to the Office of Zoning 
Administration for placement in the case file.  Such system shall remain 
in operation during the lifetime of the drill site operation. 

b. The operator shall install a state-of-the-art fire suppression system 
which shall use, but not be limited to more effective fire suppressants 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 12 of 72 
 

such as foam.  The system shall be constructed to the satisfaction of the 
LAFD; with the clearance from the LAFD for its design. 

c. The operator shall formally arrange with the LAFD Oil Wells Unit and the 
LAFD CUPA Program, for quarterly monitoring of the operation at the 
subject site, including but not limited to inspection of the systems 
described above.  Such inspections shall occur quarterly during the first 
five years of operation following this Determination.  Copies of a formal 
arrangement assuring inspection shall be sent the Office of Zoning 
Administration for placement in the case file.   Copies of all monitoring 
inspection reports shall be filed with the Office of Zoning Administration 
and the Petroleum Administrator.  

29. NEW:  The operator, in the event of ceasing and/or decommissioning the drill 
site, shall test for potential hydrocarbon contamination in specific areas.   The 
operator, or responsible party, shall test for soil data under the well cellar and 
tank battery area of the drill site.  If contamination is found to be present then 
the area shall be remediated according to the standards and satisfaction of the 
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board.  All excavations and 
depressions shall be filled with clean soil.   All oil, refuse and waste shall be 
removed from the drill site pursuant to city, county, state and federal laws and 
regulations.  The operator, or responsible party, shall remove all underground 
and above-ground storage tanks in accordance with city, county, state and 
federal laws and regulations. 

30.NEW:  All production installations or facilities shall be removed and the 
premises restored to its original condition after all oil and gas wells have been 
abandoned in accordance with city, county, state, and federal regulations.  

31.NEW:  The operator shall record a covenant acknowledging and agreeing to 
comply with all the terms and conditions established herein shall be recorded 
in the County Recorder's Office. The agreement (standard main covenant and 
agreement form CP-6770) shall run with the land and shall be binding on any 
subsequent owners, heirs or assigns. The agreement with the conditions 
attached must be submitted to the Department of City Planning for approval 
before being recorded. After recordation, a certified copy bearing the 
Recorder's number and date shall be provided for inclusion in case file. 

32. NEW:  When a Condition of ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 conflicts with Los Angeles 
Municipal Code  Section 12.23-C,4, as recently adopted by Ordinance No. 
187,709, and effective on January 18, 2023, Section 12.23-C,4 shall supersede 
on matters regarding the drilling  of new wells or the redrilling of existing wells 
to increase extraction.  All other conditions in ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 shall 
remain in effect.  

33. NEW: Indemnification and Reimbursement of Litigation Costs. Applicant shall 
do all of the following: 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 13 of 72 
 

(i) Defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all actions 
against the City relating to or arising out of the City’s processing and 
approval of this entitlement, including but not limited to, an action to attack, 
challenge, set aside, void, or otherwise modify or annul the approval of the 
entitlement, the environmental review of the entitlement, or the approval of 
subsequent permit decisions, or to claim personal property damage, 
including from inverse condemnation or any other constitutional claim. 

(ii) Reimburse the City for any and all costs incurred in defense of an action 
related to or arising out of the City’s processing and approval of the 
entitlement, including but not limited to payment of all court costs and 
attorney’s fees, costs of any judgments or awards against the City (including 
an award of attorney’s fees), damages, and/or settlement costs. 

(iii) Submit an initial deposit for the City’s litigation costs to the City within 10 
days’ notice of the City tendering defense to the Applicant and requesting a 
deposit. The initial deposit shall be in an amount set by the City Attorney’s 
Office, in its sole discretion, based on the nature and scope of action, but in 
no event shall the initial deposit be less than $50,000. The City’s failure to 
notice or collect the deposit does not relieve the Applicant from 
responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the requirement in 
paragraph (ii). 

(iv) Submit supplemental deposits upon notice by the City. Supplemental 
deposits may be required in an increased amount from the initial deposit if 
found necessary by the City to protect the City’s interests. The City’s failure 
to notice or collect the deposit does not relieve the Applicant from 
responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the requirement in 
paragraph (ii). 

(v) If the City determines it necessary to protect the City’s interest, execute an 
indemnity and reimbursement agreement with the City under terms 
consistent with the requirements of this condition. 

 

The City shall notify the applicant within a reasonable period of time of its receipt 
of any action and the City shall cooperate in the defense. If the City fails to notify 
the applicant of any claim, action, or proceeding in a reasonable time, or if the City 
fails to reasonably cooperate in the defense, the applicant shall not thereafter be 
responsible to defend, indemnify or hold harmless the City.  

 

The City shall have the sole right to choose its counsel, including the City 
Attorney’s office or outside counsel. At its sole discretion, the City may participate 
at its own expense in the defense of any action, but such participation shall not 
relieve the applicant of any obligation imposed by this condition. In the event the 
Applicant fails to comply with this condition, in whole or in part, the City may 
withdraw its defense of the action, void its approval of the entitlement, or take any 
other action. The City retains the right to make all decisions with respect to its 
representations in any legal proceeding, including its inherent right to abandon or 
settle litigation. 

 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 14 of 72 
 

For purposes of this condition, the following definitions apply: 
 

“City” shall be defined to include the City, its agents, officers, boards, 
commissions, committees, employees, and volunteers. 
 
“Action” shall be defined to include suits, proceedings (including those held 
under alternative dispute resolution procedures), claims, or lawsuits. 
Actions includes actions, as defined herein, alleging failure to comply with 
any federal, state or local law.  
 

Nothing in the definitions included in this paragraph are intended to limit the rights 
of the City or the obligations of the Applicant otherwise created by this condition. 

 
TRANSFERABILITY 

This authorization runs with the land. In the event the property is to be sold, leased, rented 
or occupied by any person or corporation other than yourself, it is incumbent upon you to 
advise them regarding the conditions of this grant. 

VIOLATIONS OF THESE CONDITIONS, A MISDEMEANOR 

Section 12.29 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code provides:  

"A variance, conditional use, adjustment, public benefit or other quasi-judicial approval, 
or any conditional approval granted by the Director, pursuant to the authority of this 
chapter shall become effective upon utilization of any portion of the privilege, and the 
owner and applicant shall immediately comply with its Conditions. The violation of any 
valid Condition imposed by the Director, Zoning Administrator, Area Planning 
Commission, City Planning Commission or City Council in connection with the granting 
of any action taken pursuant to the authority of this chapter, shall constitute a violation of 
this chapter and shall be subject to the same penalties as any other violation of this Code." 

Every violation of this determination is punishable as a misdemeanor and shall be 
punishable by a fine of not more than $2,500 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a 
period of not more than six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

APPEAL PERIOD - EFFECTIVE DATE 

The applicant's attention is called to the fact that this grant is not a permit or license and that 
any permits and licenses required by law must be obtained from the proper public agency.  
Furthermore, if any Condition of this grant is violated or if the same be not complied with, 
then the applicant or his successor in interest may be prosecuted for violating these 
Conditions the same as for any violation of the requirements contained in the Municipal 
Code. The Zoning Administrator's determination in this matter will become effective after 
March 15, 2023, unless an appeal therefrom is filed with the Department of City Planning.  
It is strongly advised that appeals be filed early during the appeal period and in person so 
that imperfections/incompleteness may be corrected before the appeal period expires. Any 
appeal must be filed on the prescribed forms, accompanied by the required fee, a copy of 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 15 of 72 
 

the Zoning Administrator's action, and received and receipted at a public office of the 
Department of City Planning on or before the above date or the appeal will not be accepted.  
Forms are available on-line at http://planning.lacity.org. Public offices are located at: 

Figueroa Plaza 
201 North Figueroa 

Street 4th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

(213) 482-7077 

Marvin Braude San Fernando Valley 
Constituent Service Center 

6262 Van Nuys Blvd., Room 251 
Van Nuys, CA 91401 

(818) 374-5050 

West Los Angeles Development 
Services Center 

1828 Sawtelle Blvd., 2nd Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90025 

(310) 231-2912 
 

If you seek judicial review of any decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.5, the petition for writ of mandate pursuant to that section must be 
filed no later than the 90th day following the date on which the City's decision became final 
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6. There may be other time 
limits which also affect your ability to seek judicial review.  

NOTICE 

The applicant is further advised that all subsequent contact with this office regarding this 
determination must be with the Oil and Gas Facilities Unit of the Office of Zoning 
Administration.   This would include clarification, verification of condition compliance and 
plans or building permit applications, etc., and shall be accomplished BY APPOINTMENT 
ONLY, in order to assure that you receive service with a minimum amount of waiting.  You 
should advise any consultant representing you of this requirement as well. 

 

AUTHORIZATION 

Pursuant to LAMC Section 12.24 M, the Zoning Administrator may determine that existing 
uses may be extended on an approved site provided that plans are submitted to and 
approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

Pursuant to LAMC 13.01-E.2(i) - A Zoning Administrator may impose additional conditions 
or require corrective measures to be taken if he or she finds, after actual observations or 
experience with drilling one or more of the wells in the district, that additional conditions are 
necessary to afford greater protection to surrounding property. 

Pursuant to Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) Condition No. 14, at any time during the 
period of validity of the grant, should documented evidence be submitted showing continued 
violation of any condition of this grant, resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or 
interference with the peaceful enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties, the 
Zoning Administrator reserves the right to require the applicant to file for a plan approval 
application, together with associated fees, the purpose of which will be to hold a public 
hearing to review the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness of these conditions.  
Upon review the Zoning Administrator may modify, add, or delete conditions. 

 

 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 16 of 72 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

After thorough consideration of the statements contained in the application, the plans 
submitted therewith, and the statements made at the public hearing on April 28, 2022, all of 
which are by reference made a part hereof, the whole of the administrative record as well 
as knowledge of the property and surrounding district, I find as follows: 

BACKGROUND 

This Plan Approval Determination results from the research and findings of this office, as 
well as testimony raised by residents and stakeholders from the community surrounding the 
Murphy Oil Drill Site operation. This Determination is in response to the application filed by 
the operator on September 1, 2021. 

Research and reports from the Department of City Planning (“LADCP”), the Department of 
Building and Safety (“LADBS”), the Los Angeles Fire Department (“LAFD”), the Southern 
California Air Quality Management District (“SCAQMD”), and the California Department of 
Conservation Geologic Energy Management Division (“CalGEM”) was conducted before 
issuing this Determination. Also, a review of current oil drilling and oil production best 
practices used to safeguard communities was conducted as a part of the evaluation of the 
Murphy Oil Drill Site operation. 

This Plan Approval process began with a November 17, 2020 letter from the Department of 
City Planning’s Office of Zoning Administration to the operator inquiring about any recent 
well work at the Drill Site and if the operator had secured permits from CalGEM for recent 
work. On December 17, 2020, the operator responded to the City with additional information. 

On June 1, 2021, the Department of City Planning’s Chief Zoning Administrator sent a letter 
to the operator notifying them of the requirement to file for a Plan Approval for a review of 
compliance with and effectiveness of the conditions imposed under Case No. ZA-1959-
15227(O)(PA4). On September 1, 2021, the operator submitted an application to the 
Department of City Planning for a Plan Approval (Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6) to 
review compliance with the conditions of approval imposed under Case No. ZA-1959-
15227(O)(PA4). The applicant included a letter in the application requesting additional 
conditions related to annual inspections, emergency reporting, air monitoring, and 
microturbines. 

On July 28, 2021, the Department’s Chief Zoning Administrator sent a letter to the operator 
inquiring about possible well maintenance activities that would be subject to LAMC 13.01-
H. On September 22, 2021, the operator responded to the City with additional information. 

On December 22, 2021, the Chief Zoning Administrator sent a letter to the operator inquiring 
about toxic chemicals used to mask odors, use of radioactive materials on wells, and staff 
leaving the drill site at night. On January 17, 2022, the operator responded to the City with 
additional information. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 17 of 72 
 

A Public Hearing was conducted on April 28, 2022 to take formal testimony from the 
residents, stakeholders, community groups, and the operator. At the conclusion of the Public 
Hearing, the matter was taken under advisement. 

The Office of Zoning Administration’s review of the whole of the record and found that the 
applicant and operator were partially compliant with the Conditions of Approval. The details 
of this review, as well as the Zoning Administrator's responses, are provided in the "Review 
of Compliance with Conditions" section of the report.  Because of the partial compliance and 
neighborhood complaints over odors and noise additional Conditions of Approval have been 
required. 

Project Site 

The subject property is a controlled drill site, known as the Murphy Oil Drill Site, which was 
first permitted in 1961. The site is a slightly sloping, irregular-shaped parcel of land 
consisting of approximately 3.2 acres, having a frontage of approximately 323 feet along 
West Adams Boulevard, 160 feet along West 26th Place, and 165 feet along West 27th 
Street. The site is in the [Q]R4-1-O-HPOZ zone and Urbanized Oil Drilling District No. 37 
established by Ordinance No. 114,701 in 1959. The site contains wells bottoming in 
Urbanized Oil Drilling Districts Nos. 36-40, 81-84. 

The northern portion of the drill site is enclosed with a concrete block wall which is set back 
from Adams Boulevard approximately 25 feet. Along 27th Street, the property is enclosed 
by a 6-foot high wrought iron fence with approximately 44,900 square feet (1.03 acre) of 
landscaped area immediately behind it. A block wall, varying in height from 21 feet to 29 feet 
because of topographical variations, is located a distance of 265 feet from 27th Street. In 
addition to the landscaped area, the site is developed with tanks, well cellars, pumps, 
generators, compressors, operational buildings, and a parking area on the easterly side of 
the property. The property is accessed via a pair of gates and driveways on Adams 
Boulevard and via a gate and driveway on 27th Street. 

Neighboring properties to the north are zoned R4-1-O-HPOZ and are improved with one- 
and two-story buildings with a library (LA84 Foundation) and a seven-story residential 
building. Neighboring properties to the south are zoned RD2-1-O-HPOZ and are improved 
with single- and multi-family dwellings. Neighboring properties to the east are zoned R3-1-
O-HPOZ and are improved with two-story multifamily dwellings (St. Andrews Garden 
Apartments). Neighboring properties to the west are zoned [Q]R4-1-O-HPOZ and R3-1-O-
HPOZ and are improved with the two-story Carl Bean House (hospice) and the two-story 
Servants of Mary Convent.  Also located within 500 feet of the site are St John of God rest 
home and hospital and the William Andrews Clark Memorial Library owned by U.C.L.A. 

Adams Boulevard, adjoining the property to the north, is an Avenue I, with a designated 
width of 100 feet and is improved with a paved roadway, concrete curb, gutter, and sidewalk. 

26th Place, adjoining the property to the west, is a Local Street – Standard, with a designated 
width of 60 feet and is improved with a paved roadway, concrete curb, gutter, and sidewalk. 
The street dead-ends into the perimeter wall of the project site with no traffic turn-around. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 18 of 72 
 

27th Street, adjoining the property to the south, is a Local Street – Standard, with a 
designated width of 60 feet and is improved with a paved roadway, concrete curb, gutter, 
and sidewalk. 

Previous zoning related actions on the site include: 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA5) – On, June 30, 2016, the Zoning Administrator denied, 
the installation and use of a Clean Enclosed Burner ("CEB800") and appurtenant sound 
attenuation wall and modification of Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F with respect to 
hours of operation during project construction at the site. 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA4)-1A – On June 3, 2014, the South Los Angeles Area 
Planning Commission denied appeals from two appellants. The parties involved agreed 
that issues will be raised at the public hearing for a subsequent Plan Approval. 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) – On December 26, 2013, the Zoning Administrator 
approved the installation of the CEB800 and Sound Wall subject to specific conditions. 
On March 11, 2014, the Zoning Administrator issued a communication clarifying that 
the determination is appealable and established a fifteen-day appeal period. 

Ordinance No. 181,769 – On June 28, 2011, the Los Angeles City Council passed an 
ordinance to establish the Jefferson Park Historic Preservation Overlay Zone (HPOZ). 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) – On December 26, 2007, the Zoning Administrator 
approved the expansion of an existing gas plant on the facility, subject to specific 
conditions. Equipment additions included six vertical absorbers, a gas compressor, a 
recirculation pump, a heat exchanger, and sound enclosures, all manufactured off-site, 
to be installed on the premises. 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) – On September 14, 2007, the Zoning Administrator 
approved methods and conditions controlling drilling and production operations for the 
expansion of the existing well cellar with a maximum of twelve new well slots, including 
the drilling of two new Class "A" oil wells and one Class "B" well, respectively identified 
as M-28, M-29, and M-30 of the Murphy Drill Site within Urbanized Oil Drilling District 
Nos. U-37 and M-30 respectively, and the future drilling of nine additional wells for a 
maximum total of 38 well slots. 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) – On March 13, 2006, the Zoning Administrator approved 
methods and conditions controlling drilling and production operations for the re-drilling 
of three Class "A" oil wells, including the conversion of two Class "B" wells into Class 
"A" wells, identified as M-2RD1, M-12RD1, and M-14RD2 of the Murphy Drill Site within 
Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36, U-37, and U-82 respectively. 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA2) – On April 15, 2005, the Zoning Administrator approved 
a request for a Plan Approval pursuant to the instruction of the Chief Zoning 
Administrator, relative to initiating Council Motions (Ludlow-Reyes and Perry-Parks), 
dated April 13, 2004, in which it has been determined that the subject use poses no 
significant nuisance to adjoining or neighboring properties. The subject of the Council 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 19 of 72 
 

Motions was, in part, concerning resident complaints of oil fumes and noise arising from 
recent oil drilling operations at site. 

Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA 1) – On August 1, 2003, the Zoning Administrator approved 
a request for an approval of plans to temporarily modify Condition No. 12 of Case No. 
ZA 15227 to allow the re-drilling of two oil wells on a 24-hour, seven day per week basis 
for approximately 40 days. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On February 15, 1994, the Zoning Administrator approved a 
request for methods and conditions for the expansion of an existing well cellar at the 
Murphy Drill Site in order to provide additional space for the future drilling of six Class 
"A" oil wells. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 16182 – On June 22, 1993, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for methods and conditions for the re-drilling of three Class "A" oil 
wells identified as 26RD2, 16RD, and 5RD of the Murphy Drill Site involving Urbanized 
Oil Drilling District Nos. U-82 and U-37. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15890 – On January 22, 1993, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for an approval of plans to remove and distribute 366 cubic yards 
of dirt at the Murphy Drill Site in order to provide additional space for the re-drilling of 
three Class "A" oil wells. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15890 – On December 29, 1992, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for methods and conditions for the re-drilling of three Class "A" oil 
wells identified as 10 RD2, 22 RD, and 21 RD of the Murphy Drill Site involving 
Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36 and U-37. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15890 – On February 4, 1992, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for methods and conditions for the re-drilling of one Class "A" oil 
well identified as Murphy No. 7 involving Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36 and 
U-37. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On July 18, 1985, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for 
the installation and operation of gas treating equipment to extract carbon dioxide from 
natural gas on property identified as the Murphy Drill Site. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 20385 – On April 4, 1972, the Zoning Administrator approved 
plans for construction of an approximately 10 feet by 40 feet enlargement onto the 
easterly side of the well cellar on the Murphy Drill Site, with the new construction 
containing space for four additional oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 20385 – On November 25, 1970, the Zoning Administrator approved a 
request for methods and conditions for the re-drill of Murphy No. 18 oil well bottomed 
under Oil Drilling District No. 36 and for drilling of Murphy No. 22 bottomed under U-82, 
and for temporary relaxation of Condition Nos. 1, 3, 6, 7, 8 and 12 of extant ZA Case 
No. 15227. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 20 of 72 
 

Case No. ZA 19951 – On September 10, 1969, the Zoning Administrator approved a 
request for methods and conditions for the resumption of drilling operations for oil wells 
to be bottomed in the involved Oil Drilling District U-37 and adjoining Districts U-36, U-
38 and U-82. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On November 14, 1966, the Zoning Administrator approved plans 
for alterations primarily in the way of a new door and vent in the existing electric switch 
house on the southerly side of the subject property. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227, 15891, and 15973 – On April 13, 1966, the Zoning Administrator 
approved the temporary installation and operation of an enclosed hydraulic pumping 
unit only for Well No. 10 on the controlled drill site. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On April 9, 1963, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for an 
addition to the compressor building, a new Glycol generator and absorber installation, 
and a clean-up tank. 

Case No. ZA 16218 – On June 15, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use of 
the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre District No. U-
82 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case No. ZA 16185 – On June 15, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use of 
the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre District No. U-
81 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case No. ZA 16184 – On June 7, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use of 
the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 153-acre District No. U-
84 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case No. ZA 16183 – On June 7, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use of 
the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 150-acre District No. U-
83 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15937 – On June 1, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved 
plans for the permanent production facilities, including additional gas-oil separators, a 
vapor compressor, tanks, gas scrubbers, and accessory buildings. 

Case No. ZA 16182 – On May 24, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use of 
the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre District No. U-
82 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15937 – On December 27, 1961, the Zoning Administrator 
approved plans for limited production facilities on the site such as drain and skimmer 
pits, gas-oil separators, relief line scrubber and well manifolding. 

Case No. ZA 15937 – On November 1, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 776-acre District 
No. U-36 to U-40 for the bottoming of not to exceed 16 oil wells. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 21 of 72 
 

Case No. ZA 15912 – On October 2, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 158-acre District No. 
U-40 for the bottoming of not to exceed eight oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15911 – On September 29, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 146-acre District 
No. U-39 for the bottoming of not to exceed seven oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15891 – On August 31, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 153-acre District No. 
U-38 for the bottoming of not to exceed seven oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15890 – On August 30, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre District No. 
U-36 for the bottoming of not to exceed eight oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On May 9, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for 
landscaping, camouflage for the derrick acoustical quilt, derrick, DC converter house, 
mud pump, and shaker house. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On May 2, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for 
drilling equipment and various facilities, grading, retaining walls, masonry walls, 
drainage concrete structures, drilling cellar, drilling pad, and gates on the subject 
property. 

Case No. ZA 15227 – On April 5, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the use of 
the subject property as a controlled drilling site not to exceed five oil wells under certain 
prescribed conditions and methods of operation with the understanding that additional 
wells may later be permitted. 

Ordinance No. 114,701 – On October 6, 1959, the Los Angeles City Council passed 
an Ordinance amending Sections 12.04 and 13.01 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code, 
establishing Oil Drilling District No. U-37. 

Ordinance No. 187,709 – On December 2, 2022, the Los Angeles City Council passed 
an Ordinance amending Sections 12.03, 12.20,12.23, 12.24 and 13.01 of the Los 
Angeles Municipal Code to prohibit new oil and gas extraction and make existing 
extraction activities a nonconforming use in all zones. 

 

Previous Los Angeles Fire Department (LAFD) actions on the site include: 

December 22, 2021 – The LAFD conducted an inspection on December 22, 2021 and 
issued Notice to Comply No. DAEGYCDGP citing failure to amend the SPCC Plan 
within 6 months to include: 1) when the facility has had a change in design, construction, 
operation, or maintenance which affects the facility’s discharge potential, and/or 2) to 
include more effective proven technology at the time of the 5-year SPCC Plan review 
and evaluation per HSC 6.67 25270.4.5(a); 40 CFR 1 112.5(a), 112.5(b); and failure to 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 22 of 72 
 

describe in the SPCC plan facility security measures including: 1) how access to the oil 
handling, processing, and storage areas is secured and controlled, 2) how master flow  

 

 

and drain valves are secured, 3) how unauthorized access to starter controls on oil 
pumps is prevented, 4) how out-of-service and loading/unloading connections of oil 
pipelines is secured, and 5) the appropriateness of security lighting to both prevent acts 
of vandalism and assist in the discovery of oil discharges per HSC 6.67 25270.4.5(a); 
40 CFR 1 112.7(g). The operator was ordered to correct the violations within 30 days.  
All of the Fire Department violations were cured to the satisfaction of the Fire 
Department by March 2022. 

December 22, 2021 – The LAFD conducted an inspection on December 22, 2021, and 
issued Notice to Comply No. DA3ADJRBD citing failure to electronically submit the 
Business Activities Page and/or Business Owner Operator Identification Page, or failure 
to report complete or accurate information on these forms per 19 CCR 4 2652(a)(1); 
HSC 6.95 25508(a)(1), 25508(a)(3); failure to electronically submit complete and 
accurate hazardous material inventory information for all hazardous materials on-site at 
or above reportable quantities per HSC 6.95 25506, 25505(a)(1), 25508(a)(1), 
25508(a)(3); and failure to establish and/or electronically submit an adequate 
emergency response plan and procedures for a release or threatened release of a 
hazardous material, and to verify agricultural handler exemption per HSC 25507.1 19 
CCR 4 2658 and HSC 6.95 25505(a)(3), 25508(a) (1), 25508(a)(3). The operator was 
ordered to correct the violations within 30 days.  All of the Fire Department violations 
were cured to the satisfaction of the Fire Department by March 2022. 

December 17, 2021 – The LAFD conducted an inspection on December 17, 2021 and 
issued Notice to Comply No. DAEL4TO06 citing failure to electronically submit complete 
and accurate hazardous material inventory information for all hazardous materials on 
site at or above reportable quantities per HSC 6.95 25506, 25505(a)(1), 25508(a)(1), 
25508(a)(3); and failure to electronically submit a site map with all required content per 
HSC 6.95 25505(a)(2), 25508(a)(1), 25508(a)(3); and failure to establish and/or 
electronically submit an adequate emergency response plan and procedures for a 
release or threatened release of a hazardous material, and to verify agricultural handler 
exemption per HSC 25507.1 19 CCR 4 2658; HSC 6.95 25505(a)(3), 25508(a) (1), 
25508(a)(3). The operator was ordered to correct the violations within 30 days.  All of 
the Fire Department violations were cured to the satisfaction of the Fire Department by 
March 2022. 

May 7, 2020 – The LAFD issued a Fire/Life Safety Violation Notice No. 2011456001 
ordering the operator to “Comply With the Requirement as Noted” following a Fire and 
Life Safety Inspection on May 5, 2020, ordering the operator to abandon or reactivate a 
non-operating oil well (Murphy-21, LAFD#2572). LAFD signed off on June 5, 2020 after 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 23 of 72 
 

conducting a re-inspection for code violation which found Murphy-21 now active and 
compliant.  

 

Previous South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) actions on the site 
include: 

June 4, 2021 – SCAQMD issued Notice to Comply No. 51096, directing the operator to 
conduct a specific cause analysis for the June 4, 2021 confirmed order event and submit 
the specific case analysis report as required by Rule 1148.1(f).  Resolved per SCAQMD 
online records portal. 

February 9, 2021 -  SCAQMD issued Notice of Violation (Assignment No. 1886357), 
citing that equipment shall not be operated within 1000 feet from the outer boundary of 
any K-12 schools.  Resolved per SCAQMD online records portal. 

January 5, 2021 – SCAQMD conducted an inspection (Assignment No. 1879454) 
related to SCAQMD Complaint Report regarding strong odor and fumes.  Complaint 
was closed out. 

January 27, 2021 – SCAQMD issued a Notice to Comply (Assignment No. 1886273) 
to provide information relating to permits to operate G61847 and G61848.  Status has 
not yet been determined. 

January 2, 2020 – SCAQMD issued Notice to Comply No. E46501, directing the 
operator to submit Rule 222 registration applications for two capstone microturbines per 
SCAQMD Rule 222.  Resolved per SCAQMD online records portal. 

December 18, 2019 – SCAQMD issued Notice of Violation No. 66850, citing two leaks 
greater than 50,000 ppm detected during district inspection in violation of SCAQMD 
Rule No. 1173(d)(1)(B); allowing produced gas to be vented to the atmosphere in 
violation of SCAQMD Rule No. 1148.1(d)(8); and failure to comply with Rule 1173 and 
1148.1 in violation of SCAQMD Rule 203(b). Resolved per SCAQMD online records 
portal. 

December 18, 2019 – SCAQMD issued Notice to Comply No. E50612 to repair leak 
(16,000 mph).  Resolved per SCAQMD online records portal. 

Previous California Geological Energy Management Division (CalGEM) (previously 
Department of Conservation, Division of Oil Gas and Geothermal Resources 
(DOGGR)) actions on the site include: 

September 27, 2019 – CalGEM observed and issued Violation No. 12186681, citing 
that the perimeter enclosure is not comprised of fencing with at least three strands of 
barbed wire mounted at a 45-degree angle from the top of the fence, and indicated that 
the operator may submit a proposal to use other types of materials that can effectively 
restrict access. The violation was resolved on April 8, 2021.  



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 24 of 72 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 

A Notice of Public Hearing was mailed to property owners and/or occupants residing near 
the subject site for which an application had been filed with the Department of City Planning. 
All interested parties were invited to attend the public hearing at which they could listen, ask 
questions, or present testimony regarding the project. Due to concerns over COVID-19, the 
Office of Zoning Administration Public Hearing was conducted via zoom and telephone on 
April 28, 2022, at approximately 9:00 a.m. The purpose of the hearing was to obtain 
testimony from affected and/or interested persons regarding the project. The hearing was 
conducted by Associate Zoning Administrator Charles J. Rausch, Jr. for Case No. ZA-1959-
15227-O-PA6 and CEQA No. ENV-2021-7445-CE.  

The public hearing was attended by the applicant’s representative (Ted Cordova), a 
representative of the United Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council (Laura Meyers), 
approximately 105 members of the public (31 speakers, including representatives from 
Stand LA Coalition, Liberty Hill Foundation), and a representative of Council District 10 
(Hakeem Parke-Davis). 
 
The following testimony was provided at the hearing: 
 
The Applicant’s Representative stated the following:  
 

• E&B Natural Resources received a letter from the ZA dated June 1, 2021 that 
required the filing of a Plan Approval. E&B submitted for a Plan Approval as 
requested. No project is being proposed. 
 

• E&B took over the Murphy Drill Site in October 2019 from a previous operator 
(Sentinel Peak Resources). The site has been operating safely for decades. E&B has 
demonstrated an excellent compliance record since they took over as operator. 
 

• E&B has been responsive to city questions about operations. The site is well 
regulated and inspected by multiple agencies including CalGEM, SCAQMD, LAFD 
CUPA, and others. There were no issues in a CalGEM inspection in 2021, LAFD 
inspection, or with other agencies. They are in compliance with existing regulations 
and guidelines including over 60 conditions. When issues arise from time to time, 
they try to fix them immediately for compliance. There have been no emergency 
events, spills, or alarms. 
 

• E&B met with local community members and had good conversations before 
acquisition.  
 

• E&B proposes 3 new conditions as best practices to safeguard the site and 
community, which are supported by both E&B and the community.  
 

o Annual inspections by the Petroleum Administrator and other City agencies. 
 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 25 of 72 
 

o Supplemental emergency reporting to immediately notify appropriate agencies 
including LAFD, Petroleum Administrator, and Council District 10 of accidents 
or spills. 
 

o Fenceline air monitoring system installation within 6 months of the 
determination letter that will provide continuous data to the Petroleum 
Administrator. 

 

• E&B wants “clarification” from the ZA on Condition 43 of LAMC Section 13.01-F 
regarding microturbines. They have been using electric power through microturbines 
on a power grid that were installed by a prior operator. There are multiple references 
to micro-turbines in prior determination letters, and a stakeholder has inquired about 
it.  
 

Those opposed to the project: 
 
Byron Chan, Esq., on behalf of EarthJustice for Redeemer Community Partnership: 
 

• Oil drilling is a dangerous activity using outdated methods, and they have failed to 
protect surrounding residents. EarthJustice requests to modernize the permit, in 
order to afford the same protections as those provided to Westside communities.  
 

• Zoning Administrator has the authority under code to require that oil drilling be 
conducted in due regard with the surrounding district. An image shows that there is 
a dense residential community of 14,000 people in a half-mile radius around the drill 
site, including homes, schools, libraries, playgrounds, and health centers. 
 

• Nearby residents are negatively impacted in a variety of ways, from excessive noise, 
noxious fumes, toxic air emissions, that are documented.  Researchers have found 
that residents in proximity to drill sites are 2-3 times more likely to report wheezing, 
sore throat, eye and nose irritation symptoms, and experience overall reduction in 
lung function and capacity. 
 

• The Zoning Administrator is responsible for making sure that regulatory oversight is 
not fragmented across different agencies. Fragmented oversight cannot meaningfully 
protect the community.  The Zoning Administrator’s authority is tied to land use to 
protect the health, safety, and quality of life of residents. It is the Zoning 
Administrator’s responsibility to modernize the permit and reduce dangers of the drill 
site.  
 

• Request 3 conditions be added to modernize and mitigate dangers of the operation: 
 

o Permanently enclose the drill site; 
 

o Only allow the use of electric workover rigs instead of diesel; and 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 26 of 72 
 

 
o Ban burning methane gas on the drill site. 

 

• These conditions have already been standardized at Westside drill sites. Packer Drill 
Site is already enclosed and disguised as an office building. Cardiff Drill Site is 
enclosed and disguised as a synagogue. Only electric workover rigs are allowed at 
both. These conditions demonstrate that the ZA prioritizes the health and safety of 
surrounding communities; the absence of such conditions is unacceptable. South LA 
residents deserve the same protections as West LA residents. 
 

• In a 2013 Plan Approval, the Zoning Administrator addressed negative impacts at the 
Jefferson Drill Site one mile away that had a history of violations. The Zoning 
Administrator added Conditions to modernize that drill site, and he has a similar 
responsibility here to modernize the permit and bring protective standards to South 
LA.  
 

• E&B offered “good neighbor” conditions, but they are not good neighbors. None of 
their provisions protect the residents. Reporting and monitoring is not adequate to 
hold them accountable. Modernizing the conditions is only the first step to protecting 
residents. At minimum, the conditions must match the Jefferson and West LA Drill 
Sites, and they must be enforced. 
 

• There is documented evidence of violations. There is video evidence from February 
2022 when E&B conducted maintenance work on injection wells and had tanker 
trucks with dangerous acids and toxic chemicals near senior housing. There is photo 
evidence of burning methane gas and microturbines that darken buildings, though it 
was never approved by the Zoning Administrator. The operator has been ignoring 
conditions.  
 

• This is critical for the health, safety, and quality of life of surrounding residents that 
have endured dangers for too long, and should get the same protections as West LA. 
The Zoning Administrator began a process for equal protection in South LA by 
modernizing the Jefferson Drill Site, and it is their responsibility to advance the work 
at the Murphy Drill Site.  
 

Laura Meyers, United Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council 
 

• She stated that she has been engaged in multiple cases, updates, reviews of 
conditions on this site since 2004. They advocated to modify the Conditional Use 
regarding landscaping that created the rear park-like landscaped area, which 
undergoes annual landscape reviews with UNNC and CD10 to verify that landscaping 
is still there. Recently, E&B has been discussing opportunities to open it up as a park.  
 

• The UNNC conducted 3 public meetings at the Planning and Zoning Committee and 
voted to support all 6 requested conditions in 2 separate motions.  



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 27 of 72 
 

 

• She is concerned that the organized opposition cannot embrace the other 3 
conditions that the UNNC and Jefferson Park United requested for emergency 
planning, fenceline monitoring, and annual inspections. The conditions would bring 
more transparency at a minimum.  

 

• She requested clarification on if the city previously approved microturbines. It was 
discussed as an alternative to CEB Flare but is unsure if it was approved. 
 

• Should require electric workover rigs instead of diesel.  
 

• Should require closure of the site, but someone needs to define the drill site. ZA 
determinations in the 1960s used the perimeter wall as an early definition of the drill 
site.  
 

• The site is in the Jefferson Park HPOZ, so building a building will require design 
review. Photos showing commercial corridor structures won’t be achievable in this 
community. 
 

• The UNNC is not in a position to determine whether or not the operator is compliant. 
Operator seems willing to have discussions, but they saw conflicting information 
between E&B and others.  
 

• The UNNC is working on multiple of these cases and understands that the conditions 
imposed in the early 1960s were removed because of outdated technology. It is 
important to keep up with newer, better technologies in operations, and not demand 
that arcane conditions be removed, but that they be replaced with contemporary 
conditions. 

 
Richard Parks: 
 

• Smelled petroleum fumes from the drill site in January 2021 and experienced intense 
headaches and respiratory impacts. Photographed five 21,000-gallon frac tanks 
being gassed. Odors were reported to SCAQMD which deemed it illegal  because of 
proximity within 1,000 feet from a school. Recorded workers without PPE drenched 
in oil to CalOSHA which resulted in 4 violations and fines.  
 

• There are no quiet hours, as they run all hours of the day. There is evidence of 
excessive noise from workover pumping metal for hours. They operate heavy 
equipment past 9 p.m. which violates operational hours.  
 

• E&B installs high pressure gas lines and high exhaust stacks. They fire microturbines 
which blacken the buildings. They are required to minimize pollution, but they chose 
to burn methane to generate power and create pollution.  
 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 28 of 72 
 

• Tanker trucks and flatbed trucks make multiple deliveries with warning labels on them 
and acid maintenance jobs. Chemicals drip off-site, and there is documented 
evidence of killing plants on the downwind corner. They photographed a truck with 
radioactive isotopes and reported it to CHP which informed them it was illegal for 
roadway use.  
 

• The drill site will never be safe for the neighborhood and is unsafe in the hands of an 
irresponsible operator. E&B hired a company that was cutting corners.  
 
 

 

• Request that they close the drill site, require electric workover rigs, and prohibit 
methane burning. These protections were given to white communities decades ago. 

 
Jill Johnston, USC Peck School of Medicine, member of CalGEM experts panel: 
 

• Study of Las Cienegas South LA oil field including Murphy Drill Site, demonstrates 
adverse impacts of oil drilling on air, water, and soil climate.  
 

• Study of 750 individuals ranging from ages 10 to 85, shows evidence of poor lung 
capacity and lung strength for individuals living closer to a a drill site, after adjusting 
for freeway proximity or smoking. People who live within 1,000 meters downwind of 
a drill site have lower lung function than upwind and affect lung capacity similar to 
freeway or second-hand smoke.  
 

• Community air monitoring network was able to distinguish air pollution between oil 
drilling versus freeway, and showed short term spikes in air pollution, methane, and 
gas.  
 

• Study analyzed data around AllenCo site after oil production, and found reduction in 
toxins in air, and found that irritants and carcinogens were associated with headaches 
and disease and impaired lung function. Study demonstrated that active drilling can 
affect air quality and health. 
 

• Scientific studies show that living closer to high density of wells leads to more health 
risk, and it is important to reduce exposures to neighborhoods.  
  

Bhavna Shasunder, Associate Professor and Chair, Urban and Environmental Policy, 
Occidental College: 

• Environmental health sciences study on oil drilling and place-based studies in South 
LA including the Murphy Drill Site. Studies showed that living nearby drill sites 
worsens lung function. There is substantive research on the proximity of drill sites 
and adverse impacts on human health. Murphy is close to a large population and 
living close to a drill site is worse for health.   
 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 29 of 72 
 

• Chemicals migrate off-site due to fugitive emissions, spills, and leaks, and affects 
water, air, and noise. The use is toxic, carcinogenic, alters body hormone systems, 
results in long term developmental and reproductive harm.  The air is vulnerable to 
toxic emissions and compromised by truck traffic. Electric rig is critical to air quality 
concerns. 
 

• There is an unequal cumulative burden on environmental justice. This is the top 5% 
of most cumulatively burdened communities in the State of California.  
 

• There are social economic barriers that mark daily life, and psychosocial stressors 
that worsen life impacts. Focus groups with residents showed that they experience 
stressors including lack of sufficient information of drill site and connection of 
agencies. 
 

• Decisions should be grounded on scientific research. The Zoning Administrator has 
an important role in land use decision making, and should take scientific research 
into account, and consider environmental justice. 

Other comments in opposition: 
 

• The best solution is to close down the drill site and revoke the operator’s conditional 
use permit. If the Zoning Administrator cannot close down the site, then they at 
minimum should require new operating conditions and extend the same protections 
afforded to West LA residents to enclose the site, require electric rigs, and ban 
methane burning on-site. They should put the health and safety of students and 
families ahead of oil operators. 
 

• Would prefer the oil drilling be enclosed than pumping chemicals into the 
neighborhood. Aesthetics should not be prioritized over public health.  
 

• The effect of inspections, data collection, and monitoring aren’t comparable to the 
physical separation of an enclosure from noise, emissions, odors, and toxins that 
come from the drill site. 

 

• The drill site is in the middle of a densely populated neighborhood that is primarily 
residential with families, children, and grandparents. There are up to 16,000 people 
living in a half mile radius of the site, and approximately 52,000 people within 1 
kilometer. It is next to homes, health care facilities, churches, and 3 schools serving 
1,300 students.  
 

• Oil drilling is a harmful and hazardous land use. There are issues with air pollution, 
toxic chemicals, fumes, odors and noise, which makes it incompatible in land use 
with the residential neighborhood that existed before the drill site. Neighbors and oil 
drilling don’t mix. It has a profound impact on the neighborhood even with regulatory 
controls and a good operator.  
 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 30 of 72 
 

• The drill site affects quality of life for nearby residents. Children ride their bikes and 
skateboards, parents push strollers, and families exercise outdoors and walk around 
the neighborhood, but they are being exposed to pollution. Residents shouldn’t have 
to suffer or live in fear of a catastrophic event. 
 

• The drill site has been in operation for decades, and there are a multitude of 
documents which show violations and complaints. There is a persistent history of 
violations and disregard of the rules that were meant to protect health and safety. 
Over a hundred Public Record Act requests have been submitted to regulatory 
agencies which reveals 29 CalGEM violations since E&B began operations, 8 
SCAQMD notices of violations and corrections, 9 CalOSHA violations, 1 LAFD 
violation for non-operating wells, and 10 LAFD CUPA notices of violations or notices 
to comply. In January 2021, they began to gas tanks and flood the neighborhood with 
noxious fumes. E&B has been served violations, citations, and fines from multiple 
regulatory agencies. E&B has disregarded operating conditions. 
 

• There is documented evidence and studies of the long-term health impacts of oil 
drilling. Literature confirms the hazards of oil drilling, chemicals, and emissions used 
in extractions. Studies show connections with cancer, diabetes, obesity, birth defects, 
infertility, low birth rate, miscarriages, spontaneous abortions, nose bleeds, 
headaches, asthma, and other respiratory illnesses. Oil drilling releases toxic 
chemicals, carcinogens, and endocrine disrupters. 
 

• A published report in 2015 called “Drilling Down” calls attention to hazards associated 
with urban drilling, and references experiences of neighbors noticing smells and 
odors with leaks that exceeded the allowable limit. 
 

• There are multiple schools serving over 2,000 students that are in close proximity to 
the drill site. Within 100 feet there are over 1,300 students that at are schools that 
are open five days a week. There are various preschools, playgrounds, and 
recreation centers in the area. Students are legally required to be at school but are 
being exposed to toxins and health impairments. Children near drill sites get 
unexplained nosebleeds at school. Children’s bodies are more susceptible to 
pollution. 
 

• Los Angeles County Department of Public Health reports 60,000 students in LAUSD 
with asthma. School nurses have to go through district nursing asthma programs to 
help students control asthma and prevent bad outcomes during asthma attacks at 
school. Asthma is the leading cause of school absenteeism which affects their 
education. There is usually a school nurse or certified health professional on-site only 
one day a week. 
 

• There have been numerous miscarriages within a one-mile radius of the site. Active 
drilling sites involve acids and chemicals that are endocrine disrupters that harm 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 31 of 72 
 

reproductive health of both men and women and can be passed on to future 
generations.  
 

• Individuals that recently move into the area experience new health issues even if they 
were previously healthy. Residents nearby experience decreased lung function, 
asthma, wheezing, and other health impacts. Children are diagnosed with cancer. 
Individuals experience seizures that could lead to death. It poses a risk to neighbors. 
 

• Neighbors can’t leave their windows open as they experience chronic headaches due 
to chemicals and odors. Neighbors wake up with vicious headaches and smell strong 
odors of burning plastic or weird soap smells in the middle of night. They have to shut 
the windows if they can’t afford air purifiers or air conditioning. There is noise and 
humming overnight. Neighbors have to wear ear plugs at night because of the 
constant noise. The noise and odors force neighbors to close their windows and close 
themselves off from their neighbors which causes deep trauma.  
 

• There are maps showing underground piping that go underneath homes and connect 
the Murphy, Jefferson, and AllenCo Drill Sites. 
 

• E&B has disclosed that they use (chemcor odor jasmine) which is an odor 
counteractant that is sprayed in open air to mask toxic explosive gases. It is additional 
chemical. Safety data sheet shows it contains endocrine disrupter and causes birth 
defects and reproductive harm. It is being sprayed in the open air near homes, 
medical facilities, and schools. E&B is covering up one problem with another that 
causes long-term impacts on children. 
 

• LA City Council and LA County Board of supervisors voted to phase out and prohibit 
new drilling, but the neighbors still experience the dangers of oil drilling due to 
violations at the site. Students and families can’t wait a year for the drill site to close 
or 20 years for the city ordinance. 

 

• CalGEM regulates oil extraction and moved in 2021 to create a 3,200-foot health and 
safety buffer around oil drills, but Murphy is 40 feet from the nearest home.  

 

• A recent peer-reviewed study of 1,000 residents within 1,000 meters of Murphy and 
AllenCo showed substantial reduction in lung health and function, which was 
equivalent to daily exposure to second-hand smoke or living next to a busy freeway. 
Research notes that the harms appear to be permanent. This harms the health of 
children, limiting their potential, making them more vulnerable to debilitating 
respiratory diseases like COVID and asthma. 
 

• It is a toxic facility and nuisance that poses health risks in a community of color and 
lower- and middle-income households. It is environmental racism. Statistics show 
that black and brown communities have been impacted by fossil fuels and are 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 32 of 72 
 

discriminated against as they don’t have the same protections as more affluent whiter 
communities on the Westside.  
 

• These are small reasonable steps to provide protections that have already been 
granted to wealthier whiter communities on the Westside. This is an opportunity to 
protect, preserve the welfare of, and end discriminatory disparate practices against 
frontline communities. Every possible measure needs to be taken.  
 

• The City has recognized that monitoring doesn’t afford enough protection, as drill 
sites in Westside communities were enclosed and mandated to use workover rigs 
and banned from methane burning decades ago. 
 

• South LA has long been targeted for undesirable land uses and underinvestment. 
Residents have been excluded from environmental benefits that ensure safety, 
health, and opportunities from across the city. 
 

• Los Angeles has been a progressive city, and we should move to the 21st Century in 
our actions. Oil drilling is an outdated and antiquated land use. Fossil fuels have been 
obsolete for decades. Electric cars are safer, less noisy, and better for the 
environment. Allowing oil drilling will be incompatible with the direction of the city. 
 

• The drill site has a piece of land that is landscaped nicely with trees, which should be 
made available to the public because there is a lack of green space in the 
neighborhood. 
 

• Many families moved here because of the sense of community, open space, but did 
not know about the drill site. E&B is not a responsible operator. Most of it happens 
behind closed doors. Neighbors receive no notice of the activity. There is lack of 
transparent communication with the operator, and no warning or information from the 
operator when tanker trucks arrive.  
 

• Only 20-30 people spoke at the public hearing, but there are 13,000 people living 
within 5 blocks of the site that are being poisoned every day. Some families could not 
join the meeting but are the most impacted. Some can’t take time off from their jobs, 
don’t have internet or computer access, and don’t have the choice of moving away. 
 

• The agreement between Union Oil and Catholic Archdiocese in the 1950s to operate 
oil at the site has affected successive generations.  

 

• The City has not been addressing violations. LAFD has not enforced fire codes or 
mandates that idle wells be plugged. LADBS has approved electric permits for large 
gas-burning microturbines. OZA has not acted on illegal well conversions and 
installation of unauthorized gas generators. LAFD CUPA has not addressed 
concerns of personnel or maintenance staff leaving.  

 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 33 of 72 
 

 
 
 

General comments/questions: 
 

• Operator’s proposed conditions are modernized and being applied for all urban sites. 
Annual inspections are more modern than what has been done in the past via desk 
inspections. Supplemental emergency notifications to the city are very progressive 
and modern and has been encouraged and supported by the community. Real-time 
fence-line monitoring with data that is shared with the community creates scientific 
data to understand and shared on a state-of-the-art platform transparently for the 
community. They seem modern and well beyond what’s in place in the city.  
 

• The site is enclosed. I would be alarmed to see a multi-story wall that would reflect 
road noise into the community and shade neighboring properties.  
 

• There are allegations of violations at the CD10 and UNNC meetings, but 
documentation of such violations has not been established. 
 

• The current operator brought multiple documents responding to the city and state 
agencies showing they are in good standing and meet the conditions.  
 

• Is there a way to get access to the whole case to get background on previous 
decisions and conditions?  
 

• Is it possible to get air monitoring device data publicly available? There are AQI 
indicators scattered across Los Angeles, so it will be useful to get empirical data to 
compare with other places in the city. 
 

• What is their reasoning for acquiring the site with all the issues at play? Is it based 
on price/cost analysis, or do they factor in other considerations like environmental? 
Is E&B confident enough that this it’s a clean facility that they would add publicly 
available data real-time from air quality monitors? 

 
Council District 10 representative (Hakeem Parke-Davis) stated the following: 
 

• The site has a storied history since first operations in 1961 by Union Oil. There are 
approximately 23 active wells, 8 chemical/water injection sites, 1 pressure injection 
well.  
 

• It is an urban oil drilling facility surrounded by housing, religious institutions, schools, 
and parks.  

 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 34 of 72 
 

• Community groups have reached out to the Council Office and advocated for 
monitoring, due to health complications with fugitive odors, noise impacts from 
alarms, and unmanned operations.  

 

• E&B is a reputable operator and many violations and missteps have been corrected, 
but more can be done to ensure best practices and operating protocols are put in 
place. There should be a full study for compliance with PA4 conditions, as it seems 
that many are not in compliance.  

 

• Request that the Zoning Administrator mirror the conditions requested by 
constituents, legal representatives, and E&B, including: 

 

o Enhanced air quality monitoring system. Fence-line monitoring should be 
extended to 500 feet at bare minimum with remote monitoring data that is 
publicly available for fugitive gases and other chemical monitoring to be readily 
available to the Zoning Administrator, Fire Department, and Office of 
Petroleum Administration. 
 

o Complete ban of burning methane on the site. E&B operates many drill sites 
across the city, some of which are enclosed or use electric workover rigs, and 
they should make the same improvements here. It’s within their feasibility to 
modernize operations and enhance protection of the surrounding community 
that is continuing to densify.  

 

o Wells and storage tanks should be in an enclosed building with enhanced 
vacuum filtration. It should be covered since diesel fuel is affecting neighbors. 

 

• Zoning Administrator should take into consideration the type and amount of infusion 
chemicals being used to simulate production. The Zoning Administrator and operator 
should work with the Fire Department to identify all operational wells and non-
operational wells in order to cap those non-functioning wells. 

 

Applicant statements in rebuttal: 
 

• E&B’s intent is to contribute to the city and community success. Public comments 
and testimony will help them to do that.  
 

• California has the most stringent regulatory framework. E&B will be in a good position 
as a good neighbor with the existing conditions plus 3 proposed conditions.   

The Associate Zoning Administrator placed the case under advisement for the public record 
to remain open for an additional 30 days, until May 31, 2022.   

CORRESPONDENCE 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 35 of 72 
 

March 11, 2020 Letter from EarthJustice regarding abandonment of idle oil 
wells at the Murphy Drill Site 

June 25, 2020 Letter from EarthJustice inquiring into status of Murphy Well 
Nos. 8 and 16, and inquiring into work observed at the Murphy 
Site  

April 30, 2021 Letter from Redeemer Community Partnership regarding 
violations and nuisance activities including a new gas meter set 
assembly, hours of operation, graffiti, landscaping, good repair, 
neighborhood traffic, noise, odor complaints, good oilfield 
practice, new regulatory action, acid maintenance, and new 
research. 

October 15, 2021 Letter from Redeemer Community Partnership regarding 
operator’s failure to maintain a 24/7 on-site security and 
emergency response presence, use of an unpermitted truck to 
transport and deploy radioactive isotopes, failures to keep site 
equipment permitted, use of a health-harming odor 
counteractant, and construction of high-pressure fossil gas 
infrastructure to import and burn methane. 

October 29, 2021 Letter from Redeemer Community Partnership regarding 
operations leaving Murphy Drill Site unattended.   

November 9, 2021 Letter from Redeemer Community Partnership regarding 
California Department of Industrial Relations Division of 
Occupational Safety and Health inspection of Murphy Drill Site. 

December23, 2021 Letter from Redeemer Community Partnership regarding 
operator’s failure to implement its Spill Prevention Control & 
Countermeasure Plan by leaving the Murphy Drill Site without 
24-hour personnel coverage for extended periods. 

March 1, 2022 Letter from Empowerment Congress North Area Development 
Council (NANDC) indicating the NANDC Board voted to 
support the modernization of the Murphy Drill Site’s operating 
conditions to health protections including enclosure of the 
facility, use of electric workover rigs, and prohibition on burning 
gas on-site either for power generation or flaring. 

   November 15, 2022 A licensed petroleum engineer wrote in support of efforts to 
modernize the Murphy Drill Site’s operating conditions.   You 
have heard calls from the community and from the local Council 
Office requesting the modernization of the Murphy Drill Sites 
operating conditions including enclosing the facility by 
soundproofing the workover rig and raising the height of the 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 36 of 72 
 

facility’s walls, requiring the use of an electric workover rig and 
powering the facility with an electric utility connection.   These 
operating conditions are entirely feasible and would be health 
and safety protective for adjacent resident, students and 
patients.  The West Pico Boulevard Drill Site has operated under 
these conditions for more than 20 years since they were 
approved by the Zoning Administrator. The city also imposed 
these conditions on the Jefferson Drill Site in 2017.  These 
operating conditions would reduce the community’s exposure to 
noise, fumes, odors, light, and other factors of nuisance and 
annoyance.  The letter writer (Anneliese Anderle, P.E.) retired 
from the California Division of Oil, Gas and Geothermal 
Resources in 2014. 

The City’s Petroleum Administrator, Erica Blyther, submitted a formal letter of 

correspondence commenting on potential new conditions proposed by the operator 

and proposed by community organizations for ZA 1959-15227 (O) (PA6). The 

Petroleum Administrator’s formal letter, dated December 5, 2022, and addressed to 

the Associate Zoning Administrator, is summarized as follows:  

 

1. Third-party annual inspections: The Petroleum Administrator commented on a proposed 

condition requiring the operator to hire a third-party consultant to perform an annual, on-

site inspection for the Murphy Drill Site. They highlighted that a similar condition is already 

in place at another operation, the Rancho Park Drill Site. As a result, this measure is a 

feasible measure to add to the overall conditions of approval for the Murphy Drill Site. The 

operator would need to hire a consultant to perform the on-site inspection and also 

provide an overview of all compliance records and permits from the various government 

agencies that regulate the drill site. The Petroleum Administrator included in her 

correspondence a sample copy of an annual report submission from the Rancho Park 

Drill Site as required by a condition that requests the annual third-party on-site inspection.  

 

2. Air monitoring measures: The Petroleum Administrator commented on the proposed 

inclusion of a condition of approval concerning air quality monitoring at the Murphy Drill 

Site. For this subject matter, the current Petroleum Administrator cited an Oil and Gas 

Health Report prepared by a previous City Petroleum Administrator, Uduak-Ntuk Joe, that 

is dated July 25, 2019. The current Petroleum Administrator highlighted that the 2019 

report has extensive descriptions of how the local air district, the South Coast Air Quality 

Management District, regulates air quality for various operations which include oil and 

gas extraction and production facilities such as the Murphy Drill Site. Furthermore, the 

Petroleum Administrator outlines various recommendations and suggested parameters if 

the operator will be required to install a fenceline monitoring system. The 

recommendations are to clearly identify which vapors, elements, and pollutants the 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 37 of 72 
 

monitoring system should be able to capture and/or measure. They also recommend for 

any proposed condition of approval to identify whether there will be an automatic alarm 

system in place should the monitoring system record a significant level of a particulate 

element(s) and also recommend that the operator use specific types of equipment in their 

monitoring system. The recommended equipment the Petroleum Administrator 

references is meant to identify specific elements and vapors such as volatile organic 

compounds (VOCs) and hydrogen sulfide, among other elements.  

 

3. Use of microturbines: The Petroleum Administrator shared that the South Coast Air 

Quality Management District regulates emissions from methane burning operations such 

as the microturbines found at the Murphy Drill Site. The air quality district permitting 

process for microturbines is separate from any City or higher state review. The Petroleum 

Administrator further commented that microturbines assist in offsetting energy needs 

associated with the drill site facility operations. She points out that  there could be 

improvements in the capture and collection of emissions associated with operating 

microturbines. Microturbines are a source of emissions and vapors during normal 

operations. As a result, the Petroleum Administrator recommended that if the facility were 

to be permitted to use microturbines that the City Planning department can explore, 

requiring the operator to install a vapor recovery system, installation of low-bleed or zero-

bleed pneumatic devices, and the urgent replacement of leaking equipment. Low-bleed 

or zero-bleed pneumatic devices are automated equipment devices or instruments that 

are used to maintain a certain pressure or closure of valves so that they prevent the 

release of gases or liquids.  

 

4. Workover maintenance rigs: The Petroleum Administrator mentioned that the use of 

workover rigs is not entirely feasible at this time. She made a distinction that electric 

drilling rigs are available and used as a workover rig for oil well sites. At this time, 

however, electric workover rigs meant for rework and well abandonment projects are not 

commercially available in the United States. As a result, the Petroleum Administrator 

recommended that the Associate Zoning Administrator consider equipment and engine 

requirements for the Murphy Drill Site. In this case, the condition would require the drill 

site’s diesel-powered workover rig to meet distinct technical specifications. The Petroleum 

Administrator recommended, as identified in the July 2019 Oil and Gas Health Report 

(Page 82), specific tiers for all diesel powered equipment and engines that would be a 

California Air Resources Board (CARB) verified engine (CARB Tier 3) and would have an 

engine equivalent to a vehicle (or equipment) that uses an Environmental Protection 

Agency (EPA) Tier 4 Engine Standards.  

 

5. Operator’s use of maintenance acidizing: The Petroleum Administrator provided key 

sources and literature surrounding how maintenance acidizing projects are regulated by 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 38 of 72 
 

both the California Geologic Energy Management Division and by the South Coast Air 

Quality Management District. They also highlighted a research article that outlines that 

projects such as maintenance acidizing will become a project that consistently occurs at 

drill sites. One particular regulatory provision that the Petroleum Administrator highlighted 

was Rule 1148.2 that is facilitated and enforced by the South Coast Air Quality 

Management Districts. The local air district’s rule requires that operators report all 

maintenance acidizing operations prior to beginning work, but the current Rule 1148.2 

policy exempts all injection/waterflood wells. The Petroleum Administrator noted that in 

coming months, the South Coast Air Quality Management District will resolve that 

exemption by requiring operators to report all maintenance acidizing activities regardless 

of the well type which would include injection/waterflood wells. As a result, there would 

be increased transparency of when maintenance acidizing activities occur at operations 

such as the Murphy Drill Site.  

 

For the full letter of correspondence from the City Petroleum Administrator, a full printed copy 

is enclosed in the physical case file for ZA 1959-15227 (O) (PA6).  

 

REVIEW OF COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS 

The applicant filed for a Plan Approval in compliance with Condition No. 14 at the request 
of the Department of City Planning. The Zoning Administrator reviewed the whole of the 
record, including public testimony and correspondence, and found that the operator of the 
Murphy Drill Site was compliant with 23 Conditions of Approval, was partially in compliance 
with five (5) Conditions of Approval and in violation of two (2) Conditions of Approval.  The 
applicant filed for a Plan Approval in compliance with Condition No. 14. 

The following identifies the degree of compliance with the conditions of Case No. ZA1959-
15227-O-PA6 based upon testimony at the public hearing, planning staff's visit to the site, 
and information in the case file: 

[Note: The Zoning Administrator's response to each condition is in Bold Italics.]  
 

1. The existing and proposed well corridors shall be in substantial conformance with 
plot plans submitted and attached to the file identified as "Exhibit No. A-I dated 
March 27, 2007. 

COMMENT: In compliance with the plot plans. 

2. All terms and conditions specified under extant ZA Case No. 15227, dated April 
5, 1961, shall be strictly complied with, except as modified/clarified as follows:  

COMMENT:   In compliance, except as noted below in the Comments on each 
Condition.  Condition No. 43 from Sub-section 13.01-F was eliminated from the 
Conditions of Approval by Plan Approval No. 4. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 39 of 72 
 

3. All the conditions set forth in Section 13.01-E, 2 as well as Condition Nos. 3,4, 5, 
8, 9, 17, 18, 19, 22, 23, 33, 37, 40, 50, 54, 58, and 59 of Subsection F of Section 
13.01 of the Municipal Code are included in and by reference made a part of this 
approval and shall be complied with to the same extent as if herein restated in 
detail. 

COMMENT: In compliance with 13.01-E,2. See subsection F items outlined 
below. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 3: That the operator of any well or wells in the district 
shall post in the Office of Zoning Administration a $5,000 corporate surety bond 
conditioned upon the faithful performance of all provisions of this article and any 
conditions prescribed by a Zoning Administrator.  No extension of time that may be 
granted by a Zoning Administrator or change of specifications or requirements that 
may be approved or required by him or her or by any other officer or department of 
the City, or other alteration, modification or waiver affecting any of the obligations of 
the grantee made by any City authority shall be deemed to exonerate either the 
grantee or the surety on any bond posted as required in this article. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The wells were drilled many years ago in 
compliance with this requirement. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 4: That the operators shall remove the derrick from 
each well within thirty (30) days after the drilling of said well has been completed, and 
thereafter, when necessary, such completed wells shall be serviced by portable 
derricks. 

COMMENT: In compliance. No drilling is currently ongoing at the site. For 
servicing, portable production rigs are used. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 5: That the drilling site shall be fenced or landscaped 
as prescribed by the Zoning Administrator. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The site is fenced and landscaped and inspected 
annually. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 8: That adequate fire-fighting apparatus and supplies, 
approved by the Fire Department, shall be maintained on the drilling site at all times 
during drilling and production operations. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The Fire Department approved the site’s fire 
systems, and regular inspections and testing are performed in compliance with 
the Chief’s Regulation 4. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 9: That no refining process or any process for the 
extraction of products from natural gas shall be carried on at a drilling site. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The facility does not perform refining of natural gas 
products.  It does, however, use natural gas which is a by- product from the 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 40 of 72 
 

extraction of oil from the on-site wells to power a co-generation micro-
generator facility for power on the site and to help clean natural gas for sale to 
the Southern California Gas Company. As much as one-third of the power used 
on the site is generated by this micro-generator facility. The Conditions 
contained in Section 13.01-F are not mandatory on all drilling sites. They MAY 
be imposed by the Zoning Administrator in determining the drilling site 
requirements.  In this particular case, the prohibition against on-site power 
generation contained in Condition 43 was imposed in the original 
Determination detailing the additional requirements.   In Plan Approval No. 4 at 
the applicant’s request, this Condition was eliminated, but there was no 
outright permission to grant the use of microgenerators on the site. Thus, in 
this case, because there was not an outright prohibition, the use of micro-
generators was permitted on the site. The applicant did request, as a part of 
the application for this Plan Approval, clarification of the use of micro-
generators on the site.  The Zoning Administrator has clarified the use of micro-
generators on the site in New Condition No. 25. The Zoning Administrator did 
require that any micro-generators be included within the containment structure 
that has been required to enclose the production site with an enhanced vapor 
recovery system so as to contain any odors which have been a complaint in 
the community and any noise so generated.   Also prohibited was the use of 
any natural gas pumped to the site from any other drill sites in the area or from 
any other off-site source.  Only natural gas produced on the site as a by-
product of oil resource recovery may be used in the micro-turbines. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 17: That any person requesting a determination by the 
Zoning Administrator prescribing the conditions under which oil drilling and 
production operations shall be conducted as provided in Subsection H, shall agree in 
writing on behalf of him or herself and his or her successors or assigns, to be bound 
by all of the terms and conditions of this article and any conditions prescribed by 
written determination by the Zoning Administrator; provided, however, that the 
agreement in writing shall not be construed to prevent the applicant or his or her 
successors or assigns from applying at any time for amendments pursuant to this 
Article or to the conditions prescribed by the Zoning Administrator, or from applying 
for the creation of a new district or an extension of time for drilling or production 
operations. 

COMMENT: In compliance. E&B Natural Resources has agreed to be bound by 
the terms and conditions of the Zoning Administrator’s approvals. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 18: That all production equipment used shall be so 
constructed and operated that no noise, vibration, dust, odor or other harmful or 
annoying substances or effect which can be eliminated or diminished by the use of 
greater care shall ever be permitted to result from production operations carried on 
at any drilling site or from anything incident thereto to the injury or annoyance of 
persons living in the vicinity; nor shall the site or structures thereon be permitted to 
become dilapidated, unsightly or unsafe. Proven technological improvements in 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 41 of 72 
 

methods of production shall be adopted as they, from time to time, become available 
if capable of reducing factors of nuisance or annoyance. 

COMMENT: NOT IN COMPLIANCE. Though the site is inspected regularly by 
several agencies including by the SCAQMD, LA City Fire CUPA, and CalGEM, 
records show several potential violations with Condition 18. 19 phone calls that 
were made to SCAQMD from December 2020 to June 2021 complaining of 
odors and strong tar/oil smells from the site. Dates of potential violation 
include December 11, 2020; January 5, 2021; February 12 and 13, 2021; March 
19, 22, 24, and 31, 2021; and June 4, 2021. On June 6, 2021, the SCAQMD 
inspector issued a Notice to Comply No. E51096 regarding more than six 
complaints about nuisance odors. On October 15, 2021, staff received 
photographic evidence from a constituent about a chemical usage disclosure 
from the operator’s PA6 application. The chemical’s composition (Odor Control 
Jasmine) has elements that are toxic.  While the applicant has stated that any 
violations have been resolved with the subject issuing authority, such 
violations show non-compliance with the Conditions of Approval.  

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 19: Wells which are placed upon the pump shall be 
pumped by electricity with the most modern and latest type of pumping units of a 
height of not more than sixteen (16) feet. All permanent equipment shall be painted 
and kept in neat condition. All production operations shall be as free from noise as 
possible with modern oil operations. 

COMMENT: In compliance. Well pumps are run by electricity though 
complaints have been registered about noise when workover rigs and other 
maintenance equipment are in operation. These are controlled by separate 
Conditions or by new Conditions. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 22: Upon the completion of the drilling of a well the 
premises shall be placed in a clean condition and shall be landscaped with planting 
of shrubbery so as to screen from public view as far as possible, the tanks and other 
permanent equipment, such landscaping and shrubbery to be kept in good condition. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The site uses a directional drilled pattern and has 
no permanent structures that are visible from adjacent public rights-of-way.  
The front of the site adjacent to West Adams Boulevard is landscaped with 
grass in-front of a green wall approximately 10 feet in height which blocks the 
view of the site except for a number of pipes which are above the level of the 
fence but hard to view.   The fence also has a number of trees and  low hedges 
placed in-front of the wall.  The rear portion of the site has been landscaped 
and maintained as green space though the public, at the moment, is not 
permitted onto the site.  There is also landscaping including trees, hedges and 
a required wrought iron fence and gate adjacent to the parking area adjacent 
to the drilling site with access from West Adams. The required concrete block 
wall for screening is present on the easterly property line and said fence obeys 
all fencing provisions of the R4 Zone.  The westerly property line is enclosed 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 42 of 72 
 

by a concrete block wall with a wooden cap to conceal the area from the 
adjacent properties to the west of the site. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 23: That not more than two wells may be drilled in each 
city block of the drilling district and bottomed under that block.  However, at the 
discretion of the Zoning Administrator, surface operations for additional wells may be 
permitted in each of the blocks where each additional well is to be directionally drilled 
and bottomed under an adjacent block now or hereafter established in an oil drilling 
district in lieu of a well drilled on the adjacent block and under a spacing program 
which will result in not exceeding two wells bottomed under each block. 

COMMENT: In compliance. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 33: That drilling operations shall be commenced within 
90 days from the effective date the written determination is made by the Zoning 
Administrator or Area Planning Commission, or within any additional period as the 
Zoning Administrator may, for good cause, allow and thereafter shall be prosecuted 
diligently to completion or else abandoned strictly as required by law and the 
premises restored to their original condition as nearly as practicable as can be done.  
If a producing well is not secured within eight months, the well shall be abandoned 
and the premises restored to its original condition, as nearly as practicable as can be 
done.  The Zoning Administrator, for good cause, shall allow additional time for the 
completion of the well. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The wells were drilled many years ago in 
compliance with this requirement. Subsequently drilled wells permitted by the 
Zoning Administrator after the original approval of the drilling site have also 
been completed within the 90-day limit.   

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 37: All waste substances such as drilling muds, oil, 
brine or acids produced or used in connection with oil drilling operations or oil 
production shall be retained in water–tight receptors from which they may he piped 
or hauled for terminal disposal in a dumping area specifically approved for such 
disposal by the Los Angeles Regional Water Pollution Control Board No. 4. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The site is in compliance with all applicable 
environmental requirements for disposal of waste substances used in 
connection with oil production. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 40: The Department of Water and Power of the City of 
Los Angeles shall be permitted to review and inspect methods used in the drilling and 
producing operations and in the disposal of waste and shall have the right to require 
changes necessary for the full protection of the public water supply. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The Department of Water and Power may review 
and inspect the site as needed. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 50: That no earthen sumps shall be used. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 43 of 72 
 

COMMENT: In compliance. There are no earthen sumps on location. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 54: That there shall be no tanks or other facilities for 
the storage of oil erected or maintained on the premises and that all oil products shall 
be transported from the drilling site by means of an underground pipeline connected 
directly with the production pump without venting products to the atmospheric 
pressure at the production site. 

COMMENT: Partially in compliance. The site transports oil products by means 
of underground pipelines, and gas on the site is piped to the local utility’s 
onsite equipment, injected into the well field or used in the microturbines for 
energy production.  As previously mentioned, complaints have been raised in 
the Community regarding smells from the burning of methane products in the 
microturbines.  Condition No. 23-d requires that an enhanced vapor recovery 
system be installed around the top of the containment structure to neutralize 
any odors produced by the micro-turbines which are also currently operated 
within an enclosed building. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 58: That no sign shall be constructed, erected, 
maintained or placed on the premises or any part thereof, except those required by 
law or ordinance to be displayed in connection with the drilling or maintenance of the 
well. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The informational signs placed on site are in 
compliance with applicable legal requirements or Conditions of Approval of 
this case. 

LAMC 13.01-F Condition No. 59: That suitable and adequate sanitary toilet and 
washing facilities shall be installed and maintained in a clean and sanitary condition 
at all times.  

COMMENT: In compliance. The site’s toilet and washing facilities are properly 
maintained. 

4. Landscaping of the site shall be maintained as follows: 

a. With respect to that portion of the drill site south of the cement block 
wall and facing 27th Avenue, the applicant shall: (1) remove the 
invasive/noxious plants; (2) plant 3 to 4 trees (of 24-inch box size) as 
infill trees along the south facing facility wall; (3) plant Ficus or climbing 
ivy, or similar plant-life (grown to 5 gallon size containers) along the 
South facing facility wall; (4) spread wildflower/grass mix in the open 
areas of south parcel (approx. 3/4 ac.); (5) install drip irrigation systems 
on the new plantings along south facing facility wall; (6) provide for 
temporary watering of the grasses and put sprinklers on timers to insure 
proper maintenance of the grassy area; (7) install new or improved 
cyclone fencing along 27th Avenue; (8) improve the appearance of the 
East fence by painting it; (9) install meandering dry creek bed 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 44 of 72 
 

hardscape on the South parcel, utilizing recycled broken concrete 
foundations from Drill Site facilities (final placement, configuration and 
length dependent on pipeline easement and other site facility 
considerations); (10) work with 10th Council District office and 
Archdiocese to allow future public access. 

COMMENT: In compliance. The landscaping was largely in place before E&B 
Natural Resources became the operator. E&B recently painted a fence along 
27thAve. E&B is in communication with Council District 10, the United 
Neighborhoods of the Historic Arlington Heights, West Adams, and 
Jefferson Park Communities Neighborhood Council (UNNC) and the 
Archdiocese related to public access. The operator stated, in reference to 
public access, “The pandemic slowed the operator down, but they remain 
optimistic that there is a path forward.”  

b. With respect to that portion of the drill site East of the cement block wall 
and fronting on Adams Boulevard, the applicant shall: (1) install 
new/improved cyclone fencing along Adams, including raising the East 
facing step wall which is only 2-3 feet high; (2) upon receipt of the 
adjacent property owners’ approval, install 2-foot high wrought iron 
fencing (or equivalent) on top of existing block wall (approximately 300 
feet); (3) remove graffiti on East wall; (4) improve wall on West side of 
the parcel by painting and installing new cyclone inserts; (5) level and 
place gravel surface down approximately half the depth of the lot and 
place barriers to protect the remaining portion of the lot; obtain permits 
for use as a temporary parking lot; (6) install parking lot lighting; (7) 
plant ficus/climbing ivy, or similar along East and West walls to enhance 
its appearance (using 5 gallon size container plantings); (8) install drip 
irrigation on new plantings; (9) install sprinkler timers. 

COMMENT: In compliance. Majority done before E&B was operator. 

c. A yearly review of the landscaping shall be conducted by the applicant 
with the Council District Office and the United Neighborhoods 
Neighborhood Council. 

COMMENT: In compliance. This year’s (2022) review will be done towards 
the end of year. 

5. That driveway access for ingress and egress to the drilling site shall be provided 
through the existing driveways fronting on Adams Boulevard. Furthermore, that 
the existing parking area on the enclosed drilling site area for use by vehicles 
employed in drilling and maintaining of oil wells on the property and for parking 
of automobiles of employees engaged in the drilling and production activities 
shall be augmented by additional parking on the area on the East of the drill site, 
outside of the enclosed area, which area shall be leveled and covered with a 
gravel surface to approximately one-half the depth of the lot for use as additional 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 45 of 72 
 

parking for employees and overflow parking for The Athletic Club. Parking on the 
East side of the drill-site, outside of the enclosed area shall not be used for heavy 
trucking operations or staging or storage of any. All such driveways and parking 
areas shall be regularly washed down, swept or otherwise kept free of 
accumulated cement, dust, or other materials which would produce dust in the 
use of said facilities. 

COMMENT: In partial compliance.  Complaints were raised in communications 
to the Department about vehicles for the installation of infrastructure for the 
production site accessing the entire site from 27th Street instead of from West 
Adams Boulevard.  Though Condition No. 5 limits access to the drilling site to 
West Adams Boulevard, there is no current specific prohibition for access from 
the site from 27th Street.  This has been rectified by a modification to Condition 
No. 5 to prohibit access to the site from 27th Street except for landscaping 
maintenance to the southerly portion of the site. 

6. As further amplification of Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F of the Municipal 
Code, except for actual drilling and production operations, which may be 
conducted 24 hours a day, seven days a week, no work shall be conducted on 
the property between the hours of 7:00 p.m. of one day and 7:00 a.m. of the 
following day or on Sundays. While actual drilling operations are being conducted 
between the hours of 7:00 p.m. of and 7:00 a.m., the applicant shall operate its 
facility in “Quiet Mode”. “Quiet Mode” shall mean that where possible, operation 
components shall be covered with acoustical shields/material, that all audible 
backup alarms shall be disabled and replaced with a spotter for safety purposes; 
operation of the cellar pump shall cease; the applicant's employees and 
contractors shall be prohibited from yelling, and the Derrick Man and Driller shall 
communicate by walkie-talkie only when the Derrick Man is on the derrick; no 
horns shall be used to signal for time for connection or to summon crew (except 
that a horn may be used for emergency purposes only. The applicant shall 
conduct on-site meetings to inform all personnel of quiet mode operations. 

In case of an emergency, all restrictions on the hours of operations shall be 
suspended for as long as is necessary to resolve the emergent situation, and for 
no longer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period necessary to set up and move 
the drilling rig off the premises, and to conduct drilling or re-drilling operations as 
herein authorized, heavy ("permitted” oversized/overweight load) truck deliveries 
shall be permitted from 7:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., on week-days, none during week-
ends and holidays. Deliveries shall be made by approaching the facility off of 
Adams Boulevard exclusively. Delivery trucks are to be staged off-site so as to 
reduce the time that trucks need to wait to enter the facility. If there is not 
sufficient room within the interior of the facility to accommodate a given heavy 
delivery truck, the applicant shall not call for the delivery of such heavy truck 
unless and until another heavy delivery truck parked within the facility is 
scheduled to leave the facility within 15 minutes. The maximum number of heavy 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 46 of 72 
 

truck deliveries allowed for moving the drilling rig on and off the premises shall 
not exceed 20 loads per day for a period of four days. Except for the four days 
required to move the drilling rig on and off the premises, the number of 
“permitted” truck deliveries per day (week days only, none on week-ends and 
holidays) shall be limited to a maximum of ten. The number of "non-permitted" 
truck deliveries per day (week-days only) shall be limited to a maximum of ten. 
The number of "non-permitted” truck deliveries per day (week-ends and holidays 
only) shall be limited to a maximum of five. 

The applicant shall give all abutting property owners written notice (in both 
English and Spanish), served by mail at least seven days prior to the dates when 
heavy truck traffic will commence related to moving the rig in for the drilling or re-
drilling of wells. 

COMMENT: Partially in compliance. Operator did experience one emergent 
situation, during production operations, where they needed to work past 7pm 
slightly. Operator did communicate this to the Planning Department as a 
courtesy that same day. Internally their goal is 8am to 6pm. They did have one 
crane truck show up 15 minutes prior to 7am for production operations. They 
did not begin crane operations until after 7am.   

Non-Compliance with hours of operation: Constituent raised concern about 
loud evening work on March 26, 2021, and operator acknowledged in email that 
well maintenance activity on that date went beyond the permitted time. 

7. The applicant shall install the following sound mitigation systems and implement 
administrative noise controls as follows: 

a. Erect a 30-foot high blanket sound wall on the west side of the drilling rig at the 
Murphy drilling site (west side property line), with the layout and wall lengths 
determined after the drilling rig and equipment positioning has been established.  

b. Install the sound wall as close as possible to the drilling rig and associated 
equipment with no gaps or openings in the walls. The sound wall material should 
have a minimum STC rating of 25. Sound wall gates shall be installed with the 
same sound loss rating as the wall material and the gates shall be closed at all 
times except for material delivery or pick up. The sound wall shall not be 
maintained for more than 120 continuous days. Should unforeseeable mechanical 
problems warrant the maintenance of the sound wall for a period exceeding the 
120 continuous days, the applicant shall notify the Office of Zoning Administration 
and Council Office, and inform the owners and occupants of surrounding property 
of the reasons for and estimated duration of the delay in the dismantlement of the 
wall. 

COMMENT: In compliance. No drilling has occurred recently or under this 
operator’s control 

c. (Condition 7.b was deleted in Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA4) 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 47 of 72 
 

COMMENT: Not applicable. 

d. MODIFIED:  To reduce sound from the drilling rigs sub-structure, acoustical 
blankets shall be hung from the exterior of the rig floor down to the ground, 
covering the open area of the rig sub-structure on the side of the rig facing the 
west and east property lines. 

COMMENT: In compliance as no drilling has been performed. Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site, but Section 12.23 
of the LAMC prohibits new drilling and redrilling in the City.  The Condition 
remains as Ordinance 187,709 is being litigated by among others the 
operator of the site. The Condition was modified to take into account that 
the property to the east is now a residential complex. 

e. The stabbing platform on the rigs derrick shall be enclosed with STC-25 rated 
acoustical blankets. 

COMMENT: In compliance as no drilling has been performed.  Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site. 

f. To mitigate the drilling rig draw works and brake noise level, sound damping 
acoustical material shall be installed and maintained during drilling activities. 

COMMENT: In compliance as no drilling has been performed.  Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site. 

g. Position all ancillary noise generation equipment away from the nearest critical 
receptors when feasible and install temporary sound enclosures, where possible 
on all noise generation equipment and operations. 

COMMENT: In compliance as no drilling has been performed.  Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site. In addition, 
Condition No. 23, requires that all production machinery be placed within a 
structure to reduce noise and odor impacts. 

h. Install vibration isolation pads on shaker units and provide low frequency 
designed sound absorption and barring panels adjacent to the shaker units. 

COMMENT: In compliance as no drilling has been performed.  Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site. 

i. Implement Drill Site "quiet mode" operation procedures including limitation of 
material delivery schedules and other sound mitigation requirements. 

COMMENT: In compliance as no drilling has been performed.  Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site. To ensure 
adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any unusual 
or unique noise problems, Condition No 7 has been modified to require 
sound level measurement and testing to be completed as the rig starts up 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 48 of 72 
 

operations. To verify and document sound level compliance, continuous 
sound level measurement and monitoring shall be considered during all 
drilling activity. 

j. To ensure adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any 
unusual or unique noise problems, sound level measurement and testing shall be 
complete as the rig starts up operations. To verify and document sound level 
compliance, continuous sound level measurement and monitoring may be 
considered during all drilling activity To ensure adequate sound mitigation has 
been installed, and to identify any unusual or unique noise problems, sound level 
measurement and testing shall be complete as the rig starts up operations. To 
verify and document sound level compliance, continuous sound level   
measurement and monitoring may  be considered during all drilling activity. 

COMMENT: : In compliance as no drilling has been performed.   Will be 
required when any drilling or re-drilling occurs on the site.  As stated above, 
the Condition has been modified to make mandatory during any re-drilling 
or workover operations. 

8. Drilling operations may be conducted seven days per week on a 24-hour basis,     
including any nationally recognized holiday. Drilling operations for the first three wells 
identified in the grant clause of the instant determination shall be completed within 
36 months from the effective date of this determination. The drilling for the following 
nine wells as hereby authorized shall be subject to a review of plans by the Zoning 
Administrator, without a public hearing, for the purpose of updating the record with 
the well identification and path. None of the wells hereby authorized shall be engaged 
in a production mode until the vault is complete. 

The first three new wells may be drilled prior to the construction of the new well (vault) 
cellar using temporary cellar rings in substantial compliance with the "Ring Cellar 
Schematic" and the "Construction Plan: Well Cellar Rings" attached hereto (Exhibit 
"B"), subject to any permitting requirement of the Department of Building and Safety 
and the CalGEM. 

Once these three wells have been completed, they will be shut so that the permanent 
well cellar can be constructed in compliance with plans approved by this grant (Exhibit 
"A"). During construction of the permanent well cellar, the temporary cellar rings shall 
be removed, and the cellars shall be incorporated in the permanent well cellar. 

COMMENT: In compliance. No drilling of new wells has occurred under this 
operator. This condition, however, was deleted in ZA-1959-15227 (O)(PA6). 

9. The applicant shall permanently post at all of the site's entry gates a direct telephone 
number to the supervisor of the site at that time for residents to call and report any 
ongoing problem. A call log shall be maintained including date and time of call and 
subject, and date and time of response and action. Said log shall be made available 
at the request of the Office of Zoning Administration. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 49 of 72 
 

COMMENT: In compliance. The Condition has been modified and updated to 
current Department standards for problem resolution. 

10. The applicant shall conduct daily inspections of the premises, including the exterior of 
the concrete block wall and the open areas on the east side of the premises and the 
south side, facing 27th Street. All trash and debris shall be removed from the site daily. 

COMMENT: In compliance. 

11. All graffiti on the site shall be removed or painted over to match the color of the surface 
to which it is applied within 24 hours of its occurrence. 

COMMENT: Partially in Compliance: From time to time, the operator does spot 
graffiti and clean it up immediately. However, and fortunately, it is a rare 
occurrence to see at the property. Operator had one incident – the words “20s” 
graffiti on the east side fence in the empty parking area and the operator did 
not catch it for some time. Operator indicates they did their best to catch any 
and all graffiti and have increased our protocols and training in this area. 

12. The authorized use shall be conducted at all times with due regard for the character 
of the surrounding district, and the right is reserved to the Zoning Administrator to 
impose additional corrective conditions, if, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, 
such conditions are proven necessary for the protection of persons in the 
neighborhood or occupants of adjacent property. 

COMMENT:  Not in compliance. The operator proposed “good neighbor” 
conditions -  including annual inspections and air monitoring. Additional 
Conditions beyond what the applicant has requested have been added to the 
Determination to bring into compliance with this Condition addressing 
enclosure, noise and odor control and access to site. 

13. All lighting on the site shall be shielded and directed onto the site and no floodlighting 
shall be located so as to be seen directly from any adjacent residential area. 

COMMENT: In compliance. 

14. At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should documented evidence 
be submitted showing continued violation of any condition of this grant, resulting in 
an unreasonable level of disruption or interference with the peaceful enjoyment of the 
adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning Administrator reserves the right to 
require the applicant to file for a plan approval application together with associated 
fees pursuant to LAMC Section 19.01-C (Plan Approval 12.24-M $1,898 or as in 
effect at the time of filing), the purpose of which will be to hold a public hearing to 
review the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness of these conditions. The 
applicant shall prepare a radius map and cause a notification to be mailed to all 
owners and occupants of properties within a 500-foot radius of the property, the 
Council Office, and the Los Angeles Police Department corresponding Division. The 
applicant shall also submit a summary and any supporting documentation of how 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 50 of 72 
 

compliance with each condition of this grant has been attained. Upon this review the 
Zoning Administrator may modify, add or delete conditions, and reserves the right to 
conduct this public hearing for nuisance abatement/revocation purposes. 

COMMENT: In process. E&B indicates they welcome a review of compliance 
with the Office of Zoning Administration and have applied for the same. 

 

FINDINGS 

After thorough consideration of the statements contained in the application, the plans 
submitted therewith, the statements made at the public hearing on April 28, 2022, all of 
which are by reference made a part hereof, as well as knowledge of the property and 
surrounding district, I find as follows: 

1. The site, known as the Murphy Drill Site, is located on a slightly sloping, irregular shaped 

property fronting on the south side of West Adams Boulevard, between Cimarron Street 

to the west and Manhattan Place to the east. The site overlays a portion of the Las 

Cienegas Oil Field. The property has dimensions of 323 feet along the south side of 

West Adams Boulevard, 165 feet along the north side of 27th Street and a non-uniform 

depth of 588 feet and an overall square footage of 3.25 acres. The Drill-site is located in 

the [Q]R4-1-HPOZ Zone and is within Urbanized Oil Drilling District U-37 as established 

in 1959 by Ordinance No. 114,701. The portion of the drill-site containing the existing 

drilling and production equipment is enclosed with a concrete block wall that is set back 

from West Adams Boulevard by approximately 25 feet. The portion of the drill-site within 

the block wall is accessed through one of two gates and driveways from West Adams 

Boulevard. The easterly portion of the drill-site, located outside of the block wall, is 

utilized for parking and has a separate driveway off of West Adams. The southerly portion 

of the drill-site fronts along 27th Street and is enclosed by a 6-foot wrought iron fence. 

This southerly area is landscaped and can be accessed from the drilling and production 

area enclosed by the block wall via an existing gate. Vehicular access to the landscaped 

area is through an existing driveway on 27th Street. Set back approximately 270 feet 

from 27th Street is the southerly line of the block wall which encloses the drilling 

machinery. The area to the south of the block wall is landscaped with mature landscaping 

and a circular driveway. There are also some pipes which extend through the block wall 

and go underground about one third of the way across the wall going from west to east. 

The site is improved with tanks, vessels, well cellars, pumps, generators, compressors 

and various pieces of equipment for operating the facility. There are also some 

microturbines used for co-generation of electric power which are powered by excess 

natural gas which is a byproduct of the oil drilling. These generators are used to generate 

approximately one-third of the power used for site operations. There are a small number 

of operational buildings on the site located in the R4 zoned portion of the site.  



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 51 of 72 
 

The owner of the site is the Roman Catholic Archbishop of Los Angeles who leases the 

site to the E & B Natural Resources Management Company (E&B).  E&B is the 

leaseholder of the entire drill-site which extends from Adams to 27th Street. This has 

been indicated as such on the plot plan for the site which has existed from 1959 to the 

present. Existing entitlements and Zoning Administrator actions have never restricted 

the operational portion of the drill-site to the operating area of the drill-site between West 

Adams Boulevard and the block wall which encircles the current operating area. Though 

not currently used except for the fore-mentioned pipes extending from the block wall, the 

area to the south of the wall has been required to be landscaped. Thus, the full 3.25 acre 

site has been preserved as the drill-site by the Office of Zoning Administration 

determinations from 1959 to the present. 

2. The site is surrounded by residential and institutional uses. To the immediate east of the 
site is the 191 unit Saint Andrews Gardens apartment complex in the [Q]R4-1-HPOZ 
Zone. Properties to the south comprise a number of single-family homes, duplexes and 
triplexes in the RD2-1-HPOZ Zone. Properties to the west are occupied by a convent of 
Roman Catholic Nuns adjacent to 27th Street and an AIDS Healthcare Foundation 
hospice on Adams Boulevard also in the [Q]R4- 1-HPOZ Zone.  Neighboring properties 
to the north are zoned R4-1-O-HPOZ and are improved with one- and two-story buildings 
with a library (LA84 Foundation) and a seven-story residential building.  Also located 
within 500 feet of the site are St John of God rest home and hospital and the William 
Andrews Clark Memorial Library owned by University of California at Los Angeles. 

3. A review of the past record and information contained in the file indicates that oil drilling 
and oil production have taken place on the site since it was first authorized to be operated 
at this location on April 5, 1961 pursuant to ZA Case No. 15227, subject to 24 Conditions 
of Approval. Development of the site for oil and gas drilling and production operations 
has been subject to a zoning approval process referred to as a "Review of Plans" for the 
construction of buildings and the installation of equipment necessary for the production 
of oil on the site.  In addition, subsequent cases have also regulated oil drilling and 
production on the property, mainly addressing the need for occasional drilling and re-
drilling of new or existing wells. The last such submittals were approved by the Zoning 
Administrator on September 14, 2007 for the expansion of the well cellar and approval 
of the drilling of 3 new wells, the future drilling of 9 additional wells in ZA 15227(0)(PA4), 
the related December 26, 2007 Review of Plans for the expansion of gas handling 
facilities, the August 26, 2008 Review of Plans for the approval to drill Well M-31 and the 
May 14, 2013 Review of Plans for approval to drill Wells M-37, M-33 and M-40 all as part 
of the 9 additional wells approved on September 14, 2007. It should be pointed out that 
a further review of the approvals for the gas handling facilities was to clean the by- 
product natural gas which was released by the oil drilling in order to sell the natural gas 
to the Southern California Gas Company. 

This Plan Approval Determination results from the research and findings of this office, 
as well as letters and complaints raised by residents and stakeholders from the 
community surrounding the Murphy Oil Drill Site operation. These complaints revolved 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 52 of 72 
 

around odors caused by oil pumping, the burning of methane gas in the microturbines 
and work on the site that exceeded the hours of operation contained in the Conditions of 
Approval. This Determination is in response to the application filed by the operator on 
September 1, 2021. 

Research and reports from the LADCP, LADBS, LAFD, SCAQMD, and CalGEM were 
conducted before issuing this Determination. Also, a review of current oil drilling and oil 
production best practices used to safeguard communities was conducted as a part of the 
evaluation of the Murphy Oil Drill Site operation. 

This Plan Approval process began with a November 17, 2020 letter from the Department 
of City Planning’s Office of Zoning Administration to the operator inquiring about any 
recent well work at the Drill Site and if the operator had secured permits from CalGEM 
for recent work. On December 17, 2020, the operator responded to the City with 
additional information.  In its letter, E&B stated that they had been doing no new well 
drilling on the site nor any deepening, redrilling, plugging or permanently altering any of 
the casing of a well or its function.   The City believes that any of these above stated 
work items would require that the site operator file for a Determination of Conditions for 
such work pursuant to Sec 13.01-H of the LAMC.  This Section has since been 
superseded by Section 12.23-C.4 of the LAMC and Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation 
No. ZA-2022-8997-ZAI, which prescribes new procedures for well maintenance for 
existing non-conforming oil well drill sites as well as what constitutes well maintenance.  
The ordinance prohibits any new drilling, re-drilling, deepening or maintenance unless 
approved under Section 12.23-C.4.   In addition, Zoning Administrator’s Memorandum 
No. 141 outlines the application procedures for Section 12.23-C.4 and states that “these 
wells are subject to LAMC Section 12.23-C.4 for any future scopes of work.   Existing 
wells that received prior Zoning Administrator approval will remain subject to the 
previously imposed land use conditions. 

Since none of this work has been conducted by the applicant, no current Determination 
of Conditions has been required for such activities on the site.  The applicant, however, 
has been performing maintenance on their injection wells on the site.  The question 
arises as to whether or not an injection well is integral to the production well as gas and 
water are by-products of produced oil on the site.   The injection wells are used to inject 
water and excess natural gas back into the substrata.  Complaints have arisen about the 
use of acids, and the odors produced, to reduce scale in the injection well.  While a strict 
reading of 13.01-H mentions that only the drilling, deepening or maintenance of an “oil 
well” needs to apply for a Determination of Methods and Conditions, E&B and most other 
companies have interpreted this as being for production wells only.  However, Section 
13.01-B (Definitions) defines an “Oil Well” as 

“any well or hole already drilled, being drilled or to be drilled into the surface of the 
earth which is used or intended to be used in connection with coring, or the drilling 
for prospecting for or producing petroleum, natural gas or other hydrocarbon 
substance, or is used or intended to be used for the subsurface injection into the 
earth of oil field waste, gases water or liquid substances, including any such existing 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 53 of 72 
 

hole, well or casing which has not been abandoned in accordance with the 
requirements of Article 7 of Chapter 5 of this Code …” 

Therefore, new Condition No. 17 requires that acidification in order to maintain injection 
wells requires a Plan Approval to Determine Methods and Conditions for such work.  In 
the recently enacted ordinance 187,709, this activity must be requested pursuant to a 
discretionary Health and Safety Exception. 

On June 1, 2021, the Department of City Planning’s Chief Zoning Administrator sent a 
letter to the operator notifying the applicant of the requirement to file for a Plan Approval 
for a review of compliance with and effectiveness of the conditions imposed under Case 
No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4). On September 1, 2021, the operator submitted an 
application to the Department of City Planning for a Plan Approval (Case No. ZA-1959-
15227-O-PA6) to review compliance with the conditions of approval imposed under Case 
No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4). The applicant included a letter in the application 
requesting additional conditions related to annual inspections, emergency reporting, air 
monitoring, and the operation of the microturbines. 

The Zoning Administrator has agreed to the additional conditions requested by the 
applicant.  Condition Nos. 18, 19 and 20 regarding annual on-site safety inspections and 
reports, fence line monitoring of various pollutants and immediate notification of 
appropriate City agencies including the Fire Department, the Petroleum Administrator, 
the Office of Zoning Administration, Department of Building and Safety and the local 
Council Office of an emergency, accident or spill which requires reporting to State, 
County or Regional agencies respectively.    These Conditions are similar to those 
required on other drilling locations in the locality and standardize these Conditions on 
E&B Natural Resources Management Company’s local operations. 

E&B also asked for a “clarification” on the use of microturbines on the site which are 
used for both cleaning natural gas generated by the wells for sale to the Southern 
California Gas Company and for electrical generation.  There are numerous documented 
complaints in the file about the burning of natural gas on the site and that Condition No. 
43 of Section 13.01-F prohibits the generation of electricity on the site.   Condition No. 
43 was included in the original Determination for the Drill Site.  Section 13.01-F includes 
over 60 additional conditions that may be placed on a drill site other than the Standard 
Conditions located in Section 13.01-E, 2.  The Conditions in Section 13.01-F are 
discretionary in that the introductory language of the Section states: 

“In addition to the standard conditions applying to oil drilling districts, the Council by 
Ordinance or the Zoning Administrator MAY impose other conditions in each district 
as deemed necessary and proper.” 

In the case of the Murphy Site, the original prohibition against generating electricity on 
the site was eliminated by the Zoning Administrator in Plan Approval No.4 (PA4).  The 
use of the microturbines is for both the cleaning of natural gas and the production of 
electricity on the site.   The microturbines are powered by natural gas which is a by-
product of oil production on the site.  Eliminating the turbines would result in not only 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 54 of 72 
 

being unable to clean the natural gas to current standards of the State’s California Air 
Resources Board (CARB) but would place additional power demand on the City’s 
Department of Water and Power power grid.  As the previous Zoning Administrator has 
permitted this use, this Determination will let it continue.  However, in order to contain 
any noxious odors from this use, Condition No. 23 requires the micro-turbines to be 
contained within the required containment structure with an additional state of the art 
vapor recovery system.  The turbines, themselves, are already contained within a 
building.   Condition No. 23 requires that the additional containment structure will also 
contain this building in order to further reduce noxious odors in the neighborhood. 

On July 28, 2021, the Department’s Chief Zoning Administrator sent a letter to the 
operator inquiring about possible well maintenance activities that would be subject to 
LAMC 13.01-H.  On September 22, 2021, the operator responded to the City with 
additional information.  The letter stated that over a two-day period, the operator 
performed a scale cleaning operation on two non-producing oil wells used as injector 
wells using 1,600 gallons of solvent mix, 500 gallons of mud acid mix and 500 gallons of 
brine water on each well.   Neither CalGEM or the SCAQMD require permits for such 
work, but the operator does have to report to CalGEM in their end of year reporting of 
their aggregate well plan.  In future months, SCAQMD will be amending their agency’s 
regulation, Rule 1148.2, to include notifications for any maintenance acidizing on 
injection wells and workover rig operations, but that has not been made effective as of 
this determination.  As stated above, however, the language of Section 13.01-H of the 
LAMC does include the maintenance acidizing of injection wells as requiring a 
Determination of Methods and Conditions to be filed.  As such, Condition No. 17 was 
added to the Conditions of Approval.   Condition No. 17 does not require a separate Plan 
Approval or Health and Safety Exception hearing every time that the operator is 
performing well maintenance on injection wells.   A one- time Plan Approval is required 
so that the City and its residents are informed of the materials used in such well cleaning, 
the toxicity, if any, of the material and notification of such work being done.  Presently 
nothing is required which details what is used and when such work is occurring.  The 
filing of a one-time Plan Approval should not be onerous to the operator as it will result 
in full disclosure of such activities in the neighborhood and can be updated over time as 
best practices change.    

On December 22, 2021, the Chief Zoning Administrator sent a letter to the operator 
inquiring about toxic chemicals used to mask odors, use of radioactive materials on wells, 
and staff leaving the drill site at night. On January 17, 2022, the operator responded to 
the City with additional information.  The operator responded to the December 2021 letter 
on January 17, 2022.   In compliance with SCAQMD regulations the operator installed 
an aromatic diffuser system for potential odor mitigation.    Specifically, the odor control 
system is used to neutralize potential diesel odor for well servicing work.  According to 
the applicant, the counteractant called Odor Control Jasmine is safe, non-toxic and 100% 
biodegradable. However, the Safety Data Sheet for the product includes hazard 
statements claiming that it is a flammable substance which can cause serious eye or 
skin irritation, and if the product is somehow ingested, it can result in gastrointestinal 
complaints, irritation of mucous membranes and nausea.  These are by products of a 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 55 of 72 
 

component which is in regular use for odor controls.  Complaints were raised at the public 
hearing and in written testimony against its use because of odor of the product and 
possible health concerns.   The smell of natural Jasmine is a strong odor and its use to 
mask diesel and other odors would be a practical use of the product.    

The Zoning Administrator is not about to quibble with the operator as to their choice of  
required odor masking products; however, he is concerned about the present location of 
the equipment for dispensing the product which is on the western side of the property 
close to the adjacent AIDS Healthcare Foundation’s hospice building.  The equipment 
should be removed from its present site to an area of the drill site which is as far away 
as possible from adjacent residential uses and away from any flammable uses on the 
site.  People in a hospice situation are not mobile and any problems with the dispersal 
equipment should not affect adjacent residential properties especially for those with 
terminal medical conditions.  Though it is required to be diluted by liquid and is in its 
product container, it can cause vapor and liquid spills.   These should not be used 
adjacent to health facilities or residences in general. 

Complaints against the use of radioactive materials were mentioned in the Chief Zoning 
Administrator’s letter.  E&B Natural Resources stated that such radioactive tracer 
surveys are required by the State of California’s Government Code Section 14 CA Code 
of Regulations 1724.10.2.  As this is a requirement of the Government Code, the City 
cannot place its own regulations on the tracer surveys as the State of California is a 
superior agency to the City.  The use of Iodine 131 is common in hospitals for imaging 
solutions.  The use of Iodine 131 is regulated by the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency, CalGEM and the California Department of Health Services.  The 
operators must also notify CalGEM when such a tracer survey is to occur and a CalGEM 
inspector must be on the site to monitor the test.  No further conditions have been 
imposed to regulate such a test. 

As to comments in letters to the Department and photographs showing the on-site staff 
leaving the site during their shift, E&B mentions that there is no current requirement in 
the Conditions of Approval requiring staff be on-site for 24 hours. They do claim that they 
have at least one or more personnel on site every day and that the staff is assigned two, 
twelve hour shifts daily.  While E&B suggests that there are redundant systems, multiple 
alarm systems including on the recently installed fence line monitoring system, a 24-hour 
answering system, approved safety and emergency response plans, the Zoning 
Administrator has included an additional Condition in Condition No. 24 to require that 
there always be someone on the site.   This would require a two person shift for the two 
shifts so that if staff takes a dinner break there would still be a staff monitor on the site 
in case any problems should arise.  This is not a Condition of the site’s 2020 Spill 
Prevention, Control and Countermeasure Plan with the Fire Department as mentioned 
in letters to the file, but the Zoning Administrator believes that for an otherwise industrial 
facility in a residentially zoned and built community there should be personnel on the 
site, 24-hours a day for both security and to monitor on-site equipment.   E&B, though 
not currently required to do so, has stated to the Community that there are two 12-hour 
shifts on the site and that there is always someone on the site.   As spills and leaks can 
occur at any time at a drilling facility, as occurred at the Rancho Park drilling facility which 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 56 of 72 
 

had a mercaptan leak which permeated the air in much of the City’s Rancho Park, West 
Los Angeles and Palms communities, trained staff should always be on the site to 
monitor and control the equipment.    

4. After listening to the testimony at the public hearing held on April 28, 2022, reading  the 
letters and emails to the file for the hearing and receiving information from the City’s 
Petroleum Administrator on December 6, 2022, the Zoning Administrator has determined 
that E&B Natural Resources is in partial compliance, as shown above in the Compliance 
Review Section of this Determination, of the Conditions of Approval for  Z.A. 17525 (PAs 
1 through 5).  One of the main points of contention at the public hearing was that the 
Murphy Drill Site’s Conditions of Approval were not consistent with other drill sites in the 
South Los Angeles area and that the South Los Angeles drill sites did not have 
Conditions of Approval consistent with drill sites in wealthier communities on the 
westside of Los Angeles.   

 The Condition Compliance report submitted by E&B (It should be pointed out that the 
condition numbers stated in this finding and the Condition Compliance Report are 
different from the condition numbers in this Determination.  This is due to the additional 
conditions placed in the Conditions of Approval of this determination.) stated that they 
were in compliance with all of the previous Conditions of Approval.  Department staff in 
reviewing the Condition Compliance report agreed with E&B on 23 of the Conditions of 
Approval, in partial compliance with four Conditions and non-compliant with two 
Conditions.  Many of the 30 Conditions deal with the drilling of the wells.  The six which 
were in partial, or non-compliance dealt with operational conditions.  Among the partially 
compliant conditions were Condition 13.01-F, 54 (complaints over odors from burning 
methane gas), Condition No. 5 (all access from Adams Boulevard), Condition No. 6 
(hours of operation) and Condition No. 11 (removal of graffiti).  Staff found that Condition 
No. 13-F, 18 (no noise, dust, odors or vibrations from operating equipment) was violated 
and citations issued by oversight agencies.   Additionally Condition No 12, which requires 
the use to be operated at all times with due regard for the character of the surrounding 
district, has been violated in that the operator has been cited for a number of violations 
of odor controls and un-cited noise complaints by the neighborhood.  Condition No 12 
also allows the Zoning Administrator to impose additional conditions if proven necessary 
for the protection of the neighborhood or occupants of adjacent property.  Though the 
applicant has not stated that they have violated these conditions except for a violation of 
hours of operation for maintenance work on the site, they did realize problems with the 
neighborhood and proposed three “good neighbor” conditions to be added to the 
Conditions of Approval.   The Zoning Administrator has imposed additional conditions 
Nos 18, 19 and 20 regarding annual on-site safety inspections and reports by an 
independent contractor, enhanced fence line monitoring and supplemental emergency 
reporting to City agencies including the Fire Department, the Office of Zoning 
Administration, the Petroleum Administrator, Department of Building and Safety and the 
local Council Office of any spill, accident or other emergency that requires reporting to a 
State, Regional or County agency. 

 At the public hearing and in correspondence before the hearing, Earthjustice, 
representing Redeemer Community Partnership, recommended three additional 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 57 of 72 
 

conditions that were placed on both the Jefferson Drill Site, which is one mile away from 
the Murphy Site and on other drill sites in West Los Angeles be added to the conditions 
of operations for this drill site.   The proposed conditions are: fully enclose the Murphy 
Drill Site in a permanent enclosure with an enhanced vapor recovery system; only allow 
the use of all-electric workover rigs; and prohibit the burning of methane gas at the drill 
site.   

The Zoning Administrator has required in additional conditions the enclosure of the site 
and the use of electric workover rigs.  Additionally, trucks are not allowed to idle their 
engines when they are on the site but must turn them off until such time as they are 
leaving the site or moving to another location on the site.  The Zoning Administrator did 
not prohibit the burning of methane gas for the microturbines as that is presently 
permitted though not stated in the conditions.  The microturbines are, however, required 
to be located within the enclosure structure with an enhanced vapor recovery system to 
control odors from the burning of the gas.  Finding No. 5 goes into greater detail on this 
subject.  Additional modifications to existing conditions and new conditions were added 
to the Conditions of Approval as described below. 

 Condition No. 1 was modified by adding language requiring a new site plan for the drill 
site to be submitted to the Office of  Zoning Administration which shows the location of 
all current production equipment on the site including but not limited to tanks, vessels, 
compressors, scrubbers, microturbines and oil and injection wells.   This modification 
was made so that the Office of Zoning Administration has a current site plan of the site 
for the file.   It should also be updated as each new Plan Approval or Health and Safety 
Exception Project determination for the site is approved.   A recently passed City 
Ordinance prohibits additional oil well and injection well drilling on the site and in the City. 

 Condition No. 5 was modified to prohibit any access to the site from the 27th Street 
entrance except for landscape maintenance of the park-like area on the southern portion 
of the site.  The current Condition limits access to the drilling site to  
Adams Boulevard only.  However, complaints were raised at the hearing and in written 
comments stating that the Southern California Gas Company was using the 27th Street 
entrance for the placing of a new industrial sized meter for the production site.   The 
southern portion of the drill site property has always been used as a park-like area with 
all oil production equipment to be located on the north half of the site.   There is a wall 
and a low ridge which separate the two portions of the site and except for some pipes 
attached to the wall and the aforementioned gas meter no production material is located 
south of the wall.  There is presently a gate at the easterly parking area for the site which 
allows access to the landscaped area which will allow workers to maintain the pipes and 
gas meter.  The 27th Street driveway is surrounded by residential properties and a 
convent for Roman Catholic nuns in the R4 and RD2 zones.  Such a residential street 
and area should not be subject to any traffic accessing the industrial use that constitutes 
the drill site.  The current conditions do not limit access to the area though the existing 
Condition obliquely limits access to the drill site from Adams only.  This modification will 
make it clear that 27th Street should not be used for any access except for landscaping 
purposes. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 58 of 72 
 

 Condition No. 6 was modified to place additional language in the Condition to require 
that the notice required of abutting property owners regarding heavy truck operations 
should also be placed on the newly required (Condition 21) landing page for public 
information on E&B’s web page.  A further explanation for Condition 21 is included below. 

 Condition No. 7 was modified to include language regarding the enclosure of the site 
required by Condition No. 22.  The modification states that the required enclosure 
structure shall be 45 feet in height compliant with the maximum height of the R4 Zone in 
Height District No. 1.   Since the workover and drilling rigs exceed 45 feet in height the 
sound proofing required by Condition No. 7 is still in effect for the portion of the rig which 
exceeds 45 feet.  Again, the Condition has been modified so that sound level 
measurement and monitoring be required during the use of any workover or 
maintenance rig and that the resulting measurements be placed on the website for the 
facility.  In this manner, the operator will be encouraged to follow the City’s Noise 
Ordinance as closely as possible and will result in the public being made aware of the 
actual noise levels instead of attempting to guess at the levels.  The intent is to bring 
down the level of noise from drilling and maintenance operations as this is a residential 
neighborhood with a number of medical, school and library structures in the immediate 
area. 

 Condition No. 8 was deleted.   

 Condition No. 9 was added to the Conditions of Approval from the list of additional 
conditions which may be placed on drill sites by Section 13.01-F of the Municipal Code.  
It has been included as a requirement for the operator to remove all rigs from the site 
when drilling is completed including the use of workover and maintenance rigs.  This is 
another of numerous discretionary conditions in 13.01-F to control the appearance of the 
site by removing rigs, derricks and other drilling equipment which is not being used by 
the operator.  This is a residential area and all such equipment which exceeds the height 
of either the required structure or the view blocking fence at the front of the property shall 
be removed so that the industrial nature of the well site is concealed from both passersby 
on Adams Boulevard and from the adjacent residential properties.   

 New Condition No. 10 (Condition No. 45 of Section 13.01-F of the LAMC) was not 
included in the original Conditions of Approval.  It is a requirement that the operation of 
the site shall be operated to reduce as far as practicable dust, noise and vibration and 
noxious odors resulting from the use of the site.  It also requires that as technological 
improvements and equipment become available to reduce dust, noise, vibration and 
odors, it should be adopted for use or installed by the operator.  It also requires that a 
Plan Approval or Health and Safety Exception be filed before the new equipment or 
operating procedures can be installed.   As can be seen by the actions of the applicant 
and former operators of the site, the Plan Approval process has not always been applied 
to new equipment or well maintenance activities which is required by Section 13.01 of 
the Code.  The addition of this Condition makes it an unmistakable requirement for any 
such changes or operations. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 59 of 72 
 

 Condition No. 15 regarding on-site lighting of the site was modified to take into account 
lighting on the new containment structure which at 45 feet exceeds the height of other 
buildings in the area.  Any lights must be below the height of the surrounding fencing at 
the property lines of the site.  Again, the site is in a residential area and industrial strength 
lighting should not be placed into it or if necessary for security reasons, such lighting 
should not be readily viewable from adjacent residences.  Such lighting requirements 
are standard for commercial and institutional uses which are adjacent to residential 
areas, and as this is a midblock intrusion of a use which is normally allowed only in a M3 
heavy manufacturing zone, the lighting should be compatible with and not an evening 
and nighttime intrusion into the peaceful enjoyment of evening and sleep time use of the 
adjacent residential properties.  

 New Condition No. 17 was added to the Conditions of Approval because the applicant 
has not included maintenance activities for the existing wells including injection wells into 
the Plan Approval process as is required by Sub-section 13.01-I and the definition of an 
“Oil Well” in Sub-section 13.01-B of the LAMC which includes Injection Wells.  This 
Condition was needed due to the materials that are used in well maintenance procedures 
which include such items as acids to clean out calcium deposits in wells which can block 
either oil coming out or byproduct fluids being reinjected into the sub-strata.  As oil well 
maintenance is required by State law and best practices and happens to include acids, 
Iodine 131, which is radioactive, and other noxious fluids and solids, the methods and 
procedures for such activities are required by the Code either through a Plan Approval 
to the original case or by a Health and Safety Exception pursuant to Section 12.23-C,4 
of the LAMC.   Complaints were raised against the current and former operators of the 
site for not filing a Plan Approval for the determination of methods and procedures for 
maintenance of all wells as is required by the Code. This Condition makes clear to the 
operator that the maintenance of all wells is required so that there is no doubt as to the 
process.   The Condition only requires one Plan Approval or Health and Safety Exception 
to set the overall methods and procedures for all maintenance activities of the wells as 
maintenance activities can occur multiple times a year and the procedures do not change 
for each individual maintenance activity. If new procedures are requested by the 
applicant or new maintenance materials are needed, then a new Plan Approval or Health 
and Safety Exception would be needed.   New Condition No. 23 requires notice for 
residents within 100 feet of the site and posting on their web page when any maintenance 
activities will take place. 

 New Condition No. 18 was added at the request of the operator. It requires an annual 
On-site Safety Inspection Report of all equipment on the site as well as repair or 
maintenance work done to keep all equipment in good working order. Such reports are 
normally performed by third parties and the reports sent to the Petroleum Administrator 
and the Office of Zoning Administration.   The report is a compendium of the equipment 
on site and the repair and maintenance performed on the equipment. 

 Condition No. 19 was also requested by the applicant and by the City’s Petroleum 
Administrator.  This would result in a fence line monitoring system which would measure 
any volatile organic compounds, reactive organic gases and toxic substances which are 
present in oil drilling operations.   The fence line monitoring will detect the concentrations 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 60 of 72 
 

of these by products and also if any are escaping into the surrounding residential 
neighborhood.   Fence line monitoring has become a best practice in the oil production 
industry, especially when well sites are located in residential areas, and a fence line 
monitoring system has already been installed on the site by the operator.  This condition 
is not redundant as it will be required to be monitored as a part of the equipment 
inspection required in the annual On-site Safety Inspection report.  The existing system 
may not be set up to monitor all of the mentioned production byproducts so there may 
be some expense for the operator in meeting this Condition but as all of the listed 
substances are either toxic or cause obnoxious odors in the neighborhood, they should 
be monitored for the air quality and safety of nearby residents. 

 New Condition No. 20 was added at the request of the applicant.  The Condition requires 
the notification of various City agencies with jurisdiction over the site whenever there is 
an emergency, accident or spill that requires reporting to any State, County or Regional 
agency.   This Condition became necessary after a spill of Mercaptan, an agent used to 
place an odor on natural gas which in its natural form has no smell, at a West Los 
Angeles drill site which caused a nauseous odor to escape and effect a large swath of 
West Los Angeles without proper notification of City agencies at the time that it occurred.   

 New Condition No. 21 was added because this is a best practice that strengthens 
transparency between the operator, the City and those that reside within the vicinity of 
the drill site.  The technology and software to illustrate this type of information exists, and 
the operator has been given an appropriate amount of time to implement the landing 
page on the company’s website. 

 New Condition No. 22 was added because it formalizes a best practice that was first 
introduced in unincorporated Los Angeles County oil/gas extraction sites.   The Los 
Angeles County Department of Public Health (LACDPH) introduced a notification 
template for oil companies to send out when they would begin work at drill sites.  
LACDPH posted this template on their website for any oil companies and/or 
municipalities to use at their discretion.  This template has been discussed at various 
meetings centered around safety protections for those who reside around oil drill sites 
and received positive reviews by residents.  The County explained that the “template” is 
a tool recommended by Public Health for operators and developers to use to 
communicate with fence line and nearby communities.  Information included should 
include but not be limited to an overview of the activities conducted on-site, the hazards 
and potential risks for the community, the mitigation s to protect public health and safety, 
what will happen in case of emergency and whom to contact with questions or concerns. 

 New Condition No. 23 was added at the request of numerous stakeholders.  An 
enclosure was a requirement of the recent Plan Approval for the Jefferson Drill Site and 
has been required on certain drill sites in West Los Angeles.  This Condition also 
implements Condition 13.01-F, 52, a discretionary Condition of Sub-section 13.01-F of 
the Code, which states in part that “no oil, gas or other hydrocarbon substances may be 
produced from any well hereby permitted unless all equipment necessarily incident to 
such production is completely enclosed within a building.”  The Condition goes on to 
require that the structure be of a permanent type and constructed in a manner that will 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 61 of 72 
 

eliminate as far as practicable, dust, noise, noxious odors and vibrations and other 
conditions which are offensive to the senses and shall be equipped with such devices as 
are necessary to eliminate the objectionable features noted above.  This Condition also 
requires the use of enhanced vapor recovery systems to control noxious vapors on the 
site.  Because the site is within the boundaries of the Jefferson Park Historic Preservation 
Overlay Zone (HPOZ), the Code requires any structures which are not contributing 
buildings within HPOZs to acquire a Certificate of Compatibility from the HPOZ’s 
Preservation Board.  Additional language in the Condition states that the Board may only 
hold a maximum of two hearings in order to recommend approval of the design only of 
the structure.  The two hearing maximum was placed on the Board so as not to delay 
the construction of this necessary containment structure which is to be emplaced to 
reduce odors, noise and vibrations to the surrounding community.   The Board is to only 
look at the design of the structure and has no ability to deny its construction. The 
construction of such a structure was also a recommendation of the former City Petroleum 
Administrator in his comments to the Zoning Administrator on the Plan Approval for the 
Jefferson Well Site and was included in the Conditions of Approval for that case. Such a 
containment structure with enhanced vapor recovery systems will reduce the amount of 
noxious odors from the site as well as contain noise from operating and cogeneration 
systems.   

 New Condition No. 24 was added to make the Murphy site’s conditions consistent with 
recent Jefferson drill site conditions of approval and are also consistent with a report of 
the City Petroleum Administrator to the Zoning Administrator for that case.  The Plan is 
required so that any spills which occur on site are regulated so as not to affect 
groundwater and soil.  The Plan would evaluate newly available prevention and control 
technology which may be installed to forestall spill events and evaluate the structural 
integrity of secondary containment structures on the site that would prevent spills from 
reaching soil on the site and ground water.  The Condition also requires that the site be 
staffed for 24 hours per day.  The operator currently volunteers that there be two, twelve 
hour shifts daily with staffing throughout the shift.   Testimony and photographic evidence 
were shown to the Zoning Administrator which showed that, especially in the evening, 
the site was not fully staffed.   In order to permit staff to take dinner breaks, the Condition 
requires at least two people be on the site during each shift.  Thus, if anyone needs to 
take a dinner break off-site or needs to be off-site due to sickness or family emergency, 
there will always be a staff person on-site to monitor the facility and notify operational 
staff if there is any emergency on-site which needs to be met by more than one person 
or City Fire Department or Police personnel.  The site is in an area surrounded by 
residences and health care facilities and continuous staffing is necessary both to monitor 
the site and to deter any criminal activity that could occur on-site.   The Condition also 
requires that any odor control dispersal system be placed as far away from any 
residential uses as possible.  Currently photographs of the site show the odor control 
dispersal system to be located on the westerly portion of the site close to the outer fence 
line of the site.   This site is adjacent to residences and the AIDS Healthcare Foundations 
medical facility.  Since there are very low-level toxic material in the odor control 
substance, it should not be placed near residential uses as exposure to the material can 
cause eye irritation and nausea.   The Condition requires it to be moved to an area that 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 62 of 72 
 

is non-adjacent to residential uses.  Eventually when the site is enclosed the odor control 
may be made unnecessary by the enhanced vapor control system or it can be enclosed 
within the containment structure. 

 New Condition No. 25 was added at the applicant’s request for a clarification of whether 
or not the methane fueled microturbines are allowed on the site.  It, also, is  in response 
to the Community’s request that there be no methane burned on the site and that the 
microturbines be removed because they were not permitted in the original Conditions of 
Approval.  The Zoning Administrator reviewed previous Plan Approvals for the site as to 
the question of the microturbines.  Subsection 13.01-F Conditions 26 and 43 both require 
that operations on the site be carried out only by electric power and that the power not 
be generated on-site.  As previously stated in this Determination, the Conditions in Sub-
section 13.01-F are discretionary to the Zoning Administrator to place on the site and are 
not mandatory.   Condition No. 43 was placed in the original Conditions of Approval.   
Because of the natural gas which was a by-product of oil pumping, the operator of the 
site in Plan Approval No. 3 requested that the Condition be removed.   The Zoning 
Administrator refused to remove the Condition and required that if the operator wished 
to remove the Condition that it be done in a separate Plan Approval.   The Condition was 
removed in subsequent Plan Approval No. 4.  The microturbines were needed on the 
site to both clean the natural gas to the requirements of the California Air Resources 
Board and the Southern California Gas Company who was purchasing the gas.  Though 
the Condition was removed, there was no condition which expressly permitted the 
turbines.  Thus, the confusion on the part of the applicant and the Community as to 
whether or not they were permitted.   The Zoning Administrator has permitted them to 
be used with this Condition.  The use of the microturbines has been limited by permitting 
them to be fueled only by natural gas generated on the site and not by any other well 
sites in the area and then sent to the site by pipeline or by natural gas supplied by the 
Southern California Gas Company.  Thus, the microturbines can only be powered by gas 
generated on-site.   This is to prevent the Murphy site from becoming a repository for 
natural gas produced by other drill sites and burned in the midst of this residential 
community.  Complaints were raised about the odors produced by the burning of 
methane on the site.   The odors produced by the burning of methane in the 
microturbines will be controlled in the future by the containment building and the 
enhanced vapor control systems.  As to any applicant complaints about needing to import 
additional methane to the site to operate the turbines, it should be pointed out that this 
Zoning Administrator was the same one who denied a previous operator of the site who 
wanted to install a gas flare on the site to remove excess methane from the site that was 
not used in the microturbines.  If there was too much gas at that time over what was 
needed in the microturbines then there should be no need to import methane from other 
drill sites in the area.   There is additional language in the Condition which was requested 
by the Petroleum Administrator limiting the amount of particulate matter which may be 
generated by the microturbines and that ensure that the operator complies with 
SCAQMD permit conditions that limit the emissions from the full set of turbines not just 
individual permitted units.   



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 63 of 72 
 

 New Condition No. 26 was imposed at the request of the Community. The City’s 
Petroleum Administrator in a letter of comment on the Public Hearing received by the 
Office of Zoning Administration on December 5, 2022 stated that electric drilling rigs 
exist, but that electric workover rigs are not available in the United States.  Workover rigs 
are necessary for both repair of existing wells and for proper abandonment of existing 
wells.  The Condition, however, is similar to a Condition placed on the Jefferson Drill Site 
and  on the Packard site on Pico Boulevard in West Los Angeles where the Condition 
has been in effect since the year 2000 and specifically mentions workover rigs have to 
be electric.    The new Condition also requires that other equipment used on the site not 
be powered by diesel equipment including backup generators.  The backup generators 
should either be plug in electric, solar powered or powered by the on-site microturbines.  
Backup generators are generally used when there is a power outage which affects the 
site thus obviating the use of plug in power.   The use of the on-site microturbines in 
generating electricity or solar powered generators remain the only backup power readily 
available.  The Condition also states that diesel powered vehicles (trucks and semi-
trucks) are permissible on the site, but that idling engines on the site is prohibited.  
Engines must be turned off except when being moved off of the site or when repositioning 
a vehicle on the site.  This is a standard air quality improvement requirement placed on 
diesel vehicles by the City in order to reduce PM10 generation in the City. 

 New Condition No. 27 was included in the Conditions of Approval at the suggestion of 
the Oil and Gas Facilities Unit of the Office of Zoning Administration.  Though all oil 
companies are required by Federal, State and Local agencies to cap wells when they 
are idle or abandoned, many companies have not done so on a timely basis claiming a 
desire to either reopen or repurpose the wells.  Idle wells pose a public health and public 
safety risk to those in the vicinity.   Idle well management is imperative to prevent both 
fugitive emissions and emergency incidents.   Idle wells have been found to be leaking 
natural gas and other substances at idled or inappropriately plugged wells in the Pico-
Union and eastern Angeleno Heights (on hills opposite Dodger Stadium) areas of the 
City.  A recent explosion of an idled well in the Kern County area near Bakersfield has 
shown the importance of properly plugging or otherwise maintaining idle wells. Thus, the 
operator is to remain in compliance with all regulations concerning idle wells and their 
management, including any requirements to plug and abandon idle wells.   Most notably, 
State regulations and the Los Angeles City Fire Code regulate idle wells and the operator 
shall comply with those standards for idle wells. 

 New Condition No. 28 was added to bring the Murphy Drill Site into compliance with 
other well site cases in South Los Angeles and West Los Angeles.  This Condition 
requires the operator to install an early alert detection system in the event of hydrogen 
sulfide and methane leaks.   The construction of the containment building and the vapor 
recovery system will help to control any leaks of these substances especially outside of 
the containment building.   A state of the art fire suppression system is also required to 
be developed with the concurrence of the Fire Department and a clearance from the Fire 
Department prior to the Department of City Planning signing off on the Building Permit 
for such equipment.  The Fire Department is also required to arrange for a quarterly 
inspection of the fire suppression equipment to access their effectiveness and 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 64 of 72 
 

maintenance.   The report shall be given to the Office of Zoning Administration on a 
quarterly basis for a five-year period of time.  Upgrades to fire control systems for such 
industrial uses in a residential area should always be required as fires in oil wells and 
storage tanks can easily become out of control and residences or healthcare facilities 
are as close to the production site as 63 feet with overhanging trees.  

 New Condition No’s 29 and 30 were added in because currently there are no conditions 
for the decommissioning of the drill site.  Condition No. 29 lists the tests for soil and 
ground water contamination which must be analyzed before the site is closed to 
operations and the appropriate agencies.  Condition No. 30 enforces Condition 62 of 
Sub-section 13.01F.   Condition 62 requires that all onshore drilling and production 
facilities shall be removed and the premises restored to their original condition after all 
oil and gas wells have been abandoned.  This condition is a best practice measure to 
ensure both that the drill site operator and/or property owner remediates any 
contamination found at the property and that an expert agency formally signs off on any 
remediation efforts that occur.  Currently, the Regional Water Quality Control Board only 
becomes involved in a clean-up effort if they are formally asked by the property owner 
and/or drill site operator.  This condition memorializes the requirement for the operator 
to test for contaminants and take a proactive approach in reaching out to the Water Board 
to review their testing and remediation process.  Condition 30 is also based on Condition 
No 62 of sub-section 13,01-F which requires that all existing infrastructure from the site 
be removed and the site returned to its original condition.   

 New Condition No. 31 was imposed to enforce Condition 17 of Sub-section 13.01-F.  
This Condition requires any person requesting a determination by the Zoning 
Administrator prescribing the methods and conditions that oil drilling and production shall 
agree in writing to be bound by all of the terms and conditions of this article and by any 
written determination of the Zoning Administrator.  The standard method of the 
Department of City Planning for such an agreement is the filing of a covenant and 
agreement with the County Clerk to comply these Conditions. 

 New Condition No. 33 was imposed as it is a standard condition for all Department of 
City Planning cases which may be litigated. 

6. Both the applicant who wanted clarification of the legality of the on-site microturbines 
and  the neighborhood stakeholders who wanted there to be no burning of methane on 
the site had concerns about the microturbines on the site which generate electricity for 
on-site operations. As has been previously stated in these findings, the original 
determination for the drill site did not permit the generation of electricity on the site and 
adopted Condition No. 43 of Section 13.01-F which states: “That drilling, pumping and 
other power operations shall at all times be carried on only by electrical power and that 
such power shall not be generated on the controlled drilling site or in the district.”   
  
As a part of required Plan Approval No. 3, the applicant requested that Condition 43 be 
removed from the Conditions of Approval.   The Zoning Administrator hearing the case 
refused to so as the request was not noticed and was not a part of the original application 
for the Plan Approval.  The applicant was told to reapply for a new Plan Approval 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 65 of 72 
 

mentioning the change. Subsequently, a “new Plan Approval was filed asking for the 
right to use microturbines on the site. This request was granted in Plan Approval No. 4, 
but instead of specifically allowing the use in the Conditions of Approval, the request was 
approved by merely eliminating Condition 43.  Thus, there is some lack of clarity as to if 
the use of the microturbines is permitted.  

 The Conditions contained in Sub-section 13.01-F are discretionary in nature.   The 
introductory language to the Sub-section states: “F. Additional Conditions.  In addition to 
the standard conditions applying to oil drilling districts, the Council by ordinance, or the 
Zoning Administrator MAY impose other conditions in each district as deemed necessary 
and proper.” Thus, the Conditions of 13.01-F are discretionary, and a Zoning 
Administrator may pick and choose among the list of 64 Conditions or write new ones as 
the list is somewhat static and can only be changed in the Code by another ordinance.  
Accordingly, Condition No. 25 has been added which permits the burning of natural gas 
or methane if that is the product of the wells.   It further limits the natural gas to only that 
which is generated on-site and not pumped in from other drill sites.    The Murphy site 
currently also burns natural gas pumped in by pipe from the nearby Jefferson Drill Site.  
This was prohibited so that the Murphy Site does not become a repository for natural 
gas from other drill sites.   Nor does the Condition permit the operator to buy gas from 
the Southern California Gas Company for use in the microturbines.   In an application  
for the installation of a Natural Gas Burner in 2017, Freeport McMoran that the burner 
was requested to constitute a redundant system to complement the gas burned in the 
microturbines.   As there was an adequate amount of gas to power the microturbines at 
that time with a request to burn the rest or reinject it into the well, this Zoning 
Administrator finds no reason that the operator should be importing more gas from off-
site to run their microturbines.  The Condition also requires that the microturbines be 
placed into the new containment structure with an enhanced vapor recovery system to 
reduce any odors from the microturbines as well as any noise produced. At the 
suggestion of the Petroleum Administrator, a limit on microturbine PM10 emissions was 
also included.   Again, the containment structure will help to reduce the amount of PM10 
generated by the microturbines and the limitation on emissions will further reduce it.  

 The Petroleum Administrator also mentioned that the California Air Resources Board in 
their 2022 draft scoping plan for achieving carbon neutrality mentions the use of 
microturbines as a reasonably foreseeable compliance response to reduce emissions 
from existing oil and gas facilities including vapor recovery systems.  Collected vapors 
would be routed to sales gas lines, microturbines, fuel gas systems, low NOX flares or 
ground injection wells.  The existing Murphy Drill Site uses the sale of by-product natural 
gas to the Southern California Gas Company and the use of on-site microturbines for 
both cleaning natural gas for sale and for generating electricity which was previously 
approved by PA 4 of this case.  The use of a flare was denied by the Zoning Administrator 
in 2017.  Thus, the use of the microturbines has been approved for the site as they are 
used for both cleaning existing natural gas to industry and CARB standards and for the 
generation of electricity on the site for other uses of the facility.  The only other methods 
of disposal for the byproduct natural gas is to burn it in a flare which has already been 
denied by the Office of Zoning Administration or reinjecting it back into the substrata by 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 66 of 72 
 

the site’s injection wells.   This would result in a large amount of natural gas being stored 
beneath a residential neighborhood.  After recent experience with reinjected natural gas 
in the Aliso Canyon well field of the Southern California Gas Company, which was in a 
well field at least one mile from nearby homes, it is equally dangerous to store natural 
gas beneath a solidly residential community at this location.   While this is not a response 
desired by the neighborhood stakeholders, the use of the microturbines in an enclosed 
containment structure with proper vapor controls should eliminate or greatly reduce the 
noise, odor and PM10 emissions generated by the burning of natural gas at the site. 

ADDITIONAL MANDATORY FINDINGS/DISCUSSIONS (ENVIRONMENTAL 
REVIEW) 

As a Plan Approval related to a review of conditions on an existing drill site, the Proposed 
Project qualifies for exemption from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
pursuant to CEQA Guidelines, Article 19, Sections 15301 (Class 1), 15303 (Class 3) 
15305 (Class 5), 15308 (Class 8) and 15321 (Class 21). 

Section 15301; Class 1: Consists of the operation, repair, maintenance, permitting, 
leasing, licensing, or minor alteration of existing public or private structures, facilities, 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features, involving negligible or no expansion 
of existing or former use. The key consideration is whether the project involves negligible 
or no expansion of use. 

The proposed Project is a Plan Approval to review compliance with and effectiveness of 
conditions imposed in Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) for the existing 3.2 acre 
Murphy Oil Drill Site. There is no proposed expansion of the oil drilling use. This review 
is authorized by Section 13.01 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) and Condition 
No. 14 in Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) and will be conducted pursuant to LAMC 
Section 12.24-M. The Project does not involve the approval of new wells or conversion 
of existing wells nor will the Project result in a change the number of wells as the capacity 
of the oil and gas extraction facility will remain the same as it was at the time of the 
application submittal (September 1, 2021). Therefore, this will not result in any expansion 
of use at the well site. 

Section 15301; Class 1 Category (f): Addition of safety or health protection devices for 
use during construction of or in conjunction with existing structures, facilities, or 
mechanical equipment, or topographical features including navigational devices. 

Following a review of the effectiveness of the current conditions, revisions were made to 
the existing conditions and additional conditions added to require the installation of 
enclosures, structures and equipment such as fence line monitoring devices, vapor 
recovery equipment and a containment structure which are necessary for reducing and 
neutralizing noxious odors, noise and fluid spills from the site.   Other conditions require 
additional monitoring and regulatory plans and reports to State, Regional and Local 
agencies such as CalGEM, South Coast Air Quality Management District, and the City 
of Los Angeles’ Department of Building and Safety, the Fire Department and the 
Department of City Planning’s Office of Zoning Administration.  The construction of the 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 67 of 72 
 

containment structure is necessary to block odors from oil and natural gas which is 
extracted on the site from migrating to adjacent residential and medical uses.  The walls 
of the structure will also reduce impacts on nearby residences from any noise which is 
generated by the operation of the extraction of oil or the co-generation of electricity from 
the burning of natural gas on the site.  The enhanced vapor recovery system within the 
containment building will reduce any airborne vapor and odors from migrating to adjacent 
properties. 

Section 15303; Class 3 involves the new construction or conversion of small structures 
or facilities and installation of small new equipment and facilities in small structures. 

The required containment structure consists of walls with no roof.  This results in an 
open-air structure with vapor recovery equipment to reduce odor, noise and dust impacts 
on the surrounding residential neighborhood.  The structure qualifies as a Class 3 small 
structure in that it is designed to contain the production facility and reduce noxious odors, 
noise and dust in the area.  It is not designed to draw people or vehicle traffic to the site 
due to any operational effects.  It is solely built to contain and reduce noxious operational 
impacts of the existing use on its surrounding neighborhood. 

Section 15305; Class 5: Consists of minor alterations in land use limitations in areas with 
an average slope of less than 20%, which does not result in any changes in land use or 
density. 

The proposed Project is a Plan Approval to review compliance with and effectiveness of 
conditions imposed in Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) for the existing 3.2 acre 
Murphy Oil Drill Site. There is no proposed expansion of the oil drilling use. This review 
is authorized by Section 13.01 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) and Condition 
No. 14 in Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) and will be conducted pursuant to LAMC 
Section 12.24-M. The site is relatively flat with only a slight slope, well below 20%. The 
Project does not change the land use or the density of the subject site. Nor does it result 
in an intensification of the number of wells, either for production or injection, on the site.  
The Project does not involve expanding allowed uses on a site; instead, this review is 
narrowly limited to a review of existing conditions. The Plan Approval is making 
modifications to the existing conditions and adding targeted new conditions that do not 
result in any changes in land use or density. The Project’s scope is limited to the City’s 
review of the Applicant’s compliance with the applicable conditions of approval and the 
effectiveness of those conditions, it does not include the approval of any drilling, 
redrilling, or converting of wells.  Any new construction of structures is limited to the 
purpose of containing noxious odors, noise, spills and dust which have migrated to the 
surrounding residential neighborhood. 

Section 15308; Class 8: Consists of actions taken by regulatory agencies, as authorized 
by state or local ordinance, to assure the maintenance, restoration, enhancement or 
protection of the environment where the regulatory process involves procedures for 
protection of the environment. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 68 of 72 
 

The Department of City Planning is one of the City’s regulatory agencies which control 
oil drilling in the Los Angeles by determining the methods, standards and conditions for 
oil drilling sites in the City. The modified and additional conditions contained in this Plan 
Approval are designed to lessen the effects of odors, noise and dust which result from 
the drilling operation on the surrounding residential neighborhood. The neighborhood 
also includes four medical facilities (the AIDS Healthcare Foundation facility adjacent to 
the site, the John Tracy Clinic and Center 125 feet west of the site, the Western 
Convalescent Hospital 350 feet west of the site and the Saint John of God Hospital and 
Rest Home 500 feet east of the site at the corner of Adams Boulevard and Western 
Avenue) in proximity to the drill site and numerous other educational facilities. The 
additional monitoring and vapor recovery devices required by the conditions of approval 
will reduce and control the known environmental effects of oil drilling including noxious 
odors, noise, vapors and dust which are affecting this residential neighborhood.  

Section 15321; Class 21 Category 2: Consists of Actions by regulatory agencies to 
enforce or revoke a lease, permit, license, certificate, or other entitlement for use issued, 
adopted, or prescribed by the regulatory agency or enforcement of law, general rule, 
standard, or objective, administered, or adopted by the regulatory agency. This includes 
the adoption of an administrative decision or order enforcing or revoking the lease, 
permit, license, certificate, or entitlement for use or enforcing the general rule, standard, 
or objective. 

The proposed project qualifies for the Class 21 exemption because it involves a Plan 
Approval to review compliance with and effectiveness of conditions imposed in Case No. 
ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4). The proposed project allows the continued operation of the 
drill site subject to the existing conditions and added or revised conditions. This 
regulatory action would not result in any adverse impacts on the environment as any 
required construction or installation is for the purpose of odor and noise control of the 
site and for the health and safety of both area residents and employees of the site as 
well as enforcement of the existing conditions of approval. 

CEQA Section 15300.2:  Exceptions to the Use of Categorical Exemptions. 

The City has considered whether the Proposed Project is subject to any of the six (6) 
exceptions that would prohibit the use of a categorical exemption as set forth in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15300.2. The six (6) exceptions to this Exemption are: (a) Location; 
(b) Cumulative Impacts; (c) Significant Effect; (d) Scenic Highways; (e) Hazardous 
Waste Sites; and (f) Historical Resources.  

1.  Location. Classes 1, 3, 5, 8 and 21 are qualified by consideration of where the project 
is to be located –    a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the environment 
may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, these classes are 
considered to apply in all instances, except where the project may impact on an 
environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, precisely 
mapped, and officially adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local agencies.  



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 69 of 72 
 

The Subject Site is located within a Methane Zone and is located approximately 2.5 
kilometers from the Puente Hills Blind Thrust Fault and is subject to specific Regulatory 
Compliance Measures (RCMs) in the City of Los Angeles. These measures regulate the 
grading and construction of projects in these particular types of “sensitive” locations and 
reduce any potential impacts to less than significant; thus, the following RCMs would 
apply:   

• Regulatory Compliance Measure RC-GEO-1 (Seismic):  The design and construction 
of the project shall conform to the California Building Code seismic standards as 
approved by the Department of Building and Safety. 

• Regulatory Compliance Measure RC-HAZ-2: Explosion/Release (Methane 
Zone):  As the Project Site is within a methane zone, prior to the issuance of a building 
permit, the Site shall be independently analyzed by a qualified engineer, as defined 
in Ordinance No. 175,790 and Section 91.7102 of the LAMC, hired by the Project 
Applicant. The engineer shall investigate and design a methane mitigation system in 
compliance with the LADBS Methane Mitigation Standards for the appropriate Site 
Design Level which will prevent or retard potential methane gas seepage into any 
new building or structure built on the site. The Applicant shall implement the 
engineer’s design recommendations subject to CalGEM, LADBS and LAFD plan 
review and approval.  Additional conditions to reduce and prevent odors, noise and 
dust from migrating into the adjacent neighborhood have been required 

These RCMs have been historically proven to work to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer to reduce any impacts from the specific environment of the Project Site. Thus, 
in conjunction with the above RCMs and compliance with other applicable regulations, 
the Project will not result in a significant impact based on its location. 

2.  Cumulative Impacts. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 
cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time 
is significant.  

According to the California Department of Conservation (CalGEM) Well Finder database, 
the closest oil drilling facility is located near the intersection of Washington Boulevard 
and 4th Avenue, approximately 0.7 miles away from the project site. This site is no longer 
operational.  As such, there are no known successive projects of the same type and in 
the same place as the proposed project. The Plan Approval review of conditions of 
approval compliance and the subsequent reporting involves no changes of the existing 
baseline conditions as the resulting review will not change the number of wells or the 
production activities. Therefore, this exception does not apply. 

3.  Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where 
there is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the 
environment due to unusual circumstances.  

The Project is a Plan Approval to review compliance with and effectiveness of conditions 
imposed in Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) for the existing 3.2 acre Murphy Oil Drill 
Site. There is no proposed expansion of the oil drilling use. 



CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 70 of 72 
 

Trees and plants will continue to line the exterior of the walls. The exterior walls will 
remain the same.   Condition No. 23 requires the enclosure of the equipment within the 
production portion of the site consistent with other drill sites in the area.   This will reduce 
impacts to noise and odors caused by the pumping of oil at the site and the generation 
of electricity by the on-site microturbines. Adjacent properties to the north, east, and west 
of the project site will remain zoned R3-1-O-HPOZ and R4-1-O-HPOZ. Properties to the 
north, east, and west of the project site are developed with single-family and multifamily 
residential, healthcare, and religious uses. Properties to the south across 27th Street will 
remain zoned RD2-1-O-HPOZ and developed with single-family residential buildings. 
The existing drill site's operation remains bound by all prior conditions of approval and 
regulatory requirements from the Southern California Air Quality Management District 
(SCAQMD). Therefore, the baseline conditions will remain unchanged and there are no 
foreseeable impacts from the project.  The Plan Approval has resulted in additional or 
modified conditions that will reduce the known impacts of odors, noise and dust that exist 
in the area.  Thus, there are no unusual circumstances and no reasonable possibility that 
the project and on-site activities will lead to a significant effect on the environment, and 
this exception does not apply. 

4.  Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which may 
result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic buildings, 
rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state 
scenic highway.  

The only State Scenic Highway within the City of Los Angeles is the Topanga Canyon 
State Scenic Highway, State Route 27, which travels through a portion of Topanga State 
Park. The project site is approximately 15 miles east of State Route 27. Therefore, the 
proposed project will not result in any damage to any scenic resources, including but not 
limited to, trees, historic buildings, rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a 
highway officially designated as a state scenic highway, and this exception does not 
apply. 

5.  Hazardous Waste. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project located on 
a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 
Government Code. 

According to Envirostar, the State of California’s database of Hazardous Waste Sites, 
neither the project site, nor any site in the vicinity, is identified as a hazardous waste site, 
and this exception does not apply. 

6.  Historic Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 
may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. 

The Project is a Plan Approval to review compliance with and effectiveness of conditions 
imposed in Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) for the existing 3.2 acre Murphy Oil Drill 
Site. There is no proposed expansion of the oil drilling use. This review is authorized by 
Section 13.01 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) and Condition No. 14 in Case 
No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) and will be conducted pursuant to LAMC Section 12.24-M. 





CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 

 

Page 72 of 72 
 

 
 Attachment:  
 
  Exhibit B – Oil Production Area outline 

 

 

 



Exhibit B - ZA 1959-15227 (O)(PA6)

1



 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF  
CITY PLANNING  
APPLICATION  

 

 

 

 

 

 







































 

 

 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
REPORT  

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS  

REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 

 

 

 

PLOT PLANS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

 

 

 

RADIUS MAP  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

CORRESPONDENCE  





































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































INITIAL 
SUBMISSIONS 

The following submissions by the public are in compliance with the Commission Rules and 

Operating Procedures (ROPs), Rule 4.3a. Please note that “compliance” means that the 

submission complies with deadline, delivery method (hard copy and/or electronic) AND the 

number of copies.  The Commission’s ROPs can be accessed at 

http://planning.lacity.org, by selecting “Commissions & Hearings” and selecting the 

specific Commission. 

The following submissions are not integrated or addressed in the Staff Report but have 

been distributed to the Commission. 

Material which does not comply with the submission rules is not distributed to the 

Commission.  

ENABLE BOOKMARKS ONLINE: 

**If you are using Explorer, you will need to enable  the Acrobat  toolbar to see 
the bookmarks on the left side of the screen. 

If you are using Chrome, the bookmarks are on the upper right-side of the screen. If you 

do not want to use the bookmarks, simply scroll through the file. 

If you have any questions, please contact the Commission Office at (213) 978-1300. 

http://planning.lacity.org/


 

C O M M U N I T Y  P A R T N E R S H I P S  P R O G R A M      7 0 7  W I L S H I R E  B O U L E V A R D ,  S U I T E  4 3 0 0     L O S  A N G E L E S ,  C A  9 0 0 1 7  
 

T :  2 1 3 . 7 6 6 . 1 0 6 4     F :  2 1 3 . 4 0 3 . 4 8 2 2     B C H A N @ E A R T H J U S T I C E . O R G     W W W . E A R T H J U S T I C E . O R G  

 
 
September 25, 2023 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL  
 
South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
apcsouthla@lacity.org  
 
Re:   Comments Opposing Appeal Application 
 Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 CEQA: ENV-2021-7445-CE 
 2126 West Adams Boulevard 
 South Los Angeles Planning Area   
 
Dear Honorable Commissioners: 
 
Earthjustice submits these comments on behalf of Redeemer Community Partnership 
(Redeemer), a non-profit grassroots organization whose members strive to create and maintain 
a safe and healthy environment for families in South Los Angeles.  Based on substantial 
evidence in the record and findings made by the Zoning Administrator, Redeemer respectfully 
requests that the Commission deny E&B Natural Resources Management Corporation’s (E&B) 
appeal in its entirety. 
 
The Commission should uphold the operating conditions set out in the Zoning Administrator’s 
February 28, 2023, Approval of Plans – Determination of Methods and Conditions 
(Determination).  E&B’s claims that substantial evidence in the record does not support the 
conditions in the Determination are meritless.  Substantial evidence shows that nuisances at the 
Murphy Drill Site negatively impact surrounding residents.  Substantial evidence in the record 
also shows that the conditions in the Determination are necessary and appropriate to address 
these nuisances by improving accountability and reporting, implementing best oil drilling and 
production practices that currently exist at other drill sites, and increasing protections that 
preserve the health, safety, and welfare of neighboring communities.1 
 
The City’s inherent police power provides the Zoning Administrator with broad authority to 
regulate land uses and implement reasonably necessary conditions to address nuisances.  This 
power exists independently of any other state or local government agency with regulatory 
authority over the Murphy Drill Site, including the South Coast Air Quality Management 
District (Air District) and California Geologic Energy Management Division (CalGEM).  After 

 
1 Office of Zoning Administration, Plan Approval Determination for Murphy Drill Site, Case No. ZA 1959-

15227-O-PA6 (Feb. 28, 2023) at p. 1 (hereafter “Determination”). 



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

2 
 

considering “the whole of the administrative record,”2 the Zoning Administrator properly 
exercised the City’s inherent police power to revise conditions at the Murphy Drill Site. 
 
Ultimately, the Determination imposes necessary conditions on an intrinsically dangerous drill 
site in the middle of a dense residential neighborhood.3  The evidence in the record and findings 
made by the Zoning Administrator support the need for these conditions to protect the health 
and safety of families, and to modernize the City’s oversight—and E&B’s operation—of the 
Murphy Drill Site.  The reversal or weakening of the Determination would unjustly expose 
nearby residents to continued health and safety risks.  The lives of people living and working 
near the Murphy Drill Site depend on the Commission upholding the Determination’s lawful 
conditions. 
 

I. Standard of Review and Deference to the Zoning Administrator’s Findings and 
Conclusions 

 
On appeal, the Commission decides “whether the initial decision-maker erred or abused his or 
her discretion.”4  In reviewing the Zoning Administrator’s decision, the Commission must defer 
to the Zoning Administrator’s underlying substantive factual findings and conclusions.5  
Additionally, the burden is on E&B, as the appealing party, to show that the Zoning 
Administrator’s decision was improper.  
 

II. The Record Demonstrates that the Murphy Drill Site is a Nuisance 
 
The Los Angeles Municipal Code defines “nuisance” as “any use of land that jeopardizes or 
adversely affects the public health, peace, or safety of persons residing or working on the 
premises or in the surrounding area.”6  Public records, community complaints, and other 
evidence in the record demonstrate the long history of nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site.  
Accordingly, E&B’s argument that the Zoning Administrator failed to establish a 
“demonstrated nuisance” at the Murphy Drill Site to justify “additional and modified 
conditions” is baseless and must be rejected.  
 

 
2 Determination at p. 1. 
3 See City of Hermosa Beach, E&B Oil Drilling & Production Project Final Environmental Impact Report 

(June 2014) at p. 4.8-1(“[O]il and gas facilities present potential hazards to employees and the public, 
depending on the type of facility, due to the presence of flammable gas, toxic gas, and gas processing 
by-products . . . .”) (Ex. 1).  All references to “Ex. __” are to the exhibits submitted concurrently with 
these comments, which are available for download here: https://earthjustice.sharefile.com/d-
s86c6f4f23ec248e2aee4d690b2ee57c3.   

4 Los Angeles Municipal Code (hereafter “LAMC”) Section 12.24(I)(3). 
5 See, e.g., Vineyard Area Citizens for Responsible Growth, Inc. v. City of Rancho Cordova (2007) 40 Cal.4th 412, 

435 (noting that when assessing abuse of discretion, greater deference is given to an agency’s substantive 
factual conclusions). 

6 LAMC Section 91.9002. 

https://earthjustice.sharefile.com/d-s86c6f4f23ec248e2aee4d690b2ee57c3
https://earthjustice.sharefile.com/d-s86c6f4f23ec248e2aee4d690b2ee57c3


Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

3 
 

 
 
Community members have documented ongoing and frequent nuisances at the Murphy Drill 
Site.  For example, in April, October, and November 2021, Redeemer submitted three letters to 
the Department of City Planning noting E&B’s “troubled operation of the Murphy Drill Site.”7  
Among other nuisances, Redeemer detailed noise, odors and fumes, and disruptive truck traffic 
from the Murphy Drill Site that plague the community.8  In addition, Redeemer highlighted 
numerous violations by E&B and its contractors of regulatory requirements from the Air 
District, CalGEM, Los Angeles Fire Department, California Division of Occupational Safety and 
Health (CalOSHA), and California Highway Patrol.9  For example, on February 9, 2021, the Air 
District issued a Notice of Violation to E&B’s contractor for degassing storage tanks at the 
Murphy Drill Site within 1,000 feet of two K-12 schools.10  In another example, CalOSHA fined 
E&B more than $12,000 for several violations at the drill site that jeopardized the safety of 
workers.11 
 
These violations compound the inherent dangers from drill site operations that include 
exposure to toxic metals such as manganese and nickel.  Manganese exposure is associated with 
neurological illnesses like Parkinson’s disease, and nickel exposure is associated with lung 
cancer and cardiovascular disease.12  Such operations also compound the inherent safety risks 
from drill site operations that can reach far into surrounding communities.  Maps from the 
Environmental Impact Report for E&B’s proposed drill site in Hermosa Beach illustrate that 
reach as hazards from drill site operations, including “flame jets, explosions and flammable 
vapor clouds,” threaten surrounding residents with injuries and fatalities.13 
 

 
7 Letter from Richard Parks, Redeemer Community Partnership, to Vince Bertoni, Dept. of City Planning 

(Oct. 15, 2021) at p.1 (Ex. 2). 
8 Letter from Richard Parks to Vince Bertoni (Apr. 30, 2021) (Appx. 22 to Redeemer Comment); Letter 

from Parks to Bertoni (Oct. 15, 2021), supra note 7; Letter from Richard Parks to Estineh Mailian, Office 
of Zoning Administration (Nov. 8, 2021) (Ex. 3).  All references to “Appx. __ to Redeemer Comment” are 
to the documents submitted with Redeemer Community Partnership’s May 31, 2023, Comments in Case 
No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6. 

9 Letter from Parks to Bertoni (Apr. 30, 2021), supra note 8; Letter from Parks to Bertoni (Oct. 15, 2021), 
supra note 7; Letter from Parks to Mailian (Nov. 8, 2021), supra note 8. 

10 South Coast Air Quality Management District, Notice of Violation, No. P73309 (Violation on Dec. 17, 
2020) (Ex. 4). 

11 CalOSHA, Citation and Notification of Penalty to E&B Natural Resources Management Corp. (Issued 
on Oct. 19, 2021) at p. 17 (Appx. 71 to Redeemer Comment). 

12 Arbor J.L. Quist et al., Metal Exposures in Residents Living Near an Urban Oil Drilling Site in Los Angeles, 
California, Environ. Sci. Technol. (2022), https://doi.org/10.1021/acs.est.2c04926 at 15986 (Ex. 5). 

13 See, e.g., City of Hermosa Beach, E&B Oil Drilling & Production Project Final Environmental Impact 
Report, supra note 3, at p. 4.8-73, fig. 4.8-6; Id. at pp. 4.8-66 to 4.8-67.  

https://doi.org/10.1021/acs.est.2c04926


Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

4 
 

In response to the violations and nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site that harm community 
members and threaten dangerous operational upsets, the Zoning Administrator initiated a 
compliance review process of existing conditions under former Municipal Code Section 
13.01(H) and current plan approvals.14  As part of that process, the Zoning Administrator held a 
public hearing on April 28, 2022, to review E&B’s compliance with existing conditions.15  Over 
the course of several hours, the Zoning Administrator listened to extensive public testimony 
about disruptive and dangerous conditions both inherent to oil drilling and exacerbated by 
E&B’s unsafe operation of the Murphy Drill Site.16  For example, local residents described 
smelling noxious odors and hearing deafening noise from the Murphy Drill Site that impact 
their health and wellbeing.17  Louis Elfman, who lives only a few doors away from the drill site, 
reported experiencing “endless smells, fumes, and headache-causing agents” from the drill site, 
including a strong “methane” smell.18  Asegedich Lemma, who lives less than four hundred feet 
from the drill site, shared that the noise from E&B’s operations is so loud that it sounds as if the 
drill site is “almost in my living room.”19   

 
14 Determination at p. 16. 
15 Id. at p. 17.   
16 Id. at pp. 25–34. 
17 See, e.g., id. at pp. 27, 31. 
18 See id. at pp. 29–32. 
19 See id.  



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

5 
 

 
The Zoning Administrator also received documented evidence of nuisances.  For example, the 
Zoning Administrator watched a video from February 2022 of two 5,000-gallon tanker trunks 
arriving at the Murphy Drill Site to deliver dangerous acids and toxic chemicals for 
unpermitted well maintenance work.20  Such unpermitted work defies the Zoning 
Administrator’s oversight of the drill site and increases risks to community health from acids 
and toxic chemicals that include carcinogens, respiratory triggers, and endocrine disruptors.21  
In another example, the Zoning Administrator viewed photos of a wall blackened by exhaust 
stacks venting pollution from methane gas burned in the drill site’s microturbines located just 
150 feet from a nearby apartment.22  Burning methane gas releases fine particulate matter, 
nitrogen oxides, and volatile organic compounds that can cause cardiovascular and respiratory 
disease.23  The pollution from burning methane in the microturbines at the Murphy Drill Site 
adds to the well-documented release of hazardous air emissions inherent to oil drilling 
operations.24 
 
Hakeem Parke-Davis, the representative from Council District 10, spoke at the hearing and 
acknowledged that “community groups have reached out to the Council Office . . . due to health 
complications with fugitive odors, noise impacts from alarms, and unmanned operations” at the 
drill site.25  To address these impacts, Mr. Parke-Davis supported the community’s proposal to 
modernize conditions at the Murphy Drill Site to at least: (1) enclose the drill site, (2) permit the 
use of only electric rigs for workovers, and (3) prohibit the burning of methane.   
 
At the conclusion of the hearing, the Zoning Administrator left the record open for an 
additional 30 days to provide E&B and other interested persons with an opportunity to review 
residents’ concerns and submit comments.26  Redeemer submitted comments on May 31, 2022, 
highlighting the harmful impacts from nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site to surrounding 
residents.  In its comments, Redeemer cited health studies that illuminate and confirm the lived 
experiences shared by many community members at the hearing.  For example, in Respiratory 
Health, Pulmonary Function and Local Engagement in Urban Communities Near Oil Development, 

 
20 See Determination at p. 26. 
21 CalGEM, Chemical Use Report for Murphy Drill Site for 2019-2020 (Appx. 19 to Redeemer Comment); 

Heather B. Patisaul & Heather B. Adewale, Long-term Effects of Environmental Endocrine Disruptors on 
Reproductive Physiology and Behavior, Frontiers in Behavioral Neuroscience (2009), 
https://doi.org/10.3389/neuro.08.010.2009 (Appx. 34 to Redeemer Comment). 

22 See Determination at p. 26. 
23 Jonathan J. Buonocore et al., A Decade of the U.S. Energy Mix Transitioning Away from Coal: Historical 

Reconstruction of the Reductions in the Public Health Burden of Energy, 16 Environ. Research Letters (2021), 
https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/abe74c at p. 2 (Appx. 32 to Redeemer Comment). 

24 See Diana A. Garcia-Gonzalez et al., Distance Decay Gradients in Hazardous Air Pollution Concentrations 
Around Oil and Natural Gas Facilities in the City of Los Angeles: A Pilot Study, 173 Environ. Research (2019), 
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envres.2019.03.027 (Ex. 6). 

25 Determination at p. 34. 
26 Id. 

https://doi.org/10.3389/neuro.08.010.2009
https://doi.org/10.1088/1748-9326/abe74c
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envres.2019.03.027


Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

6 
 

researchers found that residents living less than 1,000 meters from the Murphy Drill Site were 
significantly more likely to report symptoms including wheezing, sore throat, chest tightness, 
dizziness, and eye or nose irritation than people living near an idle drill site in Los Angeles.27  
Residents closest to the Murphy Drill Site experienced a significant overall reduction in lung 
function and capacity—a greater decrease than what national studies have shown for exposure 
to secondhand tobacco smoke and living near freeways.28  
 
In another study, Cardiovascular Health and Proximity to Urban Oil Drilling in Los Angeles, 
California, published after Redeemer submitted its comments, researchers found that living near 
the Murphy Drill Site is associated with higher blood pressure.29  According to the researchers, 
“residents living closer to the [Murphy Drill] site have, on average, higher blood pressure and 
face higher risk of stage 1 hypertension compared with residents that live farther away.”30  
Researchers observed a significant decrease in the odds of hypertension among participants for 
every 100 meters increase in distance away from the Murphy Drill Site.31 
 
In addition to citing health studies in its comments, Redeemer also highlighted daily and 
ongoing nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site that harm nearby residents.  For example, Redeemer 
detailed that the odor counteractant that E&B sprays during operations to mask odors from the 
Murphy Drill Site “has elements that are toxic.”32  The counteractant contains nonylphenol 
ethoxylate, which is an endocrine disrupting chemical.33  Endocrine disruptors can cause 
significant harm to the reproductive system, including infertility, cancer, and malformations in 
children before and after birth.34  At the April 28 hearing, Jen Blue reported that she had 
suffered two miscarriages and knew five neighbors who had miscarriages while living within a 
one-mile radius of the Murphy Drill Site.35 

 
27 Jill Johnston et al., Respiratory Health, Pulmonary Function and Local Engagement in Urban Communities 

Near Oil Development, 197 Environ. Res. (2021), https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envres.2021.111088 at p. 5 (Study 
authors refer to the Murphy Drill Site as the “Jefferson Park drill site”) (Appx. 6 to Redeemer 
Comment). 

28 Id. 
29 Jill Johnston et al., Cardiovascular Health and Proximity to Urban Oil Drilling in Los Angeles, California, J 

Expo Sci Environ Epidemiol (2023), https://doi.org/10.1038/s41370-023-00589-z (Study authors refer to 
the Murphy Drill Site as the “well site with 28 wells that was actively producing during the entire study 
period”) (Ex. 7). 

30 Id. at p. 4. 
31 Id. 
32 Determination at p. 41. 
33 See Chemco Products Company, Odor Control Jasmine Safety Data Sheet, Product Code 11432 (revised Feb. 

18, 2020) (Appx. 28 to Redeemer Comment); Xiaoya Ji, et al., A Comparison of Endocrine Disruption 
Potential of Nonylphenol Ethoxylate, Vanillin Ethoxylate, 4-n-nonylphenol and Vanillin In Vitro, 175 
Ecotoxicology and Environmental Safety (2019), https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecoenv.2019.03.060 (Appx. 29 
to Redeemer Comment). 

34 See Patisaul & Adewale, Long-term Effects of Environmental Endocrine Disruptors on Reproductive 
Physiology and Behavior, supra note 21. 

35 Determination at pp. 30–31. 

https://doi.org/10.1016/j.envres.2021.111088
https://doi.org/10.1038/s41370-023-00589-z
https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ecoenv.2019.03.060


Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

7 
 

 
Since the hearing and during the pendency of this appeal, E&B has continued to demonstrate 
that it is an irresponsible and unsafe operator by violating existing operating conditions at the 
Murphy Drill Site.  For example, such conditions prohibit heavy-duty trucks from entering the 
drill site before 7:00 am.  Nevertheless, Redeemer documented and shared with the Zoning 
Administrator more than 30 instances since April 28, 2022, where E&B admitted heavy-duty 
trucks, including those typically used to deliver hazardous materials, onto the Murphy Drill Site 
before 7:00 am.36  The early morning engine noise, back-up alarms, flashing lights, and work 
activity from these trucks are a nuisance.  E&B’s utter disregard for even the most basic 
protections in its existing operating conditions demonstrates the urgent need for the community 
protections outlined in the Determination. 
 
Further, E&B has continued to accumulate Notices of Violation from regulatory agencies.  On 
March 17, 2023, the Air District issued a Notice of Violation to E&B for failing to properly 
maintain its wastewater holding tank in “good operating condition.”37  On September 8, 2022, 
CalGEM issued a Notice of Violation to E&B for failing to conduct a fluid level test on an idle oil 
well at the Murphy Drill Site.38 
 
The record shows that the Murphy Drill Site has been, and continues to be, a nuisance that 
adversely impacts nearby residents.  By arguing that the Murphy Drill Site is not a nuisance, 
E&B asks the Commission to ignore the testimony from surrounding residents and disregard 
the rest of the extensive record demonstrating the harm from E&B’s operations.  But the record 
speaks for itself and supports the Zoning Administrator’s determination that the Murphy Drill 
Site is a nuisance that demands immediate action. 
 
III. The Record Supports the Zoning Administrator’s Revisions to Existing Operating 

Conditions to Address Nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site 
 
The Zoning Administrator added and modified conditions at the Murphy Drill Site after 
considering evidence in the record, including testimony, photographs, letters, videos, and 
research and reports from City, regional, and state agencies about nuisances at the drill site.  
Contrary to E&B’s assertion that the Determination is arbitrary and unsupported by substantial 
evidence,39 the Zoning Administrator issued a Determination steeped in the evidence of E&B’s 
nuisances.  Based on the evidence, the Zoning Administrator tailored conditions in the 

 
36 Email from Richard Parks to Charles Rausch, Office of Zoning Administration (Sept. 18, 2023) (Ex. 8); 

Letter from Richard Parks to Charles Rausch (Sept. 13, 2023) (Ex. 9); see also Email from Richard Parks to 
Edber Macedo, Office of Zoning Administration (Apr. 17, 2023) (Ex. 10). 

37 South Coast Air Quality Management District, Notice of Violation, No. P74382 (Violation on Mar. 17, 
2023) (Ex. 11). 

38 CalGEM, Notice of Violation, Compliance I.D. 12281399 (Issued on Sep. 8, 2022) (referencing Well 21 at 
the Murphy Drill Site, API No. 0403720955) (Ex. 12).  

39 E&B Natural Resources Management Corp., CEQA Appeal Justification for Approval of Plans (March 
15, 2023) at p. 1 (hereafter “E&B Appeal”). 



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

8 
 

Determination to address nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site and finally provide some 
protection to community members from E&B’s harmful operations.  
 

A. The Zoning Administrator Properly Determined that Revised Conditions are 
Necessary to Protect Residents Surrounding the Murphy Drill Site  

 
The Zoning Administrator made explicit findings supporting the need for additional and 
modified conditions to address a variety of nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site.  The Zoning 
Administrator found that these conditions would provide some relief from the drill site’s 
adverse impacts.  Specifically, the Zoning Administrator found that, “the installation of 
enclosures, structures and equipment such as fence line monitoring devices, vapor recovery 
equipment and a containment structure [] are necessary for reducing and neutralizing noxious 
odors, noise and fluid spills from the site.”40  Based on such findings, the Zoning Administrator 
appropriately exercised the City’s inherent police power by revising conditions at the Murphy 
Drill Site to protect the health, safety, and welfare of surrounding residents. 
 

i. Obnoxious Odors and Fumes 
 
As testimony and complaints from community members show, and Air District investigators 
confirm, odors and fumes are clearly detectable in the neighborhood surrounding the Murphy 
Drill Site.  These odors and fumes emanate from crude oil, chemicals, methane burned in the 
microturbines, well maintenance operations, and diesel exhaust from equipment and trucks at 
the drill site.41   
 
After determining that such odors and fumes are a nuisance, the Zoning Administrator 
properly revised conditions and explained how such conditions address impacts to 
surrounding residents.  For example, the Zoning Administrator revised conditions to require 
the permanent enclosure of the drill site’s equipment “consistent with other drill sites in the 
area.”42  The Zoning Administrator explained that “the construction of the containment 
structure is necessary to block odors from the oil and natural gas which is extracted on the site 
from migrating to adjacent residential and medical uses.”43  Evidence in the record 
demonstrates that the City has required such enclosures at drill sites in wealthier, whiter 
communities surrounding drill sites in West Los Angeles for decades.  For example, the Plan 
Approvals for the Pico Doheny Drill Site, located at 9101 West Pico Boulevard, and the Packard 

 
40 Determination at p. 66. 
41 See, e.g., Redeemer Community Partnership, Comments on Approval of Plans for Case No. ZA-1959-

15227-O-PA6 (May 31, 2022) at pp. 7–12. 
42 Determination at p. 70. 
43 Id. at pp. 66–67. 



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

9 
 

Drill Site, located at 5733 West Pico Boulevard, have mandated enclosures since 1965 and 1966, 
respectively.44 
 
The Zoning Administrator further required E&B to install an enhanced vapor recovery system 
on top of the enclosure.45  The Zoning Administrator explained that, along with the enclosure, 
“enhanced vapor recovery systems will reduce the amount of noxious odors from the site.”46  
Enclosing drill sites and installing vapor recovery systems are not novel approaches to address 
odors and fumes from oil operations in Los Angeles.  For example, the 2018 Plan Approval for 
the Jefferson Drill Site required the installation of a vapor recovery system47 based on the 
recommendation from the City’s former Petroleum Administrator that such a system can 
mitigate “odor emissions, so that they do not escape into the atmosphere.”48 
 
Based on evidence in the record of the harmful impacts of burning methane coupled with 
“numerous documented complaints”49 about the resulting odors, the Zoning Administrator also 
banned the importation of methane into the Murphy Drill Site.50  E&B burns methane in the 
microturbines at the Murphy Drill Site.  The methane comes from two sources.  The first source 
is methane that is a by-product of oil drilling operations at the Murphy Drill Site.51  The second 
source is methane that E&B buys from SoCalGas.52  The Murphy Drill Site is connected to the 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power’s grid, yet E&B buys and burns methane from 
SoCalGas in its microturbines to power the drill site.53  SoCalGas delivers this methane to the 

 
44 Office of Zoning Administration, Plan Approval Determination for Pico Doheny Drill Site, Case No. ZA 

17683 (Aug. 17, 1965) at p. 3 (noting the derrick and other equipment shall be within an “enclosed 
structure having the appearance of a high-rise building") (Appx. 46 to Redeemer Comment); Office of 
Zoning Administration, Plan Approval Determination for Packard Drill Site, Case No. ZA 18129 (June 9, 
1966) at p. 2 (“[A]ll oil drilling operations . . . in connection with the actual drilling of the proposed oil 
wells and the later cleaning out and servicing of the oil wells on the site shall be performed entirely 
within an attractively designed and maintained soundproofed building resembling a modern high-rise 
office building . . . .”) (Ex. 13). 

45 Determination at p. 10. 
46 Id. at p. 61. 
47 Office of Zoning Administration, Plan Approval Determination for Jefferson Drill Site, Case No. ZA-1965-

17528-(PA5) (Oct. 13, 2017) at p. 4 (Appx. 1 to Redeemer Comment).  The Plan Approval for the 
Jefferson Drill Site was sustained on appeal and adopted in 2018.  South Los Angeles Area Planning 
Commission, Letter of Determination, Case No. ZA-1965-17528-PA5-1A (Jan. 25, 2018) (Ex. 14).  

48 Office of Petroleum and Natural Gas Administration & Safety, Jefferson Drill Site Evaluation Report 
(Sept. 22, 2017) at p. 16 (Appx. 1 to Redeemer Comment). 

49 Determination at p. 53. 
50 Id. at p. 11. 
51 Id. at p. 53. 
52 Letter from Charles Page, SoCalGas, to Samuel Layton, E&B Natural Resources Management Corp. 

(Aug. 18, 2020) (Ex. 15); Letter from Louis P. Zylstra, E&B Natural Resources Management Corp., to 
Estineh Mailian, Office of Zoning Administration (July 30, 2021) at p. 3 (Ex. 16). 

53 Letter from Zylstra to Mailian (July 30, 2021), supra note 52, at p. 3. 



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

10 
 

Murphy Drill Site through a high-pressure gas pipeline.54  By banning the importation of 
methane into the Murphy Drill Site, the Zoning Administrator aimed to limit E&B’s use of its 
polluting microturbines to power the drill site.55  Burning methane in these microturbines 
releases noxious odors, fumes, and exhaust56 that can cause cardiovascular and respiratory 
disease.57  E&B contracts with SoCalGas to deliver 7,862 cubic feet/hour of methane to the 
Murphy Drill Site.58  Burning this amount of methane can produce up to 3,709 metric tons of 
carbon dioxide a year, or the equivalent annual emissions from 824 passenger vehicles.59 
 
Importing methane also threatens the safety of surrounding residents.  High-pressure gas 
pipelines are prone to leaks that can result in devastating fires and explosions.  From 2010 to 
2021, incidents from leaking gas pipelines killed 122 people and injured another 603 in the 
United States.60  The Zoning Administrator’s ban on importing methane into the Murphy Drill 
Site properly attempts to mitigate these significant hazards by preventing the drill site “from 
becoming a repository for natural gas produced by other drill sites [that is] burned in the midst 
of this residential community.”61 
 
The Zoning Administrator further addressed the odors and fumes from the Murphy Drill Site 
by prohibiting the use of diesel equipment, including any drilling, workover, and maintenance 
rig at the drill site.62  Evidence in the record documents the well-known health hazards caused 
by exposure to exhaust from diesel equipment including coughs, headaches, lightheadedness, 
and nausea.63  Long-term exposure to diesel exhaust poses the highest cancer risk of any toxic 
air contaminant evaluated by the California Office of Environmental Health Hazard 
Assessment.64  

 
54 Letter from Page to Layton (Aug. 18, 2020), supra note 52. 
55 See Determination at p. 62. 
56 See id.; Id. at p. 54. 
57 Buonocore et al., A Decade of the U.S. Energy Mix Transitioning Away from Coal: Historical Reconstruction of 

the Reductions in the Public Health Burden of Energy, supra note 23, at p. 2. 
58 Letter from Page to Layton (Aug. 18, 2020), supra note 52. 
59 United States Environmental Protection Agency, Greenhouse Gas Emissions from a Typical Passenger 

Vehicle (Aug. 28, 2023), https://www.epa.gov/greenvehicles/greenhouse-gas-emissions-typical-
passenger-vehicle (Ex. 17). 

60 Tony Dutzik et al., Methane Gas Leaks: Frequent Leaks are Resulting in Death, Injury and Other Damage to 
Our Health and Environment (June 2022), https://publicinterestnetwork.org/wp-
content/uploads/2022/08/Methane-Gas-Leaks-2022-1.pdf at p. 10 (Ex. 18). 

61 Board of Public Works Office of Petroleum & Natural Gas Administration and Safety, Report on 
Council Motion 17-0149-S1 (Apr. 30, 2020), https://clkrep.lacity.org/onlinedocs/2017/17-0149-
S1_misc_1_05-08-2020.pdf at 0667 at p. 2 (Appx. 55 to Redeemer Comment). 

62 Determination at p. 11. 
63 Cal. Office of Environ. Health Hazard Assessment and Am. Lung Ass’n of California, Health Effects of 

Diesel Exhaust Fact Sheet (May 21, 2001), 
https://oehha.ca.gov/media/downloads/calenviroscreen/indicators/diesel4-02.pdf at pp. 2-3 (Appx. 15 to 
Redeemer Comment). 

64 Id. 

https://www.epa.gov/greenvehicles/greenhouse-gas-emissions-typical-passenger-vehicle
https://www.epa.gov/greenvehicles/greenhouse-gas-emissions-typical-passenger-vehicle
https://publicinterestnetwork.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Methane-Gas-Leaks-2022-1.pdf
https://publicinterestnetwork.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/Methane-Gas-Leaks-2022-1.pdf
https://clkrep.lacity.org/onlinedocs/2017/17-0149-S1_misc_1_05-08-2020.pdf
https://clkrep.lacity.org/onlinedocs/2017/17-0149-S1_misc_1_05-08-2020.pdf
https://oehha.ca.gov/media/downloads/calenviroscreen/indicators/diesel4-02.pdf


Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

11 
 

 
E&B argues that prohibiting the use of diesel equipment is infeasible because “commercially 
available [electric] workover and maintenance rigs do not exist.”65  And that without such rigs, 
E&B cannot “conduct maintenance, repairs, or well-servicing on its wells.”66  But whether 
electric workover and maintenance rigs are commercially available does not make the 
prohibition of diesel equipment infeasible because evidence in the record confirms that electric 
drillings rigs are available and can be used for workover and maintenance.  In fact, such a rig 
has been used at the Pico Doheny Drill Site for decades.  The April 5, 2000, Plan Approval for 
the Pico Doheny Drill Site required that “all drilling and reworking operations at the site shall 
at all times be carried on only by electrical power.”67  In response, the operator replaced its 
diesel workover rig with an electric-powered, mobile, and enclosed drilling rig that “would be 
used for both workover and redrilling operations.68  Accordingly, the Plan Approval for the 
Pico Doheny Drill Site mandates that “after the modernized [electric drilling rig] is operational, 
no diesel or portable workover rig shall be utilized at any time.”69 
 
E&B acknowledged the use and capabilities of this electric drilling rig in its May 31, 2022, letter 
to Zoning Administrator Charles Rausch.  In the letter, E&B recognized that the electric drilling 
rig at the Pico Doheny Drill Site “can also be used to perform workover activities.”70  The 
proven availability and use of electric drilling rigs for workovers supports the prohibition of 
diesel equipment at the Murphy Drill Site. 
 

ii. Harmful Noise Levels 
 
Noise from the Murphy Drill Site regularly exceeds safe levels for nearby residents.  The noise 
emanates from the drilling, maintenance, equipment, and other operations at the drill site, as 
detailed by documents and testimony received by the Zoning Administrator.  The noise 
frustrates residents’ peaceful enjoyment of their homes and impacts their physical and mental 
wellbeing.  At the April 28 hearing, Richard Parks shared that “there are no quiet hours” 
because E&B “operate[s] heavy equipment past 9 p.m. which violates operational hours.”71  

 
65 E&B Natural Resources Management Corp., Appendix to CEQA Appeal Justification for Approval of 

Plans for Murphy Site (Mar. 15, 2023) at p. 3. 
66 E&B Appeal at p. 3. 
67 Office of Zoning Administration, Plan Approval Determination for Pico Doheny Drill Site, Case No. ZA 

17683 (PAD) (Apr. 5, 2000) at p. 11 (Ex. 19). 
68 Office of Zoning Administration, Staff Report for Pico Doheny Drill Site, Case No. ZA 17683(PAD) 

(Nov. 18, 1999) at pp. 1, 5 (Ex. 20); see also Exhibit “A” – Statement in Support of Application, Case No. 
ZA 17683 (June 21, 2005) pp. 2-3 (noting that the electric drilling rig “would be mobile and would be 
used for routine well maintenance and redrilling operations”) (Ex. 21). 

69 Plan Approval Determination for Pico Doheny Drill Site, Case No. ZA 17683 (PAD) (Apr. 5, 2000), supra 
note 67, at p. 12. 

70 Letter from Louis P. Zylstra to Charles Rausch (May 31, 2022) at pp. 3-4. 
71 Determination at p. 27. 



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

12 
 

Another resident described “noise and humming overnight” forcing neighbors “to wear ear 
plugs at night because of the constant noise.”72   
 
Evidence in the record confirms the excessive noise from the Murphy Drill Site.  A noise study 
conducted in 2006 measured noise at the Murphy Drill Site during periods without drilling 
activities.73  The study found that the average daytime ambient noise level at the Murphy Drill 
Site ranges from 67.3 to 72.2 dBA with an average nighttime range of 67.3 to 68.3 dBA.74  
Exposure to noise levels ranging from 32 to 75 dBA is associated with sleep disruption, poor 
academic performance, and hypertension.75  Exposure to nighttime noise levels as low as 32 
dBA can cause a reduction in sleep period, awakenings, and other secondary effects such as 
inability to concentrate and irritability.76  According to the noise study, the average nighttime 
noise level at the Murphy Drill Site far exceeds the threshold of 32 dBA for experiencing health 
impacts from noise. 
 
After determining that noise at the Murphy Drill Site is a nuisance, the Zoning Administrator 
properly revised conditions and explained how such conditions address impacts to 
surrounding residents.  New conditions require that “all drilling, workover, or maintenance rig 
operations at the site shall at all times be carried on only by electric power” to reduce noise.77  
This condition mirrors a nearly identical condition in the 2009 Plan Approval for the Packard 
Drill Site where the Zoning Administrator determined “to reduce the amount of noise 
emanating from the site, all drilling and reworking operations at the site shall be carried on only 
by electrical power.”78  The Determination for the Murphy Drill Site also requires E&B to 
measure and monitor noise levels during all drilling, workover or maintenance activity, and 
publicize the results to surrounding residents.79  This requirement to measure, monitor, and 
publicize noise levels is critical to address excessive noise at the Murphy Drill Site and stems 
from the Zoning Administrator’s inherent police power to monitor and mitigate impacts to 
surrounding communities from harmful drilling operations.  As the Zoning Administrator 
explained:  
 

In this manner, the operator will be encouraged to follow the City’s Noise 
Ordinance as closely as possible and will result in the public being made aware of 

 
72 Determination at p. 31. 
73 Behrens & Associates, Ambient Noise Survey, Drilling Impact Evaluation & Mitigation Report (Feb. 15, 

2006) (Appx. 41 to Redeemer Comment). 
74 Id. at p. 7. 
75 Meleah D. Boyle et al., A Pilot Study to Assess Residential Noise Exposure Near Natural Gas Compressor 

Stations, 12 PLOS ONE (2017), https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0174310 
at p. 10 (Appx. 40 to Redeemer Comment). 

76 Id. at p. 11. 
77 Determination at p. 11. 
78 Office of Zoning Administration, Plan Approval for Packard Drill Site, Case No. ZA 18129(PA2) and Yard 

Case No. 14549 (Mar. 17, 2009) at p. 3 (Appx. 57 to Redeemer Comment). 
79 Determination at p. 5. 

https://journals.plos.org/plosone/article?id=10.1371/journal.pone.0174310


Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 
 

13 
 

the actual noise levels instead of attempting to guess at the levels.  The intent is to 
bring down the level of noise from drilling and maintenance operations as this is 
a residential neighborhood with a number of medical, school and library 
structures in the immediate area.80 

 
The Zoning Administrator also addressed disruptive noise levels by requiring E&B to enclose 
the Murphy Drill Site.81  The Zoning Administrator explained that enclosing the drill site would 
“reduce impacts on nearby residences from any noise which is generated by the operation of the 
extraction of oil or the co-generation of electricity from the burning of natural gas.”82  Indeed, 
E&B acknowledged in its appeal that the enclosure “is an effective sound barrier.”83  Thus, the 
record supports the Zoning Administrator’s findings that excessive noise at the Murphy Drill 
Site negatively impacts nearby residents and the revised operating conditions are necessary to 
provide relief. 
 

B. The Zoning Administrator Properly Determined that Revised Conditions to 
Improve Accountability and Reporting are Necessary based on E&B’s Non-
Compliant Operation of the Murphy Drill Site 

 
The Zoning Administrator also revised conditions to address concerns documented in the 
record about E&B’s irresponsible operation of the Murphy Drill Site and the lack of 
communication from E&B to community members.  As one resident described at the April 28 
hearing, “E&B is not a responsible operator.  Most of it happens behind closed doors.  
Neighbors receive no notice of the activity.  There is lack of transparent communication with the 
operator, and no warning or information from the operator when tanker trucks arrive.”84  Based 
on such testimony, the Zoning Administrator added a condition to require E&B to create a 
landing page for the public on its website “with information on monthly reporting on noise and 
emission levels at the drill site, current and planned operations, emergency contact information, 
emergency reporting instructions, and real time fence line air monitoring data.”85  Public 
distribution of such information helps to address E&B’s lack of public accountability and 
provides protection to community members who are otherwise left in the dark.  As the Zoning 
Administrator explained, “this is a best practice that strengthens transparency between the 
operator, the City and those that reside within the vicinity of the drill site.”86 
 

 
80 Determination at p. 58. 
81 Id.at pp. 9–10. 
82 Id. at p. 67. 
83 E&B Natural Resources Management Corp., Appendix to CEQA Appeal Justification for Approval of 

Plans, supra note 65, at p. 1. 
84 Determination at p. 32. 
85 Id. at p. 8. 
86 Id. at p. 60. 



Case No.: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A 

14 

The Zoning Administrator also added a condition that requires E&B to staff the drill site 24 
hours a day, seven days a week with a minimum of two personnel.87  The Zoning Administrator 
added the condition after reviewing “letters to the Department and photographs showing the 
on-site staff leaving the site during their shift.”88  According to the Zoning Administrator, “for 
an otherwise industrial facility in a residentially zoned and built community there should be 
personnel on the site, 24-hours a day for both security and to monitor on-site equipment.”89  The 
Zoning Administrator cited the mercaptan leak at the Rancho Park Drill Site to highlight the 
importance of always having trained staff at a drill site to monitor and control equipment.90  
Protecting residents from such harmful events is central to the Zoning Administrator’s 
regulatory power.  The record supports the Zoning Administrator’s findings that such 
protection is absent from the Murphy Drill Site and that minimum staffing requirements are 
proper and critical to monitor the site. 

* * *

For the reasons detailed above, Redeemer respectfully requests that the Commission deny 
E&B’s appeal and uphold the Determination.  Substantial evidence in the record supports the 
additional and modified conditions in the Determination that are essential to protect the health, 
safety, and welfare of community members surrounding the Murphy Drill Site.   

Respectfully submitted, 

Byron Chan, Senior Attorney 

Angela Johnson Meszaros, Managing Attorney 

cc: Edber Macedo, City Planning Associate (edber.macedo@lacity.org) 

87 Determination at p. 10. 
88 Id. at p. 55. 
89 Id. 
90 Id.at pp. 55–56. 



Neighborhood Council 
Governing Board 

Matt Wersinger, President 
Ravi Sankaran, Vice-President  

Dan Wierzba, Secretary  
Daniel A. Perez, Treasurer 
Jillian Hegedus, Outreach 

Alejandro Arroyo, Communications 
Pooja Bhagat, Land Use 

Theresa Gamache, Area A 
Anne Kaplan, Area B 

Kristine Rezny, Area C 
Adriana De La Cruz, Area D 

Peter Kunkle, Area E 
Monica Franklin, Area F 

Maria del Carmen Sanchez, Area G 
Greg Turquand, Area H 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
 

 
CALIFORNIA 

 

DEL REY 
NEIGHBORHOOD 

COUNCIL 

 

 
Mailing Address: 

4325 Glencoe Ave #9365 
Marina Del Rey, CA 90292 

 
Email: board@delreync.org  
Website: www.delreync.org

 

 
April 19, 2023 
 
Mayor Karen Bass 
City Attorney Hydee Feldstein Soto 
Vincent P. Bertoni, Director of Planning 
 
Subject:  Murphy Drill Site and Case ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 
 
Dear Mayor Bass, City Attorney Soto, and Planning Director Bertoni: 
 
At its April 13, 2023, General Board meeting the Del Rey Neighborhood Council (DRNC) approved the 
following motion regarding the Murphy Drill Site in West Adams and above-referenced case:   
 
“Whereas, the DRNC supports the City of Los Angeles ordinance approved in December 2022 to phase 
out oil drilling operations within City limits; however, the phaseout of oil drilling in the City will follow 
an amortization schedule whereby some active drilling sites will remain in operation for up to 20 
years; 
 
Whereas, there is a long history of discriminatory and disparate treatment in oil drilling requirements 
whereby some communities are provided with greater environmental protections from pollution and 
noise compared to other lower income communities which are not;  
 
Whereas, the Murphy Drill site in West Adams is an example of a community that has been exposed to 
toxic fumes and noise pollution that could be partially abated through facility enclosure and 
electrification of workover rigs and onsite power supply, as has been done in wealthier communities, 
but have not been;  
 
Whereas, on February 28, 2023, the City’s Planning Department issued a Letter of Determination on 
Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 requiring additional and modified conditions for the continued 
operation of the Murphy Oil Drill Site “to increase the protection of and to preserve the health, safety 
and general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of the neighborhood”;  
 
Whereas, on March 13, 2023, E & B Natural Resources the operator of the Murphy Drill site filed an 
appeal to the City’s Letter of Determination; 
 
Therefore, the DRNC calls on the City of Los Angeles to uphold its February 28 Letter of 
Determination.” 

mailto:board@delreync.org
http://www.delreync.org/


 
Pursuant to the above motion, the DRNC implores you and the South Los Angeles Area Planning 
Commission to uphold the February 28 Letter of Determination and implement its requirements as soon 
as possible for the health and welfare of the West Adams community.   
 
 
Regards, 

      
Matt Wersinger       Ravi Sankaran 
President        Vice-President 
Del Rey Neighborhood Council      Del Rey Neighborhood Council 
Matt.Wersinger@delreync.org     Ravi.Sankaran@delreync.org  
 

Cc: Nancy Sutley, Deputy Mayor for Energy and Sustainability 
Jessica Brown, Deputy City Attorney 
Lisa M. Webber, Deputy Director of Planning 
South LA Area Planning Commission 

mailto:Matt.Wersinger@delreync.org
mailto:Ravi.Sankaran@delreync.org


 

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90071-1410 

213-576-1000 | Fax: 213-576-1100 

 

Alston & Bird LLP      www.alston.com 

 
 

Nicki Carlsen  Direct Dial: +1 213 576 1128 Email: nicki.carlsen@alston.com 

 

September 25, 2023 

South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
Constituent Service Center, Room B 
8475 South Vermont Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90044   
apcsouthla@lacity.org  
edber.macedo@lacity.org 
   

Re: Supplemental Submission in support of Appeal of Approval of Plans for 
2126 W. Adams Blvd. and 2125 W. 26th Place, Los Angeles, CA (“Murphy 
Site”) (Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O- PA6, issued February 28, 2023 (“Plan 
Approval”)) 

Dear Commissioners: 

We represent E&B Natural Resources Management and its affiliated companies, 
including Elysium Natural Resources, LLC (collectively, “E&B”) regarding E&B’s Appeal of 
the Zoning Administrator’s (“ZA”) issuance of additional and modified conditions in the 
Plan Approval for E&B’s operations at its Murphy Site located at 2126 W. Adams Blvd. and 
2125 W. 26th Place, Los Angeles, CA (“Murphy Site”) under Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-
PA6, circulated on February 28, 2023 (“Plan Approval”).   

E&B holds fee and leasehold interests in mineral rights that are under active 
operation within the City.  E&B and its affiliate companies are also operators of oil and 
gas facilities located within the City.  E&B collectively produces over 8,000 barrels of oil 
per day for Californians including Los Angelenos. Over 250 staff work for E&B, many in 
the Los Angeles area.  These operations, including those at the Murphy Site, have been 
the subject of extensive permitting and zoning approvals by the City, and they are also 
subject to rigorous oversight by the California Geologic Energy Management Division 
(“CalGEM”), the state agency in charge of regulating oil and gas production. 

 
E&B took over the operations at the Murphy Site in October 2019 from Sentinel 

Peak Resources, and the site has existed since the 1960s “in accordance with numerous 
prior Zoning Administrator approvals.” (Exhibit G, 9/14/2007 Letter of Determination re 
ZA-1959-15227-O-PA(4).)  The Murphy facility is located in the vicinity of West Adams 

http://www.alston.com/


South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 2 

 

Boulevard and Western Avenue, and it extracts from 960 acres of mineral interests.  In 
addition to owning some mineral rights directly in fee, E&B also leases mineral rights from 
mineral interest owners and holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for the Murphy 
facility.  

 

E&B was directed by the City to file a Plan Approval application for the Murphy 
Site in April 2022, despite a failure to establish documented evidence showing continued 
violation of any condition (as required under Condition No. 16 in the prior Plan Approval), 
no nuisance determination, and no proposals by E&B for any projects. The ZA held a public 
hearing regarding the Plan Approval application for the Murphy Site on April 28, 2022, 
during which a group of organized opposition made three common demands: (1) 
permanently enclose the drill site; (2) only allow the use of an electric workover rig; and 
(3) ban the burning of methane gas on site.  Thereafter, E&B submitted a comment letter 
to the ZA on May 31, 2022, responding to the public’s demands.  Namely, E&B explained 
that the enclosure of the production facilities is not considered a best practice, has not 
been proven to be safer, and is not commonly used in the design of an oil and gas 
production site.  Moreover, E&B explained, as did the Petroleum Administrator in a letter 
submitted to the ZA, the lack of feasibility for an electric workover rig and the removal of 
methane gas at the site, as methane gas can be burned responsibly, and natural gas is 
commonly and safely used in households.   

On February 28, 2023, the ZA proceeded to circulate the Plan Approval for the 
Murphy Site with additional and modified conditions that require E&B to, among other 
things, require all “drilling, workover, or maintenance rig operations at the site shall at all 

Murphy Site 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 3 

 

times be carried on only by means of electric power[,]” enclose the Murphy Site with a 
45-foot wall, prohibit “maintenance acidizing…on an existing production or injection well 
until a determination has been made by the [ZA],” and require “[a]ny methane used for 
the micro-turbines must come from methane produced as a by product from oil 
extraction.” 

E&B timely filed its appeal to additional and modified conditions contained in the 
Plan Approval on March 13, 2023, specifically as to conditions Nos. 5, 7, 16, 17, 19, 21, 22, 
23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 32, and 33.  The hearing for E&B’s appeal to the additional and 
modified conditions to the Plan Approval is scheduled for public hearing on October 3, 
2023.  E&B now submits this letter ahead of the October 3, 2023 public hearing in order 
to supplement E&B’s appeal as to the additional and modified conditions issued in the 
Plan Approval.   

By imposing certain additional and modified conditions (i.e., Conditions Nos. 17, 
25, and 26) on E&B’s oil and gas operations at the Murphy Site, the Plan Approval 
improperly expanded the ZA’s authority so as to invade the province of the State Oil & 
Gas Supervisor’s unilateral authority to make decisions regarding oil and gas production 
methods in each case throughout the state.  As shown by a recent California Supreme 
Court decision, several of the Plan Approval’s additional and modified conditions affecting 
the methods of E&B’s oil and gas production are preempted by state law. (Chevron U.S.A. 
Inc. v. Cty. of Monterey (2023) 15 Cal.5th 135 (“County of Monterey”).)  The California 
Supreme Court has stated that the State Legislature has delegated exclusive authority to 
the State Oil and Gas Supervisor to determine what methods of oil production are 
appropriate in each case.  However, the ZA’s Plan Approval modifies and adds conditions, 
thus unlawfully dictating the methods for E&B’s oil and gas production at the Murphy 
Site.  Without input from the State Oil and Gas Supervisor, the added and modified 
conditions to oil and gas operations at the Murphy Site are certainly preempted under 
the California Supreme Court’s recent decision. 

Moreover, the additional and modified conditions contained in the Plan Approval 
for the Murphy Site are unduly oppressive and interfere with E&B’s vested rights by 
revoking, modifying, and imposing new and modified conditions for the operations at the 
Murphy Site, and represent an abuse of the City and ZA’s discretion. The additional and 
modified conditions contained in the Plan Approval are also invalid for the reasons stated 
explained in E&B’s initial appeal of the Plan Approval, which are hereby incorporated by 
reference. (See Exhibit A.) 

I. The Murphy Site is Already Subject to Existing Conditions in Previous Plan 
Approvals. 

 
As the Plan Approval states, the Murphy Site has existed and operated subject to 

previously approved plan approvals with existing conditions. (Letter of Determination, at 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 4 

 

pp. 1-2 [“The conditions of approval from Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) are in 
standard type and font.  The revisions to the Conditions of Approval are in bold print and 
underlined or strikethrough”]; see also Exhibit F, ZA-1959-15227-O-PA3, dated March 13, 
2006.) The referenced ZA-1959-15227-0-PA4, which was issued on September 14, 2007, 
set forth the conditions at the Murphy Site and has since been further modified by ZA-
1959-15227-O-PA5, which was issued on June 16, 2016, for which E&B has reasonably 
relied upon to conduct its oil and gas operations at the Murphy Site. (Exhibit H, 6/16/2016 
Letter of Determination re ZA-1959-15227-O-PA5.) These conditions have vested, absent 
a showing of a compelling reason to revoke or modify them. For example, Condition No. 
16 listed in ZA-1959-15227-O-PA5 specifically provides the basis for which the ZA may 
seek to amend or supplement the existing conditions to the Murphy Site:  

 
16. At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should 

documented evidence be submitted showing continued violation 
of any condition of this grant, resulting in an unreasonable level of 
disruption or interference with peaceful enjoyment of the 
adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning Administrator 
reserves the right to require the applicant to file for a plan approval 
application 

 
But despite these existing conditions and the City’s failure to establish a 

“continued violation of any condition…resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or 
interference with peaceful enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties” (id.), 
the Plan Approval argues that:  
 

“[B]ased on the whole of the administrative record, additional and 
modified conditions are required for the continued operation of the 
existing Murphy Oil Drill Site to increase the protection of and to preserve 
the health, safety and general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of 
the neighborhood.  The additional conditions are also necessary to afford 
greater protection to surrounding property and to address the nuisance 
conditions which are demonstrated by substantial evidence."  
 

(Letter of Determination, at p. 1.)  However, and as set forth below, no nuisance 
determination has been reached, and the City is creating new and modified conditions 
without going through the proper process and is disregarding well-established law in 
doing so.  Nevertheless, and in the interest of reaching compromise with the City 
regarding the operations at the Murphy Site, E&B has proposed revisions to the additional 
and modified conditions inserted in the Plan Approval.  (Exhibit B, E&B’s Proposed 
Revisions to the Plan Approval.)  For example, E&B has proposed the following language 
for the Plan Approval’s modifications to Condition No.5: 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 5 

 

5. That driveway access for ingress and egress to the drilling site 
shall be provided through the existing driveways fronting on 
Adams Boulevard. Furthermore, that the existing parking area 
on the enclosed drilling site area for use by vehicles employed 
in drilling and maintaining of oil wells on the property and for 
parking of automobiles of employees engaged in the drilling 
and production activities shall be augmented by additional 
parking on the area on the East of the drill site, outside of the 
enclosed area, which area shall be leveled and covered with a 
gravel surface to approximately one-half the depth of the lot 
for use as additional parking for employees. and overflow 
parking for The Athletic Club. Parking on the east side of the 
drill-site, outside of the enclosed area, shall not be used for 
heavy trucking operations or staging or storage of any. All such 
driveways and parking areas shall be regularly washed down, 
swept or otherwise kept free of accumulated cement, dust, or 
other materials which would produce dust in the use of said 
facilities. There  shall be no access to the site from 27th Street 
except for maintenance of the  landscaped area fronting on 
27th Street and south of the wall separating the  landscaped 
area from the production site. Additionally, there shall be no  
parking of any vehicles by workers or equipment servicing the 
site on 27th Street. Except for access by   Southern California 
Gas to service or operate its equipment, aAny access for the 
maintenance of any infrastructure for the production  site 
such as existing pipes in front of said wall shall be from the 
existing gate  at the parking area on the easterly side of the 
facility with access from West  Adams Boulevard only.  

 
Additionally, as for the proposed requirement included in Condition No. 7, E&B proposes: 
 

7. MODIFIED: Until the sound barrier walls are a permanent 45-
foot high structure is built, in accordance with  Condition No. 
23, and, afterward for any portion of a workover, maintenance 
or drilling rig which exceeds 45 feet in height, the applicant 
shall install the following sound mitigation systems and 
implement administrative noise controls as follows: 

a. Erect 12-foot high acoustical panels approximately 100 
feet in length on a 30-foot high blanket sound wall on  
the north side and either the west or , south and east 
side of the any workover, maintenance or drilling rig at 
the Murphy drilling site (west, south and east side 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 6 

 

property line), with the layout and wall lengths 
determined after the drilling, workover or maintenance 
rig and equipment positioning has been established. 
Install the acoustical panels sound wall as close as 
possible to the drilling, workover or maintenance rig and 
associated equipment with no gaps or openings in the 
walls. The acoustical panels sound wall material should 
have a minimum STC rating of 25…. 

 
 …. 

i. To ensure adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and 
to identify any unusual or unique noise problems, sound level 
measurement and testing shall be complete as the rig starts 
up operations. To verify and document sound level 
compliance, continuous sound level measurement and 
monitoring may be considered during all drilling, workover 
or maintenance activity to ensure adequate sound 
mitigation has been installed, and to identify any unusual or 
unique noise problems, sound level measurement and 
testing shall be complete as the rig starts  up operations. To 
verify and document sound level compliance, continuous 
sound level measurement and monitoring may shall be 
considered during all drilling, workover or maintenance 
activity.  The operator shall make known through both 
regular mail and website communication the results of such 
measurement and monitoring to abutting property owners 
and residents as required by Condition No. 21 elsewhere in 
this Determination. 

 
As for Condition No. 25, E&B made the following revisions to reach a compromise: 
 

25. All drilling, workover, or maintenance rig operations at the site 
shall at all times be carried on only by electric power.  All other 
operations on the site shall at all times be carried on only by 
means of electric power. Power may be  generated on site by solar 
voltaic generators or natural gas powered micro-turbines placed 
within sound and odor proofed buildings or structures. Any 
methane used for the micro-turbines must come from methane 
produced as a by product from oil extraction. Methane may not 
be imported to power micro-turbines form off-site sources nor 
may it be pumped to the site from other oil production sites in the 
area. 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 7 

 

-  The operator shall limit any microturbine PM emissions 
to 0,0035  lbs/mmbtu, or an equivalent reduction in 
the number and/or size of the  microturbines, in order 
to reduce emissions to below local thresholds.  The 
applicant will be subject to SCAQMD permit conditions 
that limit emissions from the set of microturbines, not 
just individual permit units.  

 
For Condition No. 26, E&B also proposes to revise the condition as follows in an effort to 
reach a compromise: 
 

26. The use of diesel fueled equipment, including any drilling, 
workover or maintenance rig, is prohibited is prohibited on the 
site nor may any backup generators use diesel fuel. Backup 
generators shall either be solar powered, be plugged into the 
electric power grid or powered by the on-site microturbines. 
Diesel  powered vehicles are permitted on the site. Said vehicles, 
however, may not idle when on-site and must shut off their 
engines until they are to be moved off of the site or to another 
position on the site. 

 
(See Exhibit B, E&B’s Proposed Revisions to the Plan Approval.)  As evidenced above, E&B 
is willing to engage the City in settlement discussions regarding the additional and 
modified conditions included in the Plan Approval.  Additionally, and as addressed below, 
the additional and modified conditions included in the Plan Approval are contrary to well-
established law and should not be approved as currently drafted. 

 
II. E&B’s Proposed Revisions to the Conditions Sufficiently Address Any Noise 

Concerns at the Murphy Site. 
 

Despite no determination of public nuisance or showing of a continued violation 
of an existing condition, the City seeks to impose new and modified conditions to the 
Murphy Site to address noise from its operations.  Namely, the City is now requiring E&B 
to erect a 30-foot sound wall after the 45-foot-high structure is built for any workover, 
maintenance or drilling rig that exceeds 45 feet in height.  But the City has not identified 
or provided any evidence that E&B is not in compliance with the applicable noise 
requirements.  In addition, E&B contracted with Behrens and Associates, Inc. to complete 
a noise study at the Murphy Site to address any concerns, and a report of the same was 
received by E&B on September 15, 2023. (Exhibit D, 9/15/2023 Murphy Site Operational 
Noise Assessment.)  

 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 8 

 

For its assessment, Behrens and Associates, Inc. completed a noise modeling with 
the use of three-dimensional computer noise modeling software, and assumptions were 
made to ensure a conservative assessment. (Id. at p. 4.)  As the report states, “[t]he 
production facility operational noise model was created to predict the constant, steady-
state noise levels at the Murphy site and adjacent surroundings.  The equipment sound 
data utilized in the modeling were derived from field measured sound levels on May 16, 
2023.” (Ibid.)  Further, the report provides that the “modeling includes existing masonry 
walls installed at the site. Noise sources included in the modeling were compressors and 
other production equipment[,]” as shown below and “[w]orkover rigs were not included 
in the modeling.” (Ibid.) 1 

 

 
 
Eight receptor locations were selected to “evaluate the noise impact of the 

operations at and nearby the site[,]” and a sound level survey surrounding the site was 
conducted from May 2, 2023 through May 5, 2023. (Id. at p. 5.)   

 
 

1 Additional workover rig noise was included in a separate modeling scenario. (Id. 
at p. 14.) 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 9 

 

 
Additionally, the following diagram demonstrates the sound levels measured in 

decibels with a weighting system developed to measure sound in a way that more closely 
mimics the ear’s natural sensitivity relative to frequency so that the instrument is less 
sensitive to noise at frequencies where the human ear is less sensitive and more sensitive 
at frequencies where the human ear is more sensitive. (Id. at 10, 19.) 

 

 
 
Behrens and Associates, Inc. concluded that loudest “predicted noise level will be 

up to 64.7 dBA” at receptor 5, which is located on the second floor. (Id. at p. 11.)  The 
noise modeling also considered proposed conditions.  Specifically, the report included 
modeling for if “a total of 220 linear feet of 20-foot-high, Sound Transmission Class (STC) 
32 Acoustic Barrier Wall installed” on both the west and east sides of the site. (Id. at 8.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 10 

 

In doing so, “[t]he operational noise modeling results with the proposed sound 
barrier walls indicate that the predicted noise level will be up to 58.2 dBA.” (Id. at p. 11.) 
And regardless of the conditions in the noise modeling, and “[b]ased on the previously 
measured existing neighborhood sound level survey data…, the facility operation does 
not generate significant noise impact at the evaluated receptor locations.” (Id. at p. 12.)   

 
A workover rig noise model was also created to evaluate two scenarios: (1) the 

workover rig operation without any mitigation, and (2) a workover rig operation with 
mitigations similar to the revisions that E&B proposes to the conditions in the Plan 
Approval (see Section I).  These mitigations include a 20-foot sound barrier wall installed 
on the western property line, a 32-foot sound barrier wall installed along the eastern 
property line, and 12-foot acoustical panels installed on the west and north sides of the 
workover rig. (Exhibit D, 9/15/2023 Murphy Production Site Operation Noise Assessment, 
p. 14.)  

 
 
 During unmitigated workover rig operations, the report determined that the 

“predicted noise levels will up to 74.9 dBA” and up to “64.5 dba…for mitigated scenario” 
representing “[a]n approximate 17 dB noise reduction…due to the presence of the sound 
barrier walls.” (Id. at p. 15.) 
 

As demonstrated by E&B’s noise study, its proposed revisions to the conditions in 
the Plan Approval will be effective in reducing the noise at the Murphy Site. (See id.) At 
the same time, the City has not engaged in similar, sufficient efforts to determine a need 
for the conditions it intends to impose on E&B, marking them as arbitrary conditions 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 11 

 

without any justification.  Therefore, E&B’s proposed conditions, as supported by the 
noise study, should be required and implemented by the City. 
 
III. E&B Cannot Feasibly Operate at the Murphy Site with an Electric Workover Rig. 

 
E&B’s operations require rigs that run on diesel fuel in order to operate at 

economically feasible levels.  Despite Condition Nos. 25 and 26’s requirement that the 
Murphy Site use electric drilling, workover, and maintenance rigs, commercially available 
workover and maintenance rigs do not exist. The Petroleum Administrator “mentioned 
that the use of workover rigs is not entirely feasible at this time[,]” and also stated that 
“electric workover rigs meant for rework and well abandonment projects are not 
commercially available in the United States.” (Letter of Determination, p. 37.)   Instead, 
“the Petroleum Administrator recommended that the Associate Zoning Administrator 
consider equipment and engine requirements for the Murphy Site[,]” and further 
recommended “specific tiers for all diesel powered equipment and engines that would be 
a California Air Resources Board (CARB) verified engine (CARB Tier 3) and would have an 
engine equivalent to a vehicle (or equipment) that uses Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) Tier 4 Engine Standards.” (Ibid.) Indeed, E&B utilizes the best available technology 
for its workover rig at the Murphy Site, which is equipped with advanced CARB certified 
engines (Tier 4), which have the cleanest engines on the market. 

 
The Letter of Determination and the City’s findings incorrectly state that E&B’s 

Packard Site has been required to have an electric workover rig. (Id. at p. 63.)  Likewise, 
the electric workover rig requirement for E&B’s Jefferson Site was contested and never 
implemented because the site is transitioning to other uses.  In addition, the City may 
have been referencing (incorrectly) the rig at the PCEC site on Pico Boulevard, but that is 
a drilling rig (not a workover or maintenance rig) which is permanently installed and hard-
wired to the electric grid and cannot be moved to be utilized elsewhere.   

 
Condition No. 26 fails to recognize the current state of technology as presented 

by the City’s own Petroleum Administrator and effectively terminates or severely curtails 
operations at the Murphy site.  In addition, this condition prohibits the idling of diesel-
powered vehicles, and this condition should clarify that a vehicle is not “idle” if it is being 
used for operations, such as powering equipment on the site.  As such, Condition No. 26 
imposes requirements on E&B that renders the operations uneconomically viable and 
imposes a de facto ban on the E&B’s oil and gas operations at the Murphy Site. 

 
IV. Maintenance Acidizing Is a Normal and Necessary Part of E&B’s Operations at 

the Murphy Site. 

E&B’s operations at the Murphy Site require the use of injection wells.  The 
injection wells are used as part of a waterflood secondary recovery.  Waterflooding 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 12 

 

involves the injection of water to increase the mobilization of oil within the underlying 
reservoirs.  Waterflooding is necessary for the economic recovery of oil from these 
formations, and the injection wells are used to re-inject the wastewater that is produced 
with the recoverable oil.  Without the re-injection of this wastewater, E&B’s operations 
at the Murphy Site would quickly become uneconomic as there is no other feasible 
method of disposing of this wastewater. (Exhibit C, Zylstra Decl at ¶¶ 9-11.) Likewise, 
injection wells can become clogged or less effective with time.  Routine maintenance such 
as acidizing is needed to maintain an injection well’s ability to inject fluids.  Importantly, 
cleaning a well is a safe, best practice that should be encouraged for optimal operations. 

 
By requiring the ZA’s approval for routine cleaning of the wells at the Murphy Site, 

as proposed by Condition No. 17, the Plan Approval creates a de facto ban on acidizing, 
and E&B’s oil production operations could quickly become uneconomic and not viable for 
continued use, especially in the event of E&B faces any prolonged delays for approval by 
the ZA.2    
 
V. The Prohibition of Imported Methane to the Murphy Site Diminishes E&B’s 

Ability to Effectively Operate. 

E&B’s microturbines at the Murphy Site are essential to E&B’s oil and gas 
production, and without microturbines, operations would be effectively terminated and 
severely curtailed.  At the Murphy Site, natural gas is burned with the use of existing 
microturbines on site.  The microturbines are used for onsite power generation.  And 
indeed, microturbines are best available technology, ultra-low emissions, pre-certified by 
the California Air Resources Board, and are supported by the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District. As stated by the SCAQMD, microturbines have many 
environmental advantages including being an alternative to flaring, reduced emissions on 
site, and decreasing the demand on the local power grid (i.e., reducing blackouts).   

Condition No. 25 creates a prohibition on imported methane or natural gas to 
power the microturbines at the Murphy Site.3  Yet, the City has provided no legal basis 
for prohibiting the use of natural gas from an offsite provider, something virtually every 
other commercial, industrial, and residential use is allowed to do.  The findings refer to 

 
2 E&B has filed a lawsuit challenging the City’s new oil and gas ordinance and has 

appealed the ZA’s Interpretation regarding “maintenance” activities (“ZAI”).   This 
condition should conform to the results of those legal proceedings.  Moreover, E&B 
appealed the ZAI. (See Exhibit E, (9/5/2023 Supplemental Submission in Support of Appeal 
of ZA-2022-8997-ZAI-1A - Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation of Well Maintenance.) 

3 This condition also improperly prohibits electric drilling, workover and 
maintenance rigs, and the opposition to Condition 26 also applies to this condition. 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 13 

 

the prior operator’s request for a flare as evidence of excess natural gas on the site, but 
circumstances have changed as the City is well aware, as it approved the installation of 
the SoCalGas pipeline to serve the microturbines.  The operation of E&B’s microturbines 
and source of methane and natural gas for those operations are severely limited by the 
imposed conditions in the Plan Approval, which in turn, will reduce the production of oil 
and economic viability of the operations at the Murphy Site. 

VI. The County of Monterey Opinion Confirms that the ZA’s Additional and Modified 
Conditions to the Plan Approval are Preempted by State Law and the Public 
Resources Code. 

Certain conditions listed in the Plan Approval addressing operational capacity, 
including Conditions Nos. 17, 25, and 26, are preempted by state law.  The California 
Constitution provides that a “county or city may make and enforce within its limits all 
local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general 
laws.” (Cal. Const., Art. XI, § 7, emphasis added.)  “If otherwise valid local legislation 
conflicts with state law, it is preempted by such law and is void.” (County of Monterey, 
supra, 15 Cal.5th at p. 142, citing Sherwin-Williams Co. v. City of Los Angeles (1993) 4 
Cal.4th 893, 897.) 

The recent decision by the California Supreme Court in County of Monterey 
specifically held that local governments are preempted from interfering in the regulation 
of oil and gas operations.  In particular, the California Supreme Court held that Monterey 
County was preempted under state law from prohibiting new drilling and banning the 
injection and impoundment of oil and gas wastewater.   

In this decision, the Supreme Court first interpreted section 31064 of the Public 
Resources Code, stating that it “directs the [State Oil and Gas] supervisor to administer 
the state’s regulations in a way that serves the dual purpose of ensuring the state has 
adequate oil and gas resources, while protecting the environment.” (County of Monterey, 
supra, 15 Cal.5th at p. 144, emphasis added.)  Further, section 3106 sets a “mandate that 
the state ‘shall’ supervise oil operation in a way that permits well operators to ‘utilize all 
methods and practices’ the [State Oil and Gas] supervisor has approved[.]” (Id. at p. 145, 
emphasis in original.)   

 
4 Section 3106 states, in part, that the “Supervisor shall … supervise the drilling, 

operation, maintenance, and abandonment of wells so as to permit owners or operators 
of wells to utilize all methods and practices known to the oil industry for the purpose of 
increasing the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons and which, in the opinion 
of the supervisor, are suitable for this purpose in each proposed case.” (Pub. Res. Code 
§3106, subd. (b), emphasis added.)   



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 14 

 

Applying this standard, California’s highest court held that section 3106 “implicitly 
limits a local entity’s authority by expressly providing that the state supervisor shall 
approve all production methods that are, ‘in the opinion of the supervisor,’ ‘suitable for 
th[e] purpose’ ‘of increasing the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons.’”  (Id. 
at p. 149, quoting Pub. Resources Code § 3106, subd. (b).)  “By banning some oil 
production methods altogether, [the local ordinance] takes those methods off the table 
and nullifies the supervisor's express, statutorily conferred authority to decide what oil 
production methods are suitable in each case.”  (Ibid., emphasis added.)  In other words, 
“[b]y providing that certain oil production methods may never be used by anyone, 
anywhere, in the County, [the local ordinance] nullifies—and therefore contradicts—
section 3106's mandate that the state ‘shall’ supervise oil operation in a way that permits 
well operators to ‘utilize all methods and practices’ the supervisor has approved.”  (Id. at 
p. 145, emphasis in original.)  

A. The Additional and Modified Conditions Frustrate the Supervisor’s Duty 
to Determine the Methods and Means for Oil Production in Each Case. 

 
Under the new legal framework set forward by the Supreme Court in the County 

of Monterey decision, the City simply cannot interfere with the State’s regulation of 
methods of oil production.  Even still, the additions and modifications to the Plan Approval 
attempt to seize authority away from the Supervisor to “supervise oil operation in a way 
that permits well operators [like E&B] to ‘utilize all methods and practices’ the supervisor 
has approved[]” (Id. at p. 145, emphasis in original).  Like the ban attempted by the County 
of Monterey, the additional and modified conditions similarly ban pre-approved methods 
for oil production at the Murphy Site and attempt to occupy regulatory space subject to 
already existing California law specifically prescribing the State Oil and Gas Supervisor 
with statutorily, unabated authority to decide the means for oil and gas production 
methods in each case.   

1. The Supervisor Has Not Determined That E&B Must Discontinue 
the Use of Diesel and to Utilize Purely Electric Power to Conduct 
Oil Operations. 
   

For instance, Condition Nos. 25 and 26, as drafted, require E&B to use an electric 
workover rig (which does not commercially exist) and give up the use of diesel fuel, which 
is not economically feasible and creates a de facto ban on E&B’s oil and gas production at 
the Murphy Site.  E&B currently utilizes advanced CARB certified engines (Tier 4), which 
have the cleanest engines on the market, and the Supervisor has never disallowed their 
use or required electric workover rigs instead. (See ibid.)  But as written, the ZA, not the 
Supervisor, dictates how E&B may operate and extract oil at the Murphy Site contrary to 
well-established law. 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 15 

 

2. The Supervisor Has Not Determined That E&B Must Discontinue 
the Importation of Methane Gas to Source Energy for Oil 
Operations, and it is SCAQMD’s Statutorily Conferred Duty to 
Regulate Air Quality Concerns. 
 

Condition No. 25 of the Plan Approval further stymies the Supervisor’s statutorily 
conferred authority to supervise the methods and means of oil and gas production in each 
case because it bars the importation of methane gas and discontinues an important 
method for sourcing energy to run operations at the Murphy Site.  In doing so, the ZA 
invades the Supervisor’s unilateral duty to decide in each case the means and methods 
for production.  

Condition No. 25 is further preempted because it additionally invades the 
SCAQMD’s authority to regulate air quality concerns, which the City purportedly seeks to 
address by Condition No. 25.  (See, e.g., SCAQMD Rules 1148.1 and 1148.2.) The State, in 
partnership with the Environmental Protection Agency, regulates air pollutants pursuant 
to the Mulford-Carrell Air Resources Act and the federal Clean Air Act.  (See Cal. Health & 
Saf. Code, § 39000 et. seq.; 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.)  The Clean Air Act establishes the 
maximum concentration levels of certain pollutants and requires each state to adopt a 
state implementation plan to “meet federal ambient air quality standards in each state’s 
air basins.”  (So. Cal. Gas Co. v. So. Coast Air Quality Mgmt. Dist. (2012) 200 Cal.App.4th 
251, 268-69; 42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7408-7409; Health & Saf. Code, § 39602.5 [“The state board 
shall adopt rules and regulations pursuant to Section 43013 that, in conjunction with 
other measures adopted by the state board, the districts, and the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, will achieve ambient air quality standards required by 
the federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 7401 et seq.) in all areas of the state by the 
applicable attainment date, and to maintain these standards thereafter”].)  The State 
seeks to achieve these air quality standards through “an intensive, coordinated, state, 
regional, and local effort to protect and enhance the ambient air quality of the state.”  
(Health & Saf. Code, § 39001.)   

As part of this coordinated effort, “[t]he Legislature has designated regional air 
pollution districts as the primary enforcers of air quality regulations.”  (So. Cal. Gas Co. v. 
So. Coast Air Quality Mgmt. Dist., supra, 200 Cal.App.4th at 269, emphasis added; 
Western Oil & Gas Assn. v. Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control Dist. (1989) 49 
Cal.3d 408, 417-418 [“The air pollution control district is the agency charged with 
enforcing both statewide and district emission controls”], emphasis original.)  They “are 
the mechanism through which the State meets and maintains state and federal air quality 
standards under the federal Clean Air Act and California law.”  (Beentjes v. Placer Cnty. 
Air Pollution Control Dist. (9th Cir. 2005) 397 F.3d 775, 782.)  Subject to the powers and 
duties of the State Board, air districts are authorized to adopt rules and regulations to 
achieve and enforce the state and federal air quality standards.  (Health & Saf. Code, § 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 16 

 

40001(a), emphasis added.)  The State Board then “coordinate[s] the activities of all 
districts necessary to comply with [the Clean Air Act].”  (Health & Saf. Code, § 39602, 
emphasis added.)  Thus, the State has delegated authority specifically to air districts–not 
the City–to protect the State’s air resources. 

As such, the air districts are delegated authority to regulate air standards, and the 
City’s prohibition of imported methane gas at the Murphy Site in Condition No. 25 to the 
Plan Approval, which is otherwise allowed by the SCAQMD, contradicts SCAQMD’s 
delegated authority to determine how air quality standards should be met. 

3. The Supervisor Has Not Determined That E&B Must First Receive 
Approval from the ZA to Conduct As-Needed Maintenance. 
 

Moreover, by requiring ZA approval for maintenance acidizing consistent with the 
ZAI, the ZA and City create a de facto ban on maintenance, which is detrimental to E&B’s 
ability to continue to produce oil and gas at its Murphy Site.  Importantly, the Supervisor 
enjoys unilateral authority to determine whether these types of operations are suitable 
in each case. Well maintenance acidizing is absolutely critical for E&B to conduct oil 
production at the Murphy Site.  E&B requires acidizing of injection wells in order to 
maintain waterflood.  (See Ex. C, Zylstra Decl. ¶¶ 9-11, see also Exhibit E (September 5, 
2023 Supplemental Submission in Support of Appeal of ZA-2022-8997-ZAI-1A - Zoning 
Administrator’s Interpretation of Well Maintenance.) Without acidizing, existing injection 
wells cannot maintain levels of injection needed for economic waterflood. (Ibid.)  While 
CalGEM determined that acidizing does not require a Rework NOI or other approval, and 
the added requirement to receive ZA approval now converts this approval requirement 
into a de facto prohibition on acidizing.  But the Public Resources Code preempts the City 
from prohibiting methods of oil production, including the requirements for maintenance, 
at the Murphy Site.  Even if CalGEM allows acidizing without an approval, the Supervisor, 
not the City, has been delegated the authority in the State for deciding whether this 
activity should go forward.  By prohibiting acidizing operations unless the ZA approves, 
the City has elevated itself to the level of Oil and Gas Supervisor.  The Oil and Gas 
Supervisor has the statutory duty to determine what methods of oil production are 
suitable in a given case, and the City cannot use Condition No. 17 or the corresponding 
ZAI to usurp the Supervisor’s role. There is no doubt after the Supreme Court’s decision 
that the City cannot do this. 

The City is blatantly nullifying and thwarting the Supervisor’s express, statutorily 
conferred authority to determine and permit the methods of oil and gas production for 
in the State of California for each case, and the Plan Approval should not be approved as 
a result. 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 17 

 

B. The Additional and Modified Conditions Conflict With the Supervisor’s 
Dual Mandate of “Ensuring the State has Adequate Oil and Gas 
Resources, While Protecting the Environment.” 

 
Even worse, the added and modified conditions in the Plan Approval are directly 

antagonistic to the State Oil and Gas Supervisor’s mandate as directed by the Legislature 
that he shall work to “increas[e] the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons.”  
(Public Resources Code § 3106, subd. (b).)   

By adding restrictions to the types of fuel that may be used at the Murphy Site, 
the requirement for an electric workover rig, and adding new requirements for 
maintenance acidizing, the Plan Approval puts into effect “a ban on certain oil production 
methods [at the Murphy Site].” (See Cty. of Monterey, supra, 15 Cal. 5th at p. 147.)  None 
of these proposed additional and modified conditions will promote the recovery of 
hydrocarbons.  (See Pub. Resources Code § 3106, subd. (b).) As a result, the Murphy Site’s 
operational efficiency and viability for continued production will be greatly reduced, 
reducing the recovery of hydrocarbons at the Murphy Site in contradiction to the Public 
Resources Code. (See ibid.)  As did the County of Monterey, the City has overstepped its 
authority by modifying and seeking to oversee activities already regulated by CalGEM and 
the State Oil and Gas Supervisor.  In doing so, the City’s adoption of the Plan Approval 
stands directly in front of and frustrates CalGEM and the State Oil and Gas Supervisor’s 
ability to “administer the state’s regulations in a way that serves the dual purpose of 
ensuring the state has adequate oil and gas resources, while protecting the environment.” 
(Cty. of Monterey, supra, 15 Cal. 5th at p. 144.)   

Taken together, the City lacks the statutory authority or justification to impose 
unnecessary requirements that are intended to address issues that the Legislature has 
already conferred authority to other agencies to decide. (See id. at p. 149.)  Consequently, 
the additional and modified conditions to the Plan Approval are preempted and should 
be sent back to Planning Staff for reconsideration.   

VII. The Plan Approval Interferes with E&B’s Vested Rights and Constitutes a 
Taking. 
 
The U.S. and California Constitutions provide that private property shall not be 

taken without just compensation. (U.S. Const. amend. V; Cal. Const., Art. 1, § 19.)  These 
constitutional protections apply to regulatory takings.  (Lucas v. S.C. Coastal Council 
(1992) 505 U.S. 1003, 1014.)  “The right to remove oil and gas from the ground is a 
property right.” (Maples v. Kern Cty. Assessment Appeals Bd. (2002) 103 Cal.App.4th 172, 
186.)  Moreover, a land use regulation constitutes to a facial taking of property when it 
"denies an owner economically viable use of his land" (id. at 1016, citations omitted), and 
the implementation of conditional use permits like the Plan Approval strip a property 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 18 

 

owner of “substantial economic use” of their affected property. (See Maritrans Inc. v. U.S. 
(2003) 342 F.3d 1344, 1351-52.)  “Interference with the right to continue an established 
business is far more serious than the interference a property owner experiences when 
denied a conditional use permit in the first instance.” (Goat Hill Tavern v. City of Costa 
Mesa (1992) 6 Cal.App.4th 1519, 1529.)  

 “Where a permit has been properly obtained and in reliance thereon the 
permittee has incurred material expense, he acquires a vested property right to the 
protection of which he is entitled.” (Id. at 1530.) “When a permittee has acquired such a 
vested right it may be revoked if the permittee fails to comply with reasonable terms or 
conditions expressed in the permit granted [citations] or if there is a compelling public 
necessity.” (Ibid.) A compelling public necessity warranting the revocation of a use permit 
for a lawful business may exist where the conduct of that business constitutes a 
nuisance." (Ibid., citing O'Hagen v. Board of Zoning Adjustment (1971) 19 Cal. App. 3d 151, 
158; Trans- Oceanic Oil Corp. v. Santa Barbara (1948) 85 Cal. App. 2d 776; see also Upton 
v. Gray (1969) 269 Cal. App. 2d 352; Community Development Com. v. City of Fort Bragg 
(1988) 204 Cal. App. 3d 1124.)  

 In Goat Hill Tavern, a business owner of the Goat Hill Tavern in Costa Mesa, 
California was granted a writ of administrative mandamus ordering the City Council to set 
aside its denial of the owner’s application for renewal of a conditional use permit for his 
tavern, to recognize that the tavern had a vested right to continue operations, and to 
renew the conditional use permit.  In its review of the trial court’s ruling and affirming the 
same based on the substantial evidence standard, the Court of Appeal explained that 
despite considering evidence of “complaints from neighboring residents and 
businesses…[t]here was no showing to distinguish complaints about Goat Hill Tavern from 
other possible causes, including [a neighboring bar], which adjoined Goat Hill Tavern, and 
the homeless who frequent the area.” (Goat Hill Tavern, supra, 6 Cal.App.4th at p. 1531.) 
It additionally made the critical point that since “[t]he city has not yet attempted to obtain 
a nuisance determination[,]” the Court “need not address [whether a compelling public 
necessity exists to terminate operation] because it is not properly before [the Court].” 
(Ibid.) 

 Similarly here, the City, through the implementation of additional and modified 
conditions in the Plan Approval for the Murphy Site, has effected a taking of E&B’s vested 
rights to operate its oil and gas facilities at the Murphy Site.  The City has done so without 
a public nuisance determination, and no public nuisance has been shown to be caused by 
the Murphy Site. Likewise, E&B engages in significant oil production at the Murphy Site 
and has a vested property interest in continued oil production at the Murphy Site, which 
has been legally permitted by the City.   

https://law.justia.com/cases/california/court-of-appeal/3d/19/151.html
https://law.justia.com/cases/california/court-of-appeal/2d/85/776.html
https://law.justia.com/cases/california/court-of-appeal/2d/269/352.html
https://law.justia.com/cases/california/court-of-appeal/3d/204/1124.html


South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 19 

 

The Murphy Site is located within an oil drilling district that was enacted by 
ordinance by the Los Angeles City Council pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code section 
13.01.  Moreover, the Murphy Site has existed since the 1960s and has always maintained 
an excellent record of compliance.  E&B began operating the site in October 2019 when 
it took over Sentinel Peak Resources’ vested rights, and E&B and its Murphy Site 
predecessors received several prior zoning approvals from the City to conduct oil 
production operations at the Murphy Site. (See Section I.) The Plan Approvals establish 
certain conditions, as well as a process for additional modifications or condition review of 
these existing permits. Condition No. 16 from the most recent Plan Approval provides a 
documented showing is first required to alter the existing conditions:  

At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should documented 
evidence be submitted showing continued violation of any condition of 
this grant, resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or interference 
with peaceful enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties, the 
Zoning Administrator reserves the right to require the applicant to file for 
a plan approval application. 

(Exhibit H, 6/16/2016 Letter of Determination re ZA-1959-15227-O-PA5 [Condition No. 
16].)  The currently effective permit conditions allowing for and providing the procedure 
to establish subsequent modifications are being invalidated by the City as a result.  In 
order to rescind existing permit approvals, the City must show that such action is 
necessary to abate a public nuisance.  The City has not made that necessary showing.   

In 2017, the City adopted ZA Memo 133, which, among other things, requires a 
public hearing and environmental review under CEQA for any modification of previously 
approved determination of conditions.  (Exhibit E [ZA Memo 133].)  In an appeal related 
to a challenge to ZA Memo 133, the California Court of Appeal upheld the validity of ZA 
Memo 133 on the basis that the City would still need to comply with the nuisance 
abatement procedures in Section 12.27.1 before it could modify, discontinue, or revoke 
a previously approved condition in an existing permit:   

In other words, the authority that Memorandum 133 explicitly confers 
upon the City with respect to modifications of previously approved 
conditions is authority that has existed all along. Nothing in Memorandum 
133 indicates that the notice and hearing protections set forth in City Code 
section 12.27.1 would not apply before the City decided to modify, 
discontinue, or revoke a previously approved condition in an existing 
permit. 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 20 

 

(Youth for Envtl. Justice v. City of L.A., No. B282822, 2019 Cal. App. Unpub. LEXIS 1110, at 
*42 (Feb. 15, 2019) (“YEJ v. City of LA”).5 

By adding requirements to the Plan Approval, such as requiring an electric 
workover rig, banning diesel fuel for operations, banning imported methane, and 
requiring ZA approval for maintenance acidizing, among other revised and additional 
conditions, the Plan Approval improperly revokes previously approved conditions in an 
existing plan approval without establishing a “continued violation of any 
condition…resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or interference with peaceful 
enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties,”  contrary to ZA-1959-15227-O-
PA5 (Exhibit H, 6/16/2016 Letter of Determination re ZA-1959-15227-O-PA5 [Condition 
No. 16]) or obtaining a determination of a public nuisance at the Murphy Site, contrary to 
well-established law.  The Plan Approval, with its additional and modified conditions, will 
take E&B’s private property for public use, and the City must pay just compensation for 
the taking. 

VIII. The Plan Approval Also Effects a Taking of E&B’s Vested Rights as an Operator 
of an Extractive Use. 
 
As an operator of an extractive use, E&B has a vested right to conduct 

maintenance operations needed to continue operating its existing wells. “The very nature 
and use of an extractive business contemplates the continuance of such use of the entire 
parcel of land as a whole, without limitation or restriction to the immediate area 
excavated at the time the ordinance was passed.”  (Hansen Bros. Enters. v. Board of 
Supervisors (1996) 12 Cal.4th 533, 553.)  The California Supreme Court in Hansen 
recognized the “diminishing asset” doctrine and defined the scope of vested rights for 
mining, quarrying and other extractive uses, recognizing the unique qualities of extractive 
uses and holding that it includes an expansion of those uses.  -But the City’s additions and 
modifications to the Plan Approval disregard these legal principles. And indeed, the 
appellate court in YEJ v. City of LA held that the City must still initiate a nuisance 
abatement proceeding in order to modify, discontinue, or revoke a previously approved 
condition.  Notwithstanding this holding, the City seeks to prohibit maintenance acidizing 
at the Murphy Site that lacks ZA approval without any attempt to show that such action 
is necessary to abate a nuisance.  (L.A. Municipal Code § 12.27.1.B.)  

Without demonstrating a continued violation of an existing condition or a public 
nuisance, the City is seeking to significantly modify and effectively stifle E&B’s ability to 
conduct maintenance acidizing, and thus continue its operations at the Murphy Site, and 

 
5 While the YEJ v. City of LA opinion is not a published opinion, it remains binding 

upon the City under the principles of collateral estoppel.  (Parklane Hosiery Company, Inc. 
v. Shore (1979) 439 U.S. 322, 332-333.) 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 21 

 

therefore unlawfully interferes with E&B’s vested rights as an operator of an extractive 
use.  Importantly, the permit for E&B’s oil and gas productions at the Murphy Site when 
E&B first took control in 2019 did not include many of the conditions set forth in the Plan 
Approval circulated on February 28, 2023 (see Section I, supra), and E&B has previously 
operated with the assumption that it could continue operations as permitted at that time 
in 2019.  By adding conditions and modifications that dramatically affect E&B’s oil and gas 
production, such as the ability to conduct maintenance subject to only the Supervisor’s 
approval, the City is damaging a business that has always operated legally.   

VIII. The Plan Approval Provides No Justification for Contradicting Statutory 
Authority Conferred by the State.  

 
The ZA also provides no justification for the additional and modified conditions in 

the Plan Approval.  Nor can the City demonstrate that the additional and modified 
conditions are roughly proportional to the issues they intend to “mitigate.”  By doing so, 
the ZA has abused its discretion in determining that the additional and modified 
conditions in the Plan Approval are required to increase the protection of and to preserve 
the health, safety, and general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of the 
neighborhood, or (2) address demonstrated nuisance conditions sufficient to support 
new and modified conditions to the operations at the Murphy Site. 

Agencies must make all findings required by applicable law and bridge the 
analytical gap between the raw evidence and the ultimate decision.  The Plan Approval 
fails to do this, and the additional and modified conditions set forth therein are arbitrary, 
unreasonable, and not supported by evidence as a result.  Even though the Plan Approval 
imposes new conditions on the Murphy Site’s operations, it did not make any findings 
(including necessary sub-conclusions) that bridge the analytical gap between the alleged 
harm and the conditions imposed. Of importance, Los Angeles Municipal Code (“LAMC”) 
section 13.01 requires findings based on “actual observation and experience with drilling” 
in order for a ZA to impose additional conditions or require corrective measures to be 
taken.  The Plan Approval does not include the required findings of a “continued violation 
of any [existing] condition…resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or 
interference with peaceful enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties,” 
(Exhibit H, 6/16/2016 Letter of Determination re ZA-1959-15227-O-PA5 [Condition No. 
16])  based on “actual observation and experience with drilling.” (See LAMC § 13.01.) Nor 
do the findings illuminate how the conditions would alleviate the alleged harm, and the 
findings similarly do not contain support from cited evidence. 

For example, the Plan Approval adds the requirement for E&B to use an electric 
workover rig that is not commercially available and renders E&B unable to feasibly 
conduct maintenance, repairs, or well-servicing on its wells. The Plan Approval also 
includes restrictions on imported methane and additional requirements to conduct 



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 22 

 

needed maintenance on wells, stifling E&B’s efficiency and ability to operate at the 
Murphy Site.  

The Plan Approval now also adds requirements for E&B to erect a 30-foot sound 
wall after the 45-foot-high structure is built for any workover, maintenance or drilling rig 
that exceeds 45 feet in height  to address alleged noise issues, even though no nuisance 
has been shown and E&B’s Operational Noise Assessment of the Murphy Site determined 
“the facility operation does not generate significant noise impact at the evaluated 
receptor locations.” (Exhibit D, 9/15/2023 Murphy Site Operational Noise Assessment, at 
p. 12.)   

These examples demonstrate instances in which the Plan Approval unreasonably, 
and without supported evidence, imposes conditions and interferes with E&B’s ability to 
make economically viable use of, derive income from, and satisfy its reasonable, 
investment-backed profit expectations with respect to the Murphy Site.  As a result, it 
cannot be approved as currently drafted. 

IX. The Additional and Modified Conditions in the Plan Approval Violate Due 
Process and Equal Protection Under the U.S. and California Constitutions. 
 
The U.S. and California Constitution’s guarantee equal protection of the laws and 

adequate due process.  These rights also apply in the land use context. (Cal. Const., Art. 1 
§ 7(a); U.S. Const. amend V, XIV; College Area Renters & Landlord Ass’n v. City of San Diego 
(1996) 43 Cal.App.4th 677, 688.)  Substantive due process addresses improper 
governmental interference with property rights and irrational actions by government 
decision-makers.  (Lingle v. Chevron U.S.A. Inc. (2005) 544 U.S. 528, 541; Arnel 
Development Co. v. City of Costa Mesa (1981) 126 Cal.App.3d 330, 337.)  The City has 
failed to demonstrate that oil and gas production at the Murphy Site results in any 
environmental, health, or safety hazards. 

X. The Implementation of the Plan Approval Violates the Civil Rights Act. 

The federal Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1983 (“Section 1983”), provides a cause of 
action for damages based on claims arising from violations of federal rights. (Sveen v. 
Melin (2018) 138 U.S. 1815, 1822.)  As discussed at length herein, the additions and 
modified conditions in the Plan Approval will significantly impair E&B’s constitutional 
rights, including its right to just compensation, due process rights, and equal protection 
rights.  Accordingly, if the City adopts the Plan Approval with the additional and modified 
conditions, the City will place itself at significant risk of liability under Section 1983, 
including for payment of damages suffered as a result of unreasonably limiting and 
reducing the efficiency of oil and gas production at the Murphy Site as a result of the 
conditions set forth in the Plan Approval.  



South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission 
September 25, 2023 
Page 23 

 

 For all these reasons, and the reasons E&B previously set forth in its initial appeal 
on March 13, 2023 (Exhibit A), we urge the Commissioners to grant the appeal and order 
the City to rescind the additional and modified conditions in the Plan Approval as they run 
contrary to well-established law. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Nicki Carlsen 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 1 of 4

Related Code Section:  Refer to the City Planning case determination to identify the Zone Code section for the entitlement 
and the appeal procedure. 

Purpose: This application is for the appeal of Department of City Planning determinations authorized by the Los Angeles 
Municipal Code (LAMC). 

A.   APPELLATE  BODY/CASE  INFORMATION 

1.    APPELLATE  BODY 

& Area Planning Commission & City Planning Commission & City Council & Director of Planning 

& Zoning Administrator

Regarding Case Number:   

Project Address:    

Final Date to Appeal:    

2.   APPELLANT

Appellant Identity: 
(check all that apply)

'  Representative 
'  Applicant 

'  Property Owner 
'  Operator of the Use/Site 

'  Person, other than the Applicant, Owner or Operator claiming to be aggrieved 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

& Person affected by the determination made by the Department of Building and Safety

'  Representative 
'  Applicant 

'  Owner 
'  Operator 

'  Aggrieved Party 

3.   APPELLANT INFORMATION 

Appellant’s Name:   

Company/Organization:    

Mailing Address:    

City:      State:     Zip:    

Telephone:     E-mail:   

a.   Is the appeal being filed on your behalf or on behalf of another party, organization or company? 

& Self & Other:    

b.   Is the appeal being filed to support the original applicant’s position? & Yes & No 

APPEAL  APPLICATION

Instructions and Checklist

ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6

2126 W. Adams Blvd. and 2125 W. 26th Place, Los Angeles, CA

03/15/2023

Nicki Carlsen

Alston & Bird LLP on behalf of E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor

Los Angeles California 90071

(213) 576-1128 nicki.carlsen@alston.com

E & B Natural Resources et al



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 2 of 4

4.   REPRESENTATIVE/AGENT INFORMATION 

Representative/Agent name (if applicable):   

Company:   

Mailing Address:    

City:      State:   .  Zip:    

Telephone:     E-mail:   

5.   JUSTIFICATION/REASON FOR APPEAL

a.   Is the entire decision, or only parts of it being appealed? & Entire & Part

b.   Are specific conditions of approval being appealed?    & Yes & No 

If Yes, list the condition number(s) here:    

Attach a separate sheet providing your reasons for the appeal.  Your reason must state:  

'   The reason for the appeal '   How you are aggrieved by the decision 

'   Specifically the points at issue '   Why you believe the decision-maker erred or abused their discretion 

6.   APPLICANT’S AFFIDAVIT
I certify that the statements contained in this application are complete and true: 

Appellant Signature:    Date:    

GENERAL APPEAL FILING REQUIREMENTS

B.   ALL CASES REQUIRE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS    -    SEE THE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR SPECIFIC CASE TYPES  

1. Appeal Documents 

a. Three (3) sets - The following documents are required for each appeal filed (1 original and 2 duplicates) 
Each case being appealed is required to provide three (3) sets of the listed documents. 

& Appeal Application (form CP-7769) 

& Justification/Reason for Appeal 

& Copies of Original Determination Letter 

b. Electronic Copy  

&  Provide an electronic copy of your appeal documents on a flash drive (planning staff will upload materials 
during filing and return the flash drive to you) or a CD (which will remain in the file).  The following items must 
be saved as individual PDFs and labeled accordingly (e.g. “Appeal Form.pdf”, “Justification/Reason 
Statement.pdf”, or “Original Determination Letter.pdf” etc.). No file should exceed 9.8 MB in size.

c. Appeal Fee

&  Original Applicant - A fee equal to 85% of the original application fee, provide a copy of the original application 
receipt(s) to calculate the fee per LAMC Section 19.01B 1. 

&  Aggrieved Party - The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01B 1. 

d. Notice Requirement

&  Mailing List - All appeals require noticing per the applicable LAMC section(s).  Original Applicants must provide 
noticing per the LAMC  

&  Mailing Fee - The appeal notice mailing fee is paid by the project applicant, payment is made to the City          
Planning's mailing contractor (BTC), a copy of the receipt must be submitted as proof of payment. 

March 13, 2023

Nicki Carlsen

Alston & Bird LLP

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor

Los Angeles California 90071

(213) 576-1128 nicki.carlsen@alston.com

5, 7, 16, 17, 19, 21-28, 32, 33

camad
Nicki



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 3 of 4

SPECIFIC CASE TYPES - APPEAL FILING INFORMATION

C. DENSITY BONUS / TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITES (TOC)

1. Density Bonus/TOC 
Appeal procedures for Density Bonus/TOC per LAMC Section 12.22.A 25 (g) f.

NOTE: 
-  Density Bonus/TOC cases, only the on menu or additional incentives items can be appealed. 

-  Appeals of Density Bonus/TOC cases can only be filed by adjacent owners or tenants (must have documentation), 
and always only appealable to the Citywide Planning Commission. 

& Provide documentation to confirm adjacent owner or tenant status, i.e., a lease agreement, rent receipt, utility 
bill, property tax bill, ZIMAS, drivers license, bill statement etc. 

D.   WAIVER OF DEDICATION AND OR IMPROVEMENT
Appeal procedure for Waiver of Dedication or Improvement per LAMC Section 12.37 I. 

NOTE: 
-  Waivers for By-Right Projects, can only be appealed by the owner. 

-  When a Waiver is on appeal and is part of a master land use application request or subdivider’s statement for a 
project, the applicant may appeal pursuant to the procedures that governs the entitlement. 

E. TENTATIVE TRACT/VESTING

1.  Tentative Tract/Vesting  -  Appeal procedure for Tentative Tract / Vesting application per LAMC Section 17.54 A. 

NOTE: Appeals to the City Council from a determination on a Tentative Tract (TT or VTT) by the Area or City  
Planning Commission must be filed within 10 days of the date of the written determination of said Commission. 

& Provide a copy of the written determination letter from Commission. 

F. BUILDING AND SAFETY DETERMINATION

& 1. Appeal of the Department of Building and Safety determination, per LAMC 12.26 K 1, an appellant is considered the 
Original Applicant and must provide noticing and pay mailing fees. 

a. Appeal Fee
&  Original Applicant - The fee charged shall be in accordance with LAMC Section 19.01B 2, as stated in the 

Building and Safety determination letter, plus all surcharges.  (the fee specified in Table 4-A, Section 98.0403.2 of the 
City of Los Angeles Building Code)

b. Notice Requirement
&  Mailing Fee - The applicant must pay mailing fees to City Planning's mailing contractor (BTC) and submit a 

copy of receipt as proof of payment. 

& 2. Appeal of the Director of City Planning determination per LAMC Section 12.26 K 6, an applicant or any other aggrieved 
person may file an appeal, and is appealable to the Area Planning Commission or Citywide Planning Commission as 
noted in the determination. 

a. Appeal Fee
&  Original Applicant - The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B 1 a. 

b. Notice Requirement
&  Mailing List - The appeal notification requirements per LAMC Section 12.26 K 7 apply. 
&  Mailing Fees - The appeal notice mailing fee is made to City Planning's mailing contractor (BTC), a copy of 

receipt must be submitted as proof of payment. 



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 4 of 4

G. NUISANCE ABATEMENT

1. Nuisance Abatement - Appeal procedure for Nuisance Abatement per LAMC Section 12.27.1 C 4 

NOTE: 
-  Nuisance Abatement is only appealable to the City Council. 

a. Appeal Fee

& Aggrieved Party the fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B 1. 

2. Plan Approval/Compliance Review
Appeal procedure for Nuisance Abatement Plan Approval/Compliance Review per LAMC Section 12.27.1 C 4. 

a. Appeal Fee

&  Compliance Review  -  The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B. 

&  Modification  -  The fee shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B. 

NOTES 

A Certified Neighborhood Council (CNC) or a person identified as a member of a CNC or as representing the CNC 
may not file an appeal on behalf of the Neighborhood Council; persons affiliated with a CNC may only file as an 
individual on behalf of self. 

Please note that the appellate body must act on your appeal within a time period specified in the Section(s) of the 
Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) pertaining to the type of appeal being filed. The Department of City Planning 
will make its best efforts to have appeals scheduled prior to the appellate body's last day to act in order to provide 
due process to the appellant. If the appellate body is unable to come to a consensus or is unable to hear and consider 
the appeal prior to the last day to act, the appeal is automatically deemed denied, and the original decision will stand. 
The last day to act as defined in the LAMC may only be extended if formally agreed upon by the applicant. 

This Section for City Planning Staff Use Only

Base Fee: Reviewed & Accepted by (DSC Planner): Date: 

Receipt No: Deemed Complete by (Project Planner): Date: 

&  Determination authority notified &  Original receipt and BTC receipt (if original applicant)  



 

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 90071-1410 

213-576-1000 | Fax: 213-576-1100 

 

Alston & Bird LLP      www.alston.com 

Atlanta | Beijing | Brussels | Charlotte | Dallas | Fort Worth | London | Los Angeles | New York | Raleigh | San Francisco | Silicon Valley | Washington, D.C. 
 

Nicki Carlsen  Direct Dial: +1 213 576 1128 Email: nicki.carlsen@alston.com 
 

 

Re: CEQA Appeal Justification for Approval of Plans for 2126 W. Adams Blvd. and 2125 W. 26th 
Place, Los Angeles, CA (“Murphy Site”) (Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6, issued February 28, 
2023 (“Plan Approval”)   

On behalf of E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation (“E&B”), this Office respectfully 
appeals the Zoning Administrator’s issuance of additional and modified conditions in the Plan 
Approval for the above-referenced Murphy Site. This Appeal is timely submitted within 15 days 
of the ZA’s Approval of Plan dated February 28, 2023.   

REASON FOR THE APPEAL:  As specifically identified in the attached appendix, certain additional 
and modified conditions in the Plan Approval are arbitrary, not supported by substantial 
evidence, and the Findings do not explain why they are necessary to alleviate the alleged harm.  
The additional and modified conditions in the Plan Approval has also interfered with E&B’s 
vested rights and its constitutional rights under federal and state law, including the taking of its 
property for public use without the payment of just compensation.   

SPECIFIC POINTS IN ISSUE:  

The Zoning Administrator has abused its discretion in determining that the additional and 
modified conditions included in the Plan Approval are required to (1) increase the protection of 
and to preserve the health, safety and general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of the 
neighborhood or (2) address demonstrated nuisance conditions.  Neither of these determinations 
are supported by substantial evidence.  As discussed specifically in the attached appendix, the 
additional and modified conditions imposed by the Plan Approval are also unduly oppressive on 
E&B. By interfering with E&B’s vested rights without the requisite basis, and by imposing 
conditions that are unduly oppressive, the Zoning Administrator has not proceeded in a manner 
required by law.  

Agencies must make all findings required by applicable law. An agency’s findings must also bridge 
the analytical gap between the raw evidence and the ultimate decision.  The Plan Approval does 
not bridge the analytical gap between the raw evidence and ultimate decision.  For example, while 
the Plan Approval imposes new conditions on the Murphy Site’s operations, it did not make any 
findings (including necessary sub-conclusions) that bridge the analytical gap between the alleged 
harm and the conditions imposed.  In addition, LAMC § 13.01 requires findings based on “actual 
observation and experience with drilling” in order for a Zoning Administrator to impose additional 
conditions or require corrective measures to be taken.   The Plan Approval did not include findings 
based on “actual observation and experience with drilling.”  The Findings also do not demonstrate 
or explain how the conditions would alleviate the alleged harm, and the Findings are not 
supported by the cited evidence.   

http://www.alston.com/


 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
SPECIFIC POINTS IN ISSUE: 
Page 2 

Under the Federal Supremacy Clause and article XI, section 7 of the California Constitution, local 
laws in conflict with general state laws or federal laws are void.  The Zoning Administrator does 
not have authority to regulate areas or enforce local laws that are preempted by general state 
laws or federal laws.  Through the Plan Approval, the Zoning Administrator is purporting to 
regulate areas that are preempted by general state laws or federal laws, including the production 
of oil and gas (such as all “down hole” activities), air quality, hazardous materials, water quality, 
and labor laws.  By regulating areas that are preempted by state and federal law, the Zoning 
Administrator has acted without, or in excess of, their jurisdiction.   

The due process clause of the U.S. Constitution guarantees the right to due process of law before 
a governmental deprivation of property.  The Plan Approval deprives E&B of its property rights as 
operator of the Murphy Site. The due process clause of the U.S. Constitution guarantees the right 
to be free from arbitrary and capricious government action.  As the Plan Approval is arbitrary and 
capricious, the Zoning Administrator did not afford due process before issuing the Plan Approval.   

Similarly, the equal protection clause of the U.S. Constitution guarantees the right to equal 
protection of the laws, requires that similarly situated property be treated similarly.  The Zoning 
Administrator treated the Murphy Site differently from other properties that are similarly 
situated, and there is no basis for this differential treatment.   

E&B has an established vested right to carry on its lawful business at the Murphy Site according 
to the terms of its existing discretionary zoning approvals.   The Plan Approval interferes with 
E&B’s vested rights.  E&B submitted an application for the City to review operations for 
compliance with its existing plan approval.  As good neighbors, E&B entered into discussions with 
the community and proactively suggested new safeguards that are ahead of the existing 
regulatory framework.   However, the City has no evidence to support a need for the additional 
and modified conditions challenged in this appeal.  E&B has an excellent record in compliance and 
safety with no issues with its regulating agency, the California Geologic Energy Management 
Division (“CalGEM”), and no history of emergency actions or spills.  The Zoning Administrator has 
not obtained a substantial nuisance or code enforcement determination such that they have 
established the interests of the public require the Plan Approval and its interference with E&B’s 
vested rights.  The Zoning Administrator has not established that the conditions imposed by the 
Plan Approval are reasonably necessary to accomplish the Plan Approval’s purported purpose. 

To interfere with vested rights, there must be findings of a substantial impairment of public rights.  
The Plan Approval does not include any findings of a substantial impairment of public rights that 
would justify an intrusion on E&B’s vested rights. 

The U.S. and California Constitutions provide that private property cannot be taken for public use 
without just compensation.  A taking occurs when there is a physical invasion of private property.  
The Plan Approval physically invades the Murphy Site by requiring construction thereon.  A taking 
also occurs when a property is deprived of all economically beneficially uses. The Plan Approval 
will temporarily deprive E&B of all economically beneficial uses of the Murphy Site.  A taking also 
occurs when a regulation substantially interferes with the ability of a property owner to make 
economically viable use of, derive income from, or satisfy reasonable, investment-backed profit 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
HOW ARE YOU AGGRIEVED BY THE DECISION:  E&B is the operator of the Murphy Site and holds 
property rights that will be severely impacted by the Plan Approval. 
Page 3 

expectations with respect to the property.  For example, the Plan Approval requires the use of a 
electric workover rig that is not commercially available, which renders E&B unable to feasibly 
conduct maintenance, repairs, or well-servicing on its wells.  The Plan Approval unreasonably 
interferes with E&B’s ability to make economically viable use of, derive income from, and satisfy 
its reasonable, investment-backed profit expectations with respect to the Murphy Site. A taking 
also occurs when a condition of approval is not “roughly proportional” to the impact it seeks to 
address.  The Plan Approval imposes conditions on the Murphy Site that are not “roughly 
proportional” to the alleged impacts it purportedly seeks to address. Therefore, the Plan Approval 
effects a taking of the Murphy Site.  The Plan Approval will take E&B’s private property for public 
use and the City must pay just compensation for the taking.  

HOW ARE YOU AGGRIEVED BY THE DECISION:  E&B is the operator of the Murphy Site and holds 
property rights that will be severely impacted by the Plan Approval.   

HOW DID THE DECISION-MAKER ERRED OR ABUSED THEIR DISCRETION: As discussed above, the 
Zoning Administrator has issued additional and modified conditions to an existing Plan Approval.  
The Zoning Administrator has also made Findings that are not supported by substantial evidence, 
and do not adequately explain how the conditions would alleviate the alleged harm.  The Zoning 
Administrator has also not established that the additional and modified conditions are justified 
by a demonstrated nuisance.  The issuance of the Plan Approval has also interfered with E&B’s 
vested rights and its constitutional rights under federal and state law.   

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

APPENDIX 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

APPENDIX to CEQA APPEAL JUSTIFICATION FOR APPROVAL of PLANS FOR 
MURPHY SITE 

 
Appeal of Specific Conditions:  E&B hereby appeals the following conditions of approval on 
numerous grounds, including that the conditions would serve to create a hazardous operating 
environment, that the conditions would serve to terminate or severely curtail operations, that the 
conditions require the implementation of measures that are not commercially available or 
technically feasible, that the conditions are vague or unclear and occasionally inconsistent, that 
the conditions are unduly onerous and not required of other facilities, that the conditions require 
actions out of the control of the operator, that the conditions do not serve to address the alleged 
concerns, and that the conditions are pre-empted by State or federal law.  

 

1. Condition 5:  This condition prohibits access from 27th Street for the pipeline 
infrastructure installed by Southern California Gas and overseen by the City of Los 
Angeles.  It would have been impractical to access that infrastructure area from Adams (a 
vehicle carrying heavy equipment could not have entered on Adams Boulevard to the 
infrastructure area).   Additional maintenance by SoCalGas may be required and this 
condition should allow SoCalGas to service its equipment and its pipeline infrastructure.  
Further, SoCalGas is not a contractor of E&B.  E&B is simply a customer of SoCalGas 
just like everyone else in the neighborhood.  E&B does not control Southern California 
Gas or its equipment and cannot compel SoCalGas to comply with this condition.   

2. Condition 7:  The condition requires the installation of a 30-foot sound wall after the 45-
foot-high structure is built for any workover, maintenance or drilling rig that exceeds 45 
feet in height.  The City has not identified or provided any evidence that E&B is not in 
compliance with the applicable noise requirements.  Further, a 45-foot-high structure is 
an effective sound barrier by itself.   It is impractical, non-sensical and technically 
infeasible to construct a 30-foot wall within the 45-foot-high structure – the 45-foot-high 
structure would perform the sound barrier function of the 30-foot sound wall.   The other 
requirements to reduce sound such as acoustical blankets (subsections c and d) and sound 
damping acoustical material (subsection e) are also unnecessary given the sound barrier 
function of the 45-foot structure.  E&B should be allowed to demonstrate that the 45-
foot-high structure is sufficient by itself to satisfy any noise mitigation requirement.  In 
addition, while the operator will perform sound monitoring during any drilling, workover 
or maintenance activity, and the operator is willing to provide that information to the City 
as the regulating agency, the City provides no basis for its requirement to provide public 
notification of these results.   

3. Condition 17:  The operator has filed a lawsuit challenging the City’s new oil and gas 
ordinance and has appealed the Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation regarding 
“maintenance” activities.   This condition should conform to the results of those legal 
proceedings.  

4. Condition 19:  While the operator offered proactively to provide fence-line air quality 
monitoring, this condition requires the installation of a new monitor for the evaluation of 



2 

certain constituents using detection limits that are not technically feasible.  The findings 
state that the “existing system may not be set up to monitor all of the mentioned 
production by products so there may be some expense for the operator in meeting this 
Condition . . . .”  (Letter of Determination, p. 60.)  The City has not provided any 
evidence to conclude that any such system is commercially available or technically 
feasible or even reliable, particularly at the noted detection limits.  Also, these detection 
limits appear to be inconsistent with federal and/or state health and safety limits, and 
thus, the City is improperly implying that some health and safety concern exists occurred 
if these detection limits are exceeded.  For example, a typical air sample would normally 
have 200-400 ppb of VOC’s and thus, an exceedance of a detection limit of 10-25 ppb of 
VOCs would not be indicative of anything.  The condition also requires “real-time” data, 
which is also not technically feasible as the data needs to be processed to make it useable.   

5. Condition 21:  This condition requires the operator to maintain a website to distribute to 
the public information on the facility’s operations.   Again, the City has provided no legal 
basis to require public distribution of this information.  The operator is willing to 
maintain the website for notice to the public of activities that require notice and to 
provide emergency contact information and emergency reporting instructions.  

6. Condition 22:  This condition improperly requires notice by “certified mail” – there is no 
legal basis for this requirement.   The website would offer sufficient notice of these 
activities.  There are also notification requirements already in place via the City’s Plan 
Approval process and through SCAQMD. 

7. Condition 23:   This condition requires a “45-foot in height structure enclosing the oil 
production area of the site.”  An “enclosure” often means something that is “enclosed” 
and with a roof.  The condition does not explicitly state that this “enclosure” is required 
to have a roof, and the condition acknowledges the potential use of a rig within the 
structure that exceeds 45 feet.  Given that enclosing the production area with a roof 
would create a hazardous condition, the City should clarify that the 45-foot height 
structure is open air, without a roof.  (The Packard site is open air.)  In addition, it is 
unclear how the HPOZ process can be satisfied within the 24-month time frame, 
particularly if there are administrative appeals or litigation.   In any case, the City should 
indicate that the design of the structure should be compatible with the design of the 
Packard structure.  The so-called “enhanced vapor recovery system” to be installed along 
the top of the 45-foot-high structure is not technically feasible – vapor recovery may be 
applied to pieces of equipment but not to the air generally.  

8. Condition 24:  This condition states: “Amendments shall be made within six months of 
the review following preparation of any amendment.”  Under federal law, the SPCC is 
required to be updated every five years.   The City should clarify that it is not requiring 
an update every six months, but that if an update is made (other than the required 5-year 
update), then the amendment will be provided to the City.   Otherwise, this condition is 
not consistent with and is pre-empted by federal law.  Furthermore, the SPCC 
requirements do not impose a condition for 24/7 staffing, nor do they require a minimum 
of two operators per shift.   The City has no legal basis for mandating the number of 
employees at the site or for controlling the operator’s staffing requirements.  Staffing 



3 

requirements are otherwise regulated by State and/or federal law and the City’s 
provisions in this condition are pre-empted. 

9. Condition 25:   This condition improperly prohibits the importation of “methane” or 
natural gas to power the microturbines.   The operation of the microturbines is essential to 
the operation of the site, and without the microturbines, operations would be effectively 
terminated or severely curtailed.  The City has provided no legal basis for prohibiting the 
use of natural gas from an offsite provider, something virtually every other commercial, 
industrial and residential use is allowed to do.  The findings refer to the prior operator’s 
request for a flare as evidence of excess natural gas on the site, but circumstances have 
changed as the City is well aware, as it approved the installation of the SoCalGas pipeline 
to serve the microturbines.  This condition also improperly prohibits electric drilling, 
workover and maintenance rigs, and the opposition to Condition 26 below also applies to 
this condition. 

10. Condition 26:  This condition requires the use of electric drilling, workover and 
maintenance rigs, although commercially available workover and maintenance rigs do 
not exist, as stated by the Petroleum Administrator. (Letter of Determination, p. 37.)  The 
findings incorrectly state that the Packard site is required to have an electric workover rig 
(Letter of Determination, p. 63).   As for Jefferson, the electric workover rig requirement 
was contested by the operator and never implemented because the site is transitioning to 
other uses.  The City may have been referencing (incorrectly) the rig at the PCEC site on 
Pico Boulevard, but that is a drilling rig (not a workover or maintenance rig) which is 
permanently installed and hard-wired to the electric grid and cannot be moved to be 
utilized elsewhere.   This requirement fails to recognize the current state of technology as 
presented by the City’s own Petroleum Administrator and effectively terminates or 
severely curtails operations at the Murphy site.  In addition, this condition prohibits the 
idling of diesel-powered vehicles, and this condition should clarify that a vehicle is not 
“idle” if it is being used for operations, such as powering equipment on the site.   

11. Condition 27:  This condition acknowledges that an “idle well shall be defined and 
identified per CalGEM’s Well Finder web application.”  The condition should be 
clarified to state that compliance with State’s idle well regulations serve to satisfy the 
City’s regulations regarding idle wells. 

12. Condition 28:  This condition imposes new requirements that are inconsistent with the 
Fire Department’s current regulations (and practice) with respect to fire suppression, 
hydrogen sulfide and methane alerts, and quarterly monitoring.   The operator does not 
control the Fire Department, and the condition should conform to the Fire Department’s 
requirements.   

13. Condition 32:  The operator has filed a lawsuit challenging the City’s new oil and gas 
ordinance and these conditions must conform to the outcome of that legal challenge.  
Further, the operator objects to the imposition of any ordinance provision during the 
pendency of that litigation.   



4 

14. Condition 33:  The City should be required to engage in good faith discussions with the 
operator regarding any settlement of any litigation or any major or material decisions 
pertaining to the litigation.  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

 

 

OFFICE OF ZONING ADMINISTRATION  
200 N. SPRING STREET, ROOM 763  

LOS ANGELES, CA 90012-4801  
(213) 978-1318 

ESTINEH MAILIAN 
CHIEF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

ASSOCIATE ZONING ADMINISTRATORS  

JACK CHIANG  

HENRY CHU  

TIM FARGO  

JONATHAN A. HERSHEY, AICP  

PHYLLIS NATHANSON  

CHARLES J. RAUSCH JR.  

CHRISTINE SAPONARA  

COURTNEY SHUM  

CHRISTINA TOY LEE  

JORDANN TURNER 

CITY OF LOS ANGELES 
CALIFORNIA 

KAREN BASS  
MAYOR 

LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT 
OF CITY PLANNING  

EXECUTIVE OFFICES 

VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP 
DIRECTOR 

SHANA M.M. BONSTIN 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

ARTHI L. VARMA, AICP 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

LISA M. WEBBER, AICP 
DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

planning.lacity.org  

February 28, 2023 

Ted Cordova (A) 
E & B Natural Resources  
249 East Ocean Boulevard  
Long Beach, CA 90802 

Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Los 
Angeles (O) 
3424 Wilshire Boulevard 
Los Angeles, CA 90010  

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 
APPROVAL OF PLANS 
2126 West Adams Boulevard and 2125
West 26th Place 
South Los Angeles Community Plan 
Zone: [Q]R4-1-O-HPOZ 
C.D: 10 
D.M.: 123B193 
CEQA: ENV-2021-7445-CE 
Legal Description: Lot A, Tract 9454 

Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act, I hereby DETERMINE: 

based on the whole of the administrative record, that the Project is exempt from the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 
15301 (Class 1), Section 15303 (Class 3), Section 15305 (Class 5), Section 15308 
(Class 8), and Section 15321 (Class 21), and there is no substantial evidence 
demonstrating that any exceptions contained in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA 
Guidelines regarding location, cumulative impacts, significant effects or unusual 
circumstances, scenic highways, or hazardous waste sites, or historical resources 
applies. 

Pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) Section 12.24 M, Condition No. 14 in Case 
No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4), and LAMC Section 13.01-E,2(i), I hereby DETERMINE: 

that, based on the whole of the administrative record, additional and modified conditions 
are required for the continued operation of the existing Murphy Oil Drill Site to increase 
the protection of and to preserve the health, safety and general welfare of the residents 
and stakeholders of the neighborhood. The additional conditions are also necessary to 
afford greater protection to surrounding property and to address the nuisance conditions 
which were demonstrated by substantial evidence. 

Page 1 of 72



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

The additional and modified conditions are: 

Note: The conditions of approval from Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) are in standard 
type and font. The revisions to the Conditions of Approval are in bold print and 
underlined or strikethrough   

1. MODIFIED: The existing and proposed well corridors shall be in substantial  
conformance with plot plans submitted and attached to the file identified as "Exhibit  
No. A I dated March 27, 2007. Prior to any clearance on a building permit per 
Condition No. 23, a revised plot plan shall be provided showing the current 
production equipment locations on-site. Said plot plan shall provide a detailed  
description and inventory of production equipment, such as tanks, vessels,  
compressors, scrubbers, separators, micro-turbines, etc.  

2. All terms and conditions specified under extant ZA Case No. 15227, dated April 5, 
1961, shall be strictly complied with, except as modified/clarified as follows: 

3. All the conditions set forth in Section 13.01-E, 2 as well as Condition Nos. 3,4, 5, 8, 9, 
17, 18, 19, 22, 23, 33, 37, 40, 50, 54, 58, and 59 of Subsection F of Section 13.01 of 
the Municipal Code are included in and by reference made a part of this approval and 
shall be complied with to the same extent as if herein restated in detail. 

4. MODIFIED: Landscaping of the site shall be maintained as follows: 

a. With respect to that portion of the drill site south of the cement block wall and facing 
27th Avenue, the applicant shall: (1) remove the invasive/noxious plants; (2) plant 
and/or maintain  3 to 4 trees (of 24-inch box size) as infill trees along the south 
facing facility wall; (3) plant and/or maintain Ficus or climbing ivy, or similar plant-
life (grown to 5 gallon size containers) along the South facing facility wall; (4) 
spread and/or maintain wildflower/grass mix in the open areas of south parcel 
(approx. 3/4 ac.); (5) install and/or maintain drip irrigation systems on the new 
plantings along south facing facility wall; (6) provide for temporary watering of the 
grasses and place sprinklers on timers to insure proper maintenance of the grassy 
area; (7) install and/or maintain new or improved cyclone fencing along 27th 
Avenue; (8) improve the appearance of the east fence by painting it; (9) install 
and/or maintain meandering dry creek bed hardscape on the south parcel, 
utilizing recycled broken concrete foundations from Drill Site facilities (final 
placement, configuration and length dependent on pipeline easement and other 
site facility considerations); (10) work with 10th Council District office (or its 
successor office) and Archdiocese to allow future public access. 

b. With respect to that portion of the drill site east of the cement block wall and fronting 
on Adams Boulevard, the applicant shall: (1) install and/or maintain  new/improved 
cyclone fencing along Adams, including raising the east facing step wall which is 
only 2-3 feet high; (2) upon receipt of the adjacent property owners’ approval, install 
and/or maintain 2-foot high wrought iron fencing (or equivalent) on top of existing 
block wall (approximately 300 feet); (3) remove graffiti on east 



 

LEGAL02/429157
24v3LEGAL02/42
915724v1 

Field Code Changed

Page 2 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

wall; (4) improve and/or maintain wall on west side of the parcel by painting and 
installing new cyclone inserts; (5) level and place gravel surface down 
approximately half the depth of the lot and place barriers to protect the remaining 
portion of the lot; obtain permits for use as a temporary parking lot; (6) install 
and/or maintain parking lot lighting; (7) plant and/or maintain ficus/climbing ivy, 
or similar along east and west walls to enhance its appearance (using 5 gallon 
size container plantings); (8) install and/or maintain drip irrigation on new 
plantings; (9) install and/or maintain sprinkler timers. 

c. A yearly review of the landscaping shall be conducted by the applicant with the 
Council District Office and the United Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council. 

5. MODIFIED: That driveway access for ingress and egress to the drilling site shall be 
provided through the existing driveways fronting on Adams Boulevard. Furthermore, 
that the existing parking area on the enclosed drilling site area for use by vehicles 
employed in drilling and maintaining of oil wells on the property and for parking of 
automobiles of employees engaged in the drilling and production activities shall be 
augmented by additional parking on the area on the East of the drill site, outside of the 
enclosed area, which area shall be leveled and covered with a gravel surface to 
approximately one-half the depth of the lot for use as additional parking for employees. 
and overflow parking for The Athletic Club. Parking on the east side of the drill-site, 
outside of the enclosed area, shall not be used for heavy trucking operations or staging 
or storage of any. All such driveways and parking areas shall be regularly washed 
down, swept or otherwise kept free of accumulated cement, dust, or other materials 
which would produce dust in the use of said facilities. There  shall be no access to 
the site from 27th Street except for maintenance of the  landscaped area fronting 
on 27th Street and south of the wall separating the  landscaped area from the 
production site. Additionally, there shall be no  parking of any vehicles by 
workers or equipment servicing the site on 27th Street. Except for access by   
Southern California Gas to service or operate its equipment, aAny access for 
the maintenance of any infrastructure for the production  site such as existing 
pipes in front of said wall shall be from the existing gate  at the parking area on 
the easterly side of the facility with access from West  Adams Boulevard only.  

6. MODIFIED: As further amplification of Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F of the 
Municipal Code, except for actual drilling and production operations, which may be 
conducted 24 hours a day, seven days a week, no work shall be conducted on the 
property between the hours of 7:00 p.m. of one day and 7:00 a.m. of the following day 
or on Sundays. While actual drilling operations are being conducted between the hours 
of 7:00 p.m. of and 7:00 a.m., the applicant shall operate its facility in “Quiet Mode”. 
“Quiet Mode” shall mean that where possible, operation components shall be covered 
with acoustical shields/material, that all audible backup alarms shall be disabled and 
replaced with a spotter for safety purposes; operation of the cellar pump shall cease; 
the applicant's employees and contractors shall be prohibited from yelling, and the 
Derrick Man and Driller shall communicate by walkie-talkie only when the Derrick Man 
is on the derrick; no horns shall be used to signal for time for connection or to summon 
crew (except that a horn may be used for emergency 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 3 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

purposes only. The applicant shall conduct on-site meetings to inform all personnel 
of quiet mode operations. 

In case of an emergency, all restrictions on the hours of operations shall be 
suspended for as long as is necessary to resolve the emergency situation, and for no 
longer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period necessary to set up and move the 
drilling or workover rig off the premises, and to conduct drilling or re-drilling operations 
as herein authorized, heavy ("permitted” oversized/overweight load) truck deliveries 
shall be permitted from 7:00 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., on week-days none during week-ends 
and holidays. Deliveries shall be made by approaching the facility off of Adams 
Boulevard exclusively. Delivery trucks are to be staged off-site so as to reduce the 
time that trucks need to wait to enter the facility. If there is not sufficient room within 
the interior of the facility to accommodate a given heavy delivery truck, the applicant 
shall not call for the delivery of such heavy truck unless and until another heavy 
delivery truck parked within the facility is scheduled to leave the facility within 15 
minutes. The maximum number of heavy truck deliveries allowed for moving the 
drilling rig on and off the premises shall not exceed 20 loads per day for a period of 
four days. Except for the four days required to move the drilling rig on and off the 
premises, the number of “permitted” truck deliveries per day (week-days only, none 
on week-ends and holidays) shall be limited to a maximum of ten. The number of "non-
permitted" truck deliveries per day (week-days only) shall be limited to a maximum of 
ten. The number of "non-permitted” truck deliveries per day (week-ends and holidays 
only) shall be limited to a maximum of five. 

The applicant shall give all abutting property owners written notice (in both English and 
Spanish), served by mail at least seven days prior to the dates when heavy truck traffic 
will commence related to moving the rig in for the drilling or re-drilling of wells. The 
operator shall also provide a landing page on a publicly available website  where 
interested parties can sign up for email alerts as a supplemental effort  for 
notification purposes. The operator shall provide the web address for the  
publicly accessible website within six (6) calendar months of the final  
determination of Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6.  

7. MODIFIED: Until the sound barrier walls are a permanent 45-foot high structure 
is built, in accordance with  Condition No. 23, and, afterward for any portion of a 
workover, maintenance or drilling rig which exceeds 45 feet in height, the 
applicant shall install the following sound mitigation systems and implement 
administrative noise controls as follows: 

a. Erect 12-foot high acoustical panels approximately 100 feet in length on a 30-
foot high blanket sound wall on the north side and either the west or , south and 
east side of the any workover, maintenance or drilling rig at the Murphy drilling 
site (west, south  and east side property line), with the layout and wall lengths 
determined after the drilling, workover or maintenance rig and equipment 
positioning has been established. Install the acoustical panels sound wall as close 
as possible to the drilling, workover or maintenance rig and associated equipment 

Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Font: Bold
Formatted: Font: Bold



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

with no gaps or openings in the walls. The acoustical panels sound wall material 
should have a minimum STC rating of 25. Sound 

Page 4 of 72 

Formatted: Font: Bold



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

wall gates shall be installed with the same sound loss rating as the wall material 
and the gates shall be closed at all times except for material delivery or pick up. 
The sound wall shall not be maintained for more than 120 continuous days. 
Should unforeseeable mechanical problems warrant the maintenance of the 
sound wall for a period exceeding the 120 continuous days, the applicant shall 
notify the Office of Zoning Administration and Council Office and inform the 
owners and occupants of surrounding property of the reasons for and estimated 
duration of the delay in the dismantlement of the wall. 

b. [Condition 7.b was deleted in Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA4] 

c. To reduce sound from the drilling, workover or maintenance rig’s sub-structure, 
acoustical blankets shall be hung from the exterior of the rig floor down to the 
ground, covering the open area of the rig sub-structure on the side of the rig facing 
the west property line. 

d. The stabbing platform on the rig’s derrick shall be enclosed with STC-25 rated 
acoustical blankets. 

e. To mitigate the drilling, workover or maintenance rig draw works and brake 
noise level, sound damping acoustical material shall be installed and maintained 
during drilling activities. 

f. Position all ancillary noise generation equipment away from the nearest critical 
receptors when feasible and install temporary sound enclosures, where possible 
on all noise generation equipment and operations. 

g. Install vibration isolation pads on shaker units and provide low frequency designed 
sound absorption and barring panels adjacent to the shaker units. 

h. Implement Drill Site "quiet mode" operation procedures including limitation of 
material delivery schedules and other sound mitigation requirements. 

i. To ensure adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any unusual 
or unique noise problems, sound level measurement and testing shall be complete 
as the rig starts up operations. To verify and document sound level compliance, 
continuous sound level measurement and monitoring may be considered during all 
drilling, workover or maintenance activity to ensure adequate  sound mitigation has 
been installed, and to identify any unusual or unique noise  problems, sound level 
measurement and testing shall be complete as the rig starts  up operations. To verify 
and document sound level compliance, continuous sound  level measurement and 
monitoring may shall be considered during all drilling,  workover or maintenance 
activity. The operator shall make known through both  regular mail and website 
communication the results of such measurement and  monitoring to abutting 
property owners and residents as required by Condition No.  21 elsewhere in this 
Determination.  

8. DELETED: Drilling operations may be conducted seven days per week on a 24 hour 
basis, including any nationally recognized holiday. Drilling operations for the first 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 5 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

three wells identified in the grant clause of the instant determination shall e completed  
within 36 months from the effective date of this determination. The drilling for the 
following nine wells as hereby authorized shall be subject to a review of plans by the 
Zoning Administrator, without a public hearing, for the purpose of updating the record  
with the well identification and path. None of the wells hereby authorized shall be 
engaged in a production mode until the vault is complete. 

The first three new wells may be drilled prior to the construction of the new well (vault) 
cellar using temporary cellar rings in substantial compliance with the “Ring Cellar 
Schematic” and the “Construction Plan: Well Cellar Rings” attached hereto (Exhibit B) 
subject to any permitting requirement of the Department of Building and Safety and the 
Department of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources.  

Once these three wells have been completed, they will be shut so that the permanent 
well cellars can be constructed in compliance with plans approved by this grant 
(Exhibit A). During construction of the permanent well cellar, the temporary cellar 
rings shall be removed and the cellars shall be incorporated in the permanent will  
cellar. Drill operations shall be completed within 36 months from the effective date of 
this determination.  

9. NEW: All drilling, workover or maintenance rigs and equipment shall be  removed 
from the premises immediately after drilling is completed, sump holes  filled and 
derricks removed within sixty days after the completion of the work.  

10. NEW: All oil drilling, production and maintenance operations shall be  
conducted in such a manner as to eliminate, as far as practicable, dust, noise,  
vibration and noxious odors and shall be in accordance with the best accepted 
practices incident to drilling for and production of oil, gas and other 
hydrocarbon substances. Proven technological improvements in drilling,  
production and maintenance methods shall be adopted as they may become  
available, from time to time, if capable of reducing factors of nuisance and  
annoyance.  

11. MODIFIED: The applicant operator shall permanently post at all of the site's entry 
gates (including those facing West Adams Boulevard and West 27th Street), the 
direct telephone number to the supervisor of the site at that time for residents to call 
and report any ongoing problem or odors. A call log shall be maintained including 
date and time of call and subject, and date and time of response and action. Said log 
shall be made available at the request of the Office of Zoning Administration. Signage 
shall include instructions to call 911, the SCAQMD or the operator’s hotline 
number in case of noxious odors caused by the operation. Signage shall also 
include the company’s publicly available website where more information about 
activities are made available.  

12. The applicant shall conduct daily inspections of the premises, including the exterior 
of the concrete block wall and the open areas on the east side of the premises and 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 6 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

the south side, facing 27th Street. All trash and debris shall be removed from the site 
daily. 

13. All graffiti on the site shall be removed or painted over to match the color of the 
surface to which it is applied within 24 hours of its occurrence. 

14. The authorized use shall be conducted at all times with due regard for the character 
of the surrounding district, and the right is reserved to the Zoning Administrator to 
impose additional corrective conditions, if, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, 
such conditions are proven necessary for the protection of persons in the 
neighborhood or occupants of adjacent property. 

15. MODIFIED: All lighting on the site shall be shielded and directed onto the site and no 
floodlighting shall be located so as to be seen directly from any adjacent residential 
area. Any new exterior lighting at the project site shall be located below the  top 
of the surrounding containment structure and property line walls and shall  be 
directed onto the site. Except as directed otherwise by the Office of Zoning  
Administration or other public agency, no lights shall be located on the  
enclosure structure above the height of the surrounding exterior and property 
line walls. These lights shall be placed and designed to minimize their impact on 
neighboring properties.  

16.MODIFIED: At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should documented 
evidence be submitted showing continued violation of any condition of this grant, 
resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or interference with the peaceful 
enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning Administrator 
reserves the right to require the applicant to file for a plan approval application together 
with associated fees pursuant to LAMC Section 19.01 C (Plan Approval 12.24 M 
$1,898 or as in effect at the time of filing), the purpose of which will be to hold a public 
hearing to review the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness of these 
conditions. The applicant shall prepare a radius map and cause a notification to be 
mailed to all owners and occupants of properties within a 500 foot radius of the 
property, the Council Office, and the Los Angeles Police Department’s corresponding  
Division. The applicant shall also submit a summary and any supporting  
documentation of how compliance with each condition of this grant has been attained. 
Upon this review the Zoning Administrator may modify, add or delete conditions. and 
reserves the right to conduct this public hearing for nuisance abatement/revocation 
purposes.  

17. DELETED NEW: As further required by Section 13.01-H and I or Section 12.23-
C,4 of the Municipal Code, no maintenance acidizing is permitted on an existing 
production or injection well until a determination has been made by the Zoning 
Administrator.  (Deleted pursuant to decision by California Supreme Court in 
Chevron U.S.A., Inc. v. County of Monterey 15 Cal.5th 135 (2023).) Formatted: Superscript



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 7 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

18. NEW: An Annual On-site Safety Inspection Report shall be performed by the  
applicant/operator and sent to the Petroleum Administrator and the Office of 
Zoning Administration, listing the inventory of equipment on site, any repair 
work, and / or maintenance done to keep the equipment in good operating  
condition at all times and any safety protocols of the responsible State,  
regional and City agencies. The first Annual Safety Inspection report shall be  
submitted within 45 days of the effective date of this action.  

19. NEW: Within 90 days of the effective date of this action, the applicant shall  install 
a fence line air monitoring system which presents real-time air monitoring data, 
along the fence line between the oil drilling and production  facility and the 
community. The system shall be designed and installed to  provide real time data 
on-line via a website and provide quarterly reports to the  SCAQMD, the 
Petroleum Administrator and the Office of Zoning Administration  for up to three 
years from the effective date of this action. Monthly reports shall  also be 
submitted to the Office of Zoning Administration via e-mail to 
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org. The fence line air monitoring system shall  
monitor for air emissions consistent with Los Angeles Fire Department 
standards. hydrogen sulfide, nitrogen oxide, sulfur dioxide, carbon dioxide,  
carbon monoxide, methane, benzene, ammonia, hexane, toluene, xylene, and  
other volatile organic compounds, reactive organic gases, and toxic  
substances. The monitoring equipment shall continuously measure Volatile  
Organic Compounds as listed above and Hydrogen Sulfide at the facility fence  
line with detection limits of 10-25 ppb of VOCs and 10 ppb of Hydrogen Sulfide.  

20. NEW: The applicant shall immediately notify the Los Angeles Fire Department,  
the Petroleum Administrator, the Office of Zoning Administration, the  
Department of Building and Safety and the local City Council office of an  
emergency, any incident, and/or spill that requires reporting to any State,  
County, or regional agency. In addition, the operator shall notify the Office of 
Zoning Administration’s Oil Drilling Unit via email to 
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org within 24 hours whenever there is an  
emergency event that includes, but is not limited, to 911 calls for emergency 
services or CalOES hazardous event notifications. Operator staff can email  
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org for notifications.  

21. NEW: The applicant shall create a landing page for the public on the company 
website with information on monthly reporting on noise and emission levels at 
the drill site, current and planned operations that require notice to the public 
per CalGEM or SCAQMD regulations, emergency contact information,  and 
emergency reporting instructions., and real time fence line air monitoring data.  
The operator shall have this website completed and in operation within six 
calendar months of the effective date of this action and provide the website  
address information to planning.oildrilling@lacity.org to be included in the  
administrative record.  

22. NEW:  When the operator is required to provide public notice of its activities 
pursuant to CalGEM or SCAQMD regulations, tThe operator shall also provide 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

notice via the website (consistent with Condition 21). notify all owners and 
occupants within 100 feet when  permitted and approved drilling, redrilling, 
deepening, rework activities,  plugging and abandonment and maintenance 
acidizing activities will  

Page 8 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

commence for any well(s) at the drill site. Notification shall be provided at least 
one  calendar week prior to the anticipated start date of the project. The 
operator shall utilize the Los Angeles County Department of Public Health’s 
Community Health and Safety Notification Plan. Notification shall be sent by 
way of certified United States Postal Service mail and be stated on the 
operator’s  website. The operator shall also use the landing page on their 
website for such  notification. Rework activities shall be defined as any scope 
of work that  requires a CalGEM Notice of Intention permit and maintenance 
acidizing shall  be defined as anything that triggers SCAQMD Rule 1148.2 Oil 
and Gas Well  Notification  

23. NEW: Within 24 months of the effective date of this determination, if feasible, 
completion  of all required work shall be verified during the final inspection of 
the building  permit and the building permit shall be finalized for sound barriers 
on the eastern and western sides of the property an approximately 45-foot in 
height structure (wall with no roof) surrounding  enclosing the oil production 
area of the site, as depicted in Figure 3-4 of the 9/15/23 Behrens and Associates 
Report submitted by applicant. No oil, gas or other hydrocarbon substances 
may be produced from any well hereby  permitted unless the sound barriers 
have been constructed. all equipment necessarily incident to such production 
is  enclosed within the 45-foot in height structure. Plans for said sound barriers 
enclosure need  to be submitted to the Department of Building and Safety for all 
necessary  reviews, including reviews by other departments and agencies, as 
appropriate,  and building permits secured prior to any construction. The 
operator shall  provide a height survey if requested by the Department of 
Building and Safety.  Notwithstanding the 45-foot height limit for the 
containment structure, where  any drilling, maintenance, or workover rig which 
exceeds the 45-foot in height structure, such a rig must also be sound proofed 
as provided for in Condition  No. 7. The sounds barriers is structure, for the oil 
production area, shall be of a permanent type,  of attractive design and 
constructed in a manner that will minimize, as far as  practicable, dust, noise, 
noxious odors and vibrations, or other conditions  which are offensive to the 
senses, and shall be equipped with such devices as  are necessary to minimize 
the objectionable features mentioned above. The  architectural treatment of the 
exterior of such structure shall be subject to  issuance of a Certificate of 
Compatibility with the approval of the Director of Planning, or their designee, 
after a maximum of two hearings by the Jefferson  Park Historic Preservation 
Overlay Zone’s Historic Preservation Board. See  Figure 3-4 of the 9/15/23 
Behrens and Associates Report submitted by applicant for the approximate 
location of the sound barriers. area that shall be enclosed. This area includes, 
but is not  limited to: the well cellar, storage tanks, slop tank, compressors, and 
the  microturbines. 

a. Tanks and other equipment and buildings used in extraction and  
production activities shall be maintained on the site in such a manner that 
no portion of the tanks, equipment or buildings other than the upper 
portion of the rig shall extend above the height of the sound barriers. 45-



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

foot permanent enclosure. In addition, no portions of the draw-works 
house, drilling  equipment buildings, temporary mud and water storage 
tanks and future  portable drilling mast used for servicing activities shall 
extend above the  height of the sound barriers. 45-foot permanent 
enclosure.  

Page 9 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

b. In addition, the workover, maintenance or drilling rigs, that 
measure up to a height of 45 feet and the micro-turbines shall be below 
the sound barriers.within  the 45-foot in height structure.  

c. An enhanced vapor recovery system shall be installed along the  
top of the 45-foot in height enclosure structure for the oil production  
area. The vapor recovery recordings or report shall be submitted to the  
Office of Zoning Administration (via email to  
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org), the Petroleum Administrator, the State 
Fire Marshal, the California State Resources Board and the South Coast 
Air Quality Management District as required pursuant to city, county,  
state, and federal rules and regulations.  

d.c. It is the applicant’s responsibility to act in a timely manner to  
submit a building permit application and comply with all rules and  
requirements in order to secure and final the building permit for the 
sound barriers.45-foot in height structure. It is also the applicant’s 
responsibility to act in  a timely manner to apply for and obtain a 
Certificate of Compatibility from the Jefferson Park HPOZ Board.  
Nonetheless, if the City process causes the time frame to extend beyond 
24 months, applicant shall not be in violation of this condition.  

24. NEW: A Spill Prevention, Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) Plan shall be  
submitted via email to planning.oildrilling@lacity.org, annually. The SPCC Plan 
will be updated pursuant to federal law, and any aAmendments shall be 
provided made within six months of the review following preparation of any 
amendment. The updated document shall be submitted to the file to the  
satisfaction of the Bureau of Sanitation Watershed Protection Division, the  
Petroleum Administrator and the Office of Zoning Administration. This review 
shall include at a minimum, the following:  

 Applicability of new prevention and control technology, which may 
significantly reduce the likelihood of a spill event from the Facility if such 
technology has been field proven at the time of the review;  

 Accuracy of the SPCC Plan as compared to the current facility operation  
and SPCC Regulations;  

 Capacity and structural integrity of secondary containment structures;  
and  

 SPCC inspections and records retention to ensure continuity for a 
minimum period of three years.  

 The site shall be staffed 24 hours a day, seven days a week. There shall  
be a minimum of two operators per shift so that meal and other breaks  
do not result in the site being unoccupied by staff.  

 The dispersal system for any required odor control product shall be  
placed as far as practicable from any adjacent residential structures to  
the site. The current location of the system shall be moved to a more  
remote location in the drill site, but away from any open flames or 
ignition sources.  



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 10 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

25.NEW: All drilling, workover, or maintenance rig operations at the site shall at all 
times be carried on only by electric power. All other operations on the site  shall 
at all times be carried on only by means of electric power. Power may be  
generated on site by solar voltaic generators or natural gas powered micro-
turbines placed within sound and odor proofed buildings or structures. Any 
methane used for the micro-turbines must come from methane produced as a  
by product from oil extraction. Methane may not be imported to power micro-
turbines from off-site sources nor may it be pumped to the site from other oil  
production sites in the area.  

- The operator shall limit any microturbine PM emissions to 0,0035  
lbs/mmbtu, or an equivalent reduction in the number and/or size of the  
microturbines, in order to reduce emissions to below local thresholds.  
The applicant will be subject to SCAQMD permit conditions that limit 
emissions from the set of microturbines, not just individual permit units.  

26.NEW: The use of diesel fueled equipment, including any drilling, workover or 
maintenance rig, is prohibited on the site nor may any backup generators use  
diesel fuel. Backup generators shall either be solar powered, be plugged into 
the electric power grid or powered by the on-site microturbines. Diesel  
powered vehicles are permitted on the site. Said vehicles, however, may not 
idle when on-site and must shut off their engines until they are to be moved off 
of the site or to another position on the site.  

27.NEW: The  operator shall remain in compliance with city, county, state and  
federal regulations specifically regulating idle wells. The operator shall plug  
and abandon idle wells as required by and in accordance with any city, county,  
state and federal regulations that identify a) when a well becomes idle and b)  
requirements to abandon an idle well. An idle well shall be defined and  
identified per CalGEM’s Well Finder web application, and compliance with the 
State’s idle well regulations constitute compliance with the City’s regulations 
regarding idle wells.  

28.NEW: Monitoring Program. The following measures shall be utilized by the  
operator to maintain regular and assured oversight of the well site in a  
residential neighborhood.  

a. The operator shall install an early alert detection system which will alert 
the Los Angeles City Fire Department (LAFD) of hydrogen sulfide and  
methane leaks. A protocol for the construction, installation and  
operation of the system shall be established to the satisfaction of the  
LAFD and CalGEM within 90 days of the effective date of this  
Determination letter and submitted to the Office of Zoning  
Administration for placement in the case file. Such system shall remain  
in operation during the lifetime of the drill site operation.  



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

b. The operator shall install a state-of-the-art fire suppression system as 
directed by LAFD,  which shall use, but not be limited to more effective 
fire suppressants  

Page 11 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

such as foam. The system shall be constructed to the satisfaction of the 
LAFD; with the clearance from the LAFD for its design.  

c. The operator shall formally arrange with the LAFD Oil Wells Unit and the 
LAFD CUPA Program, for regular quarterly monitoring of the operation at 
the  subject site, including but not limited to inspection of the systems 
described above. Such inspections shall occur as required by LAFD 
quarterly during the first five years of operation following this 
Determination. Copies of a formal  arrangement assuring inspection shall 
be sent the Office of Zoning  Administration for placement in the case file. 
Copies of all monitoring  inspection reports shall be filed with the Office 
of Zoning Administration  and the Petroleum Administrator.  

29. NEW: The operator, in the event of ceasing and/or decommissioning the drill  
site, shall test for potential hydrocarbon contamination in specific areas. The  
operator, or responsible party, shall test for soil data under the well cellar and  
tank battery area of the drill site. If contamination is found to be present then  
the area shall be remediated according to the standards and satisfaction of the  
Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board. All excavations and  
depressions shall be filled with clean soil. All oil, refuse and waste shall be  
removed from the drill site pursuant to city, county, state and federal laws and  
regulations. The operator, or responsible party, shall remove all underground  
and above-ground storage tanks in accordance with city, county, state and  
federal laws and regulations.  

30.NEW: All production installations or facilities shall be removed and the  
premises restored to its original condition after all oil and gas wells have been  
abandoned in accordance with city, county, state, and federal regulations.  

31.NEW: The operator shall record a covenant acknowledging and agreeing to 
comply with all the terms and conditions established herein shall be recorded  
in the County Recorder's Office. The agreement (standard main covenant and  
agreement form CP-6770) shall run with the land and shall be binding on any 
subsequent owners, heirs or assigns. The agreement with the conditions  
attached must be submitted to the Department of City Planning for approval  
before being recorded. After recordation, a certified copy bearing the  
Recorder's number and date shall be provided for inclusion in case file.  

32. NEW: When a Condition of ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 conflicts with Los Angeles 
Municipal Code Section 12.23-C,4, as recently adopted by Ordinance No.  
187,709, and effective on January 18, 2023, Section 12.23-C,4 shall supersede 
on matters regarding the drilling of new wells or the redrilling of existing wells  
to increase extraction. All other conditions in ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 shall  
remain in effect. (The City’s new Code provisions are the subject of litigation, 
and this condition shall conform to the resolution of that litigation.)  

33. NEW: Indemnification and Reimbursement of Litigation Costs. Applicant shall  
do all of the following:  



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 12 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

(i) Defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City from any and all actions  
against the City relating to or arising out of the City’s processing and  
approval of this entitlement, including but not limited to, an action to attack,  
challenge, set aside, void, or otherwise modify or annul the approval of the  
entitlement, the environmental review of the entitlement, or the approval of 
subsequent permit decisions, or to claim personal property damage,  
including from inverse condemnation or any other constitutional claim.  

(ii) Reimburse the City for any and all costs incurred in defense of an action  
related to or arising out of the City’s processing and approval of the  
entitlement, including but not limited to payment of all court costs and  
attorney’s fees, costs of any judgments or awards against the City (including  
an award of attorney’s fees), damages, and/or settlement costs.  

(iii) Submit an initial deposit for the City’s litigation costs to the City within 10  
days’ notice of the City tendering defense to the Applicant and requesting a  
deposit. The initial deposit shall be in an amount set by the City Attorney’s  
Office, in its sole discretion, based on the nature and scope of action, but in  
no event shall the initial deposit be less than $50,000. The City’s failure to  
notice or collect the deposit does not relieve the Applicant from  
responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the requirement in  
paragraph (ii).  

(iv) Submit supplemental deposits upon notice by the City. Supplemental  
deposits may be required in an increased amount from the initial deposit if 
found necessary by the City to protect the City’s interests. The City’s failure  
to notice or collect the deposit does not relieve the Applicant from  
responsibility to reimburse the City pursuant to the requirement in  
paragraph (ii).  

(v) If the City determines it necessary to protect the City’s interest, execute an  
indemnity and reimbursement agreement with the City under terms  
consistent with the requirements of this condition.  

The City shall notify the applicant within a reasonable period of time of its receipt 
of any action and the City shall cooperate in the defense. If the City fails to notify 
the applicant of any claim, action, or proceeding in a reasonable time, or if the City 
fails to reasonably cooperate in the defense, the applicant shall not thereafter be 
responsible to defend, indemnify or hold harmless the City.  

The City shall have the sole right to choose its counsel, including the City 
Attorney’s office or outside counsel. At its sole discretion, the City may participate  
at its own expense in the defense of any action, but such participation shall not 
relieve the applicant of any obligation imposed by this condition. In the event the  
Applicant fails to comply with this condition, in whole or in part, the City may 
withdraw its defense of the action, void its approval of the entitlement, or take any 
other action. The City retains the right to make all decisions with respect to its  
representations in any legal proceeding, including its inherent right to abandon or 
settle litigation.  The City shall engage in good faith discussions with the applicant 
regarding any settlement of any litigation or regarding any major or material 
decisions pertaining to the litigation.  



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 13 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

For purposes of this condition, the following definitions apply:  

“City” shall be defined to include the City, its agents, officers, boards,  
commissions, committees, employees, and volunteers.  

“Action” shall be defined to include suits, proceedings (including those held 
under alternative dispute resolution procedures), claims, or lawsuits.  
Actions includes actions, as defined herein, alleging failure to comply with  
any federal, state or local law.  

Nothing in the definitions included in this paragraph are intended to limit the rights 
of the City or the obligations of the Applicant otherwise created by this condition.  

TRANSFERABILITY 

This authorization runs with the land. In the event the property is to be sold, leased, rented 
or occupied by any person or corporation other than yourself, it is incumbent upon you to 
advise them regarding the conditions of this grant. 

VIOLATIONS OF THESE CONDITIONS, A MISDEMEANOR  

Section 12.29 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code provides: 

"A variance, conditional use, adjustment, public benefit or other quasi-judicial approval, or 
any conditional approval granted by the Director, pursuant to the authority of this chapter 
shall become effective upon utilization of any portion of the privilege, and the owner and 
applicant shall immediately comply with its Conditions. The violation of any valid Condition 
imposed by the Director, Zoning Administrator, Area Planning Commission, City Planning 
Commission or City Council in connection with the granting of any action taken pursuant to 
the authority of this chapter, shall constitute a violation of this chapter and shall be subject 
to the same penalties as any other violation of this Code." 

Every violation of this determination is punishable as a misdemeanor and shall be 
punishable by a fine of not more than $2,500 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a 
period of not more than six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

APPEAL PERIOD - EFFECTIVE DATE  

The applicant's attention is called to the fact that this grant is not a permit or license and that 
any permits and licenses required by law must be obtained from the proper public agency. 
Furthermore, if any Condition of this grant is violated or if the same be not complied with, then 
the applicant or his successor in interest may be prosecuted for violating these Conditions the 
same as for any violation of the requirements contained in the Municipal Code. The Zoning 
Administrator's determination in this matter will become effective after March 15, 2023, unless 
an appeal therefrom is filed with the Department of City Planning. It is strongly advised that 
appeals be filed early during the appeal period and in person so that 
imperfections/incompleteness may be corrected before the appeal period expires. Any appeal 
must be filed on the prescribed forms, accompanied by the required fee, a copy of 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 14 of 72 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

CASE NO. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

the Zoning Administrator's action, and received and receipted at a public office of the 
Department of City Planning on or before the above date or the appeal will not be accepted. 
Forms are available on-line at http://planning.lacity.org. Public offices are located at: 

Figueroa Plaza  
201 North Figueroa  

Street 4th Floor  
Los Angeles, CA 90012  

(213) 482-7077 

Marvin Braude San Fernando Valley  
Constituent Service Center  

6262 Van Nuys Blvd., Room 251  
Van Nuys, CA 91401  

(818) 374-5050 

West Los Angeles Development  
Services Center  

1828 Sawtelle Blvd., 2nd Floor  
Los Angeles, CA 90025  

(310) 231-2912  

If you seek judicial review of any decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.5, the petition for writ of mandate pursuant to that section must be 
filed no later than the 90th day following the date on which the City's decision became final 
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6. There may be other time 
limits which also affect your ability to seek judicial review. 

NOTICE   

The applicant is further advised that all subsequent contact with this office regarding this 
determination must be with the Oil and Gas Facilities Unit of the Office of Zoning 
Administration. This would include clarification, verification of condition compliance and 
plans or building permit applications, etc., and shall be accomplished BY APPOINTMENT 
ONLY, in order to assure that you receive service with a minimum amount of waiting. You 
should advise any consultant representing you of this requirement as well. 

AUTHORIZATION   

Pursuant to LAMC Section 12.24 M, the Zoning Administrator may determine that existing 
uses may be extended on an approved site provided that plans are submitted to and 
approved by the Zoning Administrator. 

Pursuant to LAMC 13.01-E.2(i) - A Zoning Administrator may impose additional conditions 
or require corrective measures to be taken if he or she finds, after actual observations or 
experience with drilling one or more of the wells in the district, that additional conditions are 
necessary to afford greater protection to surrounding property. 

Pursuant to Case No. ZA-1959-15227(O)(PA4) Condition No. 14, at any time during the period 
of validity of the grant, should documented evidence be submitted showing continued violation 
of any condition of this grant, resulting in an unreasonable level of disruption or interference 
with the peaceful enjoyment of the adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning 
Administrator reserves the right to require the applicant to file for a plan approval application, 
together with associated fees, the purpose of which will be to hold a public hearing to review 
the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness of these conditions. Upon review the 
Zoning Administrator may modify, add, or delete conditions. 



 

LEGAL02/42915724v3LEGAL02/42915724v1 
Field Code Changed

Page 15 of 72 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 



 

- 2 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

and Wilmington Oil Fields, which have all been legally permitted by the City.  E & B Natural 

Resources Management Corporation operates these facilities and oil fields within an oil drilling district 

that was enacted by ordinance by the Los Angeles City Council pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal 

Code section 13.01.  

5. Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation currently conducts oil and gas operations at the 

Hillcrest Country Club facility, located in the vicinity of West Pico Boulevard and Avenue of the 

Stars, and at the Rancho Park Golf Club facility, located in the vicinity of West Pico Boulevard and 

Beverly Glen Boulevard.  These two facilities collectively extract from 617 acres of mineral interests.  

6. Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation has vested property interests in continued oil 

production at its Hillcrest Country Club and Rancho Park Golf Club facilities.  Hillcrest Beverly Oil 

Corporation operates these facilities within an oil drilling district that was enacted by ordinance by the 

Los Angeles City Council pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code section 13.01.  

7. E&B also leases mineral rights from mineral interest owners.  E&B ENR I, LLC holds 

mineral interests in fee and leasehold for the San Vicente and Packard facilities.  Elysium Natural 

Resources, LLC holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for the Murphy facility and for some of 

the operations by E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation within the Torrance oilfield.  

Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation also holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for its operations 

at the Hillcrest Country Club and Rancho Park Golf Club facilities.  E & B Natural Resources 

Management Corporation also holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for its operations at the 

Torrance and Wilmington Oil Fields.   

8. E&B’s operations in the City have approximately 15,000 royalty owners.  E&B 

collectively pays approximately $11 million annually in royalty payments and related payments, such 

as advanced royalty payments or surface rentals to royalty owners.  These royalty payments are 

computed based on the value of production from each mineral lease. 

9. In addition to the drilling and operation of production wells to extract oil, E&B’s 

operations also require the use of injection wells.  In the majority of E&B’s operations, injection wells 

are used as part of a waterflood secondary recovery.  Waterflooding involves the injection of water to 

increase the mobilization of oil within the underlying reservoirs.  Waterflooding is necessary for the 



 

- 3 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

economic recovery of oil from these formations.  In the remaining sites, injection wells are used to re-

inject the wastewater that is produced with the recoverable oil.  Without the re-injection of this 

wastewater, these operations would quickly become uneconomic as there is no other feasible method 

of disposing of this wastewater.  Injection wells can become clogged or less effective with time.  

Routine maintenance such as acidizing is needed to maintain an injection well’s ability to inject fluids.  

10. It is a normal and necessary function of petroleum operations to redrill from established 

drill sites not only to find and extract additional reserves or correct subsidence problems, but to correct 

extraction problems which occur from time to time.  E&B must also frequently conduct maintenance 

of existing wells, for example, to repair or replace the casing of wells or to add perforations into an 

existing well.  Without the ability to conduct redrilling or maintenance activities, E&B’s oil production 

operations would quickly become uneconomic and not viable for continued use.    

11. E&B routinely undertakes maintenance to its existing wells to continue its operations 

in the City.  To the extent that the maintenance operation involves deepening, redrilling, plugging, or 

permanently altering in any manner the casing of a well or its function, E&B would typically file a 

Notice of Intention for a “Rework Permit” from the California Geologic Energy Management Division 

to conduct certain maintenance activities.  For acidizing maintenance, E&B is now required to notify 

the South Coast Air Quality Management District.  These maintenance operations are a necessary 

function to maintain ongoing oil production, and a field would quickly become non-productive if 

maintenance was not allowed to continue.   

12. Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation is a lessee to leases with the City of Los Angeles for 

its oil and gas operations at the Rancho Park Golf Course.  These leases specifically contemplate that 

the lessee will be allowed to conduct drilling, redrilling, maintenance, and servicing of wells as part 

of the lease.   

13. E&B has received permits or zoning approvals from the City to conduct oil production 

operations on its properties. These permits establish conditions, as well as a process for additional 

modifications or condition review of these existing permits, which are inconsistent with the ZAI and 

ZA Memo 141.   



 

- 4 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

14. As a result of the ZAI and ZA Memo 141, the permit conditions allowing for 

subsequent modifications, including redrilling and maintenance activities, are apparently being 

invalidated by the City without any prior notice to E&B or any opportunity for E&B to be heard on 

these new procedures.  E&B has substantially relied on these permit conditions in planning its 

operations at the sites within the City. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 

is true and correct.  Executed this _4th__ day of September, 2023, in Fountain Valley, California. 

 

 

 

  
Louis P. Zylstra, Jr. PE



 

- 5 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 

 

 

Introduction 1 

 

 

 
Murphy Production Site 

Operational Noise Assessment 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Prepared for: 

 

E&B Natural Resources Mgnt. Corp. 

5733 W. Pico Blvd. 

Los Angeles, CA 90019 

 

 
 

Prepared by: 

 

Behrens and Associates, Inc. 

13806 Inglewood Avenue 

Hawthorne California, 90250 

 

 

 
 

Simon Kim 

Senior Acoustical Consultant 

 
Jason Peetz 

Engineering Manager 
 

September 15, 2023 
 

Corporate Office: El Segundo, California 

Carson, California ~ Aledo, Texas ~ Longmont, Colorado ~ Smithton, Pennsylvania ~ Red Deer, Alberta 

Oakland, California ~ Johnson City, Tennessee 

Phone 800-679-8633 ~ Fax 310-331-1538 

www.environmental-noise-control.com ~ www.drillingnoisecontrol.com 

 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 

 

 

Introduction 2 

 

 

1.   Introduction 

The following report provides results of the operational noise impact analysis of the existing production operations 

at the Murphy site operated by E & B. The Murphy site located at 2126 W. Adams Boulevard, Los Angeles, California 

as shown in Figure 1-1. The scope of the noise assessment includes following: 

 

• A brief description of the fundamentals of noise. 

• A discussion of the utilized noise modeling methodology. 

• Analysis of the noise impacts associated with current production activities at the site. 

 

 

 
Figure 1-1   Murphy Site Location 

 

Murphy Site 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 

 

 

Noise Fundamentals 3 

 

 

2.   Noise Fundamentals 

Sound is most commonly experienced by people as pressure waves passing through air. These rapid fluctuations in 

air pressure are processed by the human auditory system to produce the sensation of sound. The rate at which sound 

pressure changes occur is called the frequency. Frequency is usually measured as the number of oscillations per 

second or Hertz (Hz). Frequencies that can be heard by a healthy human ear range from approximately 20 Hz to 

20,000 Hz. Toward the lower end of this range are low-pitched sounds, including those that might be described as a 

“rumble” or “boom”. At the higher end of the range are high-pitched sounds that might be described as a “screech” 

or “hiss”. 

 

Environmental noise generally derives, in part, from a combination of distant noise sources. Such sources may include 

common experiences such as distant traffic, wind in trees, and distant industrial or farming activities. These distant 

sources create a low-level "background noise" in which no particular individual source is identifiable. Background 

noise is often relatively constant from moment to moment, but varies slowly from hour to hour as natural forces 

change or as human activity follows its daily cycle.  

 

Superimposed on this low-level, slowly varying background noise is a succession of identifiable noisy events of 

relatively brief duration. These events may include the passing of single-vehicles, aircraft flyovers, screeching of 

brakes, and other short-term events. The presence of these short-term events causes the noise level to fluctuate. 

Typical indoor and outdoor A-weighted sound levels are shown in Figure 2-1. Detailed acoustical definitions have 

been provided in Appendix B. 

 
Figure 2-1   Typical Indoor and Outdoor A-Weighted Sound Levels  



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 

 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 4 

 

 

3.   Operational Noise Modeling 

3.1   Noise Modeling Procedure 

The noise modeling was completed with use of three-dimensional computer noise modeling software. All models in 

this report were developed with SoundPLAN 9.0 software using the ISO 9613-2 standard. Noise levels are predicted 

based on the locations, noise levels and frequency spectra of the noise sources, and the geometry and reflective 

properties of the local terrain, buildings and barriers. To ensure a conservative assessment and compliance with ISO 

9613-2 standards, light to moderate winds are assumed to be blowing from the source to receptor.  

 

The modeled noise levels represent only the contribution of the normal production operations at the site and do not 

include ambient noise. Actual field sound level measurements may vary from the modeled noise levels due to existing 

non-operation related noise sources such as traffic, other human activity, or environmental factors. 

 

The production facility operational noise model was created to predict the constant, steady-state noise levels at the 

Murphy site and adjacent surroundings. The equipment sound data utilized in the modeling were derived from field 

measured sound levels on May 16, 2023. Short-duration, spot sound level measurements were conducted at varying 

distances from the noise emitting equipment at the site. Measurements were also conducted around the perimeter of 

the site. The modeling includes existing masonry walls installed at the site. Noise sources included in the modeling 

were compressors and other production equipment as shown in Figure 3-1. Workover rigs were not included in the 

modeling. 

 

 
Figure 3-1   Murphy Site Layout 

 

Condenser Units 

in Operation 

A Thrust Chamber in 

Operation 

A Gas Compressor 

in Operation 

Turbine in 

Operation 

Reflex and 

Stabilizer Units in 

Operation 

Tubing M Rotator 

in Operation 

Amine Plant not in 

Operation 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 

 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 5 

 

 

3.2   Noise Model Receptors 

Receptor locations were selected to evaluate the noise impact of the operations at and nearby the site. Figure 3-2 

shows the locations of the selected receptors. Receptor 1 through Receptor 3 are replicated from a previous existing 

neighborhood sound level survey conducted in the neighborhood area surrounding the site from Tuesday, May 2 

through May 5, 2023. Receptor 4 through Receptor 8 represent properties adjacent to the site. Table 3-1 indicates the 

details of the receptors.  

 

Table 3-1   Receptor Detail 

Receptor 

R1 Along Cimarron St. (Replica of a Previous Survey Location) 

R2 South of the Site (Replica of a Previous Survey Location) 

R3 Along South St. Andrews Pl. (Replica of a Previous Survey Location) 

R4 Southwestern Property (2148 W. 26th Pl.) 

R5 Westerly Adjacent Property (2136 W. Adams Blvd.) 

R6 Northern Property (2117 W. Adams Blvd.) 

R7 Southeasterly Property (2094 W. Adams Blvd.) 

R8 Easterly Property (2094 W. Adams Blvd.) 

 

 
Figure 3-2   Receptor Locations  

Murphy Site 

Murphy Site 

R4 

R7 

R8 

R6 

R5 

R2 

R3 

R1 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 

 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 6 

 

 

3.3   Noise Modeling Results – Current Conditions 

The calculated noise levels represent only the contribution of the modeled facility operations and do not include 

ambient noise or noise from other equipment. Actual field sound level measurements may vary from the modeled 

noise levels due to other noise sources such as traffic, other facilities, other human activity, or environmental factors. 

 

The results of the noise modeling are presented in Table 3-2. The locations in the tables correspond to the receptor 

locations identified in Figure 3-2. The noise modeling results indicate that the predicted noise level will be up to 64.7 

dBA at Receptor 5 (2nd fl) for the existing conditions scenario. 

 

Table 3-2   Noise Modeling Results (dBA) 

Receptor 
Current Condition Predicted 

Noise Levels 

R1 41.1 

R2 44.8 

R3 46.7 

R4 51.8 

R5 53.0 

R5 (2nd fl) 64.7 

R6 51.3 

R7 60.9 

R8 45.4 

 

 

The results of the noise modeling are shown in Figure 3-3 as noise contour maps. The noise contours are provided in 

5 dB increments with the color scale indicating the sound level of each contour. 

 

For the evaluation of existing conditions predicted noise levels, previously measured existing neighborhood sound 

level survey data (conducted from Tuesday, May 2 through May 5, 2023) were referenced as shown in Table 3-3. 

 

Table 3-3   Previously Measured Existing Neighborhood Sound Levels (dBA) 
Measured Data R1 R2 R3 

Lowest Measured Daytime Average 64.4 55.8 65.8 

Lowest Measured Nighttime Average 60.2 51.5 61.6 

Lowest Measured Hourly Noise Level 51.6 48.2 58.5 

 

 

Based on the previously measured existing neighborhood sound level survey data, the facility operation does not 

generate a significant noise impact at the evaluated receptor locations.



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 7 

 

 

 
Figure 3-3   Existing Conditions Operational Noise Contour Map (dBA)

R3 

46.7 dBA 

R1 

41.1 dBA 

R2 

44.8 dBA 

R5 - 53.0 dBA 

R5 (2nd fl) - 64.7 dBA 

R6 

51.3 dBA 

R8 

45.4 dBA 

R7 

60.9 dBA 

R4 

51.8 dBA 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 8 

 

 

3.4   Noise Modeling Results – Proposed Sound Barrier Walls 

To investigate the effectiveness of implementing noise mitigation at the site, a mitigated modeling scenario was 

created.  

 

▪ A total of 220 linear feet of 20-foot-high, Sound Transmission Class (STC) 32 Acoustic Barrier Wall 

installed on the west side of the site.  

 

▪ A total of 220 linear feet of 32-foot-high, Sound Transmission Class (STC) 32 Acoustic Barrier Wall 

installed on the on the east side of the site.  

 

The modeled mitigation layouts are show in Figure 3-4. 

 

 
Figure 3-4   Modeled Sound Barrier Wall Layout 

 

The calculated noise levels represent only the contribution of the modeled facility operations and do not include 

ambient noise or noise from other equipment. Actual field sound level measurements may vary from the modeled 

noise levels due to other noise sources such as traffic, other facilities, other human activity, or environmental factors. 

The predicted noise levels are based on the mitigation layout detailed above. 

220ft Linear Length of 32-ft High 

STC32 Sound Barrier 

220ft Linear Length of 20-ft High 

STC32 Sound Barrier 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 9 

 

 

 

The results of the noise modeling are presented in Table 3-4. The locations in the tables correspond to the receptor 

locations identified in Figure 3-2. The noise modeling results indicate that the predicted noise level will be up to 53.0 

dBA at Receptor 5 (2nd fl) and Receptor 6. 

 

 

 

 

Table 3-4   Mitigated Noise Modeling Results (dBA) 

Receptor 
Predicted Mitigated 

Noise Levels 

R1 39.8 

R2 44.8 

R3 43.2 

R4 51.8 

R5 46.9 

R5 (2nd fl) 53.0 

R6 53.0 

R7 46.0 

R8 45.5 

 

 

The results of the noise modeling are shown in Figure 3-5 as noise contour maps. The noise contours are provided in 

5 dB increments with the color scale indicating the sound level of each contour. 

 

For the evaluation of mitigated predicted noise levels, previously measured existing neighborhood sound level survey 

data (conducted from Tuesday, May 2 through May 5, 2023) were referenced as shown in Table 3-5. 

 

Table 3-5   Previously Measured Existing Neighborhood Sound Levels (dBA) 
Measured Data R1 R2 R3 

Lowest Measured Daytime Average 64.4 55.8 65.8 

Lowest Measured Nighttime Average 60.2 51.5 61.6 

Lowest Measured Hourly Noise Level 51.6 48.2 58.5 

 

 

Based on the previously measured existing neighborhood sound level survey data, the facility operation does not 

generate a significant noise impact at the evaluated receptor locations.



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Operational Noise Modeling 10 

 

 

 
Figure 3-5   Mitigated Facility Operational Noise Contour Map (dBA)

R3 

43.2 dBA 

R1 

39.9 dBA 

R2 

44.8 dBA 

R5 – 46.9 dBA 

R5 (2nd fl) – 53.0 dBA 

R6 

53.0 dBA 

R8 

45.5 dBA 

R7 

46.0 dBA 

R4 

51.8 dBA 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Additional Workover Rig Model 11 

 

4.   Conclusion 

A noise assessment was conducted to analyze the operational noise impact associated with the existing production 

operations at the Murphy site operated by E & B. The Murphy site is located at 2126 W. Adams Boulevard, Los 

Angeles, California.  

 

The current condition operational noise modeling results of Murphy facility indicate that the predicted noise level 

will be up to 64.7 dBA Receptor 5 (2nd fl) as shown in Table 4-1. 

 

Table 4-1   Noise Modeling Results (dBA) 

Receptor 
Current Condition Predicted 

Noise Levels 

R1 41.1 

R2 44.8 

R3 46.7 

R4 51.8 

R5 53.0 

R5 (2nd fl) 64.7 

R6 51.3 

R7 60.9 

R8 45.4 

 

The operational noise modeling results with proposed sound barrier walls indicate that the predicted noise level will 

be up to 58.2 dBA at Receptor 7 as shown in Table 4-2. 

 

Table 4-2   Noise Modeling Results (dBA) 

Receptor Predicted Noise Levels 

R1 39.8 

R2 44.8 

R3 43.2 

R4 51.8 

R5 46.9 

R5 (2nd fl) 53.0 

R6 53.0 

R7 46.0 

R8 45.5 

 

 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Additional Workover Rig Model 12 

 

Based on the previously measured existing neighborhood sound level survey data (conducted on Tuesday, May 2 

through May 5, 2023) as shown in Table 4-3, the facility operation does not generate a significant noise impact at the 

evaluated receptor locations. 

 

Table 4-3   Previously Measured Existing Neighborhood Sound Levels (dBA) 
Measured Data R1 R2 R3 

Lowest Measured Daytime Average 64.4 55.8 65.8 

Lowest Measured Nighttime Average 60.2 51.5 61.6 

Lowest Measured Hourly Noise Level 51.6 48.2 58.5 

 

 

Additionally, additional noise modeling scenarios representing a workover rig operating at the Murphy site were 

modeled and included in Appendix A. 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Additional Workover Rig Model 13 

 

Appendix A - Additional Workover Rig Model 

  



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Additional Workover Rig Model 14 

 

Additional workover rig noise modeling scenarios were evaluated. An equipment spot sound level survey for a 

workover rig was conducted at the Angus Petroleum site located at 1809 Delaware Street, Huntington Beach, 

California on Friday, August 11, 2023. During the survey, short-duration, spot sound level measurements were 

conducted at varying distance from the operating workover rig. The spot survey included the measurement and 

recording of both A-weighted and 1/3 octave band frequency sound levels. 

 

In the workover rig noise model, the rig was placed at the southeasternmost column to represent the worst-case noise 

scenario for the eastern neighborhood.  The noise modeling results are dependent on the workover rig and auxiliary 

equipment layout and operating conditions at the time the equipment was surveyed. Changes or additions to any 

equipment (e.g., generators, motors, pumps trucks. Pumps. etc.) may result in operational noise levels that are 

inconsistent with the modeling results.  

 

Two scenarios were created to represent workover rig operation at Murphy site. The first scenario represents the 

workover rig operation without any mitigation. The second scenario represents the workover rig operation with a 20-

foot Sound Barrier Wall installed along the western property line, a 32-ft Sound Barrier Wall installed along the 

eastern property line, and 12-foot Acoustical Panels installed on the west and north sides of the workover rig as shown 

in Figure A-1. 

 

 
Figure A-1   Modeled Workover Rig and Mitigation Layout at Murphy Site 

 

Workover Rig 

Location  

220ft Linear Length of 32-ft 

High STC32 Sound Barrier 

220ft Linear Length of 20-ft 

High STC32 Sound Barrier 

104ft Linear Length of 12-ft 

High Acoustical Panels 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control

Additional Workover Rig Model 15 

The calculated noise levels represent only the contribution of the modeled facility and workover rig operations and 

do not include ambient noise or noise from other equipment. Actual field sound level measurements may vary from 

the modeled noise levels due to other noise sources such as traffic, other facilities, other human activity, or 

environmental factors. 

The results of the noise modeling are presented in Table A-1. The locations in the tables correspond to the receptor 

locations identified in Figure 3-2. The noise modeling results indicate that the predicted noise levels will be up to 

74.9 dBA at Receptor 7 with current conditions and up to 64.5 dBA at Receptor 6 for mitigated scenario (with 20-ft 

STC-32 Sound Barrier Wall installed along the western property line and 32-ft STC-32 Sound Barrier Wall installed 

along the eastern property line). An approximate 17 dB noise reduction is anticipated at Receptor 7 due to the presence 

of the sound barrier walls. 

Table A-1   Workover Rig Operational Noise Modeling Results (dBA) 

Receptor 

Predicted 

Noise Levels w Current 

Conditions 

Predicted Noise Levels w 

32ft Eastern & 20ft Western 
Sound Barrier Wall 

R1 52.0 49.7 

R2 51.3 51.7 

R3 62.8 59.3 

R4 53.9 54.8 

R5 61.5 55.0 

R5 (2nd fl) 74.7 61.0 

R6 68.7 64.5 

R7 74.9 58.3 

R8 55.1 56.5 

The results of the noise modeling are shown in Figure A-1 and Figure A-2 as noise contour maps. The noise contours 

are provided in 5 dB increments with the color scale indicating the sound level of each contour. 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control

Additional Workover Rig Model 16 

Figure A-1   Unmitigated Workover Rig Operational Noise Contour Map (dBA) 

R3 

62.8 dBA 

R1 

52.0 dBA 

R2 

51.3 dBA 

R5 – 61.5 dBA 

R5 (2nd fl) – 74.7 dBA 

R6 

68.7 dBA 

R8 

55.1 dBA 

R7 

74.9 dBA 

R4 

53.9 dBA 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control

Additional Workover Rig Model 17 

Figure A-2   Mitigated Workover Rig Operational Noise Contour Map (dBA) 

R3 

59.3 dBA 

R1 

49.7 dBA 

R2 

51.7 dBA 

R5 – 55.0 dBA 

R5 (2nd fl) – 61.0 dBA 

R6 

64.5 dBA 

R8 

56.5 dBA 

R7 

58.3 dBA 

R4 

54.8 dBA 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Glossary of Acoustical Terms 18 

 

Appendix B - Glossary of Acoustical Terms 

  



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Glossary of Acoustical Terms 19 

 

Ambient Noise 

The all-encompassing noise associated with a given environment at a specified time, usually a composite of sound 

from many sources both near and far. 

 

Average Sound Level 

See Equivalent-Continuous Sound Level 

 

A-Weighted Sound Level, dB(A) 

The sound level obtained by use of A-weighting. Weighting systems were developed to measure sound in a way that 

more closely mimics the ear’s natural sensitivity relative to frequency so that the instrument is less sensitive to noise 

at frequencies where the human ear is less sensitive and more sensitive at frequencies where the human ear is more 

sensitive. 

 

Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) 

A 24-hour A-weighted average sound level which takes into account the fact that a given level of noise may be more 

or less tolerable depending on when it occurs. The CNEL measure of noise exposure weights average hourly noise 

levels by 5 dB for the evening hours (between 7:00 pm and 10:00 pm), and 10 dB between 10:00 pm and 7:00 am, 

then combines the results with the daytime levels to produce the final CNEL value. It is measured in decibels, dB.  

 

Day-Night Average Sound Level (Ldn)  

A measure of noise exposure level that is similar to CNEL except that there is no weighting applied to the evening 

hours of 7:00 pm to 10:00 pm. It is measured in decibels, dB. 

 

Daytime Average Sound Level 

The time-averaged A-weighted sound level measured between the hours of 7:00 am to 7:00 pm. It is measured in 

decibels, dB. 

 

Decay Rate  

The time taken for the sound pressure level at a given frequency to decrease in a room. It is measured in decibels per 

second, dB/s. 

 

Decibel (dB) 

The basic unit of measurement for sound level. 

 

Direct Sound 

Sound that reaches a given location in a direct line from the source without any reflections. 

 

Divergence 

The spreading of sound waves from a source in a free field, resulting in a reduction in sound pressure level with 

increasing distance from the source. 

 

 

Energy Basis  

This refers to the procedure of summing or averaging sound pressure levels on the basis of their squared pressures. 

This method involves the conversion of decibels to pressures, then performing the necessary arithmetic calculations, 

and finally changing the pressure back to decibels.  

 

 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Glossary of Acoustical Terms 20 

 

Equivalent-Continuous Sound Level (Leq) 

The average sound level measured over a specified time period. It is a single-number measure of time-varying noise 

over a specified time period. It is the level of a steady sound that, in a stated time period and at a stated location, has 

the same A-Weighted sound energy as the time-varying sound. For example, a person who experiences an Leq of 60 

dB(A) for a period of 10 minutes standing next to a busy street is exposed to the same amount of sound energy as if 

he had experienced a constant noise level of 60 dB(A) for 10 minutes rather than the time-varying traffic noise level. 

It is measured in decibels, dB.  

 

Fast Response 

A setting on the sound level meter that determines how sound levels are averaged over time. A fast sound level is 

always more strongly influenced by recent sounds, and less influenced by sounds occurring in the distant past, than 

the corresponding slow sound level. For the same non-steady sound, the maximum fast sound level is generally 

greater than the corresponding maximum slow sound level. Fast response is typically used to measure impact sound 

levels.  

 

Field Impact Insulation Class (FIIC) 

A single number rating similar to the impact insulation class except that the impact sound pressure levels are measured 

in the field. 

 

Field Sound Transmission Class (FSTC) 

A single number rating similar to sound transmission class except that the transmission loss values used to derive this 

class are measured in the field. 

 

Flanking Sound Transmission 

The transmission of sound from a room in which a source is located to an adjacent receiving room by paths other 

than through the common partition. Also, the diffraction of noise around the ends of a barrier. 

 

Frequency 

The number of oscillations per second of a sound wave 

 

Hourly Average Sound Level (HNL) 

The equivalent-continuous sound level, Leq, over a 1-hour time period. 

 

Impact Insulation Class (IIC)  

A single number rating used to compare the effectiveness of floor/ceiling assemblies in providing reduction of impact-

generated sound such as the sound of a person’s walking across the upstairs floor. 

 

Impact Noise 

The noise that results when two objects collide. 

 

Impulse Noise 

Noise of a transient nature due to the sudden impulse of pressure like that created by a gunshot or balloon bursting. 

 

Insertion Loss 

The decrease in sound power level measured at the location of the receiver when an element (e.g., a noise barrier) is 

inserted in the transmission path between the sound source and the receiver.  

 

 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Glossary of Acoustical Terms 21 

 

Inverse Square Law 

A rule by which the sound intensity varies inversely with the square of the distance from the source. This results in a 

6dB decrease in sound pressure level for each doubling of distance from the source. 

 

Ln Sound Level 

Time-varying noise environments may be expressed in terms of the noise level that is exceeded for a certain 

percentage of the total measurement time. These statistical noise levels are denoted Ln, where n is the percent of time. 

For example, the L50 is the noise level exceeded for 50% of the time. For a 1-hour measurement period, the L50 would 

be the noise level exceeded for a cumulative period of 30 minutes in that hour. 

 

Masking 

The process by which the threshold of hearing for one sound is raised by the presence of another sound. 

 

Maximum Sound Level (Lmax) 

The greatest sound level measured on a sound level meter during a designated time interval or event.  

 

NC Curves (Noise Criterion Curves) 

A system for rating the noisiness of an occupied indoor space. An actual octave-band spectrum is compared with a 

set of standard NC curves to determine the NC level of the space. 

 

Noise Isolation Class (NIC) 

A single number rating derived from the measured values of noise reduction between two enclosed spaces that are 

connected by one or more partitions. Unlike STC or NNIC, this rating is not adjusted or normalized to a measured or 

standard reverberation time. 

 

Noise Reduction 

The difference in sound pressure level between any two points. 

 

Noise Reduction Coefficient (NRC)  

A single number rating of the sound absorption properties of a material. It is the average of the sound absorption 

coefficients at 250, 500, 1000, and 2000 Hz, rounded to the nearest multiple of 0.05. 

 

Normalized Noise Isolation Class (NNIC)  

A single number rating similar to the noise isolation class except that the measured noise reduction values are 

normalized to a reverberation time of 0.5 seconds. 

 

Octave 

The frequency interval between two sounds whose frequency ratio is 2. For example, the frequency interval between 

500 Hz and 1,000 Hz is one octave. 

 

Octave-Band Sound Level  

For an octave frequency band, the sound pressure level of the sound contained within that band. 

 

One-Third Octave 

The frequency interval between two sounds whose frequency ratio is 2^(1/3). For example, the frequency interval 

between 200 Hz and 250 Hz is one-third octave. 

 

 



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Glossary of Acoustical Terms 22 

 

One-Third-Octave-Band Sound Level 

For a one-third-octave frequency band, the sound pressure level of the sound contained within that band.  

 

Outdoor-Indoor Transmission Class (OITC) 

A single number rating used to compare the sound insulation properties of building façade elements. This rating is 

designed to correlate with subjective impressions of the ability of façade elements to reduce the overall loudness of 

ground and air transportation noise. 

 

Peak Sound Level (Lpk) 

The maximum instantaneous sound level during a stated time period or event.  

 

Pink Noise 

Noise that has approximately equal intensities at each octave or one-third-octave band. 

 

Point Source 

A source that radiates sound as if from a single point. 

 

RC Curves (Room Criterion Curves) 

A system for rating the noisiness of an occupied indoor space. An actual octave-band spectrum is compared with a 

set of standard RC curves to determine the RC level of the space. 

 

Real-Time Analyzer (RTA) 

An instrument for the determination of a sound spectrum. 

 

Receiver  

A person (or persons) or equipment which is affected by noise. 

 

Reflected Sound 

Sound that persists in an enclosed space as a result of repeated reflections or scattering. It does not include sound that 

travels directly from the source without reflections. 

 

Reverberation 

The persistence of a sound in an enclosed or partially enclosed space after the source of the sound has stopped, due 

to the repeated reflection of the sound waves. 

 

Room Absorption 

The total absorption within a room due to all objects, surfaces and air absorption within the room. It is measured in 

Sabins or metric Sabins.  

 

Slow Response 

A setting on the sound level meter that determines how measured sound levels are averaged over time. A slow sound 

level is more influenced by sounds occurring in the distant past that the corresponding fast sound level. 

 

Sound 

A physical disturbance in a medium (e.g., air) that is capable of being detected by the human ear. 

 

Sound Absorption Coefficient 

A measure of the sound-absorptive property of a material.  



Behrens and Associates, Inc. 
Environmental Noise Control 
 
 

 

Glossary of Acoustical Terms 23 

 

Sound Insulation 

The capacity of a structure or element to prevent sound from reaching a receiver room either by absorption or 

reflection.  

 

Sound Level Meter (SLM) 

An instrument used for the measurement of sound level, with a standard frequency-weighting and standard 

exponentially weighted time averaging. 

 

Sound Power Level 

A physical measure of the amount of power a sound source radiates into the surrounding air. It is measured in decibels. 

 

Sound Pressure Level 

A physical measure of the magnitude of a sound. It is related to the sound’s energy. The terms sound pressure level 

and sound level are often used interchangeably.  

 

Sound Transmission Class (STC) 

A single number rating used to compare the sound insulation properties of walls, floors, ceilings, windows, or doors. 

This rating is designed to correlate with subjective impressions of the ability of building elements to reduce the overall 

loudness of speech, radio, television, and similar noise sources in offices and buildings. 

 

Source Room 

A room that contains a noise source or sources 

 

Spectrum  

The spectrum of a sound wave is a description of its resolution into components, each of different frequency and 

usually different amplitude.  

 

Tapping Machine 

A device used in rating different floor constructions against impacts. It produces a series of impacts on the floor under 

test, 10 times per second. 

 

Tone 

A sound with a distinct pitch 

 

Transmission Loss (TL) 

A property of a material or structure describing its ability to reduce the transmission of sound at a particular frequency 

from one space to another. The higher the TL value the more effective the material or structure is in reducing sound 

between two spaces. It is measured in decibels. 

 

White Noise 

Noise that has approximately equal intensities at all frequencies.  

 

Windscreen 

A porous covering for a microphone, designed to reduce the noise generated by the passage of wind over the 

microphone. 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 



 

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 90071-1410 

213-576-1000 | Fax: 213-576-1100 

 

Alston & Bird LLP      www.alston.com 

Atlanta | Beijing | Brussels | Charlotte | Dallas | Fort Worth | London | Los Angeles | New York | Raleigh | San Francisco | Silicon Valley | Washington, D.C. 
 

Nicki Carlsen  Direct Dial: +1 213 576 1128 Email: nicki.carlsen@alston.com 

 

September 5, 2023 

 
City Planning Commission of Los Angeles  
200 North Spring Street, Room 701 
Los Angeles, CA 90012   
cpc@lacity.org  
   

Re: Supplemental Submission in support of Appeal of ZA-2022-8997-ZAI-1A - 
Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation of Well Maintenance  

Dear Commissioners: 

We represent E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation, Hillcrest Beverly 
Oil Corporation, E&B ENR I, LLC, and Elysium Natural Resources, LLC (collectively, “E&B”) 
regarding E&B’s Appeal of the City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning’s (“City 
Planning”) “Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation” (“ZAI”) and “Zoning Administrator’s 
Memorandum (ZA Memo) 141” (“ZA Memo 141”), both circulated on January 17, 2023.   

E&B timely filed its appeal to the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 on January 31, 2023. 
(Attached as Exhibit A.)  When filing its appeal, E&B received a notification that the City 
Planning Commission (“CPC”) has rejected the appeal for ZA Memo 141.  (Exhibit B 
[1/31/2023 Rejection Note].)  Based on the CPC’s rejection of E&B’s appeal of ZA Memo 
141, E&B subsequently amended its Complaint challenging Ordinance No. 187,709 (“Oil 
Ordinance”) to include allegations related to ZA Memo 141.  As such, this submission is 
limited to a discussion of E&B’s appeal of the ZAI.   

The hearing for E&B’s appeal to the ZAI is scheduled for public hearing on 
September 14, 2023.  E&B now submits this letter ahead of the September 14, 2023 public 
hearing in order to supplement E&B’s appeal as to the ZAI.  By this letter, E&B joins in the 
submissions made in connection with the concurrent appeals of the ZAI filed by Warren 
Resources, Native Oil Producers and Employees of California (“NOPEC”) and Western 
States Petroleum Association (“WSPA”).   

In the ZAI, City Planning has dramatically expanded the scope of the Oil Ordinance, 
prohibiting a wide range of normal and necessary maintenance functions required for 
ongoing petroleum operations.  As shown by a recent California Supreme Court decision, 

http://www.alston.com/


City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 2 

the ZAI is entirely preempted by state law.  (Chevron U.S.A. Inc. v. Cty. of Monterey (2023) 
15 Cal.5th 135 (“County of Monterey”).)  The Supreme Court has stated that the State 
Legislature has delegated exclusive authority to the State Oil and Gas Supervisor to 
determine what methods of oil production are appropriate in each case.  The ZAI has 
taken an entire category of operations subject to permitting by the State and made itself 
the ultimate arbiter as to whether those operations should continue.  This ZAI is even 
more obviously preempted than the facts at issue before the Supreme Court.   

In addition, the ZAI has interfered with E&B’s vested permitting rights by revoking, 
modifying or imposing new conditions in existing permits allowing for the continued use 
of maintenance operations, and by interfering with existing leases between E&B and the 
City.  Further, the ZAI is invalid for the additional reasons explained in E&B’s initial appeal 
of the ZAI, which are hereby incorporated by reference. (See Exhibit A.)   

I. Maintenance Activities Are a Normal and Necessary Part of E&B’s Operations.  

As discussed in the Declaration of Louis Zylstra, submitted concurrently, E&B holds 
fee and leasehold interests in mineral rights that are under active operation within the 
City.  E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation and Hillcrest Beverly Oil 
Corporation are also operators of oil and gas facilities located within the City.  E&B 
collectively produces over 8,000 barrels of oil per day for Californians including Los 
Angelenos. Over 250 staff work for E&B, many in the Los Angeles area.  These operations 
have been the subject of extensive permitting and zoning approvals by the City, and they 
are also subject to rigorous oversight by the California Geologic Energy Management 
Division (“CalGEM”), the state agency in charge of regulating oil and gas production.1  

E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation currently conducts oil and gas 
operations at several locations within the City of Los Angeles.  The San Vicente facility is 
located in the vicinity of San Vicente Boulevard and West Third Street. The Packard facility 
is located in the vicinity of Pico Boulevard and Genesee Avenue in the City of Los Angeles, 
CA.  The San Vicente and Packard facilities collectively extract from 1,297 acres of mineral 
interests.  The Murphy facility is located in the vicinity of West Adams Boulevard and 
Western Avenue, and it extracts from 960 acres of mineral interests.  E & B Natural 
Resources Management Corporation conducts oil production operations within the City 
in the South Torrance oilfield in the vicinity of East Pacific Coast Highway and Wilmington 
Boulevard and extracting from 330 acres of mineral interests.  E & B Natural Resources 
Management Corporation also conducts oil production operations within the City in the 

 
1  In addition to the specific exhibits attached hereto, E&B also submits concurrently pertinent 
zoning approvals and permitting documents relevant to its operations within the City, which are 
being provided through an FTP link and flash drive.  



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 3 

Wilmington oilfield in the vicinity of W. Sepulveda Boulevard and S. Main Street and 
extracting from 146 acres of mineral interests.   

Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation currently conducts oil and gas operations at the 
Hillcrest Country Club facility, located in the vicinity of West Pico Boulevard and Avenue 
of the Stars, and at the Rancho Park Golf Club facility, located in the vicinity of West Pico 
Boulevard and Beverly Glen Boulevard.  These two facilities collectively extract from 617 
acres of mineral interests.   

In addition to owning some mineral rights directly in fee, E&B also lease mineral 
rights from mineral interest owners.  E&B ENR I, LLC holds mineral interests in fee and 
leasehold for the San Vicente and Packard facilities.  Elysium Natural Resources, LLC holds 
mineral interests in fee and leasehold for the Murphy facility and for some of the 
operations by E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation within the Torrance 
oilfield.  Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation also holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold 
for its operations at the Hillcrest Country Club and Rancho Park Golf Club facilities.  E & B 
Natural Resources Management Corporation also holds mineral interests in fee and 
leasehold for its operations at the Torrance and Wilmington oilfields.   

E&B’s operations in the City of Los Angeles  have approximately 15,000 royalty 
owners.  E&B collectively pays pay approximately $11 million annually in royalty 
payments and related payments, such as advanced royalty payments or surface rentals 
to royalty owners.  These royalty payments are computed based on the value of 
production from each mineral lease. 

 In addition to the drilling and operation of production wells to extract oil, E&B’s 
operations require the use of injection wells.  In the majority of E&B’s operations, 
injection wells are used as part of a waterflood secondary recovery.  Waterflooding 
involves the injection of water to increase the mobilization of oil within the underlying 
reservoirs.  Waterflooding is necessary for the economic recovery of oil from these 
formations.  In the remaining sites, injection wells are used to re-inject the wastewater 
that is produced with the recoverable oil.  Without the re-injection of this wastewater, 
these operations would quickly become uneconomic as there is no other feasible method 
of disposing of this wastewater.   

Injection wells can become clogged or less effective with time.  Routine 
maintenance such as acidizing is needed to maintain an injection well’s ability to inject 
fluids.  Further, as previously noted by Planning staff, “[i]t is a normal and necessary 
function of petroleum operations to re-drill from established drill sites not only to find 
and extract additional oil reserves or to correct subsidence problems, but to correct 
extraction problems which may occur from time to time.”  (See, e.g., Exhibit C [8/7/97 ZA 
18129 PAD] at p. 4.)  For instance, the re-drilling of wells is necessary to replace collapsed 
wells.  As the City has stated, “[a] collapsed well is not unusual as it is encountered 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 4 

throughout the industry with old wells.”  (See, e.g., Exhibit D [5/6/98 ZA 18129 PAD] at p. 
2.)  E&B must also frequently conduct maintenance to repair or replace the casing of wells 
or to add perforations into an existing well.  Without the ability to conduct redrilling or 
maintenance activities, E&B’s oil production operations would quickly become 
uneconomic and not viable for continued use.    

II. The County of Monterey Opinion Confirms that the ZAI Is Preempted by State 
Law. 

The ZAI is preempted by state law.  The California Constitution provides that a 
“county or city may make and enforce within its limits all local, police, sanitary, and other 
ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws.” (Cal. Const., Art. XI, § 7, 
emphasis added.)  “If otherwise valid local legislation conflicts with state law, it is 
preempted by such law and is void.” (County of Monterey, supra, 15 Cal.5th at p. 142, 
citing Sherwin-Williams Co. v. City of Los Angeles (1993) 4 Cal.4th 893, 897.) 

The recent decision by the California Supreme Court in County of Monterey 
specifically held that local governments are preempted from interfering in the regulation 
of oil and gas operations.  In particular, the California Supreme Court held that Monterey 
County was preempted under state law from prohibiting new drilling and banning the 
injection and impoundment of oil and gas wastewater.   

In this decision, the Supreme Court first interpreted section 31062 of the Public 
Resources Code, stating that it “directs the [State Oil and Gas] supervisor to administer 
the state’s regulations in a way that serves the dual purpose of ensuring the state has 
adequate oil and gas resources, while protecting the environment.” (County of Monterey, 
supra, 15 Cal.5th at p. 144, emphasis added.)  Further, section 3106 sets a “mandate that 
the state ‘shall’ supervise oil operation in a way that permits well operators to ‘utilize all 
methods and practices’ the [State Oil and Gas] supervisor has approved[.]”  (Id. at p. 145, 
emphasis in original.)   

Applying this standard, California’s highest court held that section 3106 “implicitly 
limits a local entity’s authority by expressly providing that the state supervisor shall 
approve all production methods that are, ‘in the opinion of the supervisor,’ ‘suitable for 
th[e] purpose’ ‘of increasing the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons.’”  (Id. 
at p. 149, quoting Pub. Resources Code § 3106, subd. (b).)  “By banning some oil 
production methods altogether, [the local ordinance] takes those methods off the table 

 
2  Section 3106 states, in part, that the “Supervisor shall … supervise the drilling, operation, 
maintenance, and abandonment of wells so as to permit owners or operators of wells to utilize 
all methods and practices known to the oil industry for the purpose of increasing the ultimate 
recovery of underground hydrocarbons and which, in the opinion of the supervisor, are suitable 
for this purpose in each proposed case.” (Pub. Res. Code §3106, subd. (b), emphasis added.)   



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 5 

and nullifies the supervisor's express, statutorily conferred authority to decide what oil 
production methods are suitable in each case.”  (Ibid., emphasis added)  In other words, 
“[b]y providing that certain oil production methods may never be used by anyone, 
anywhere, in the County, [the local ordinance] nullifies—and therefore contradicts—
section 3106's mandate that the state ‘shall’ supervise oil operation in a way that permits 
well operators to ‘utilize all methods and practices’ the supervisor has approved.”  (Id. at 
p. 145, emphasis in original.)  

Here, the ZAI similarly conflicts with California law and the State Oil and Gas 
Supervisor’s unilateral authority to make decisions regarding oil and gas production 
methods.  The Oil Ordinance bans the drilling of new wells and prohibits the maintenance, 
drilling, re-drilling, or deepening of existing wells except to prevent or respond to a threat 
to public health, safety, or the environment.  Despite restricting maintenance of existing 
wells, the Oil Ordinance does not define “maintenance.” Instead, the definition for 
“maintenance” was addressed in the separately issued ZAI, which followed the approval 
of the Oil Ordinance. 

The ZAI provides an “interpretat[ion of] what drill site activities qualify as oil ‘well 
maintenance.’”  (ZAI, at p. 1)  It defines oil well maintenance “as any scope of work that 
meets either of the following two criteria: 

1. A scope of work that requires a Notice of Intention “Rework Permit” to carry out 
work project on a well from the California Geologic Energy Management Division 
(CalGEM). 

2. A scope of work that requires online notification per the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District’s (SCAQMD) Rule 1148.2 – “Notification and Reporting 
Requirements for Oil and Gas Well and Chemical Suppliers.”  

(ZAI, at p. 1.)  Because the ZAI’s broad definition of “maintenance” will ban methods of 
oil production, the ZAI is preempted by state law and should be vacated.    

A. The ZAI Is Preempted by the Public Resources Code. 

Under the new legal framework set forward by the Supreme Court in the County 
of Monterey decision, the City simply cannot interfere with the State’s regulation of 
methods of oil production.   

In defining the scope of “maintenance,” the Zoning Administrator simply 
incorporates CalGEM’s definition of activities that require a “Rework” permit, which 
includes redrilling and maintenance activities.  As noted above, the City has already 
concluded that redrilling is a normal and necessary function of petroleum operations.  
Similarly, well maintenance activities are absolutely critical to conduct oil production.  By 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 6 

tying its prohibition on maintenance to activities that are specifically subject to permitting 
by CalGEM, the City is blatantly nullifying and thwarting the Supervisor’s express, 
statutorily conferred authority to determine whether these operations are suitable in 
each case.  There is no doubt after the Supreme Court’s decision that the City cannot do 
this.   

Even for maintenance activities that do not currently require permitting by 
CalGEM, the City cannot interfere with the Supervisor’s authority to determine that such 
methods of oil production should be allowed to take place.  For instance, E&B requires 
acidizing of injection wells in order to maintain waterflood.  (Zylstra Decl. ¶¶ 9-11.)  
Without acidizing, existing injection wells cannot maintain levels of injection needed for 
economic waterflood. (Ibid.)  While CalGEM determined that acidizing does not require a 
Rework NOI or other approval, SCAQMD has decided in a recent amendment that 
acidizing requires notification to the SCAQMD.  The ZAI now converts this notification 
requirement into a de facto prohibition on acidizing, by tying the scope of the Oil 
Ordinance’s prohibition to all activities subject to SCAQMD’s notification requirements.   

Even though ZAI defines its scope based on SCAQMD rules, the Public Resources 
Code still preempts the City from prohibiting methods of oil production.  Even if CalGEM 
allows acidizing without an approval, the Supervisor, not the City, has been delegated the 
authority in the State for deciding whether this activity should go forward.  By prohibiting 
acidizing operations unless the Zoning Administrator  decides that it is necessary for a 
health and safety purpose, the City has elevated itself to the level of Oil and Gas 
Supervisor.  The Oil and Gas Supervisor has the statutory duty to determine what methods 
of oil production are suitable in a given case, and the City cannot use the ZAI to usurp the 
Supervisor’s role.   

Even worse, the ZAI’s expansive interpretation of the Oil Ordinance is directly 
antagonistic to the State Oil and Gas Supervisor’s mandate as directed by the Legislature 
that he shall work to “increas[e] the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons.”  
(Public Resources Code § 3106, subd. (b).)  But by broadening the scope of an already 
draconian Oil Ordinance, the ZAI will put into effect “a ban on certain oil production 
methods in [the City of Los Angeles’s] existing oil fields” (see Cty. of Monterey, supra, 15 
Cal. 5th at p. 147) and will effectively phase out oil and gas production in the City.  (Zylstra 
Decl. ¶¶ 9-11.)  As did the County of Monterey, the City has overstepped its authority by 
modifying and seeking to oversee activities already regulated by CalGEM and the State 
Oil and Gas Supervisor. 

In doing so, the City’s adoption of the ZAI stands directly in front of and frustrates 
CalGEM and the State Oil and Gas Supervisor’s ability to “administer the state’s 
regulations in a way that serves the dual purpose of ensuring the state has adequate oil 
and gas resources, while protecting the environment.” (Cty. of Monterey, supra, 15 Cal. 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 7 

5th at p. 144.)  Taken together, the City lacks the statutory authority or justification to 
impose unnecessary requirements that are intended to address issues that the Legislature 
has already conferred authority to other agencies to decide. (See id. at p. 149.)  
Consequently, the ZAI is preempted and should be sent back to Planning Staff for 
reconsideration.   

B. The ZAI Is Also Preempted for Interfering with SCAQMD’s Authority.   

On its own grounds, the City cannot simply prohibit all activity that is the subject 
of SCAQMD’s notification requirements.  The SCAQMD has extensive rules regarding the 
air quality concerns that the City purportedly seeks to address by its new requirements.  
(See, e.g., SCAQMD Rules 1148.1 and 1148.2.) 

The State, in partnership with the Environmental Protection Agency, regulates air 
pollutants pursuant to the Mulford-Carrell Air Resources Act and the federal Clean Air Act.  
(See Cal. Health & Saf. Code, § 39000 et. seq.; 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.)  The Clean Air Act 
establishes the maximum concentration levels of certain pollutants and requires each 
state to adopt a state implementation plan to “meet federal ambient air quality standards 
in each state’s air basins.”  (So. Cal. Gas Co. v. So. Coast Air Quality Mgmt. Dist. (2012) 200 
Cal.App.4th 251, 268-69; 42 U.S.C.A. §§ 7408-7409; Health & Saf. Code, § 39602.5 [“The 
state board shall adopt rules and regulations pursuant to Section 43013 that, in 
conjunction with other measures adopted by the state board, the districts, and the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency, will achieve ambient air quality standards 
required by the federal Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 7401 et seq.) in all areas of the state 
by the applicable attainment date, and to maintain these standards thereafter”].)  The 
State seeks to achieve these air quality standards through “an intensive, coordinated, 
state, regional, and local effort to protect and enhance the ambient air quality of the 
state.”  (Health & Saf. Code, § 39001.)   

As part of this coordinated effort, “[t]he Legislature has designated regional air 
pollution districts as the primary enforcers of air quality regulations.”  (So. Cal. Gas Co. v. 
So. Coast Air Quality Mgmt. Dist., supra, 200 Cal.App.4th at 269, emphasis added; 
Western Oil & Gas Assn. v. Monterey Bay Unified Air Pollution Control Dist. (1989) 49 
Cal.3d 408, 417-418 [“The air pollution control district is the agency charged with 
enforcing both statewide and district emission controls”], emphasis original.)  They “are 
the mechanism through which the State meets and maintains state and federal air quality 
standards under the federal Clean Air Act and California law.”  (Beentjes v. Placer Cnty. 
Air Pollution Control Dist. (9th Cir. 2005) 397 F.3d 775, 782.)  Subject to the powers and 
duties of the State Board, air districts are authorized to adopt rules and regulations to 
achieve and enforce the state and federal air quality standards.  (Health & Saf. Code, § 
40001(a), emphasis added.)  The State Board then “coordinate[s] the activities of all 
districts necessary to comply with [the Clean Air Act].”  (Health & Saf. Code, § 39602, 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 8 

emphasis added.)  Thus, the State has delegated authority specifically to air districts–not 
the City–to protect the State’s air resources 

Thus, the air districts are delegated authority to regulate air standards, and the 
City’s prohibition of certain activities, which are otherwise allowed by the SCAQMD, 
contradicts SCAQMD’s delegated authority to determine how air quality standards should 
be met.   

C. The ZAI Provides No Justification for Contradicting Statutory Authority 
Conferred by the State.  

By restricting maintenance activities by specifically incorporating the type of 
activities regulated by CalGEM, the State Oil and Gas Supervisor, and the SCAQMD, the 
ZAI seeks to prohibit activities that are comprehensively regulated by the State.   

The ZAI itself admits that it intends to place the City in a position above the 
specialized agencies (CalGEM and SCAQMD) that have been specifically delegated 
authority by the State to regulate in these areas.  Throughout the ZAI, it is clear that the 
Zoning Administrator specifically intends to overrule the Supervisor’s determinations on 
how oil production should be regulated.  The ZAI points to scientific research provided to 
CalGEM as “illustrat[ing] the need to better regulate well maintenance activities.”  (ZAI at 
p. 5.)  The Zoning Administrator also states in the ZAI that the City should regulate well 
maintenance activities in a “more comprehensive manner” because CalGEM and 
SCAQMD “have narrow purviews in what they can regulate.”  (Ibid.)   

Midway through the ZAI, the Zoning Administrator apparently realized that the 
ZAI improperly intends to foist the Zoning Administrator’s authority above that of the 
regulators at CalGEM and SCAQMD in determining how to regulate subsurface 
maintenance operations or air quality.  So, the ZAI half-heartedly rattles of a laundry list 
of potential negative land use impacts to surrounding communities that may be impacted 
by well maintenance, such as noise, traffic, transportation circulation, noise, aesthetics, 
and odors.  (ZAI at p. 5.)  But the ZAI makes no attempt to show that these are more than 
hypothetical impacts, and they are definitively not the basis for the determination in the 
ZAI, as the only specific discussion of potential impacts involve studies directly implicating 
CalGEM and the SCAQMD.  (ZAI at pp. 4-5.)   

III. The ZAI Interferes with E&B’s Vested Rights without Appropriate Procedural 
Safeguards 

In addition to the fact that the ZAI is entirely preempted by state law, the ZAI also 
improperly interferes with E&B’s vested property rights.   E&B engages in significant oil 
production at several sites throughout the City of Los Angeles.  E&B has a vested property 
interest in continued oil production in these sites, which has been legally permitted by 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 9 

the City.  E&B operates within oil drilling districts that were enacted by ordinance by the 
Los Angeles City Council pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code section 13.01.   

E&B has received permits or zoning approvals from the City to conduct oil 
production operations on its properties. These permits establish conditions, as well as a 
process for additional modifications or condition review of these existing permits.  (Zylstra 
Decl. ¶ 13.)  These permit conditions allowing for subsequent modifications are being 
invalidated by the City.  In order to rescind existing permit approvals, the City must show 
that such action is necessary to abate a nuisance.  The City has made no attempt to make 
that showing.   

In 2017, the City adopted ZA Memo 133, which, among other things, requires a 
public hearing and environmental review under CEQA for any modification of previously 
approved determination of conditions.  (Exhibit E [ZA Memo 133].)  In an appeal related 
to a challenge to ZA Memo 133, the California Court of Appeal upheld the validity of ZA 
Memo 133 on the basis that the City would still need to comply with the nuisance 
abatement procedures in Section 12.27.1 before it could modify, discontinue or revoke a 
previously approved condition in an existing permit:   

In other words, the authority that Memorandum 133 explicitly confers 
upon the City with respect to modifications of previously approved 
conditions is authority that has existed all along. Nothing in Memorandum 
133 indicates that the notice and hearing protections set forth in City Code 
section 12.27.1 would not apply before the City decided to modify, 
discontinue, or revoke a previously approved condition in an existing 
permit. 

(Youth for Envtl. Justice v. City of L.A., No. B282822, 2019 Cal. App. Unpub. LEXIS 1110, at 
*42 (Feb. 15, 2019) (“YEJ v. City of LA”).3 

By prohibiting normal maintenance activities, the ZAI also seeks to revoke 
previously approved conditions in an existing permit that were allowed under its existing 
permits.  The appellate court in YEJ v. City of LA held that the City must still initiate  a 
nuisance abatement proceeding in order to modify, discontinue or revoke a previously 
approved condition.  Notwithstanding this holding, the City seeks to prohibit maintenance 
activities allowed under all existing permits without any attempt to show that such action 
is necessary to abate a nuisance.  (L.A. Municipal Code § 12.27.1.B.)  

 
3 While the YEJ v. City of LA opinion is not a published opinion, it remains binding upon the City 
under the principles of collateral estoppel.  (Parklane Hosiery Company, Inc. v. Shore (1979) 439 
U.S. 322, 332-333.) 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 10 

Similarly, the ZAI would prohibit any drilling, redrilling, conversion or other rework 
activity regardless of whether it has been approved and authorized by a previously 
approved condition in an existing permit.  There is no exception provided to allow 
operators to show that it has a vested right to conduct a “maintenance” activity that falls 
within the definition of the ZAI, or requiring that the City show that this action is necessary 
to abate a public nuisance. 

Further, the ZAI would purport to prohibit normal and necessary operations that 
are vested under E&B’s existing permits.  As an operator of an extractive use, E&B has a 
right to conduct the maintenance operations needed to continue operating its existing 
wells.  “The very nature and use of an extractive business contemplates the continuance 
of such use of the entire parcel of land as a whole, without limitation or restriction to the 
immediate area excavated at the time the ordinance was passed.”  (Hansen Bros. Enters. 
v. Board of Supervisors (1996) 12 Cal.4th 533, 553.)  The California Supreme Court in 
Hansen recognized the “diminishing asset” doctrine and defined the scope of vested 
rights for mining, quarrying and other extractive uses, recognizing the unique qualities of 
extractive uses and holding that it includes an expansion of those uses.  The ZAI entirely 
disregards these legal principles.  

IV. The City Lacks Authority to Issue the ZAI. 

The City claims that Section 12.21-A.2 of the Municipal Code authorizes the Zoning 
Administrator to determine other uses that may be permitted when in the Zoning 
Administrator’s judgment the other uses are similar to and no more objectionable to the 
public welfare than the listed use.   

Here, the Zoning Administrator has issued an interpretation that would vastly 
expand the prohibition of uses, in contravention of the General Plan, as discussed in E&B’s 
initial appeal.  The City has already recognized that “dependence on foreign oil comes at 
an increased social, economical [sic] and political cost,” and that the approval of 
continued oil production at existing sites, “by encouraging and facilitating local oil 
production, under strict controls as to the possible impacts it may have on the immediate 
vicinity of the production site, will be of direct benefit to the public as a whole.”  (Exhibit F 
[3/17/09 Packard ZA18129 PA2] at p. 18; see also Exhibit G [11/25/02 ZA19139 PA] at 
p. 5.)   

Further, legislative actions by the City are required to be taken by the City Council. 
The ZAI is tantamount to a legislative action, as it is, in essence, an amendment to the Oil 
Ordinance.  If the City intends to impose and enforce conditions like those set forth in the 
ZAI, despite the obvious impropriety of such regulations as set forth in this letter, the City 
needs to comply with its own Code and Charter for legislative actions.  See City Charter 
§ 240 [“All legislative power of the City except as otherwise provided in the Charter is 
vested in the Council and shall be exercised by ordinance, subject to the power of veto or 



City Planning Commission of Los Angeles 
September 5, 2023 
Page 11 

approval by the Mayor as set forth in the Charter.”].)  Section 12.32 of the Municipal Code 
provides the process by which the City can approve a proposed land use ordinance.  This 
section provides no role for the Zoning Administrator to approve such an ordinance. 

By substantially expanding the scope of the Oil Ordinance, the ZAI has exceeded 
the authority of the Zoning Administrator and imposed restrictions that are much more 
objectionable to the public welfare than the Oil Ordinance.   

V. The ZAI constitutes a breach of the City’s contracts with E&B. 

E&B are parties to lease agreements with the City of Los Angeles for certain 
drillsites.  For example, Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation is a party to a lease originally 
entered into in 1959 for the Hillcrest Site.  (Exhibit H.)  This lease specifically contemplates 
that the lessee will be allowed to conduct drilling, redrilling, maintenance and servicing 
of wells as part of the lease.  (See id.)  In adopting the ZAI, the City of Los Angeles is in 
material breach of its lease agreements with E&B.   

For all of these reasons, and the reasons E&B previously set forth in its initial 
appeal on January 31, 2023 (Exhibit A), we urge the Commissioners to grant the appeal 
and order the City to rescind the ZAI as it runs contrary to well-established law.  

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Nicki Carlsen 

 



 

- 1 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

I, Louis P. Zylstra, Jr. PE declare and state as follows: 

1. I am Senior Vice President of Los Angeles Basin and Mid-Continent operations at E & 

B Natural Resources Management Corporation, and I manage its operations at oil fields in the City of 

Los Angeles (“City”).  As such, I am familiar with the oil and gas operations of E & B Natural 

Resources Management Corporation and its affiliates Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation, E&B ENR I, 

LLC, and Elysium Natural Resources, LLC (collectively, “E&B”), including such operations in the 

City.  I make this declaration in support of E&B’s September 5, 2023 Initial Submission in Support of 

Appeal of ZA-2022-8897-ZAI-1A – Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation of Well Maintenance.  I 

have personal knowledge of the facts set forth in this declaration, except as otherwise indicated, and 

if called to testify, I could and would competently testify to them. 

2. E&B engages in significant oil and gas production in the City.  E&B collectively 

produces over 8,000 barrels of oil per day for Californians including Angelenos.  Over 250 staff work 

for E&B, many in the Los Angeles area.  

3. E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation currently conducts oil and gas 

operations at several locations within the City.  The San Vicente facility is located in the vicinity of 

San Vicente Boulevard and West Third Street.  The Packard facility is located in the vicinity of Pico 

Boulevard and Genesee Avenue in the City of Los Angeles, CA.  The San Vicente and Packard 

facilities collectively extract from 1,297 acres of mineral interests.  The Murphy facility is located in 

the vicinity of West Adams Boulevard and Western Avenue, and it extracts oil and gas from 960 acres 

of mineral interests.  E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation conducts oil production 

operations within the City in the South Torrance Oil Field in the vicinity of East Pacific Coast Highway 

and Wilmington Boulevard, which extracts from 330 acres of mineral interests.  E & B Natural 

Resources Management Corporation also conducts oil production operations within the City in the 

Wilmington Oil Field in the vicinity of W. Sepulveda Boulevard and S. Main Street and extracting 

from 146 acres of mineral interests. 

4. E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation has vested property interests in 

continued oil production in the San Vicente, Packard, and Murphy facilities and the South Torrance 



 

- 2 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

and Wilmington Oil Fields, which have all been legally permitted by the City.  E & B Natural 

Resources Management Corporation operates these facilities and oil fields within an oil drilling district 

that was enacted by ordinance by the Los Angeles City Council pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal 

Code section 13.01.  

5. Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation currently conducts oil and gas operations at the 

Hillcrest Country Club facility, located in the vicinity of West Pico Boulevard and Avenue of the 

Stars, and at the Rancho Park Golf Club facility, located in the vicinity of West Pico Boulevard and 

Beverly Glen Boulevard.  These two facilities collectively extract from 617 acres of mineral interests.  

6. Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation has vested property interests in continued oil 

production at its Hillcrest Country Club and Rancho Park Golf Club facilities.  Hillcrest Beverly Oil 

Corporation operates these facilities within an oil drilling district that was enacted by ordinance by the 

Los Angeles City Council pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code section 13.01.  

7. E&B also leases mineral rights from mineral interest owners.  E&B ENR I, LLC holds 

mineral interests in fee and leasehold for the San Vicente and Packard facilities.  Elysium Natural 

Resources, LLC holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for the Murphy facility and for some of 

the operations by E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation within the Torrance oilfield.  

Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation also holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for its operations 

at the Hillcrest Country Club and Rancho Park Golf Club facilities.  E & B Natural Resources 

Management Corporation also holds mineral interests in fee and leasehold for its operations at the 

Torrance and Wilmington Oil Fields.   

8. E&B’s operations in the City have approximately 15,000 royalty owners.  E&B 

collectively pays approximately $11 million annually in royalty payments and related payments, such 

as advanced royalty payments or surface rentals to royalty owners.  These royalty payments are 

computed based on the value of production from each mineral lease. 

9. In addition to the drilling and operation of production wells to extract oil, E&B’s 

operations also require the use of injection wells.  In the majority of E&B’s operations, injection wells 

are used as part of a waterflood secondary recovery.  Waterflooding involves the injection of water to 

increase the mobilization of oil within the underlying reservoirs.  Waterflooding is necessary for the 



 

- 3 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

economic recovery of oil from these formations.  In the remaining sites, injection wells are used to re-

inject the wastewater that is produced with the recoverable oil.  Without the re-injection of this 

wastewater, these operations would quickly become uneconomic as there is no other feasible method 

of disposing of this wastewater.  Injection wells can become clogged or less effective with time.  

Routine maintenance such as acidizing is needed to maintain an injection well’s ability to inject fluids.  

10. It is a normal and necessary function of petroleum operations to redrill from established 

drill sites not only to find and extract additional reserves or correct subsidence problems, but to correct 

extraction problems which occur from time to time.  E&B must also frequently conduct maintenance 

of existing wells, for example, to repair or replace the casing of wells or to add perforations into an 

existing well.  Without the ability to conduct redrilling or maintenance activities, E&B’s oil production 

operations would quickly become uneconomic and not viable for continued use.    

11. E&B routinely undertakes maintenance to its existing wells to continue its operations 

in the City.  To the extent that the maintenance operation involves deepening, redrilling, plugging, or 

permanently altering in any manner the casing of a well or its function, E&B would typically file a 

Notice of Intention for a “Rework Permit” from the California Geologic Energy Management Division 

to conduct certain maintenance activities.  For acidizing maintenance, E&B is now required to notify 

the South Coast Air Quality Management District.  These maintenance operations are a necessary 

function to maintain ongoing oil production, and a field would quickly become non-productive if 

maintenance was not allowed to continue.   

12. Hillcrest Beverly Oil Corporation is a lessee to leases with the City of Los Angeles for 

its oil and gas operations at the Rancho Park Golf Course.  These leases specifically contemplate that 

the lessee will be allowed to conduct drilling, redrilling, maintenance, and servicing of wells as part 

of the lease.   

13. E&B has received permits or zoning approvals from the City to conduct oil production 

operations on its properties. These permits establish conditions, as well as a process for additional 

modifications or condition review of these existing permits, which are inconsistent with the ZAI and 

ZA Memo 141.   



 

- 4 - 
DECLARATION OF LOUIS P. ZYLSTRA 

LEGAL02/43312544v1 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

 

14. As a result of the ZAI and ZA Memo 141, the permit conditions allowing for 

subsequent modifications, including redrilling and maintenance activities, are apparently being 

invalidated by the City without any prior notice to E&B or any opportunity for E&B to be heard on 

these new procedures.  E&B has substantially relied on these permit conditions in planning its 

operations at the sites within the City. 

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 

is true and correct.  Executed this _4th__ day of September, 2023, in Fountain Valley, California. 

 

 

 

  
Louis P. Zylstra, Jr. PE



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 1 of 4

Related Code Section:  Refer to the City Planning case determination to identify the Zone Code section for the entitlement 
and the appeal procedure. 

Purpose: This application is for the appeal of Department of City Planning determinations authorized by the Los Angeles 
Municipal Code (LAMC). 

A.   APPELLATE  BODY/CASE  INFORMATION 

1.    APPELLATE  BODY 

! Area Planning Commission ! City Planning Commission ! City Council ! Director of Planning 

! Zoning Administrator

Regarding Case Number:   

Project Address:    

Final Date to Appeal:    

2.   APPELLANT

Appellant Identity: 
(check all that apply)

"  Representative 
"  Applicant 

"  Property Owner 
"  Operator of the Use/Site 

"  Person, other than the Applicant, Owner or Operator claiming to be aggrieved 
_______________________________________________________________________________ 

! Person affected by the determination made by the Department of Building and Safety

"  Representative 
"  Applicant 

"  Owner 
"  Operator 

"  Aggrieved Party 

3.   APPELLANT INFORMATION 

Appellant’s Name:   

Company/Organization:    

Mailing Address:    

City:      State:     Zip:    

Telephone:     E-mail:   

a.   Is the appeal being filed on your behalf or on behalf of another party, organization or company? 

! Self ! Other:    

b.   Is the appeal being filed to support the original applicant’s position? ! Yes ! No 

APPEAL  APPLICATION

Instructions and Checklist

ZA-2022-8997-ZAI & ZA Memo 141

Citywide

02/01/2023

Nicki Carlsen

Alston & Bird LLP on behalf of E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor

Los Angeles California 90071

(213) 576-1128 nicki.carlsen@alston.com

E&B Natural Resources et al.



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 2 of 4

4.   REPRESENTATIVE/AGENT INFORMATION 

Representative/Agent name (if applicable):   

Company:   

Mailing Address:    

City:      State:   .  Zip:    

Telephone:     E-mail:   

5.   JUSTIFICATION/REASON FOR APPEAL

a.   Is the entire decision, or only parts of it being appealed? ! Entire ! Part

b.   Are specific conditions of approval being appealed?    ! Yes ! No 

If Yes, list the condition number(s) here:    

Attach a separate sheet providing your reasons for the appeal.  Your reason must state:  

"   The reason for the appeal "   How you are aggrieved by the decision 

"   Specifically the points at issue "   Why you believe the decision-maker erred or abused their discretion 

6.   APPLICANT’S AFFIDAVIT

I certify that the statements contained in this application are complete and true: 

Appellant Signature:    Date:    

GENERAL APPEAL FILING REQUIREMENTS

B.   ALL CASES REQUIRE THE FOLLOWING ITEMS    -    SEE THE ADDITIONAL INSTRUCTIONS FOR SPECIFIC CASE TYPES  

1. Appeal Documents 

a. Three (3) sets - The following documents are required for each appeal filed (1 original and 2 duplicates) 
Each case being appealed is required to provide three (3) sets of the listed documents. 

! Appeal Application (form CP-7769) 

! Justification/Reason for Appeal 

! Copies of Original Determination Letter 

b. Electronic Copy  

!  Provide an electronic copy of your appeal documents on a flash drive (planning staff will upload materials 
during filing and return the flash drive to you) or a CD (which will remain in the file).  The following items must 
be saved as individual PDFs and labeled accordingly (e.g. “Appeal Form.pdf”, “Justification/Reason 
Statement.pdf”, or “Original Determination Letter.pdf” etc.). No file should exceed 9.8 MB in size.

c. Appeal Fee

!  Original Applicant - A fee equal to 85% of the original application fee, provide a copy of the original application 
receipt(s) to calculate the fee per LAMC Section 19.01B 1. 

!  Aggrieved Party - The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01B 1. 

d. Notice Requirement

!  Mailing List - All appeals require noticing per the applicable LAMC section(s).  Original Applicants must provide 
noticing per the LAMC  

!  Mailing Fee - The appeal notice mailing fee is paid by the project applicant, payment is made to the City          
Planning's mailing contractor (BTC), a copy of the receipt must be submitted as proof of payment. 

Nicki Carlsen

Alston & Bird LLP

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor

Los Angeles California 90071

(213) 576-1128 nicki.carlsen@alston.com

January 31, 2023



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 3 of 4

SPECIFIC CASE TYPES - APPEAL FILING INFORMATION

C. DENSITY BONUS / TRANSIT ORIENTED COMMUNITES (TOC)

1. Density Bonus/TOC 
Appeal procedures for Density Bonus/TOC per LAMC Section 12.22.A 25 (g) f.

NOTE: 
-  Density Bonus/TOC cases, only the on menu or additional incentives items can be appealed. 

-  Appeals of Density Bonus/TOC cases can only be filed by adjacent owners or tenants (must have documentation), 
and always only appealable to the Citywide Planning Commission. 

! Provide documentation to confirm adjacent owner or tenant status, i.e., a lease agreement, rent receipt, utility 
bill, property tax bill, ZIMAS, drivers license, bill statement etc. 

D.   WAIVER OF DEDICATION AND OR IMPROVEMENT
Appeal procedure for Waiver of Dedication or Improvement per LAMC Section 12.37 I. 

NOTE: 
-  Waivers for By-Right Projects, can only be appealed by the owner. 

-  When a Waiver is on appeal and is part of a master land use application request or subdivider’s statement for a 
project, the applicant may appeal pursuant to the procedures that governs the entitlement. 

E. TENTATIVE TRACT/VESTING

1.  Tentative Tract/Vesting  -  Appeal procedure for Tentative Tract / Vesting application per LAMC Section 17.54 A. 

NOTE: Appeals to the City Council from a determination on a Tentative Tract (TT or VTT) by the Area or City  
Planning Commission must be filed within 10 days of the date of the written determination of said Commission. 

! Provide a copy of the written determination letter from Commission. 

F. BUILDING AND SAFETY DETERMINATION

! 1. Appeal of the Department of Building and Safety determination, per LAMC 12.26 K 1, an appellant is considered the 
Original Applicant and must provide noticing and pay mailing fees. 

a. Appeal Fee
!  Original Applicant - The fee charged shall be in accordance with LAMC Section 19.01B 2, as stated in the 

Building and Safety determination letter, plus all surcharges.  (the fee specified in Table 4-A, Section 98.0403.2 of the 
City of Los Angeles Building Code)

b. Notice Requirement
!  Mailing Fee - The applicant must pay mailing fees to City Planning's mailing contractor (BTC) and submit a 

copy of receipt as proof of payment. 

! 2. Appeal of the Director of City Planning determination per LAMC Section 12.26 K 6, an applicant or any other aggrieved 
person may file an appeal, and is appealable to the Area Planning Commission or Citywide Planning Commission as 
noted in the determination. 

a. Appeal Fee
!  Original Applicant - The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B 1 a. 

b. Notice Requirement
!  Mailing List - The appeal notification requirements per LAMC Section 12.26 K 7 apply. 
!  Mailing Fees - The appeal notice mailing fee is made to City Planning's mailing contractor (BTC), a copy of 

receipt must be submitted as proof of payment. 



CP-7769  Appeal Application Form  (1/30/2020) Page 4 of 4

G. NUISANCE ABATEMENT

1. Nuisance Abatement - Appeal procedure for Nuisance Abatement per LAMC Section 12.27.1 C 4 

NOTE: 
-  Nuisance Abatement is only appealable to the City Council. 

a. Appeal Fee

! Aggrieved Party the fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B 1. 

2. Plan Approval/Compliance Review
Appeal procedure for Nuisance Abatement Plan Approval/Compliance Review per LAMC Section 12.27.1 C 4. 

a. Appeal Fee

!  Compliance Review  -  The fee charged shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B. 

!  Modification  -  The fee shall be in accordance with the LAMC Section 19.01 B. 

NOTES 

A Certified Neighborhood Council (CNC) or a person identified as a member of a CNC or as representing the CNC 
may not file an appeal on behalf of the Neighborhood Council; persons affiliated with a CNC may only file as an 
individual on behalf of self. 

Please note that the appellate body must act on your appeal within a time period specified in the Section(s) of the 
Los Angeles Municipal Code (LAMC) pertaining to the type of appeal being filed. The Department of City Planning 
will make its best efforts to have appeals scheduled prior to the appellate body's last day to act in order to provide 
due process to the appellant. If the appellate body is unable to come to a consensus or is unable to hear and consider 
the appeal prior to the last day to act, the appeal is automatically deemed denied, and the original decision will stand. 
The last day to act as defined in the LAMC may only be extended if formally agreed upon by the applicant. 

This Section for City Planning Staff Use Only

Base Fee: Reviewed & Accepted by (DSC Planner): Date: 

Receipt No: Deemed Complete by (Project Planner): Date: 

!  Determination authority notified !  Original receipt and BTC receipt (if original applicant)  



 

333 South Hope Street, 16th Floor 

Los Angeles, CA 90071-1410 

213-576-1000 | Fax: 213-576-1100 

 

Alston & Bird LLP      www.alston.com 

Atlanta | Beijing | Brussels | Charlotte | Dallas | Fort Worth | London | Los Angeles | New York | Raleigh | San Francisco | Silicon Valley | Washington, D.C. 
 

Nicki Carlsen  Direct Dial: +1 213 576 1128 Email: nicki.carlsen@alston.com 
 

 

January 31, 2023 

 

City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
200 North Spring Street, Room 701 
Los Angeles, CA 90012   
planning.oildrilling@lacity.org   
   
 
 

Re: Notice of Appeal of Zoning Administrator’s Interpretation of Well Maintenance 
& Zoning Administrator’s Memorandum 141 

Dear City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning: 

We represent E & B Natural Resources Management Corporation, Hillcrest Beverly Oil 
Corporation, E&B ENR I, LLC, and Elysium Natural Resources, LLC (collectively, “E&B”) regarding 
E&B’s Appeal of the City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning’s (“City Planning”) “Zoning 
Administrator’s Interpretation” (“ZAI”) and “Zoning Administrator’s Memorandum (ZA Memo) 
141” (“ZA Memo 141”), both circulated on January 17, 2023.  On December 2, 2022, the Los 
Angeles City Council (“City Council”) adopted Ordinance No. 187,709 (“Oil Ordinance”) adding 
restrictions, among other things, to existing and future oil and gas operations, including drilling, 
production, and maintenance of oil wells, effective January 18, 2023.  The Oil Ordinance was 
signed by Mayor Garcetti on December 8, 2022, and it became effective on January 18, 2023.  In 
connection with the implementation of Oil Ordinance, City Planning prepared the ZAI and ZA 
Memo 141, both of which are proposed documents supposedly intended to “serve as guidance 
for operators and the public regarding oil drilling regulations in the City.” (City Planning’s 1/17/23 
Email to Stakeholders.)  

E&B currently conducts oil and gas operations at several locations within the City of Los Angeles.  
For example, E&B operates a facility located in the vicinity of San Vicente Boulevard and West 
Third Street (“San Vicente facility”), Pico Boulevard and Genesee Avenue (“Packard facility”) in 
the City.  The San Vicente and Packard facilities collectively extract from 1,297 acres of mineral 
interests.  Additionally, the Murphy facility is located in the vicinity of West Adams Boulevard and 
Western Avenue, and it extracts from 960 acres of mineral interests.  E&B conducts oil production 
operations within the City in the South Torrance oilfield in the vicinity of East Pacific Coast 
Highway and Wilmington Boulevard and extracting from 330 acres of mineral interests.  E&B also 
conducts oil production operations within the City in the Wilmington oilfield in the vicinity of W. 
Sepulveda Boulevard and S. Main Street and extracting from 146 acres of mineral interests.  As 
part of these operations, E&B owns the mineral rights directly in fee or leases the mineral rights 
from royalty owners.   

http://www.alston.com/
mailto:planning.oildrilling@lacity.org


 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 2 

As it stands, E&B’s vested rights and ability to continue operations are jeopardized by the Oil 
Ordinance, and now further, by the proposed applications of the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 as 
presently drafted.  We submit these comments ahead of the February 1, 2023 deadline to appeal 
the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 and to reinforce E&B’s objections to the Oil Ordinance.  Not only are 
the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 legally invalid, the City has not conducted a proper 
environmental analysis that satisfies its obligations under the California Environmental Quality 
Act (“CEQA”).   

E&B appeals the ZAI and ZA Memo 141, requesting that the City take the necessary, additional 
steps to study the environmental impact of these projects, complete the CEQA process, and 
reconsider the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 as they are currently drafted. 

I. The ZAI, in its Current Form, Must Be Rejected  

The Oil Ordinance prohibits oil “well maintenance, drilling, redrilling, and deepening except to 
prevent or respond to a threat to public health, safety, or the environment, as determined by the 
Zoning Administrator.” (LAMC Section 12.23-C.4(a).)  Now by way of the ZAI, the Zoning 
Administrator prescribes its “interpret[ion of] what drill site activities qualify as oil ‘well 
maintenance.’” (ZAI p. 1.)  It defines oil well maintenance “as any scope of work that meets either 
of the following two criteria: 

1. A scope of work that requires a Notice of Intention “Rework Permit” to carry out work 
project on a well from the California Geologic Energy Management Division (CalGEM).[] 

2. A scope of work that requires online notification per the South Coast Air Quality 
Management District’s (SCAQMD) Rule 1148.2 – “Notification and Reporting 
Requirements for Oil and Gas Well and Chemical Suppliers.” (ZAI, p. 1.) 

The ZAI is inappropriately vague and ambiguous. The ZAI provides a definition of oil well 
maintenance (which is integral to application of the Oil Ordinance) that is dependent on the scope 
of SCAQMD Rule 1148.2. (See ZAI, p. 1.)  But the ZAI fails to explain how it interacts with the 
various provisions of Rule 1148.2 or the effect of the Rule’s proposed amendments.  As such, the 
ZAI is improperly vague and ambiguous as drafted, leaving operators, suppliers, and other 
individuals involved in oil and gas extraction operations without proper guidance and 
understanding for how the Oil Ordinance will ultimately be enforced.  (Zubaru v. City of Palmdale 
(2011) 192 Cal. App. 4th 289, 308 [“An ordinance must be clear, precise, definite and certain in 
terms, and an ordinance vague to the extent that its precise meaning cannot be ascertained is 
invalid . . .”]; accord City of Imperial Beach v. Escott (1981) 115 Cal. App. 134, 139.)  

Importantly, SCAQMD’s proposed amendments to Rule 1148.2 greatly expands the scope of 
online notification and reporting requirements for oil and gas wells and chemical suppliers. And 
taken together with the ZAI, the Oil Ordinance and ZAI’s proposed application is not clear.  For 
instance, the Proposed amendments to Rule 1148.2 will expand the online notification 
requirement to now include any chemical treatment above 20 gallons per day, excluding water.  
Further, the Proposed amendments to Rule 1148.2 expand the online notification requirement to 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 3 

encompass workover rigs if their engines do not meet Tier 4 emissions standards.  But it is unclear 
how this is intended to apply. 

Moreover, the proposed amendments to Rule 1148.2 include a notification requirement for 
acidizing, proposed to become effective July 1, 2023.  It is vague and ambiguous when the ZAI 
intends for this component to go into effect; however, at a minimum, it should not be applicable 
under the ZAI until at least July 1, 2023 when the proposed amendment to Rule 1148.2 becomes 
effective. As such, the ZAI is inappropriately vague and ambiguous as currently drafted. 

II. ZA Memo 141 Cannot Be Adopted as Drafted 

ZA Memo 141 is set out to “establish a comprehensive set of procedures and policies for the 
acceptance and processing of applications for projects, at existing non-conforming sites, where 
drilling, redrilling, public health, safety, or the environment….” (ZA Memo 141, p. 1.)  ZA Memo 
141 also “identifies the steps that operators are required to complete prior to commencing 
proposed scopes of work and outlines the discretionary review procedures and policies for 
operators.”  (Id., at p. 2.)  

ZA Memo 141 provides that the Zoning Administrator has discretionary review “[f]or projects that 
propose to maintain, drill, re-drill, or deepen an existing well for oil, gas or other hydrocarbon 
substances in order to prevent or respond to a threat to public health, safety, or the 
environment.”  (Id., at p. 4.)  Additionally, it details that projects that demonstrate “an urgent 
need to commence [] due to an imminent emergency threat to public health, safety, or the 
environment[,]” will be subject to the administrative review process “by a Zoning Administrator 
or assigned/delegated City Planning staff.” (ZA Memo 141, p. 4.) 

Under the discretionary review process set forth in ZA Memo 141, “an operator shall submit all 
the required application materials for a Health and Safety Exception request,” which will be 
subject to discretionary review by the Zoning Administrator pursuant to LAMC section 12.23-C.4. 
(Id., at 5.)  Applicants must submit form CP-4077 (a DCP Application for Health and Safety 
Exception Projects for Oil and Gas Drill Sites). (Id., at 6.)  Further, the application must include all 
required information outlined in Form CP-4078. (Id.)  The Zoning Administrator is required to set 
a public hearing in which evidence and testimony may be received.  Notice of the hearing is given 
24 days in advance of the public hearing, but ZA Memo 141 does not include a requirement for 
the hearing to be set within a certain amount of time. (See id., at p. 7.)  Once a decision is made, 
the Zoning Administrator will issue a written determination, providing a 15-day appeal period. 
(Id., at p. 8.) 

ZA Memo 141 includes vague, ill-defined requirements in which the Zoning Administrator can 
grant an exception under LAMC section 12.23-C.4(a) and allow oil well maintenance.  Notably, ZA 
Memo 141 does not provide or prescribe any timeframe for the application process and 
determination, which may practically cause oil wells to be deemed abandoned before the Zoning 
Administrator can grant a Health and Safety Exception.  Further, its application process is unclear 
given its vague and ambiguous framework. 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 4 

III. The ZAI and ZA Memo 141 Fails to Comply with CEQA and Constitutes Improper 
Piecemealing  

CEQA applies whenever a government agency approves a discretionary project, defined as “an 
activity which may cause either a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably 
foreseeable indirect physical change in the environment.” (Pub. Res. Code § 21065.)  CEQA defines 
“project” as the “whole of an action” and prohibits segmentation of project activities in an effort 
to minimize the evaluation of environmental effects.  “Accordingly, CEQA forbids piecemeal 
review of the significant environmental impacts of a project.” (Banning Ranch Conservancy v. City 
of Newport Beach (2012) 211 Cal. App. 4th 1209, 1222 (internal citations omitted).)  “Agencies 
cannot allow environmental considerations to become submerged by chopping a large project 
into many little ones.”  (Id.) 

The City concluded that the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 are not projects under CEQA.  And despite 
explicitly refusing to consider the impact of the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 in the MND, the City also 
stated that the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 were evaluated in the Initial Study prepared by the City to 
support the Mitigated Negative Declaration prepared for the Oil Ordinance.   

In fact, neither the Oil Ordinance nor the MND adopted in conjunction provided any definition for 
the “maintenance” prohibited by the Oil Ordinance.  The Oil Ordinance and the MND also did not 
take into account the complicated discretionary process that the City intended to impose upon 
operators who seek to undertake maintenance activities for their existing operations.  There was 
no contemplation of the content included in the ZAI or ZA Memo 141, even though both 
documents were issued only weeks after the final vote on the Oil Ordinance.  The City is required 
to analyze the “whole of an action,” which necessarily includes the manner in which the Oil 
Ordinance will be implemented.  These foreseeable Ordinance amendments and regulatory 
guidance will change the scope and nature of the Oil Ordinance and its environmental effects.  By 
failing to analyze these changes in the MND, the MND understates the actual impact from the 
Project, fails to analyze the Project as a whole, and the City cannot rely upon the MND as a basis 
to avoid the review of these impacts under CEQA.  

Further, the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 will undoubtedly impact the availability of mineral resources 
in the City and the State since the stated goal of the City is to stop oil production within the City 
limits.  “Mineral resources” are an environmental factor pursuant to CEQA, and the “loss of 
availability of a known mineral resource that would be a value to the region and the residents of 
the state” or the “loss of availability of a locally important mineral resource recovery site” 
constitutes an adverse environmental impact. CEQA Guidelines, Appendix G, § XII(a), (b); Public 
Resources Code § 21060.5.  Further CEQA review is needed to analyze the potentially significant 
environmental effects (both direct and cumulative) to air quality, energy, aesthetics, traffic, odor, 
and noise as a result of the accelerated rate of abandonment activities as a result of these 
documents, and the increased importation of oil to replace the decreased local production.  Thus, 
even standing alone, the adoption of these documents have the potential to cause significant 
environmental effects that require CEQA review.   



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 5 

IV. The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 are Further Unsupported by Law, Infringe 
Upon E&B’s Vested Rights, and Interfere with Continuing Operations 

a. The Obstacles and Delays Created by the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 Will Cause the 
Unintended Abandonment of Existing Wells 

The City’s Oil Ordinance prohibits well maintenance “except to prevent or respond to a threat to 
public health, safety, or the environment, as determined by the Zoning Administrator.” (LAMC 
Section 12.23-C.4(a).)  The ZAI’s interpretation of well maintenance allows maintenance under 
certain circumstances, which remain vague and ambiguous as currently drafted, but if any oil and 
gas operator sought to seek an approval from the Zoning Administrator or the City to conduct 
needed maintenance based on health and safety purposes, the approval process could extend 
beyond a year, resulting in “deemed terminated” finding for “discontinued” operations.  
Additionally, ZA Memo 141 now burdens formerly by-right or permitted operations to justify and 
demonstrate the need for maintenance to keep existing operations under the Oil Ordinance’s 
health and safety exception. Thus, as a result of the ZAI’s restrictive interpretations of well 
maintenance, along with the new, lengthy procedures for existing operations to continue 
maintenance as prescribed by ZA Memo 141, the City and City Planning are essentially terminating 
these uses well before any 20-year amortization period. 

b. The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 Violate Due Process under the U.S. 
and California Constitutions 

Under the United States Constitution and the California Constitution, the City may not deprive 
Plaintiffs of property rights without due process of law.  (Cal. Const., Art. 1, § 7(a); U.S. Const. 
amend V, XIV; College Area Renters & Landlord Ass’n v. City of San Diego (1996) 43 Cal.App.4th 
677, 686.)  Arbitrary or irrational governmental action that infringes on a property owner’s rights 
violates substantive constitutional due process.  (Lingle v. Chevron U.S.A. Inc. (2005) 544 U.S. 528, 
541; Arnel Development Co. v. City of Costa Mesa (1981) 126 Cal.App.3d 330, 337.)  In the City’s 
rush to adopt the Oil Ordinance, provide interpretation of the well maintenance, and implement 
unlawful procedures through the ZAI and ZA Memo 141, the City has also failed to demonstrate 
that oil and gas production in the City results in any environmental, health, or safety hazards.  
Without any viable justification for its actions, the City lacks any legitimate interest in terminating 
oil and gas operations throughout the City.   

c. The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 Would Constitute a Taking of Vested 
Rights in Violation of the U.S. and California Constitutions 

The U.S. and California Constitutions provide that private property shall not be taken without just 
compensation. (U.S. Const. amend. V; Cal. Const., Art. 1, § 19.)  These constitutional protections 
apply to regulatory takings.  (Lucas v. S.C. Coastal Council (1992) 505 U.S. 1003, 1014.)  “The right 
to remove oil and gas from the ground is a property right.” (Maples v. Kern Cty. Assessment 
Appeals Bd. (2002) 103 Cal.App.4th 172, 186.)   

E&B has vested property rights by its fee and leasehold ownership in mineral rights and its right 
to conduct its operations in the City, but the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 ignore these 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 6 

rights, imposing oil well maintenance requirements and procedures that significantly curtail 
maintenance efforts, which will lead to the abandonment of wells long before the 20-year period 
ends. For instance, ZA Memo 141 improperly burdens operators to show maintenance is needed 
to prevent a threat to public health or safety, even if needed to maintain existing operations. The 
process prescribed by ZA Memo 141 fails to provide a timeframe, putting oil wells at risk of 
abandonment before the determination process can even conclude. But when dealing with vested 
property rights, the City cannot terminate E&B’s existing operations without either the payment 
of just compensation or a demonstration that the existing, permitted operations and the 
associated maintenance are presently constituting a nuisance (which it has not).  As such, the ZAI 
and ZA Memo 141, if implemented, serve to impose an unconstitutional taking of E&B’s property 
as an owner of mineral rights and as an oil and gas operator, along with the property of the 
landowners and the mineral rights holders in connection to E&B’s leasehold interests. 

d. The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 Are Preempted by State Law 

The California Constitution states: “A county or city may make and enforce within its limits all 
local, police, sanitary, and other ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws.” 
(Cal. Const., Art. XI, Sec. 7.)  Local laws conflict with general law if the local laws duplicate, 
contradict, or enter an area fully occupied by general law.  (Morehart v. County of Santa Barbara 
(1994) 7 Cal.4th 725.)  The court in Morehart states: 

The general principles governing state statutory preemption of local land use 
regulation are well settled. "The Legislature has specified certain minimum 
standards for local zoning regulations (Gov. Code, § 65850 et seq.)" even though 
it also "has carefully expressed its intent to retain the maximum degree of local 
control (see, e.g., id., § 65800, 65802)." (IT Corp. v. Solano County Bd. of 
Supervisors (1991) 1 Cal.4th 81, 89 [2 Cal.Rptr.2d 513, 820 P.2d 1023].)  "A county 
or city may make and enforce within its limits all local, police, sanitary, and other 
ordinances and regulations not in conflict with general laws." (Cal. Const., art. XI, 
§ 7, italics added.) "'Local legislation in conflict with general law is void. Conflicts 
exist if the ordinance duplicates [citations], contradicts [citation], or enters an 
area fully occupied by general law, either expressly or by legislative implication 
[citations].'" (People ex rel. Deukmejian v. County of Mendocino (1986) 36 Cal.3d 
476, 484 [204 Cal.Rptr. 897, 683 P.2d 1150], quoting Lancaster v. Municipal 
Court (1972) 6 Cal.3d 805, 807-808 [100 Cal.Rptr. 609, 494 P.2d 681]; 
accord, Sherwin-Williams Co. v. City of Los Angeles (1993) 4 Cal.4th 893, 897 [16 
Cal.Rptr.2d 215, 844 P.2d 534].) 

(Morehart, 7 Cal.4th at 747; see also California Attorney General’s opinion recognizing preemptive 
effect of State oil and gas laws, 59 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 461,462 (1976).) 

The City’s Oil Ordinance, the ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 conflict with California law regarding the 
production of oil and gas, including drilling, operations, abandonment, and maintenance.  The 
authority to regulate all aspects of oil and gas production, including downhole activities, rests with 
CalGEM. (Cal. Pub. Res. Code §3106(b).)  The State’s oil and gas laws read: “To best meet oil and 

https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a
https://advance.lexis.com/search/?pdmfid=1000516&crid=fc0be46c-3fc0-4135-995b-ed3000297d46&pdsearchterms=Morehart+v.+County+of+Santa+Barbara%2c+7+Cal.+4th+725&pdstartin=hlct%3a1%3a1&pdtypeofsearch=searchboxclick&pdsearchtype=SearchBox&pdqttype=and&pdpsf=&ecomp=qtbd9kk&earg=pdpsf&prid=4bcac832-e55d-46ef-b200-e52c95d7f59a&srid=d2602620-baf5-4977-ac2d-a4b8f694de3a


 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 7 

gas needs in this state, the supervisor shall administer this division so as to encourage the wise 
development of oil and gas resources.” (Cal. Pub. Res. Code § 3106(d).)   

The State laws and associated regulations reflect an intent to occupy the entire area:  Cal. Pub. 
Res. Code §§ 3000-3112 (General Provisions and Administration); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3130-
3132 (Underground Injection Control), Pub. Res. Code §§ 3150-3161 (Well Stimulation); Cal. Publ. 
Res. Code §§ 3180-3187 (Natural Gas Storage Wells), Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3200-3238 
(Regulation of Operations); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3240-3241 (Abandoned Wells); Cal. Pub. Res. 
Code §§ 3250-3258 (Hazardous Wells); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3260-3263 (Acute Orphan Wells); 
Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3270-3270.6 (Regulation of Production Facilities); Cal. Pub. Res. Code 
§§3275-3277 (Interstate Cooperation in Oil and Gas Conservation); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3300-
3314 (Unreasonable Waste of Gas); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3315-3347 (Subsidence); Cal. Publ. Res. 
Code §§ 3350-3359 (Appeals and Review); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3400-3433 (Assessment and 
Collection of Charges); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3450-3451 (Recommendation of Maximum Efficient 
Rates of Production); Cal. Pub. Res. Code §§ 3780-3787 (Oil Sumps).  The regulations include more 
detailed requirements for onshore wells (14 Cal. Code Reg. §§1712-1724.10), environmental 
protections for production facilities, tanks, pipelines (14 Cal. Code Reg. §§ 1750-1779.1), and 
expressly address well stimulation and seismic activity (14 Cal. Code Reg. §§ 1780-1789). 

The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 effectively phase out oil and gas production in the City, 
which is further accomplished by the curtailment of oil well maintenance through the new 
requirements and procedures under the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 – which is an activity that a 
“statute or statutory scheme seeks to promote,” they impermissibly “frustrate[] the statute’s 
purpose” and are therefore preempted.  (Great W. Shows, Inc. v. Cnty. of L.A. (2002) 27 Cal.4th 
853, 867–870.)  Indeed, California law vests complete authority in CalGEM to “supervise the 
drilling, operation, maintenance, and abandonment of wells so as to permit owners or operators 
of wells to utilize all methods and practices known to the oil industry for the purpose of 
increasing the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons and which, in the opinion of the 
supervisor, are suitable for this purpose in each proposed case.”  (Pub. Res. Code §3106, subd. 
(b).)  Rather than “increas[e] the ultimate recovery of underground hydrocarbons,” the 
requirements will have the opposite effect, and therefore frustrate the purpose of Public 
Resources Code section 3106.  And by making continued oil operations prohibitively expensive in 
Los Angeles City with increased parameters to apply for and conduct oil well maintenance, the 
City will only make it difficult or impossible for operators to continue the aggressive well 
abandonment schedule that has been effectively encouraged by CalGEM’s regulations. 

The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141’s proposed requirements are preempted because they 
duplicate and enter an area that is fully occupied by state law, and they frustrate a statutory 
purpose of increasing the ultimate recovery of hydrocarbons.  Local legislation conflicts with state 
law where it “duplicates, contradicts, or enters an area fully occupied by general law, either 
expressly or by legislative implication.” (Sherwin-Williams Co. v. City of L.A. (1993) 4 Cal.4th 893, 
898.)  Local legislation conflicts with state law where it “duplicates, contradicts, or enters an area 
fully occupied by general law, either expressly or by legislative implication.” (Id. at 897.)  Local 
legislation is “duplicative” when it is coextensive of state law.  (Id.)  In addition, legislation enters 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 8 

an area that is “fully occupied” by state law when the legislature expressly or impliedly manifested 
an intent to occupy the area.  (Id.)   

Here, state law already regulates areas of law that the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 
attempt to regulate.  Public Resources Code section 3206.1 already mandates CalGEM to review, 
evaluate, and update its regulations pertaining to idle wells.  These regulations implement new 
testing requirements for idle wells and provide specific parameters for testing. (Cal. Code Regs., 
tit. 14 §§ 1772.1, 1772.1.4.)  The regulations provide a six-year (6) compliance period for testing 
wells idle as of April 1, 2019 and a Testing Waiver Plan for those wells that an operator commits 
to plugging and abandoning within eight years.  (Id., § 1772.2.)  Operators are also required to 
submit an idle well inventory and evaluation for each of their idle wells. (Id., § 1772.)  The 
regulations also provide requirements for monitoring and mitigating inaccessible idle wells, a 
regulatory definition for partially plugging idle wells, and requirements for operators to submit a 
15-Year Engineering Analysis for each idle well idle for 15 years or more. (Id., §§ 1722.1.2, 1772.4.)  
These comprehensive requirements evidence a clear intent by the state to uniformly regulate the 
restoration of oil and gas sites, including the plugging and abandonment concerns addressed by 
the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141.  The City’s ongoing attempt to regulate these activities, 
now with new proposed procedures and requirements for oil well maintenance during the 
amortization period, enters an area fully occupied by state law and is therefore preempted. 
(Sherwin-Williams, supra, 4 Cal.4th at 989.)   

In addition, and as the ZAI points out, SCAQMD has extensive rules regarding the air quality 
concerns that the City purportedly seeks to address by its new requirements. (See, e.g., SCAQMD 
Rules 1148.1 and 1148.2.)  “The Legislature has designated regional air pollution districts as the 
primary enforcers of air quality regulations.” (So. Cal. Gas Co. v. So. Coast Air Quality Mgmt. Dist. 
(2012) 200 Cal.App.4th 251, 269.)  And in fact, these rules are actively implemented and enforced 
by the SCAQMD.  By restricting maintenance activities by specifically incorporating the type of 
activities regulated by CalGEM and the SCAQMD, the ZAI seeks to prohibit activities that are 
comprehensively regulated by the State.  Similarly, by imposing a convoluted approval process 
that will result in the effective abandonment of existing oil and gas operations, ZA Memo 141 
serves to frustrate state law.  “If the preemption doctrine means anything, it means that a local 
entity may not pass an ordinance, the effect of which is to completely frustrate a broad, 
evolutional statutory regime enacted by the Legislature.”  (Fiscal v. City and County of San 
Francisco (2008) 158 Cal.App.4th 895, 914–915.)   

The City lacks the statutory authority or justification to impose unnecessary requirements that 
are intended to address issues that the Legislature has already delegated to other agencies.  

e. The ZAI and ZA Memo 141 are Inconsistent with the General Plan 

The City, in its adoption and enactment of the Oil Ordinance, and now through its proposal of the 
the ZAI and ZA Memo 141, failed to demonstrate how the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, or ZA Memo 141 
are compatible and consistent with the General Plan. (See Gov. Code § 65860.)  The City’s 
determination that the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 are consistent with the General Plan 
is wholly lacking in evidentiary support.  It is not sufficient merely to state in a conclusory fashion 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 9 

that they are consistent with the General Plan if unsupported by the evidence.  Moreover, the 
City has acted arbitrarily and capriciously throughout the entire process to adopt these provisions 
and abused its discretion in doing so. 

The General Plan’s Land Use Element states:  

The General Plan encourages the protection of major facilities, such as landfills, 
solid waste disposal sites, energy facilities, natural gas storage facilities, oil and 
gas production and processing facilities, military installations, and airports from 
the encroachment of incompatible uses.  

(General Plan Land Use Element, Pg. 74.) The General Plan also includes Mineral Resources Zones 
(Figure 9.6) that depicts oil and gas resources.  Land Use Policy 7.5 states:   

Ensure land use compatibility in areas adjacent to mineral resources where 
mineral extraction and production, as well as activities related to the drilling for 
and production of oil and gas, may occur. 

None of these General Plan provisions, though directly related to oil and gas uses, are sufficiently 
addressed by the City in its analysis of the ZAI or ZA Memo 141.   

The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 must be consistent with the General Plan, such that 
“[t]he various land uses authorized by the ordinance are compatible with the objectives, policies, 
general land uses, and programs specified in such a plan.” (Gov. Code, § 65860 (a)(ii).)  The 
“constitution for all future developments” is the general plan. (Goleta Valley v. Board of 
Supervisors (1990) 52 Cal.3d 553, 570.)  The failure of the City to sufficiently evaluate the Oil 
Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141’s consistency with the General Plan is a fatal flaw, separate and 
apart from all other infirmities. 
 
In addition, the absence of any meaningful General Plan analysis further demonstrates that the 
City failed to prepare a proper CEQA analysis.  In addition to the CEQA issues raised above 
regarding the loss of mineral resources, land use and planning is one of the mandated topics in 
CEQA’s Appendix G, the Environmental Checklist Form, and the checklist asks: “Would the project 
[c]ause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any land use plan, policy, or 
regulation adopted for the purposes of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?”  The 
failure to answer this question must be added to the lengthy list of CEQA violations.   

f. The Oil Ordinance, ZAI and ZA Memo 141 are Inapplicable Because Amortization 
Does Not Apply to the Extraction of Mineral Resources 

City Planning fails to evaluate the legal propriety of establishing an amortization period and 
further restricting well maintenance provisions for the extraction of mineral resources and ignores 
the legal doctrine that would invalidate this proposed ordinance – the diminishing asset doctrine. 
(See Hansen Bros. Enters. v. Board of Supervisors (1996) 12 Cal.4th 533.)  The California Supreme 
Court in Hansen recognized the “diminishing asset” doctrine and defined the scope of vested 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 10 

rights for mining, quarrying and other extractive uses, recognizing the unique qualities of 
extractive uses and holding that it includes an expansion of those uses.  

As explained in the context of a quarry, the court in Hansen stated:   

The very nature and use of an extractive business contemplates the 
continuance of such use of the entire parcel of land as a whole, without 
limitation or restriction to the immediate area excavated at the time the 
ordinance was passed. A mineral extractive operation is susceptible of 
use and has value only in the place where the resources are found, and 
once the minerals are extracted it cannot again be used for that 
purpose. “Quarry property is generally a one-use property. The rock must 
be quarried at the site where it exists, or not at all. An absolute 
prohibition, therefore, practically amounts to a taking of the property 
since it denies the owner the right to engage in the only business for 
which the land is fitted.” 

(Hansen, 12 Cal.4th at 553-54 (and cases cited therein).) 

Similarly, E&B’s vested oil and gas rights are uniquely situated in the City, and the Oil Ordinance, 
ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 limit E&B’s ability to properly maintain its oil wells and effectively eliminate 
the extraction of those resources in the City, without the ability to extract them elsewhere. (See 
Los Angeles v. Gage (1954) 127 Cal.App.2d 442.)  The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 in 
their current construction will effectively work to deprive E&B of the right to engage in the only 
business for which its subsurface mineral rights are fitted.  Under the diminishing asset doctrine, 
E&B is entitled to produce oil and gas resources under its vested rights until the resource is 
exhausted or otherwise uneconomical to produce -- the continued production of oil and gas 
resources is the expanded use and is protected under Hansen. 

g. The Oil Ordinance and the Maintenance Requirements and Procedures 
Determined by the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 Is Not a Legitimate Exercise of the 
Police Power 

The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 are each, and taken together, arbitrary, capricious, 
entirely lacking in evidentiary support, and contrary to established public policy supporting the 
extraction of oil and gas in the City.  While the City is afforded latitude in adopting land use 
regulations, the City’s police power is not unlimited.  Land use regulations, such as the ZAI or ZA 
Memo 141, must be “reasonable in object and not arbitrary in operation [in order to] constitute 
a valid exercise of that power” and reasonably related to the public welfare, which the City fails 
to demonstrate. (La Mesa v. Tweed & Gambrell Planning Mill (1956) 146 Cal. App. 2d 762, 768; 
Associated Home Builders, Inc. v. City of Livermore (1976) 18 Cal.3d 582.)  

For instance, the City published an Oil and Gas Health Report dated July 25, 2019, which confirms 
that 1.6 billion barrels of recoverable oil and gas reserves remain beneath the City, alone “rivaling 
the reserves of the Middle Eastern countries, like Saudi Arabia, Iraq, and Kuwait 14,000 miles 
away.”  The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 significantly curtail efforts to continue oil and 



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 11 

gas operations, significantly adding new requirements and procedures to get approval for oil well 
maintenance.  In effect, this will reduce the ability to continue with oil and gas operations.  But 
importantly, these new requirements and procedures placed on oil and gas operations will not 
eliminate the City’s ongoing demand for oil and gas products.  To meet demand, every barrel of 
oil per day that is not produced within the City must necessarily be produced elsewhere, requiring 
further expenses and potential negative environmental impacts by instead requiring the 
importation of oil.  Additionally, reliance on foreign oil from Middle Eastern countries, and in the 
midst of the ongoing crisis in Ukraine, may create national security concerns.  And indeed, over 
the past several years, California sources of petroleum have been replaced by Alaskan and foreign 
sources. 

Moreover, implementation of the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 will work to reduce oil well maintenance, 
ultimately resulting in the loss of good-paying industry jobs, such as those for which E&B supplies 
to the City’s residents through its oil and gas operations.  But fatally, the City fails to properly 
forecast the probable effect of the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141, fails to identify the 
competing interests involved, and fails to justify why the ordinance reflects a reasonable 
accommodation of competing interests.   

h. The Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 Interfere With E&B’s Contractual 
Relations Within the City 

Both the U.S. and California Constitutions prohibit the enactment of laws effecting a “substantial 
impairment” of contracts, which applies to public contracts as well as contracts between private 
parties. (Alameda County Sheriff’s Assn. v. Alameda County Employees’ Retirement Assn. (2020) 9 
Cal.5th 1032, 1074.)  E&B has contracts with various private parties, which impose obligations on 
E&B that likely will continue beyond the date the Oil Ordinance’s amortization period expires.  
The Oil Ordinance will impair these contracts by forcing E&B to terminate its operations on or well 
before the amortization deadline, which will undermine E&B’s reasonable expectations under the 
contracts.  Moreover, the ZAI and ZA Memo 141 seek to impose unreasonable and vague 
maintenance requirements and procedures that will effectively restrain or eliminate the ability to 
maintain oil wells and extract essential mineral resources, and thus impair these contracts, far 
before the amortization period ends. 

i. The City’s Liability for Damages Under the Civil Rights Act 

The federal Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1983 (“Section 1983”), provides a cause of action for 
damages based on claims arising from violations of federal rights. (Sveen v. Melin (2018) 138 U.S. 
1815, 1822.)  As discussed at length herein, the proposed Ordinance will significantly impair E&B’s 
constitutional rights, including its right to just compensation and due process rights.  Accordingly, 
if the City implements the Zoning Administrator’s interpretation of well maintenance, as 
prescribed by the ZAI, or the new requirements and procedures listed by ZA Memo 141, the City 
and City Planning will place themselves at significant risk of liability under Section 1983, including 
for payment of damages suffered as a result of unreasonably phasing out oil well maintenance, 
and consequently, oil and gas production in the City.  



 
City of Los Angeles Department of City Planning 
January 31, 2023 
Page 12 

j. The Requirements Imposed by the Oil Ordinance, ZAI, and ZA Memo 141 
Constitute a Breach of Contracts Between Oil and Gas Operators in the City  

E&B has several leases with the City for its oil and gas operations, and the Oil Ordinance, definition 
of oil well maintenance under ZAI, and the new requirements and procedures to apply for oil well 
maintenance under ZA Memo 141 serve to effect a breach of those leases. 

For all of these reasons, we urge the City to reconsider the adoption of the ZAI or ZA Memo 141 
unless and until it cures the numerous legal defects discussed herein.  

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Nicki Carlsen 

NC:dtc 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT B 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  





 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT C 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  













 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  









 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  























 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  















































 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT G 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 

  



















 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT H 
IN SUPPORT OF E&B’S SEPTEMBER 5, 2023 SUBMISSION 

FOR APPEAL OF ZA-2022-8997-ZAI 



















































































































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT F 



DANIEL GREEN 
ACTING CHIEF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

- - 
ASSOCIATE ZONING ADMINISTRATORS 

GARY BOOHER 

PATRICIA BROWN 

R. NICOLAS BROWN 

ANlK CHARRON 

EMILY 1. GABEL-LUDDY 

LOURDES GREEN 
LlNN WYATT 

March 13, 2006 

CITY OF LOS  ANGEL,^ 
CALIFORNIA 

ANTONIO R. VILLARAICOSA 
MAYOR 

C. Greg Wagner (A) 
Plains, Exploration & Production Co. 
5640 South Fairfax Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90056 

The Roman Catholic Archbishop of 
Los Angeles (0)  

3424 Wilshire Boulevard 
Los Angeles, CA 9001 0 

Edgar Salazar (R) 
5640 South Fairfax Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90056 

DEPARTMENT OF 
CITY PLANNING 

5. GAIL GOLDBERG, AlCP 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE OF 
ZONING ADMINISTRATION 
200 N. SPRING STREET, 7"' FLOOR 

LOS ANCELFS, CA 90012 

(213) 978~1318  
FAX: (213) 978-1 334 

www,laciy.orgiPLN 

CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) 
APPROVAL OF PLANS - DETERMIIVATION 

OF METHODS AND CONDI-TIONS 
2126 West Adams Boulevard 
West Adams-Baldwin Hills- 

Leimert Planning Area 
Zone : [Q]R4-1-0 
D.M. : 123B193 
C.D. : 10 
CEQA : ENV 2005-6191-CE 
Fish and Game : Exempt 
Legal Description : Lot A, Tract 9454 

Department of Building and Safety 

Pursuant to Section 13.01 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code, I hereby APPROVE: 

methods and conditions controlling drilling and production operations forthe re-drilling 
of three Class "A" oil wells, including the conversion of two Class "B" wells into class 
" A  wells, identified as M-2RD1, M-12RD1 and M-14RD2 of the Murphy drill site 
within Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36, U-37 and U-82 respectively, 

upon the following additional terms and conditions: 

1. The existing and proposed well corridors shall be in substantial conformance with plot 
plans submitted and attached to the file identified as "Exhibit No. A-I dated July 28, 
2005. 

2. All terms and conditions specified under extant ZA Case No. 15227, dated April 5, 
1961, shall be strictly complied with, except as modifiedlclarified as follows: 

3. All the conditions set forth in Section 13.01-E, 2 as well as Condition Nos. 3,4, 5, 8, 
9, 17, 18, 19, 22,23, 33,37,40, 50, 54, 58, and 59 of Subsection F of Section 13.01 
of the Municipal Code are included in and by reference made a part of this approval 
and shall be complied with to the same extent as if herein restated in detail. 

AN EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY - AFFIRMATIVE ACTION EMPLOYER 43 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 2 

4. Within six months of the date of effectiveness of this srant, landscaping on the site 
shall be improved as follows: 

a. With respect to that portion of the drillsite south of the cement block wall and 
facing 27th Avenue, the applicant shall: (1) remove the invasive/noxious 
plants; (2) plant 3 to 4 trees (of 24-inch box size) as infill trees along the south 
facing facility wall; (3) plant Ficus or climbing ivy, or similar plant-life (grown 
to 5 gallon size containers) along the South facing facility wall; (4) spread 
wildflower/grass mix in the open areas of south parcel (approx. 314 ac.); (5) 
install drip irrigation systems on the new plantings along south facing facility 
wall; (6) provide for temporary watering of the grasses and put sprinklers on 
timers to insure proper maintenance of the grassy area; (7) install new or 
irr~proved cyclone fencing along 27th Avenue; (8) improve the appearance of 
the East fence by painting it; (9) install meandering dry creek bed hardscape 
on the South parcel, utilizing recycled broken concrete foundations from PXP 
facilities (final placement, configuration and length dependent on pipeline 
easement and other site facility considerations); (1 0) work with 10th Council 
District office and Archdiocese to allow future public access. 

b. With respect to that portion of the drillsite East of the cement block wall and 
fronting on Adams Boulevard, the applicant shall: (1) install newlimproved 
cyclone fencing aloug Adams, including raisiug the East facing step wall which 
is only 2-3 feet high; (2) upon receipt of the adjacent property owners' 
approval, install 2-foot high wrought iron fencing (or equivalent) on top of 
existing block wall (approximately 300 feet); (3) remove graffiti on East wall; 
(4) improve wall on West side of the parcel by painting and installing new 
cyclone inserts; (5) level and place gravel surface down approximately half the 
depth of the lot and place barriers to protect the remaining portion of the lot; 
obtain perrr~its for use as a temporary parking lot; (6) install parking lot lighting; 
(7) plant ficus/clinibing ivy, or similar along East and West walls to enhance 
it's appearance (using 5 gallon size container plantings); (8) install drip 
irrigation on new plantings; (9) install sprinkler timers. 

5. That driveway access for ingress and egress to the drilling site shall be provided by 

. .  . throuah the existins drivewavs frontina on* Adams . . 
Boulevard) 

Furthermore, that the existing a parking area on 
the enclosed drilling site area for use by vehicles employed in drilling and maintaining 
of oil wells on the property and for parking of automobiles of employees engaged in 
,the drilling and production activities shall be ausmented bv additional parkinq on the 
area on the East of the drillsite, outside of the enclosed area, which area shall be 
leveled and covered with a gravel surface to approximatelv one-half the depth of the 
lot for use as additional parkinq for emplovees and overflow parkins for The Athletic 
Club. Parkins on the East side of the drillsite, outside of the enclosed area shall not 
be used for heavv truckinq operations or staqinq or storaqe of any materials.* 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 3 

such driveways and 
parking areas shall be regularly washed down, swept or otherwise kept free of 
accumulated cement, dust, or other materials which would produce dust in the use 
of said facilities. 

6. As further amplification of Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01 -F of the Municipal Code, 
except for actual drilling and production operations, which may be conducted 24 
hours a day, seven days a week, no work shall be conducted on the property 
between the liours of 7 p.m. of one day and 7 a.m. of the following day or on 
Sundays. While actual drilling operations are being conducted between the hours of 
7 p.m. of and 7 a.m., the applicant shall operate its facility in "Quiet Mode". "Quiet 
Mode" shall mean that where possible, operation components shall be covered with 
acoustical shieldslmaterial, that all audible backup alarms shall be disabled and 
replaced with a spotter for safety purposes; operation of the cellar pump shall cease; 
the applicant's employees and contractors shall be prohibited from yelling, and the 
Derrick Man and Driller shall communicate by walkie-talkie only when the Derrick 
Man is on the derrick; no hor~is shall be used to signal for time for connection or to 
summon crew (except that a horn may be used for emergency purposes only. The 
applicant shall conduct on-site meetings to inform all personnel of quiet mode 
operations. 

In case of an emergency, all restrictions on the hours of operations shall be 
suspended for as long as is necessary to resolve the emergent situation, and for no 
longer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period necessary to set up and move the 
drilling rig off the premises, and to conduct drilling or re-drilling operations as herein 
authorized, heavy truck deliveries shall be permitted from 7 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., seven 
days a week. Deliveries shall be made by approaching the facility off of Adams 
Boulevard exclusively. Delivery trucks are to be staged off-site so as to reduce the 
time that trucks need to wait to enter the facility. If there is not sufficient room within 
the interior of the facility to accommodate a given heavy delivery truck, the applicant 
shall not call for the delivery of such heavy truck unless and until another heavy 
delivery truck parked within the facility is scheduled to leave the facility within 15 
minutes. It is noted that the maximum number of heavy truck deliveries anticipated 
for moving the drilling rig on and off the premises is 20 loads per day for a period of 
four days. Except for the four days required to move the drilling rig on and off the 
premises, the maximum number of heavy truck deliveries per day shall be limited to 
a maximum of five. 

The applicant shall give all abutting property owners written notice (in both English 
and Spanish), served by mail at least seven days prior to the dates when heavy truck 
traffic will commence related to moving the rig in for the drilling or re-drilling of wells. 

7. The applicant shall install the following sound mitigation systems and implement 
administrative noise controls as follows: 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 4 

a. Erect a 30-foot high blanket sound wall on the west side of the drilling rig at 
the Murphy drilling site (west side property line), with the layout and wall 
lengths determined after the drilling rig and equipment positioning has been 
established. Install the sound wall as close as possible to the drilling rig and 
associated equipment with no gaps or openings in the walls. The sound wall 
material should have a minimum STC rating of 25. Sound wall gates shall be 
installed with the same sound loss rating as the wall material and the gates 
shall be closed at all times except for material delivery or pick up. 

b. Enclose the drilling rig floor with STC-25 rated acoustical barrier blankets. The 
blankets height shall be a mirlimum of 10 ft above the drilling rig floor and have 
a closable panel at V door, which shall be closed except when rur~rring casing, 
pipe, tubing or logging. 

c. To reduce sound from the drilling rigs sub-structure, acoustical blankets shall 
be hung from the exterior of the rig floor down to the ground, covering the 
open area of the rig sub-structure on the side of the rig facing the west 
property line. 

d. The stabbing platform on the rigs derrick shall be enclosed with STC-25 rated 
acoustical blankets. 

e. To mitigate the drilling rig draw works and brake noise level, sound damping 
acoustical material shall be installed and maintained during drilling activities. 

f. Position all ancillary noise generation equipment awayfrom the nearest critical 
receptors when feasible and install temporary sound enclosures, where 
possible on all noise generation equipment and operations. 

g. Install vibration isolation pads on shaker units and provide low frequency 
designed sound absorption and barring panels adjacent to the shaker units. 

h. Implement PXP "quiet mode" operation procedures including limitation of 
material delivery schedules and other sound rnitigation requirements. 

I. To ensure adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any 
unusual or unique noise problems, sound level measurement and testing shall 
be complete as the rig starts up operations. To verify and document sound 
level compliance, continuous sound level meas1,lrement and monitoring may 
be considered during all drilling activity. 

8. Drilling operations may be conducted seven days per week on a 24-hour basis, 
including any nationally recognized holiday. Drilling operations shall be corr~pleted 
within 36 months from the effective date of this determination. 

9. The applicant shall permanently post at all of the site's entry gates a direct telephone 
number to the supervisor of the site at that time for residents to call and report any 
ongoing problem. A call log shall be maintained including date and time of call and 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 5 

subject, and date and time of response and action. Said log shall be made available 
at the request of the Zoning Adrrrinistrator. 

10. The applicant shall conduct daily inspections of the premises, including the exterior 
of the concrete block wall and the open areas on the east side of the premises and 
the south side, facing 27th Street. All trash and debris shall be removed from the site 
daily. 

11. All graffiti on the site shall be removed or painted over to match the color of the 
surface to which it is applied within 24 hours of its occurrence. 

12. The authorized use shall be conducted at all times with due regard for the character 
of the surrounding district, and the right is reserved to the Zoning Administrator to 
impose additional corrective conditions, if, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, 
such conditions are proven necessary for the protection of persons in the 
neighborhood or occupants of adjacent property. 

13. All lighting on the site shall be shielded and directed onto the site and no floodlighting 
shall be located so as to be seen directly from any adjacent residential area. 

14. At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should documented evidence 
be submitted showing continued violation of any condition of this grant, resulting in 
an unreasonable level of disruption or interference with the peaceful enjoyment of the 
adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning Administrator reserves the right to 
require the applicant to file for a plan approval application together with associated 
fees pursuant to LAMC Section 19.01-C (Plan Approval 12.24-M $1,898 or as in 
effect at the time of filing), the purpose of which will be to hold a public hearing to 
review the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness of these conditions. The 
applicant shall prepare a radius map and cause a notification to be mailed to all 
owners and occupants of properties within a 500-foot radius of the property, the 
Co~~nci l  Office, and the Los Angeles Police Department corresponding Division. The 
applicant shall also submit a summary and any supporting documentation of how 
compliance with each condition of this grant has been attained. Upon this review the 
Zoning Administrator may modify, add or delete conditions, and reserves the right to 
conduct this public hearing for nuisance abatementlrevocation purposes. 

TRANSFERABILITY 

-This authorization runs with the land. In the event the property is to be sold, leased, rented 
or occupied by any person or corporation other than yourself, it is incumbent I-lpon you to 
advise them regarding the conditions of this grant. 

VIOLATIONS OF THESE CONDITIONS, A MISDEMEANOR 

Section 12.29 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code provides: 

"A variance, conditional use, adjustment, public benefit or other quasi-judicial 
approval, or any conditional approval granted by the Director, pursuant to the 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 6 

authority of this chapter shall become effective upon utilization of any portion of the 
privilege, and the owner and applicant shall immediately comply with its Conditions. 
The violation of any valid Condition imposed by the Director, Zor~ing Administrator, 
Area Planning Commission, City Planning Commission or City Council in connection 
with the granting of any action taken pursuant to the authority of this chapter, shall 
constitute a violation of this chapter and shall be subject to the same penalties as any 
other violation of this Code." 

Every violation of this determination is punishable as a misdemeanor and shall be 
purrishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a 
period of not more than six months, or by both such fine and irr~prisonment. 

APPEAL PERIOD - EFFECTIVE DATE 

-The applicant's attention is called to the fact that this grant is not a permit or license and 
that any permits and licenses required by law must be obtained from the proper public 
agency. Furthermore, if any Condition of this grant is violated or if the same be not 
complied with, then the applicant or his successor in interest may be prosecuted for 
violating these Conditions the same as for any violation of ,the requirements contained in 
the Municipal Code. The Zoning Administrator's determination in this matter will become 
effective after MARCH 28,2006, unless an appeal therefrom is filed with the Citv Planninq 
Department. It is strongly advised that appeals be filed early during the appeal period and 
in person so that imperfections/incompleteness may be corrected before the appeal period 
expires. Any appeal must be filed on the prescribed forms, accompanied by the required 
fee, a copy of the Zoning Administrator's action, and received and receipted at a public 
office of the Department of City Plarlrring on or before the above date or the appeal will not 
be accepted. Forms are available on-line at www.lacity.orq/pln. Public offices are 
located at: 

Figueroa Plaza Marvin Braude San Fernando 
201 North Figueroa Street, Valley Constituent Service Center 

4th Floor 6262 Van Nuys Boulevard, Room 251 
Los Angeles, CA 900 12 Van IVuys, CA 91401 
(21 3) 482-7077 (81 8) 374-5050 

The time in which a party may seek judicial review of this determination is governed by 
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6. Under that provision, a petitioner may 
seek judicial review of any decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.5, only if the petition for writ of mandate pursuant to that section 
is filed no later than the 90th day following the date on which the City's decision becomes 
final. 

NOTICE 

The applicant is further advised that all subsequent contact with this office regarding this 
determination must be with the Zoning Administrator who acted on the case. This would 
include clarification, verification of condition compliance and plans or building permit 
applications, etc., and shall be accomplished BY APPOINTMENT ONLY, in orderto assure 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 7 

that you receive service with a mir~inium amount of waiting. You should advise any 
consultant representing you of this requirement as well. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

After thorough consideration of the statements contained in the application, the plans 
submitted therewith, the report of the Zoning Analyst thereon, the statements made at the 
public hearing on January 19, 2006, all of which are by reference made a part hereof, as 
well as knowledge of the property and surrounding district, I find as follows: 

1. The site, known as the Murphy Drill Site, part of the Las Cienegas oil field, is located 
on a slightly sloping, 3.25 acres, irregular-shaped property with a frontage of 323 feet 
on the south side of Adams Boulevard, between Cimarron Street to the west, and 
Manhattan Place to the east. The Drill Site is classified in the [Q]R4-1-0 and [Q]R3- 
1-0  Zones, and within Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U37 as established in 1959 
by Ordinance No. 114,701. The site is enclosed with a 6-foot high concrete block wall 
which is set back from Adams Boulevard approximately 25 feet. The property is 
accessed through a gate and driveway from Adams Boulevard in the northwest 
corner of the site. Along 27th Street, the property is enclosed by a Code allowed 3- 
112-foot high chain link fence. Set back 270 feet from 27th Street, a 12-foot high 
retaining wall encloses the back of the drill site. The site is improved with tanks, 
cellars, mud pits, pumps, generators, a compression shed and an office building, all 
located in the R4-zoned portion of the site. The owner of the fee underlying the drill 
site is The Roman Catholic Archbishop of Los Angeles. Brown PXP Properties, LLC 
acquired the leasehold rights to the entire site from Bentley-Simonson, Inc. The 
Applicant, PXP, is the leaseholder's authorized agent under an agreement entitled 
"Contract Operator and Service Agreement" dated May 31, 2005. 

The nearest residential uses are located to the east of the site, on property zoned 
[Q]R4-1-0 developed with a two-story multiple-family dwelling complex, and on the 
south side of 27th Street, where properties are located in the RD2-1-0 Zone and 
developed with one- and two-story single-family dwellings and apartment buildings. 

A review of the past record and information attached to the file indicates that oil 
drilling and oil production have occurred on the site since its first being authorized 
to operate at this location on April 5, 1961 under ZA Case No. 15227, subject to 24 
conditions. Subsequent cases have also regulated oil production on the property, 
mainly addressing the need for occasional drilling or re-drilling of new or existing 
wells. The last such submittal was approved by the Zoning Admirristrator on 
August I, 2003 to permit the re-drilling of two oil wells. On April 15,2005, the Zoning 
Administrator determined that the use of the property posed no significant nuisance 
to adjoining or neighboring properties and approved plans to allow the continued use 
of the property for the purpose of oil drilling operations, after a public review of the 
conditions of operation pursuant to Council motions dated April 13,2004, in response 
to resident complaints of oil f ~ ~ m e s  and noise. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 8 

The applicant is now proposing to re-drill three Class "A" wells, including the 
conversion of two Class "B" wells, from U-37 to be bottomed as follows: M-2RD1 in 
U-36, M12RD1 in U-37, and M-14RD2 in U-82. 

In 1959, under Ordinance No. 114,701, establishing Urbanized Oil District U-37, the 
City Council authorized the Zoning Administrator to permit five wells to be drilled from 
the controlled drill site in U- 37 and to bottom under U-37 or adjacent oil drilling 
districts. The number of wells could be increased to a maximum of 38 at the 
discretion of the Zoning Administrator. Oil drilling districts U-36 and U-82 are 
immediately adjacent to the controlled drill site and all existing wells bottomed under 
U-36 and U-82 are drilled from the Murphy Drill Site. At present, there are twenty- 
seven (27) wells drilled from the Murphy Drill Site. 

Each of the proposed redrills will be active producers--Class "A" wells. One well is 
proposed to bottom in each of three Oil Drilling Districts, namely U-36, U-37 and U- 
82. One well is proposed to be drilled in two stages. Two wells are currently Class "9" 
injectors. 

a. Redrillinq of One Class "A" Well 

Of the 27 wells drilled from the Murphy site, eleven (1 1) are bottomed in U-37, 
nine (9) are producers and two (2) are injectors. An additional injector well is 
bottomed on the boundary line between U-37 and U-81. The applicant is 
requesting the authority to redrill Well # M-12, which is currently bottomed in 
U-82, as Well # M-12RDI. Well # M-12 is currently an active producer but is 
not performing satisfactorily. This change will not alter the total number of 
wells drilled from U-37, but will increase the number of wells bottomed in U-37 
by one while also reducing the number of wells bottomed in U-82 by one. 

b. Redrillinq and Conversion of Two Class "B" Wells 

o Urbanized Oil Drilling District No. U-36 was established by Ordinance 
No. 114,700, which authorized ,the Zoning Administrator to permit 
drilling from the adjacent controlled drill site in U-37 (the Murphy Drill 
Site). Said Ordinance does not contain an express limitation on the 
number of wells that the Zoning Administrator may permit to bottom in 
U-36. The Zoning Administrator authorized eight wells in ZA Case No. 
15890 and authorized resumption of drilling operations for an additional 
four (4) wells in ZA Case IVo. 19951. At present, there are four (4) 
producing wells and three (3) injector wells bottomed in U-36. The 
applicant is requesting the authority to redrill Well # M-2 as M-2RDI. 
Well # M-2 is currently a Class "B" injector well bottomed in Oil Drilling 
District No. U-38. The applicant requests the authority to convert this 
well to a Class "A" producing well and bottom it in District No. U-36. 

Well # M-2RDI is projected to bottom, ultimately, at a measured depth 
of 9,649 feet, approximately. However, the applicant requests the 
al~thority to initially drill # M-2RDI to a measured depth of 4,651 feet, 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 9 

approximately, and to perforate the casing to test the well before 
continuirlg drilling operations. Accordingly, the Proposal Report for Well 
# M-2RD1 shows two targets. Because of the need to test the well's 
production capability at the4,651 foot depth, drilling operations will take 
place in two stages with a delay between the two stages. Accordingly, 
the applicant requests the authority to drill for 21 days for each stage 
of drilling and requests the authority to complete the second stage any 
time within two years from the date of commencement of any drilling 
authorized pursuant to this application. 

o Urbanized Oil Drilling District No. U-82 was established by Ordinance 
No. 121,727, which authorized the Zoning Adrr~inistrator to permit a 
maximum of eight (8) wells thereunder to be drilled from the adjacent 
controlled drill site in U-37 (the Murphy Drill Site). By Ordinance No. 
129,822, the City Council amended U-82 to insure that all wells 
bottomed thereunder are drilled from outside U-82. One ( I )  well was 
permitted in ZA Case No. 16182 and the Zoning Administrator 
authorized resumption of drilling operations for an additional four (4) 
wells in ZA Case No. 19951. In Z.A. Case No. 16218, seven (7) 
additional wells were permitted for a maximum of eight (8) wells total 
as of 1962. Currently, there are six (6) wells bottomed in U -82. Five 
are active producers and one, M-14RD, is an idle injection well on the 
boundary line between U-82 and U-37. The applicant requests the 
authority to redrill Well # M-14RD as # M-14RD2 and to convert it from 
a Class "B" injector well to a Class " A  producing well. This will not 
change the total number of wells in U-82. Well # M-14RD is included 
in the applicant's count of wells in District U-82. In this application, 
Applicant is also requesting to redrill M-12, which is currently bottomed 
in U-82 and, as proposed, will bottom in U-37. Therefore, the total 
number of wells that will remain in U-82, after drilling operations are 
completed, will be five active producers and no injectors. 

c. Clarifications 

Condition No.4 (Landscapinq). Condition No. 4 was imposed when the drillsite 
was originally authorized, at a time when the site was enclosed with nothing 
more than a chain-link fence. It was not certain whether this site would prove 
economically viable and ,the condition itself implies that it was intended to be 
a temporary landscaping measure. The drillsite is now a mature site with 
substantial landscaping which is in keeping with the surrounding 
neighborhood. The large trees which were requested to be preserved on the 
East side of the premises appear to still be in place. A concrete block wall 
now surrounds the entire working area and the working area is no longer 
visible from outside the drillsite. The type of additional planting that were 
contemplated in the original condition were never ordered by the Zoning 
Administrator and are no longer desired by the neighbors. Specifically, the 
"Washingtonian, Palms or Canary Island pines" referenced in the condition are 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 10 

expressly not desired by the neighbors. Accordingly, Condition No. 4 is 
obsolete and needs to be replaced. 

After consultation with the Gramercy Neighborhood Council, United 
Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council (UNNC) and members of Councilman 
Parks' office, PXP agreed to revise Condition No. 4 as now shown in this 
approval. 

Condition No. 9 (traffic access and parkins):-rhis condition was originally 
imposed before the drillsite was fully developed and at a time when it had only 
chain-linkfencing. It was not then known whether this site would develop fully. 
Presently, the active drillsite area is surrounded by a concrete block wall and 
there are landscaped buffers on the East side and fronting on 27th Street. As 
it is presently written, Condition No. 9 is outdated and should be modified. 
Additionally, in accordance with the requests of the Gramercy Neighborhood 
Council and Councilman Parks office, and to address access and parking 
issues, Condition No. 9 is revised as included in this approval. 

Condition No. 13 (IVumber of wells and bottom hole limitations). As originally 
drafted, Condition 13 limits the total number of wells that can be completed 
from the Murphy Drillsite to five, as permitted by the ordinance establishing the 
oil district, further provides that said five wells must be bottomed in Oil Drilling 
District U-37, and makes numerous references to the "Chief Zoning 
Administrator." 

The applicant argues that "Ordinance No. 114,701, adopted by the City 
Council on October 6, 1969, expressly authorized 38 Class 'YI A" producing 
wells to be completed on the Murphy Drillsite. Ordinance No. 114,700, 
adopted by the City Council on October 6, 1969, expressly authorized use of 
the site for directional drilling into Oil Drilling District U-36. Ordinance No. 
121,727, adopted April 3, 1962, authorized use of the site for directional 
drilling into Oil Drilling District U-82. Similar ordinances have been adopted 
over the years with regard to other adjacent Oil Drilling Districts. Accordingly, 
to the extent that Condition No. 13 restricts the bottom-hole location it has 
been superseded by action of the City Council and should be eliminated or 
modified to conform to the City Council's approvals. 

In addition, the various Plan Approvals over the last 37 years have approved 
total of 27 wells on the Murphy Drillsite, leaving an additional I I wells still 
authorized by the City Council. Accordingly, PXP requests that Condition No, 
13 be modifiecf' to reflect the approval of 38 wells. 

This request, while clearly understood, is not approved inasmuch as the 
original ordinance approves 5 wells, up to 38 wells, subject to review by the 
Chief Zoning Administrator. Over the years, reviews have allowed, as stated 
by the applicant, an increase in the number of wells as well as modification 
of the location of their bottom hole. However, the intent of the ordinance is 
clear that each request must be reviewed by the Chief Zoning Adrr~inistrator 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 11 

(who following a standard policy utilizes hislher authority to have a Zor~ing 
Administrator review the matter). A change of this procedure would 
necessitate a change of language of the ordinance, subject to a legislative 
action, while each review can be effected under quasi-judicial authority of the 
Zoning Administrator. The Zoning Administrator does not have the authority 
to modify the ordinance. Besides, considering the concerns of the community 
and the ongoing need for improved mitigation measures, such review proves 
necessary, revealing the well thought intention and perspective of the original 
ordinance. 

Condition Nos. 7, 8, 14 and 22 (production facilities & pumping units):On 
March 12, 1992, February 3, 1993, and June 23, 1993, the Zoning 
Administrator, deleted Condition No. 7. Thereafter, on August 1, 2003, in 
connection with the last Approval of Plans for re-drilling of two wells, the 
Zoning Administrator reinstated all the original conditions. It does not appear 
from the record that there was any consideration given to the fact that 
Conditions IVo. 7, 8, 14, and 22 had previously been deleted or amended by 
prior actions of the Zoning Administrator. It appears, therefore, that the 
reinstatement of these original conditions was mere boilerplate language 
added to the August 1, 2003 Approval of Plans in error. 

The applicant seeks clarification of this issue and confirmation that Condition 
Nos. 7, 8, 14 and 22 no longer govern ongoing operations at the Murphy 
drillsite. 

As originally imposed, Condition No. 7 regulated soundproofing and 
camouflage of the wooden derricks when the site was enclosed by a chain-link 
fence. -The site is now fully enclosed with a concrete block wall and only 
portable drilling rigs are used and then removed from the site. 

Condition No. 8 irr~posed a 35-foot setback distance for derricks and other 
equipment. With the exception of the portable drilling rig, all other permanent 
buildings and equipment were installed on the site before the applicant took 
possession. The applicant believes that the equipment installed is in 
compliance with the setback distance or was installed after Condition No. 8 
was deleted in 1992. 

Condition No. 14 required that the pumping units be place in pits below 
surface level. The existing pumping units comply with Subsection F Condition 
19, which was added to the conditions in 1992 and 1993 to replace this 
Condition No. 14. 

Condition No. 22 required the removal of all equipment not necessary for 
production after the completion of drilling operations and governed 
maintenance of the production facilities. Condition No. 22 was deleted in 1992 
and 1993 and replaced by Subsection F Condition No. 19. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 12 

The Zoniog Administrator agrees with the applicant that it is doubtful that the 
2003 action specifically reinstated conditions previously deleted. Usually such 
language is meant to include the conditions of the original grant and all 
modifications thereof adopted at a later date. This interpretation is therefore 
hereby clarified. 

The applicant intends to commence the re-drilling of three Class "A" wells, including 
the conversion of two Class "B" wells at the Murphy Drill Site, as detailed above. The 
most frequent purpose of the re-drilling is to remedy down hole problems that have 
developed with the wells, and more specifically when the wells are almost dry. Once 
they are dry, the operator of the site immediately begins re-drilling the wells at 
different subsurface sites, the surface location remaining the same. The re-drilling 
allows the operator to tap into other areas a few miles below the surface that will yield 
more oil. Without such re-drilling the wells are not fully operational. It is for this 
purpose that the subject request has been filed seeking terms and conditions 
controlling drilling and production operations. 

A public hearing on the matter was held on January 19,2006, where the applicant's 
representative presented the project and responded to questions of the Zoning 
Administrator regarding details of the proposed operation. The Chair of the Planning 
and Zoning Committee of the Neighborhood Council presented a brief history of 
drilling operations at the site, and recent reviews following nearby resident 
complaints, and expressed concerns as to the compliance of the applicant with the 
landscaping conditions which have been placed on the property throughout the years, 
including the maintenance of existing mature trees and the landscaping of the 
perimeter fences, arguing that the conditions applied to the entire property, not only 
the leasehold. She further commented that many of the original conditions were no 
longer applicable in light of technological progress. She requested that the file be left 
open for four months to allow an assessment of possible damage to neighbors 
homes, due to vibrations s~~pposed to result from the drilling operations. She 
concluded that the Neighborhood Council, at its meeting of January 17, 2005 had 
voted to conditionally support the applicant's request. A letter dated January 19, 
2006 from the Neighborhood Council was submitted recommending conditions 
pertaining to landscaping, noise, vibration and emission monitoring, heavy truck traffic 
limitation, the provision of a 24-hour attended phone number, 24-hour security, and 
yearly review of operations. A representative of the Council District Ofice spoke in 
support of the request, and in agreement with the presentation of the previous 
speaker. He encouraged the applicant to continue to communicate with the 
community and requested that a landscape plan be presented and irr~plemented 
within six months. At the close of the public hearing, the matter was taken under 
advisement for a period of 30 days to allow the applicant to meet with the Council 
District Office staff and the Neighborhood Council, and prepare a noise mitigation 
program. 

On February 21, 2006, the applicant submitted material showing revised conditions 
of approval pertaining to landscaping and traffic which were worked out in 
consultation with the Council District Ofice and the Neighborhood Council. A noise 
mitigation program was also provided, which has been integrated as part of ,this 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 13 

approval under Condition No. 7. Additionally, the applicant also intends to employ 
state of the art drilling technology in order to minimize trip time (to run pipe into and 
out of the wells), typically the noisiest part of a drilling operation. Instead of a yearly 
plan review to monitor operations, Condition No. 14 was imposed which requires the 
conduct of a public hearing only in the instance of continued violations of any of the 
conditions of approval. This will alleviate the burden to the applicant of coming every 
year for a review, and at the same time provides an incentive to conduct operations 
in compliance with the conditions to avoid having to file for the review. All the while 
this procedure provides the corr~mur~ity with a leverage tool to ensure the proper 
conduct of operations on the property in relation to the surrounding neighborhood. 

The applicant has been drilling on the site since the early 1960s in accordance with 
numerous prior Zoning Administrator approvals. The proposed re-drilling will be 
conducted in compliance with those approvals and any Methods and Conditions 
which may be applicable, including those placed on the applicant by this letter. It is 
a normal and necessary function of petroleum operations to re-drill from established 
drill sites not only to find and extract additional oil reserves or to correct subsidence 
problems, but to correct extraction problems which may occur from time to time. As 
such, it can be found that the requested re-drilling of the involved wells, as proposed, 
and conditioned, is appropriate. 

4. The proposed re-drill program will require approximately 15 to 21 days per well to 
complete, working 24 hours per day and seven days per week. The applicant has 36 
months to utilize this grant. All re-drilling operations will be conducted on the 
controlled drill site. To maintain reasonable noise levels, sound proofed state of the 
art drilling equipment and technology will be utilized. In addition, the applicant will 
attempt to minimize the amount of time spent running pipe into and out of the well 
(Tripping), as tripping is usually the noisiest part of the re-drilling operation, this will 
reduce the amount of noise generated by the proposed operation, in addition to the 
noise mitigation measures made part of the conditions of approval of the instant 
grant. 

5. Upon completion of the re-drilling operations, production activities will be resumed 
under the terms and conditions of previous grants. In a time where dependence on 
foreign oil comes at an increasingly higher social, economical and political cost, it can 
be found that this approval, by encouraging and facilitating local oil production, under 
strict controls as to the possible impacts it may have on the irr~mediate vicinity of the 
production site, will be of direct benefit to the public as a whole. 

ADDITIONAL MANDATORY FINDINGS 

6. The National Flood Insurance Program rate maps, which are a part of the Flood 
Hazard Management Specific Plan adopted by the City Council by Ordinance No. 
172,081, have been reviewed and it has been determined that this project is located 
in Zone C, areas of minimal flooding. 

7. On September 2, 2005, the project was issued a Notice of Exemption (Article Ill, 
Section 3, City CEQA Guidelines), log reference ENV 2005-6191-CE, for a 



CASE 110. ZA 15227(O)(PA3) PAGE 14 

Categorical Exemption, Class 5, Category 23, City CEQA Guidelines, Article VII, 
Section 1, State EIR Guidelines, Section 15100. 1 hereby adopt that action. 

8. Fish and Game: The subject project, which is located in Los Angeles County, will not 
have an impact on fish or wildlife resources or habitat upon which fish and wildlife 
depend, as defined by California Fish and Game Code Section 71 1.2. 

ANlK CHARRON 
Associate Zoning Administrator 
Direct Telephone No. (21 3) 978-1 307 

cc: Councilmember Herb Wesson 
Tenth District 

Adjoining Property Owners 
County Assessor 
Department of Water and Power 
Fire Department, Bureau of Fire 

Prevention and Public Safety 
Office of Administration & Research Services 

STOP 130 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT G 



MICHAEL LOGRANDE 
CHIEF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

3 I T Y  O F  LOS ANGELLA 
CALIFORNIA 

ASSOCIATE ZONING ADMINISTRATORS 

GARY BOOHER 
PATRICIA BROWN 

R. NICOLAS BROWN 
SUE CHANG 

ANlK CHARRON 
LARRY FRIEDMAN 

DANIEL GREEN 
LOURDES GREEN 

ERIC RITTER 
MICHAEL S.Y. YOUNG 

September 14,2007 

ANTONIO R. VILLARAIGOSA 
MAYOR 

C. Greg Wagner (A) 
Plains, Exploration & Production Co. 
5640 South Fairfax Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90056 

The Roman Catholic Archbishop of 
Los Angeles (0)  

3424 Wilshire Boulevard 
Los Angeles, CA 9001 0 

Edgar Salazar (R) 
5640 South Fairfax Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90056 

DEPARTMENT OF 
CITY PLANNING 

S. GAIL GOLDBERG, AlCP 
DIRECTOR 

OFFICE O F  
Z O N I N G  ADMINISTRATION 
200 N. SPRING STREET. 7'" FLOOR 

LOSANGELES, CA 9001 2 

(213) 978-1318 
FAX: (213) 978-1334 

www.lacity.orgiPLN 

CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) 
APPROVAL OF PLANS - DETERMINATION 

OF METHODS AND CONDITIONS 
2 1 26 West Adams Boulevard 
West Adams-Baldwin Hills- 

Leimert Planning Area 
Zone : [Q]R4-1-0 
D.IW. : 123B193 
C.D. : 10 
CEQA : ENV 2007-2400-CE 
Fish and Game : Exempt 
Legal Description : Lot A, Tract 9454 

Department of Building and Safety 

Pursuant to Section 13.01 of the Los Angeles Ml~nicipal Code, I hereby APPROVE: 

methods and conditions controlling drilling and production operations for the 
expansion of the existing well cellar with a maximum of twelve new well slots, 
including the drilling of two new Class "A" oil wells, and one Class "B" well, 
respectively identified as M-28, M-29 and M-30 of the Murphy drill site within 
Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-37 and U-82 respectively, and the future drilling 
of nine additional wells for a maximum total of 38 well slots, 

upon the following additional terms and conditions: 

1. The existing and proposed well corridors shall be in substantial conformance with plot 
plans submitted and attached to the file identified as "Exhibit No. A-I dated March 27, 
2007. 

2. All terms and conditions specified under extant ZA Case No. 15227, dated April 5, 
1961, shall be strictly complied with, except as modifiedlclarified as follows: 

3. All the conditions set forth in Section 1 3.01-El 2 as well as Condition Nos. 3,4, 5, 8, 
9, 17, 18, 19,22,23, 33, 37,40, 50, 54, 58, and 59 of Subsection F of Section 13.01 
of the Municipal Code are included in and by reference made a part of this approval 
and shall be complied with to the same extent as if herein restated in detail. 

A N  E Q U A L  E M P L O Y M E N T  O P P O R T U N I T Y  - A F F I R M A T I V E  A C T I O N  E M P L O Y E R  @ 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 2 

4. M o d i f i e d - O C ! ~  
)bn Landscapinq of the site shall be maintained as follows: 

a. With respect to that portion of the drillsite south of the cement block wall and 
facing 27th Avenue, the applicant shall: (1) remove the invasivelnoxious 
plants; (2) plant 3 to 4 trees (of 24-inch box size) as infill trees along the south 
facing facility wall; (3) plant Ficus or climbing ivy, or similar plant-life (grown to 
5 gallon size containers) along the South facing facility wall; (4) spread 
wildflower/grass mix in the open areas of south parcel (approx. 314 ac.); (5) 
install drip irrigation systems on the new plantings along south facing facility 
wall; (6) provide for temporary watering of the grasses and put sprinklers on 
timers to insure proper maintenance of the grassy area; (7) install new or 
improved cyclone fencing along 27th Avenue; (8) improve the appearance of 
the East fence by painting it; (9) install meandering dry creek bed hardscape 
on the South parcel, utilizing recycled broken concrete foundations from PXP 
facilities (final placenient, configuration and length dependent on pipeline 
easement and other site facility considerations); (10) work with 10th Council 
District office and Archdiocese to allow future public access. 

b. With respect to that portion of the drillsite East of the cement block wall and 
fronting on Adams Boulevard, the applicant shall: (1) install newlimproved 
cyclone fencing along Adams, including raising the East facing step wall which 
is only 2-3 feet high; (2) upon receipt of the adjacent property owners' 
approval, install 2-foot high wrought iron fencing (or equivalent) on top of 
existing block wall (approximately 300 feet); (3) remove graffiti on East wall; 
(4) improve wall on West side of the parcel by painting and installing new 
cyclone inserts; (5) level and place gravel surface down approximately half the 
depth of the lot and place barriers to protect the remaining portion of the lot; 
obtain permits for use as a temporary parking lot; (6) install parking lot lighting; 
(7) plant fic~~slclimbing ivy, or similar along East and West walls to enhance its 
appearance (using 5 gallon size container plantings); (8) install drip irrigation 
on new plantings; (9) install sprinkler timers. 

C. - A vearlv review of the landscaping shall be conducted bv the applicant with the 
Council District Office and the United Neiqh borhoods Neiqh borhood Council. 

That driveway access for ingress and egress to the drilling site shall be provided 
through the existing driveways fronting on Adams Boulevard. Furthermore, that the 
existing a parking area on the enclosed drilling site area for use by vehicles employed 
in drilling and maintaining of oil wells on the property and for parking of automobiles 
of err~ployees engaged in the drilling and production activities shall be augmented by 
additional parking on the area on the East of the drillsite, outside of the enclosed 
area, which area shall be leveled and covered with a gravel surface to approximately 
one-half the depth of the lot for use as additional parking for employees and overflow 
parking for The Athletic Club. Parking on the East side of the drillsite, outside of the 
enclosed area shall not be used for heavy trucking operations or staging or storage of 
any. All such driveways and parking areas shall be regularly washed down, swept or 
otherwise kept free of accumulated cement, dust, or other materials which would 
produce dust in the use of said facilities. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 3 

6. Modified - As further amplification of Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F of the 
Municipal Code, except for actual drilling and production operations, which may be 
conducted 24 hours a day, seven days a week, no work shall be conducted on the 
property between the hours of 7 p.m. of one day and 7 a.m. of the following day or on 
Sundays. While actual drilling operations are being conducted between the hours of 
7 p.m. of and 7 a.m., the applicant shall operate its facility in "Quiet ModeJJ. "Quiet 
ModeJ' shall mean that where possible, operation components shall be covered with 
acoustical shieldslmaterial, that all audible backup alarms shall be disabled and 
replaced with a spotter for safety purposes; operation of the cellar pump shall cease; 
the applicant's employees and contractors shall be prohibited from yelling, and the 
Derrick Man and Driller shall communicate by walkie-talkie only when the Derrick 
Man is on the derrick; no horns shall be used to signal for time for connection or to 
summon crew (except that a horn may be I J S ~ ~  for emergency purposes only. The 
applicant shall conduct on-site meetings to inform all personnel of quiet mode 
operations. 

In case of an emergency, all restrictions on the hours of operations shall be 
suspended for as long as is necessary to resolve the emergent situation, and for no 
longer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, during the period necessary to set up and move the 
drilling rig off the premises, and to conduct drilling or re-drilling operations as herein 
authorized, heavy ("permittedJJ oversizedloverweiqht load) truck deliveries shall be 
permitted from 7 a.m. to 9:30 p.m., en\ran on week days, none durinq 
week-ends and holidays. Deliveries shall be made by approaching the facility off of 
Adams Boulevard exclusively. Delivery trucks are to be staged off-site so as to 
reduce the time that trucks need to wait to enter the facility. If there is not sufficient 
room within the interior of the facility to accommodate a giver1 heavy delivery truck, 
the applicant shall not call for the delivery of such heavy truck unless and until 
another heavy delivery truck parked within the facility is scheduled to leave the facility 
within 15 minutes. - . . The maximum number of heavy truck deliveries 
a&wpakl allowed for moving the drilling rig on and off the premises is shall not 
exceed 20 loads per day for a period of four days. Except for the four days required 
to move the drilling rig on and off the premises, the maximum number of bewy 
"permittedJJ truck deliveries per day [week days only, none on week-ends and 
holidays) shall be limited to a maximum of h e  ten. The number of "non-permitted" 
truck deliveries per day (week davs only) shall be limited to a maximum of ten. The 
number of "non-permittedJJ truck deliveries per day (week-ends and holidays or~lv) 
shall be lir~iited to a maximum of five. 

The applicant shall give all abutting property owners written notice (in both English 
and Spanish), served by mail at least seven days prior to the dates when heavy truck 
traffic will commence related to moving the rig in for the drilling or re-drilling of wells. 

7. The applicant shall install the following sol-~nd mitigation systems and implement 
administrative noise controls as follows: 

a. Modified - Erect a 30-foot high blanket sound wall on the west side of the 
drilling rig at the Murphy drilling site (west side property line), with the layout 
and wall lengths deterrrrined after the drilling rig and equipment positioning has 
been established. Install the sound wall as close as possible to the drilling rig 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 4 

and associated equipment with no gaps or openings in the walls. The sound 
wall material should have a minimum STC rating of 25. Sound wall gates shall 
be installed with the same sound loss rating as the wall material and the gates 
shall be closed at all times except for material delivery or pick up. The sound 
wall shall not be maintained for more than 120 continuous days. Should 
unforeseeable mechanical problems warrant the maintenance of the sound 
wall for a period exceeding the 120 continuous days, the applicant shall notify 
the Zoning Administrator and Council Office, and inform the owners and 
occupants of surrounding property of the reasons for and estimated duration of 
the delav in the dismantlement of the wall. 

. . 
b. Deleted - €%dew thc - STC 25 r- 

c. To reduce sound from the drilling rigs sub-structure, acoustical blankets shall 
be hung from the exterior of the rig floor down to the ground, covering the 
open area of the rig sub-structure on the side of the rig facing the west 
property line. 

d. The stabbing platform on the rigs derrick shall be enclosed with STC-25 rated 
acoustical blankets. 

e. To mitigate the drilling rig draw works and brake noise level, sound damping 
acoustical material shall be installed and maintained during drilling activities. 

f. Position all ancillary noise generation equipment away .from the nearest CI-itical 
receptors when feasible and install temporary sound enclosures, where 
possible on all noise generation equipment and operations. 

g. Install vibration isolation pads on shaker units and provide low frequency 
designed sound absorption and barring panels adjacent to the shaker units. 

h. Implement PXP "quiet mode" operation procedures including limitation of 
material delivery schedules and other sound mitigation requirements. 

I. To ensure adequate sound mitigation has been installed, and to identify any 
unusual or unique noise problems, sound level measurement and testing shall 
be complete as the rig starts up operations. To verify and document sound 
level compliance, continuous sound level measurement and monitoring may 
be considered during all drilling activity. 

8. Modified - Drilling operations may be conducted seven days per week on a 24-hour 
basis, including any nationally recognized holiday. Drilling operations for the first 
three wells identified in the grant clause of the instant determination shall be 
completed within 36 months from the effective date of this determination. The drillinq 
for the following nine wells as herebv authorized shall be subiect to a review of plans 
by the Zoninq Administrator, without a public hearing, for the purpose of updatinq the 
record with the well identification and path. None of the wells hereby authorized shall 
be engaqed in a production mode until the vault is complete. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 5 

The first three new wells may be drilled prior to the construction of the new well 
(vault) cellar using temporaw cellar rings in substantial compliance with the "Rinq 
Cellar Schematic" and the "Construction Plan: Well Cellar Rings" attached hereto 
lExhibit "B"), subject to any permitting requirement of the Department of Buildinq and 
Safety and the Department of Oil, Gas and Geothermal Resources. 

Once these three wells have been completed they will be shut so that the permanent 
well cellar can be constructed in compliance with plans approved by this qrant 
(Exhibit "A"). During construction of the permanent well cellar, the temporarv cellar 
rings shall be removed and the cellaushall be incorporated in the permanent well 
cellar. 

9. The applicant shall permanently post at all of the site's entry gates a direct telephone 
number to the supervisor of the site at that time for residents to call and report any 
ongoing problem. A call log shall be maintained including date and time of call and 
subject, and date and time of response and action. Said log shall be niade available 
at the request of the Zoning Administrator. 

10. The applicant shall conduct daily inspections of the premises, including the exterior of 
the concrete block wall and the open areas on the east side of the premises and the 
south side, facing 27th Street. All trash and debris shall be removed from the site 
daily. 

11. All graffiti on the site shall be removed or painted over to match the color of the 
surface to which it is applied within 24 hours of its occurrence. 

12. The authorized use shall be conducted at all times with due regard for the character 
of the surrounding district, and the right is reserved to the Zoning Administrator to 
impose additional corrective conditions, if, in the opinion of the Zoning Administrator, 
such conditions are proven necessary for the protection of persons in the 
neighborhood or occupants of adjacent property. 

13. All lighting on the site shall be shielded and directed onto the site and no floodlighting 
shall be located so as to be seen directly from any adjacent residential area. 

14. At any time during the period of validity of this grant, should documented evidence be 
submitted showing continued violation of any condition of this grant, resulting in an 
unreasonable level of disruption or interference with the peaceful enjoyment of the 
adjoining and neighboring properties, the Zoning Administrator reserves the right to 
require the applicant to file for a plan approval application together with associated 
fees pursuant to LAMC Section 19.01-C (Plan Approval 12.24-M $1,898 or as in 
effect at the time of filing), the purpose of which will be to hold a public hearing to 
review the applicant's compliance with and the effectiveness of these conditions. The 
applicant shall prepare a radius map and cause a notification to be mailed to all 
owners and occupants of properties within a 500-foot radius of the property, the 
Council Office, and the Los Angeles Police Department corresponding Division. The 
applicant shall also submit a summary and any supporting documentation of how 
compliance with each condition of this grant has been attained. Upon this review the 
Zoning Administrator may modify, add or delete conditions, and reserves the right to 
conduct this public hearing for nuisance a batementlrevocation purposes. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 6 

TRANSFERABILITY 

This authorization runs with the land. In the event the property is to be sold, leased, rented 
or occupied by any person or corporation other than yourself, it is incl-~mbent upon you to 
advise them regarding the conditions of this grant. 

VIOLATIONS OF THESE CONDITIONS, A MISDEMEANOR 

Section 12.29 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code provides: 

"A variance, conditional use, adjustment, public benefit or other quasi-judicial 
approval, or any conditional approval granted by the Director, pursuant to the 
authority of this chapter shall become effective upon utilization of any portion of the 
privilege, and the owner and applicant shall immediately comply with its Conditions. 
The violation of any valid Condition imposed by the Director, Zoning Administrator, 
Area Planning Commission, City Planning Commission or City Council in connection 
with the granting of any action taken pursuant to the authority of this chapter, shall 
constitute a violation of this chapter and shall be subject to the same penalties as any 
other violation of this Code." 

Every violation of .this determination is punishable as a misdemeanor and shall be 
pur~ishable by a fine of not more than $1,000 or by imprisonment in the county jail for a 
period of not more than six months, or by both such fine and imprisonment. 

APPEAL PERIOD - EFFECTIVE DATE 

-The applicant's attention is called to the fact that this grant is not a permit or license and 
that any permits and licenses required by law must be obtained from the proper public 
agency. Furthermore, if any Condition of this grant is violated or if the same be not 
complied with, then the applicant or his successor in interest may be prosecuted for 
violating these Conditions the same as for any violation of the requirements contained in 
the Municipal Code. The Zoning Administrator's determination in this matter will become 
effective after OCTOBER 1.2007, unless an appeal therefrom is filed with the Citv Planning 
Department. It is strongly advised that appeals be filed earlv during the appeal period and 
in person so that imperfections/incompleteness may be corrected before the appeal period 
expires. Any appeal must be filed on the prescribed forms, accompanied by the required 
fee, a copy of the Zoning Administrator's action, and received and receipted at a public 
office of the Department of City Planning on or before the above date or the appeal will not 
be accepted. Forms are available on-line at www.lacity.orglpln. Public offices are 
located at: 

Figueroa Plaza Marvin Braude San Fernando 
201 North Figueroa Street, Valley Constituent Service Center 

4th Floor 6262 Van Nuys Boulevard, Room 251 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Van IVuys, CA 91401 
(2 1 3) 482-7077 (81 8) 374-5050 

If you seek judicial review of any decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.5, the petition for writ of mandate pursuant to that section must be 
,filed no later than the 90th day following the date on which the City's decision became final 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 7 

pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6. There may be other time 
limits which also affect your ability to seek judicial review. 

NOTICE 

The applicant is further advised that all subsequent contact with this office regarding this 
determination must be with the Zoning Administrator who acted on the case. This would 
include clarification, verification of condition compliance and plans or building permit 
applications, etc., and shall be accomplished BY APPOINTMENT ONLY, in order to assure 
that you receive service with a minimum amount of waiting. You should advise any 
cons~.lltant representing you of .this requirement as well. 

INDEM hllFICA1-ION 

The applicant shall defend, inderr~nify and hold harmless the City, its agents, officers, or 
employees from any claim, action, or proceeding against the City or its agents, officers, or 
employees to attack, set aside, void or annul this approval which action is brought within 
the applicable limitation period. The City shall promptly notify the applicant of any claim, 
action, or proceeding and the City shall cooperate fully in the defense. If the City fails to 
promptly notify the applicant of any claim action or proceeding, or if the City fails to 
cooperate fully in the defense, the applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to defend, 
indemnify, or hold harmless the City. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

After thorough consideration of the statements contained in the application, the plans 
submitted therewith, the report of the Zoning Analyst thereon, the statements made at the 
public hearing on July 23, 2007, all of which are by reference made a part hereof, as well 
as knowledge of the property and surrounding district, I find as follows: 

The site, known as the Murphy Drill Site, part of the Las Cienegas oil field, is located 
on a slightly sloping, 3.25 acres, irreg~~~lar-shaped property with a frontage of 323 feet 
on the south side of Adams Boulevard, between Cimarron Street to the west, and 
Manhattan Place to the east. The Drill Site is classified in the [Q]R4-1-0 and [Q]R3- 
1-0 Zones, and within Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U37 as established in 1959 
by Ordinance No. 1 14,701. The site is enclosed with a 6-foot high concrete block wall 
which is set back from Adams Boulevard approximately 25 feet. The property is 
accessed through a gate and driveway from Adams Boulevard in the northwest 
corner of the site. Along 27th Street, the property is enclosed by a Code allowed 3- 
112-foot high chain link fence. Set back 270 feet from 27th Street, a 12-foot high 
retaining wall encloses the back of the drill site. The site is improved with tanks, 
cellars, mud pits, pumps, generators, a compression shed and an office building, all 
located in the R4-zoned portion of the site. The owner of the fee underlying the drill 
site is The Roman Catholic Archbishop of Los Angeles. Brown PXP Properties, LLC 
acquired the leasehold rights to the entire site from Bentley-Simonson, Inc. The 
Applicant, PXP, is the leaseholder's authorized agent under an agreement entitled 
"Contract Operator and Service Agreement" dated May 31, 2005. 

The nearest residential uses are located to the east of the site, on property zoned 
[Q]R4-1-0 developed with a two-story ml-~ltiple-family dwelling complex, and on the 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 8 

south side of 27th Street, where properties are located in the RD2-1-0 Zone and 
developed with one- and two-story single-family dwellings and apartment buildings. 

A review of the past record and information attached to the file indicates that oil 
drilling and oil production have occurred on the site since its first being a~lthorized to 
operate at this location on April 5, 1961 under Case No. ZA 15227, subject to 24 
conditions. Subsequent cases have also regulated oil production on the property, 
mainly addressing the need for occasional drilling or re-drilling of new or existing 
wells. The last such submittal was approved by the Zoning Administrator on 
March 13, 2006 to permit the re-drilling of .three oil wells. Of note, on April 15,2005, 
the Zoning Adrrlinistrator determined that the use of the property posed no significant 
nuisance to adjoining or neighboring properties and approved plans to allow the 
continued use of the property for the purpose of oil drilling operations, after a public 
review of the conditions of operation pursuant to Council niotions dated April 13, 
2004, in response to resident complaints of oil fumes and noise. 

-The applicant is now proposing the expansion of the existing well cellar with a 
maximum of twelve new well slots, including the drilling of two new Class " A  oil wells, 
and one Class "B" well, respectively identified as M-28, M-29 and M-30 of the Murphy 
drill site within Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-37 and U-82, respectively, and 
the future drilling of nine additional wells for a maximum total of 38 well slots. 
Additionally, the applicant is requesting the modification of several conditions 
regulating the number of truck deliveries to the site, and noise mitigation measures. 

Expansion of the well cellar: 

Oil drilling and injection activities have been undertaken on the controlled drill site 
since 1965 in accordance with the terms and conditions of Case No. ZA 15227 dated 
April 5, 1965. Various authorities followed, with the last case of record being a 
determination of methods and conditions to redrill three Class A wells, said 
determination having been dated March 13, 2006 in Cases No. ZA 15227(O)(PA3). 

The drill site is currently improved with an existing well cellar, which houses 28 well 
slots, of which 2 have been plugged and abandoned, 25 are in use and 1 is open, for 
a total of 26 available slots. The applicant is proposing to expand the well cellar to 
add 12 new well slots for possible future drilling operations. The addition of these new 
well slots will enable the facility to be developed in accordance with approval 
previously obtained from the City Council, which has authorized a total of 38 wells to 
be drilled from this site. Full building and grading plans for the proposed expansion 
cellar have been submitted to the Department of Building and Safety. The expansion 
of the well cellar was last approved in Case No. ZA 15227 on February 15, 1994, at 
which time the Associate Zoning Administrator found that :"construction is confined to 
the site with no evidence of adverse impact on the adjoining properties ... there 
appears no need to set specific conditions for this purpose since this type of activity is 
normal and expected as a consequence of drill site operations." (Plan Approval dated 
February 1 5, 1994) 

Similarly, the expansion of the well cellar requested in this application will be confined 
to the existing controlled drill site and, as conditioned, is not anticipated to res~~ l t  in 
any negative impact on adjoining properties. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 9 

Drillinq New Wells 

The applicant requests a determination of the methods and conditions to drill twelve 
(12) new wells, including both Class " A  and Class "B" wells. Three of the twelve 
wells are to be drilled in 2007 as shown in the following chart and depicted on the 
accompanying Well Path Map: 

Well Number Oil Drilling District Well Class 

U-37 A (producer) 
U-37 A (producer) 
U-37 B (injector) 

Nine Additional Wells to be Specified at a Later Date 

The applicant requested that the methods and conditions for drilling an additional nine 
(9) wells be determined with this application. Well specific information for said wells 
has not yet been determined (e.g., the well paths, how many of the wells will be Class 
"A" wells and how many will be Class "B" wells, and where each one will bottom). 
Accordingly, the methods and conditions of drilling while determined at this time, are 
subject to submittal of well specific information and maps to the Zoning Administrator 
at such time as said information becomes available. The procedure will be that of a 
simple review of plans by the Zoning Administrator, without the need to file for a 
formal Approval of Plans, or the need for a public hearing. The intent of said review of 

plans shall be to verify compliance of the well paths with the applicable previous 
approvals of number and location of wells per Urbanized Oil District. 

In 1959, under Ordinance No. 114,701, establishing Urbanized Oil District U-37, the 
City Council authorized the Zoning Administrator to permit five wells to be drilled from 
the Murphy controlled drill site in U-37 and to bottom under U-37 or adjacent oil 
drilling districts. The number of wells could be increased to a maximum of 38 at the 
discretion of the Zoning Administrator. Oil drilling district U-82 is immediately adjacent 
to the controlled drill site and all existing wells bottomed under U-36 and U-82 are 
drilled from the Murphy Drill Site. 

At present, there are twenty-eight (28) well slots in the existing cellar. Of these, 2 (M- 
14 and M-24) have been plugged and abandoned, leaving 26 existing well slots; 25 
slots are in use and one slot is open. The request to drill twelve new wells will bring 
the total number of wells up to 38, which is the full complement of wells previously 
approved by the City Council. 

Oil Drillirlq District No. U-37 

Urbanized Oil Drilling District No. U-37 was established by Ordinance No. 1 14,701, 
which authorized the Zoning Administrator to permit drilling and production from a 
maximuni of thirty-eight (38) wells to be drilled from the controlled drill site thereon 
and bottomed either within U-37 or adjacent oil drilling districts. There are currently 
twenty-five (25) wells drilled from the drill site. Of those, twelve (1 2) are bottomed in 
U-37. An additional one (1) injector well is bottomed on .the boundary line between U- 
37 and U-81. The applicant requests the authority to drill Well # M-28 and #M-29 to 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 10 

bottom in U-37. This will increase the total number of wells bottomed in U-37 to 14, 
well within the limit of 38 previously authorized by the City Council. 

Oil Drilling District No. U-82 

Urbanized Oil Drilling District No. U-82 was established by Ordinance No. 121,727, 
which authorized the Zoning Administrator to perliiit a ~iiaximum of eight (8) wells 
thereunder to be drilled from the adjacent controlled drill site in U-37 (the Murphy Drill 
Site). By Ordinance No. 129,822, the City Council amended U-82 to insure that all 
wells bottomed thereunder are drilled from outside U-82. Currently, there are five (5) 
wells bottomed in U-82. With the approval of this application, the total number of wells 
that will bottom in U-82 will increase to six (6). 

The proposed drilling operations will require approximately 21 days per well to 
complete. The applicant is hereby given three years from the date of effectiveness of 
this grant to complete its drilling program for the first three wells. The additional nine 
wells will be subject of a simple plan review as detailed above. 

Clarification of Existins Conditions 

Condition 6 from March 13, 2006 Plan Approval: 

The applicant also requests relief from Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F of the 
Municipal Code as amplified in Condition 6 of Case No. ZA 15227(O)(PA3), dated 
March 13,2006. The applicant argues for the need to increase the maximum number 
of heavy deliveries during dl-illing operations from 5 to 10. The applicant previously 
requested the maximum number of deliveries per day be set at five (5), except for the 
periods when the drilling rig was being mobilized and demobilized, when the 
maximum number of deliveries was set at twenty (20). The applicant's prior request 
was apparently in error and was intended to be an average of five (5) deliveries a 
day, not a maximum. The applicant indicates that the drilling project can be 
conducted with an average of 5 loads per day, except during rig mobilization and 
demobilization; however, to insure safety during specific operations such as running 
and cementing casing, the maximum loads per day should be set at ten (10). 

A similar request was made for the operation of the applicant's drilling sites known as 
Jefferson and 4th Avenue. While the language hereby approved is not exactly that 
recommended by the applicant, the same language which was approved for the 
applicant's two other sites has been duplicated for this site to ensure consistency in 
the methods of operation. 

Condition 7a from March 13, 2006 Plan Approval: 

The applicant requests clarification of Condition No. 7a of the March 13, 2006 
Approval of Plans which requires the installation of the sound wall "as close as 
possible to the drilling rig." More specifically, the applicant requests approval for the 
placement of the sound wall as depicted on ,the diagram in the attached sound report. 
The wall layout and length has been designed based on the anticipated layout of the 
drilling rig and associated equipment and as close to the drilling rig and associated 
equipment as possible, taking into consideration safety issues and fire lane distances. 
Due to the space limitations and configuration of the drill site, the wall layout and 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 11 

location as depicted represents the best alternative for effective sound mitigation. In 
support of this request, the applicant submitted a report ,from Behrens and 
Associates, Inc., expert noise consultants, who have reviewed the site and designed 
the proposed sound mitigation system. 

No opposition was received to the applicant's request, who has been implemented on 
the site to the satisfaction of the surrounding residents. It was further clarified, as for 
the Jefferson and 4th Avenue drill sites, that the sound wall is not to remain in excess 
of 120 days, without further notice and review by the Zoning Administrator, in 
consultation with the Council District Office. 

Condition 7b from March 13, 2006 Plan Approval: 

The applicant requests relief from Condition No. 7b of the March 13,2006 Approval of 
Plans. 

Condition No. 7b of the March 13, 2006 Approval of Plans provides as follows: 

"Enclose the drilling rig floor with STC-25 rated acoustical barrier blankets. 
The blankets height shall be a minimum of 10 feet above the drilling rig floor 
and have a closable panel at the V door, which shall be closed except when 
running casing, pipe, tubing or logging." 

The applicant argues that compliance with this condition raises serious concerns 
about worker safety as enclosing the drill floor effectively elirr~inates emergency 
escape routes for the crew. Considering that the other sound mitigation measures 
utilized are effective in reducing noise levels to the neighbors, the applicant requests 
that Condition 7b be stricken in its entirety. 

Consistent with the methods of operation of the applicant's other drill sites at 
Jefferson and 4th Avenue, there was no objection to the deletion of this condition. 

The applicant proposes the expansio~i of the existing well cellar and the authorization 
to drill an additional 12 oil wells slots up to the maximum permitted of 38 wells for the 
entire site. Three new wells are proposed to be drilled in 2007, the remaining nine as 
needed over the years, pursuant to a plan review by the Zoning Administrator, as 
detailed above. The purpose of new drilling is to provide for increased to new 
reserves of oil. The new wells will be located in the expanded cellar, and the 
subsurface drilling will not be visible from anywhere above ground. The new drilling 
allows the operator to tap into other areas a few miles below the surface that will yield 
more oil. Without such new drilling the number of wells available for production and/or 
injection is not to full capacity of the site. It is for this PI-lrpose that the subject request 
has been ,filed seeking terms arid co~iditions co~itrolling drilling and production 
operations. 

3. A public hearing on the matter was held on July 23, 2007, where the applicant's 
representative presented the project and responded to questions of the Zor~ing 
Administrator regarding details of the proposed operation. A representative of the 
Neighborhood Council presented recommendations of the Council more particularly 
as it pertains to the maintenance of the landscaping at the location. A letter dated 
January 19, 2006 from the Neighborhood Council was submitted recommending 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 12 

conditions pertaining to landscaping, noise, vibration and emission monitoring, heavy 
truck traffic limitation, the provision of a 24-hour attended phone number, 24-hour 
security, and yearly review of operations. A representative of the Council District 
Office expressed satisfaction at the cooperation of the applicant with the Council 
District Office and the residents of the immediate area to mitigate any possible 
negative impact resulting from the operation of the site. 

It was concluded that the applicant had expanded significant efforts to communicate 
with the community and its representatives and implemented both a landscaping and 
noise mitigation program in compliance with the requirements of the previous grant. 
Differences of opinion emerged as comments were made regarding the need to let 
trees grow more freely, with less trimming, and the applicant's response to the 
surrounding residents who want these trees trimmed to prevent vagrants from using 
them as shelter, and to allow the applicant to rid the walls from graffiti. The applicant 
further employs state of the art drilling technology in order to minimize trip time (to run 
pipe into and out of the wells), typically the noisiest part of a drilling operation. 
Instead of a yearly plan review to monitor operations, Condition No. 14 was 
maintained which requires the conduct of a public hearing only in the instance of 
continued violations of any of the conditions of approval. This alleviates the burden to 
the applicant of coming every year for a review, and at the same time provides an 
incentive to conduct operations in compliance with the conditions to avoid having to 
file for the review. All the while this procedure provides the community with a leverage 
tool to ensure the proper conduct of operations on the property in relation to the 
surrounding neighborhood. No complaints were received regarding noise or 
vibrations. 

The applicant has been drilling on the site since the early 1960s in accordance with 
numerous prior Zoning Administrator approvals. -The proposed expansion of the well 
cellar and new drilling will be conducted in compliance with those approvals and any 
Methods and Conditions which may be applicable, including those placed on the 
applicant by this letter. It is a normal and necessary function of petroleum operations 
to drill new wells from established drill sites to find and extract additional oil reserves. 
As such, it can be found that the request, as proposed, and conditioned, is 
appropriate. 

4. -The proposed drill program will require approximately 15 to 21 days per well to 
complete, working 24 hours per day and seven days per week. -The applicant has 36 
months to utilize this grant for the first three wells. All drilling operations will be 
conducted on the controlled drill site. To maintain reasonable noise levels, sound 
proofed state of the art drilling equipment and technology will be utilized. In addition, 
the applicant will attempt to minimize the amount of time spent running pipe into and 
out of the well (Tripping), as tripping is usually the noisiest part of the re-drilling 
operation, this will reduce the amount of noise generated by the proposed operation, 
in addition to the noise mitigation measures made part of the conditions of approval of 
the instant grant. 

5. Upon completion of the drilling operations, production activities will be conducted 
under the terms and conditions of this and previous grants. In a time where 
dependence on foreign oil comes at an increasingly higher social, economical and 
political cost, it can be found that this approval, by encourqging and facilitating local 
oil production, under strict controls as to the possible impacts it may have on the 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(O)(PA4) PAGE 13 

immediate vicinity of the production site, will be of direct benefit to the public as a 
whole. 

ADDITIONAL MANDATORY FINDINGS 

6. The National Flood Ins~.~rance Program rate maps, which are a part of the Flood 
Hazard Management Specific Plan adopted by the City Council by Ordinance No. 
172,081, have been reviewed and it has been determined that this project is located 
in Zone C, areas of minimal flooding. 

7. On May 18,2007, the project was issued a Notice of Exemption (Article Ill, Section 3, 
City CEQA Guidelines), log reference ENV 2007-2400-CE, for a Categorical 
Exemption, Class 5, Category 23, City CEQA Guidelines, Article VII, Section 1, State 
EIR Guidelines, Section 151 00. 1 hereby adopt that action. 

8. Fish and Game: The subject project, which is located in Los Angeles County, will not 
have an impact on fish or wildlife resources or habitat upon which fish and wildlife 
depend, as defined by California Fish and Game Code Section 71 1.2. 

ANlK CHARRON 
Associate Zoning Administrator 
Direct Telephone No. (21 3) 978-1 307 

cc: Councilmember Herb Wesson 
Tenth District 

Adjoining Property Owners 
Co~~n ty  Assessor 
Department of Water and Power 
Fire Department, Bureau of Fire 

Prevention and Public Safety 
Ofice of Administration & Research Services 

STOP 130 



N
O

IL
3n

aO
Z

Id
 

I
Y

L
 

N
IP

ID
-
 

--
O

*
--

.*
 

m
n

m
m

a
m

m
rm

n
n

ru
l3

1
~

lp
v

u
u

n
 

-D
u 

-
O

*
m

.
m

s
u

a
-

d
D

u
&

 
*m

a
. 

.J
lm

u
--

m
=

m
m

II
 

u
a

.-
r
n

v
n

o
*
o

lw
D

D
r
\p

.l
m

u
m

m
m

~
 

n
*
IL

W
II

ID
s

u
m

m
T

*
 

-
1
 

-m
.*

 
I
(

L
P

-
I
m

W
u

a
m

-
s

u
w

-
lp

p
r

m
 

'1
 

T
k

a
 =1~1
%1~1
=-ar
*- 

O
m

ll
lo

lo
D

w
rm

a
ra

u
--

 
.
1

1
0

1
V

.
.
I
o

O
*
m

~
~

l
D

P
Y

~
.
p

p
I
I
I
p

o
 

a
-
 

m
 *IP

PI
su

&m
c~

ar
O

su
 

IY
 - 

W
D

m
--

1
1

1
1

1
O

Im
II

-I
s
u

.l
lD

 
'I
 

-
m

e
w

m
.o

lo
n

w
m

n
a

u
a

u
-
q

w
 

m-.II---- 
w

-l
m

a
m

u
 

m
u

1
v

w
m

r
m

n
n

 
-

u
a

.
m

c
E

=
r

Y
W

~
 

m
-

I
-

c
~

1
Y

L
m

l
l

P
I

 
'A

 
-a

u.
 

p
w

m
-

r
a

m
m

-
~

f
"

2
 

-m
um

--- 
u

a
-

l
u

m
I

r
r

a
u

~
o

m
m

.
I

l
u

r
m

n
~

m
 

Y
R

U
-1

0
1

-1
m

m
.I

P
 

ls
X

Y
m

-m
-3

m
=

 
l

D
l

l
I

P
I

m
1

1
Y

m
-

m
~

m
.

Y
'
-

 
*Y

O
*U

w
-.
D

IM
.1

1
1
1
1
1
0
 

'-
-m

-m
U

 
-y

L
m

-=
-m

m
u

m
a

u
 

n
-

a
w

 
-

~
~

-
M

I
P

I
~

L
O

P
Z

~
 

o
 

Y
~

Q
w

.
Y

M
Q

~
~

~
-

-
 

m
p

~
-

a
~

w
.

~
s

~
-

a
~

i
~

~
~

~
~

 
n
 

=
s

u
ll

i-
1

~
1

 
W

m
-

I
 

-
m

m
T

*
O

*
-
r
m

-
-
m

s
u

m
m

 
m--*----a 

Y
L

ll
lP

-I
C

R
D

Im
v

m
-1

1
Y

-m
 

0
 

-
-
-
w

m
m

z
~

m
u

-
.m

 
I
I
I
*

P
Y

Q
U

-
 

mu= 
%z
LE
?&
-y
.*
l=
-~
 

~
m

m
m

~
-

r
n

m
y

w
m

w
1

~
 

'I 
m

v
w

-
m

u
m

u
a

m
u

.
a

a
r

m
-

s
u

r
m

 
m

-
m

-
v

 
'L

m
l-a

 
-O

*w
-1

--
 

~
1

y
m

~
c

l
1

*
1

~
1

1
1

1
~

 
-O

*
- 

-m
 

1
 

-m
--- 

1
 

IW
Y

 
- m ~

:
s

s
~

 
=

m
IW

-Y
=

m
 

~
~

l
l

D
l

l
l

l
~

U
~

V
~

~
I

T
M

B
N

 
1
 

W
m

M
O

*
a

m
d

m
--

o
m

1
1

--
 

~
~

l
~

w
u

-
m

~
r

m
-

s
u

m
-

m
a

w
m

 
r
 

'-t- 
a
 - em

-- 
- 1

;,-
S
 

n
m

m
-.

--
rn

-l
a
r 

-
1

II
s

u
ID

lP
W

O
*

-
~

Y
-
 

-m
-w

m
m

rx
u

m
m

-m
m

 
O

Y
*8

0
Il
)-

T
P

D
IO

*-
 

1
 

1
P

a
I-

=
Y

Y
n

v
m

l.
L

~
IY

n
a

1
D

Y
.D

L
IP

Iw
 

IIX
Y

m
*r

m
m

-.
--

- 
7
 

*
-Y

n
Im

--
*

r
r

r
n

m
, 

r 
--

O
*C

R
L
vm

m
ve

m
m

 
O

*-
m

rm
u
r*

 
Y

ll
i-

m
O

*
-m

- 
=!

--
~,

*-
~-

 -
m

n
 - 1

 

-m
-&

T
I-

s
u

 
-Y

ll
lP

D
ll
P

lY
- 

C
P

I
-
U

I
I
P

 
IP

Im
-
.-
T

I.
U

m
.)
m

m
ll
m

l 
O

 
m

l-.n
w

- 
r

p
v

v
o

r
N

l
l
D

l
n

a
m

D
u

 
m

-m
um

 
-O

*Y
(Y

D
D

.Y
IO

-a
-- 

m
-

l
~

e
a

m
o

*
-

m
~

~
'

"
~

 
1o..IpI..my.omU1PIau 

-
J

I
I
a

-
1

m
m

-
m

-
 

'1
 

Y
 

--
 

Ir
x

u
m

--
O

*m
m

ll
D

P
 

'-
-Y

lO
ll

li
-Y

m
.I

D
I 

~
-

-
-

a
o

m
u

m
m

U
 

'- 
n

 -
m

a
-
 

r
r

r
r

m
m

u
o

m
s

u
m

a
m

m
m

-
 

r
w

 
-

-
O

Y
m

-
1

m
m

a
p

D
r

r
 

-U
lm

D
Ill

D
D

D
 

IO
N

3
0

 0
1

1
1

0
1

0
-

~
l

W
-

I
Y

~
 

1
1
- 

.-(
D

u
rn

 
-
.I

p
Q

m
.x

y
m

~
m

-
 

m
b
4
 

m
~

D
u

I
D

Y
~

u
U

l
v

m
a

a
u

I
W

l
D

Y
I

W
 

0
 

-s
u
m

 
u

t
a

n
~

O
*

~
m

t
v

m
p

I
o

.
l

 
m

a
u
T

?
Ia

--
--

m
-L

-L
- 

-
a

m
 

I
m

 -
 

D
u

P
-O

*-
lL

lY
m

- 
IDIJ*YmDua-II.= 

3
1

m
"

m
m

-
~

~
 

m
m

m
Y

m
-

 
lP

P
lP

P
IU

-.
Y

Q
s

ll
ll

lI
- 

M
-

O
*

~
~

P
L

.
D

-
~

I
I

I
I

.
 

v
 

-O
-*
D

I.
Y

L
I.
II
L
ID

D
~
 

I
P

L
Y

I
O

~
I

-
~

~
~

-
~

 
-v

o
o

m
--

v
 

'u
a
u
m

 
m

r
n

u
a

-
r

n
v

n
o

*
r

a
v

~
~

r
u

a
-

 
r

m
D

l-
o

*
a

m
m

a
m

m
 

r 
m

l
I

-
~

.
u

I
y

-
v

m
-

 
m

W
&

r
-
-
-
~

-
m

Y
s

u
i 

G
~&

-&
=
zw

-a
- 

-I
P

Im
W

L
I-

m
-T

* 
n

 
-

w
a

r
n

 
%

n
II

m
-
lm

n
-
-
II

P
-
-
 

lu
u

m
m

m
 

O
Y

m
-

-
m

=
m

?
 

m
 -
 mw--r

*
m

lm
a

-
 

-
.
I
-
,
 

-llm
,-la
-T
" 

a
u

r
r

r
a

~
m

m
l

~
u

a
~

~
m

~
m

m
 

r
 

--
 n 

~
 

-
~

-
-

 
P

lY
I 

--
- 

v
1

r
r

r
r

m
l
Y

M
I

I
I

U
m

-
-

 
I
 .
 .
 .
 

'I
P

P
Y

 
~

 
~

 
~

 
~

 
-

~
-

 
I
I
P

-
n

l.
 

-~
*~

-u
Y

--
--

IP
 

w
 

- 
r

r
m

o
a

~
m

-
~

l
m

l
r

-
-

-
 

- 
- 

---
a
 

--
 urrao

*
m

a
u

n
m

-
-

 
tl

y
-w

m
u

- 
v

 
-

O
*

m
m

t
m

~
m

-
r

-
a

a
u

 
-.
ID

ID
 

-m
 

~
I
Y

R
-

1
0

1
a

-
I
m

.
r

a
 

'y
1
D

m
 

-
a

I
Y

I
P

I
t

c
w

W
*

c
l

m
 

'Y
II

m
-
m

IP
Iu

w
-
 

a
-1

1
1
1
 

-
I
-
_
.
.
*
-
-
 

* 
- d!

&
!-

-I
D

IP
2
!~

1
1
1
%

 
u

m
&

v
a

y
o

~
.
~

.
1

~
1

1
-

*
~

1
a

-
 

III
*D

U
O

-IB
Y
 

.--ID
- 

W
O

P
.
I
-

I
~

I
I
.
~

~
'L

-
~

 
-

~
m

-
-

~
*

m
u

m
-

 
. 

II
I*

Y
m

R
ll

P
ll

lP
Y

I-
1

1
1

*
-
IY

-
 

-m
-m

-.
*r

m
- 

'I
 

m
W

-
I
I
w

P
M

-
1

D
I
 

..
.I

D
Ip

Il
ll

D
a

--
II

-m
- 

P
I

I
a

 
sI

D
.I(

LI
Y

-.I
D

III
m

 
1
 

- 1.
 m

 0
1
 -

-m
~

w
m

a
u

.I
o

 
-O

*-
R

Y
a

--
 

0
 

E
k
z
z
m

m
5

m
 

w
 

v
Y

B
W

I
m

-
-

-
 

a
 

m
I
m

P
I
 

I
I
I
U

.
*
Y

I
I
I
I
P

 s
u

m
 

~
O

*
n

n
v

m
I

r
 

-
N

-
 

-O
II

P
O

*
--

u
1

1
 

n
a

u
u

-
a

I
Y

I
I

P
 

D
~

~
~

P
~

~
.

O
I

D
R

D
.

I
D

O
I

~
H

 
~

~
U

Y
O

IP
W

I~
-~

-T
*
 

+ 
R
E'%

rn--
-- 

Y
V
M

V
_
P
I 

tY
"F
T 
= 

-.*
--v

 
~

C
m

*
IP

P
-U

lQ
-l

lD
m

rr
s

l7
. 

'm
I~

IW
I-

w
Y

D
II

O
D

- 
a
u
m

- 
r

a
p

r
a

u
a

-
r

m
m

r
r

a
m

m
 

I
r

w
m

~
w

l
l

D
P

m
-

m
m

m
v

a
 

w
n

I
*

~
~

L
m

.
-

.
I

I
I

u
~

 
-O

*-
a
--

W
Ir

n
m

*I
P

P
 

z 
4
 

r
u

u
m

r
q

.
m

 
-m

-- 
m

IP
II

II
O

IO
L

~
ll

Il
m

--
- 

v
a

O
I

O
l
I

1
Y

O
*

a
u

m
r

r
m

a
r

a
.

p
u

 
7 

O
*-
-.b

nm
---

 
--

m
rm

m
--

1
D

I 
1
 

m
-I

D
Y

--
#
m

lll
D

lO
D

Y
m

m
--

m
 

-
I
-
.
*
-
-
 

1
 

-m
n
-m

.D
Ill

l*
 

a
-

O
*

.
o

*
~

T
*

.
I

I
y

Y
m

r
m

 
*I

II
IW

II
~
--

I~
)-

~
Y

 
r
r
m

D
r
a

-
m

*
L

B
Y

-
m

Y
W

r
Y

 
m

 
m

-1
Y

m
m

n
-w

m
Ip

u
y
o

D
 

a
 

a
--

m
m

u
a

u
-m

m
-m

 
w

 
m

~
l~

n
n

a
r
r
m

n
 

r
*

m
w

a
r

m
-

~
a

-
 

-
-
a
%
%
 

,
-

m
,

a
m

~
a

u
A

~
 

r
m

O
*

-
u

a
.

a
u

Y
-

r
-

 
m

-
ll

 
~

d
l

~
l

a
m

~
1

m
m

m
m

n
~

a
u

a
~

v
~

1
a

r
u

 
,1

1
1
0
- 

~
~

~
'

D
D

I
I

W
I

~
Y

~
Y

I
O

Y
-

 
1
 

--
m

re
~

o
m

m
a

-n
w

a
t+

a
w

 
n

 
a

w
m

a
w

*
~

~
-~

-m
-=

m
m

m
- 

lD
lW

Il
l 
a
 

--
- 

'I
 

ru
-a

w
-..

 

N
O

IS
N

V
dX

3 
2I

V
11

33
 1

1
3

M
 

lI
A

I3
 -

 
S

3L
O

N
 N

O
IL

3n
H

L
S

N
03

 



TITLE S H E E T  & DRAWING INDEX - CIVIL 
WELL CELLAR E X P A N S I O N  
MURPHY DRILL S I T E  

2126 W.  ADAMS BLVD,  L O S  A N G E L E S ,  CA 

DRAWING INDEX 
~ . ~.~ . - . .  .. .. ~ - - .  . .  - - 

DRAWING NO. WCRIPTION CAD DWG. NO. 
C-06249-14 E TITLE SHEEl & OPAWING INDEX - CIVIL C0624914 

C-06249-15 B cONBRUC~~ON NOTES - W~HWORK C0624915 

C-06249-16 B PLOT P U N  C0624916m?1 

C-06249- 17 E EXUVAlION P U N  C0624916rnr 

C-06249-18 E SECTIONS AND OCINLS C0624918 

PROJECT DATA: 
-'I P Y U L  WYE* WZ-032-010 

PROJECT VICINITY MAE 
L A  cwl". 0 

UYDYC OTSICYTIDI. "fCULYl C I U O I S  - "OW 
w r n  PU-I: T*CINC- uua*c roa wrri c r L M  ENGINEER OWNER'S REP./PROJECT MANAGER: lQE 

CXWII~W mum: 12s) m ms. 
,i C- LYCIUEERS 8°C. Ye. JIM "CLYI* 

P ~ ~ c ~  SITE IS L ~ ~ r ~  -8" ulu or 

FILL -~m- a n  cu. m. 2m *n ri8- n*o. rulrr 270 
I Y C R T I F L O .  C*LmlNY IJ>W rulrinm  PLY^ rrnoarna mcarra a paoarno*  c a u ~ u r  72s,".:O%5d5fMZTEiM" WST 

R~POITD WR w C O ~ ~ R Y C M *  7.- - 7 msl m: s6?-83>-e7a2 
56.0 WYTY rmrrx rwwr BL EOUIPRO n w  u e m u %  uo*ran*c 

ru a s ~ - a ~ l - u l ~ o  LOS UCOLTI. o 9mss o m r  04 u i w u l m  BT -*I P I P  

PR(I*NI) CDl I l l lUCTOl  ITM CAE JUNE 28. >ml PH.. (3231 2W-2211 
PL-WL 

Ty (3131 110-20.1 

-a WRYCII I l  OUIUlXW I O U  18. 2m7 - ICPI >P. 2ml 
U K P A ~  mcr- TOUIPW: (11 - W*FEL r w r a  IW 9= OR COUW.) 

(I) - YIL C M I C l O B  (-1. 1158 CS TOUNJ 

7 

PROJECT LOCATION 
2126 WEST ADAYS BOULEVARD 







P L A I N S  EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION 
COMPANY 



TITLE S H E E T  & VICINITY MAP - S T R U C T U R A L  
12 WELL CELLAR EXPANSION 

M U R P H Y  DRILL S I T E  
2126 W.  ADAMS BLVD, L O S  A N G E L E S ,  CA 

- -~m-rnuos '  
01 YI* n, no, 

DRAWING INDEX 

DRAWING NO. DESCRIPTION CAD DWG. NO. 
A r l n E  SHEET L VICINIT~ HW - STRUCTURU ~ 0 6 ~ 4 9 0 1  

A CONSTRUCTtON NOTES - STRUCTURAL 50624905 

A FOUNDATION SITE PL*N SO624906 

1 
5-062.9-07 CELUR - FOUNDATION LOCATION PUN SO624907 

A CELUR - FOUNDATION PLNi SO624908 

A CELUR - ENURCEO CONCRETE PL*N k OETULS I T  WEST EN0 50624909 

A CELLAR - STRUCTURU STEEL. CR4nNC PL*N h SECTIONS 50624910 

j 
I 

5-062.9-11 CELUR - SECTIONS k OETNLS 5062191 1 1 S-062.9-I2 : CELUR - SECnONS & OETNLS S06249!2 -A 

PROJECT V l C l N l T Y M A P  
L A  wm. 0 
Y*r NO*< 

PROJECT DATA; PERMIT ACTIVITY ENGINEER OWNER'S REP./PROJECT MANAGER: 

OfCUPYCT C I N P  C I N P  U. mg* I 
w*C RRn w """"I-"i.."-lli"*l T d  - m-, rm.2 

zm *R m*r -. vlm 270 
Y1 ,I1 ULY* 
MI O-m *amma* c c w u r  

CALIFORNI* "?c c. - my'( m- e t w  wo 
WLL caw rrvuum 

.""""-"..."-""",i w m ,  WT- 0,- 
wm: m I mum, r l 

5410 IOLm "1wu . W S  

R(. U I -831 - I IU  . I73 
LOI .*-. 0 e m s  

AREA MAP mlim ~ O T  wr- wtraws cmr (C I c 1. 2m1 T- YO ur NI. U I - W I - ~ ~ S  
P". [3>,1 z .B-zzs  

I W . * O * l  
L O U  - ru (m3) zr-nr! 

WOCY cccroam M P-w r a r e  s*rrrumr r rrrum raou 
YOU LOUI- TYF O P F L T I W  Y O  
wnrmwm OT r * C  <aYAlUT ILQUI- TY*CnOM W T  
wm L .-w e7 l u0- P- 

LAINS EXPLORATI DUCTION COMPANY 

I 1 9 5 9  1 5 2 2 7  (c4 +) 
% - -.- - c I.L 

. -  *.-&';i 
" I  

r f r  i 



CONSIRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS TOR 
PUlNS UPLORATION L PRODUCTION COMPANY 

Wm-. rn m SR-m* - w CD*- 
mLWOm mL II m-/- RE- 

,. CDI- * CLmmC - IUU(L -,, a; *&".-. D m  
mu. mUCrUn I- TOUIYM*I. U r n C  m- mu. 

A. CENEUL m o r n  ~ m . g * g ~ ~ ~ m . m r n s m o , a u e s l w c ~ l s e n ~ , r o u r  
LnB .g/m Ymm YL-. 

I. U ~ . U C D I D ~ Y ~ O M ( U ~ O U - C D D L L D U -  
Y O a u m . * c n r n w u o m M a m . w . M r p w u a r  6. - wm- 1" DY - - IYIm UIllLII L COYP*m, * - m rw rw- m a n  : 

z ~ m s u a ~ r n ~ ~ u v r a ~ ~ - .  -., ", - 
C*J- cm w lrcuunas m a, u o  cm a rr- "--. m rs. MM" s roar m a r .  u o  - - mas r-w, s pnusrr m r*r rmrmrm* w mfs 
P-CT *O P R O M S  -a W L TOLUICO. 1,. Mn 
a1l*m6m5mrru*ryr rmmruwrYO-a  
c a m .  nm rm r*c - rn my - n f ~  
I I E I P O * P I Y ~ ~  I m m r o  m sr u o  uwr mu v r a r  ncsr w 
c m m .  

D. IEINFMICEO CONCRETE 

, C m  mOeP1FI - III OT I --*"". - -. ",.- 
-SM SraaCm w (m m . u mn me YU L 
~ x w  rml  -- I r- PII 'M m n- r n ~ r r ~ o s  CIM m c- I-- momnevr umtmm 

C- l u a o  - nan rro-cr m w r n a ' s  
. E F O r a D T O I 7  

I NOTE: I 
8. SITE PREPARATION/FOUNDATIOHS 

0 -0. rmnlr mu* 0'-0- 

"I* YI r-rn RY W" 

- I .I I REFERENCE DRAWINGS 
rm-l Ilm-.uamw-mtnuu 12 mCELS CELUR EXF'ANSION 

MURPHY DRILL SITE PXP 
EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION PLAINS COMPANY 











6 hn P U  85 rm r*c mmnar DCYU or S O Y I r n P C  - OWL" u m o * s  m -cur mvrm w r 
n o m  

5 -o. YI.Y m n  nc rar- rr n sm rnlm ro 
sm or cornus -  
* ' W l N m  -rn 
B n*Y - YO XP or u*cpIII. M L " O l 5  

C. rwlsrmr ~ ~ M C T S  u~ nc-m PO,W? mrns  
U D  E L N I n O t I  

0. C w w m  W .L10 slli U1 Y O  *I .- 
ImoarS*ctr *orro wwc " c u  KIIlFCIma TO 
RYM mourn L m- rnww m m m  - To 7°C S M  O TO*sw,m!c. 

a n vvlr sr nr  -*ssun or m m o a  ro r m m  u 
nlm*c r s h ~  uo u * m  -NO a m = .  a w n .  
MUM, m. ro rs P- nol nau - m 
c o r n *  YYI mum" n* *I ouu, S7.m YO L o u *  - .tYIunaO YO u RYm CLmmTI* 1 P l m U C m  
CCYPYCI ICT m wm*c u pusrs or mlr am 

~ - - 

. .  ~ 

~ . ~ -~~ -~~ p~~ .~ 

. ~ 

PLAINS EXPLORATI DUCTION COMPANY 



- 1-1 REFERENCE DRAWINGS REVISED 
IQt*-U) I IrnIM.OIU.OO-s,"XXw 

I I PXP - - - -  -1 P U I N S  EXPLORATION & PRODUCTION COMPANY I I I I / I 1"- mm T 1 cno.. AVXICUI COHTROL 

wr  rr I., urns 
- 8 1  

12 XEU CELLAR EXPANSION 
YURPHY DRILL SITE 





CONSTRUCTION PLAN 
WELL CELLAR RINGS 

LAS CIENEGAS FIELD - MURPHY CONTROLLED DRILLSITE 

PROJECT: Construction of temporary well cellars (cellar rings) for up to three wells PXP 
proposes to drill in late 2007. 

Schedule: Up to three (3) cellar rings will be constructed as soon as practical after the 
effective date contained within the Zoning Administrator's determination, and upon 
procurement of all required permitting requirements. The current drilling rig schedule 
estimates first mobilization into the controlled drillsite commencing on October 28, 2007; 
actual in the ground drilling is expected to commence on November 1, 2007. The ring cellars 
will take approximately 2-3 days each to construct. 

Hours of Construction: Construction hours will be limited to 8am - 6pm, 6 days per week. 
No work will be conducted on Sundays. 

Noise Mitigation: Noise from equipment used to construct the ring cellars is expected to be 
within limits allowed during normal daytime activity at the site; therefore no noise mitigation is 
required. 

Dust control: Construction personnel will water the site on an as-needed basis to maintain 
dust levels below those stipulated by the South Coast AQMD for construction activities. 
Driveways and parking areas shall be regularly washed down, swept or otherwise kept free of 
accumulated dirt, dust, or other materials which would produce dust. 

Traffic ControllHeavy loads: Approximately 20 cubic yards of soil per cellar will be 
removed from the site. This will require an average of 2 truck trips per cellar; all permitted 
loads within the City of Los Angeles. The frequency of trucks enteringlleaving the Murphy 
site should not pose any undue safety risk to motorists on Adams Boulevard. 

Parking: Parking for construction contractors shall be limited to the temporary overflow 
parking area, East of the drillsite, limited to working daylight hours. No parking of contractor 
personnel will be allowed on Adams Boulevard and trucks will not be allowed to idle outside 
of the site pending entrance into the site. 

L.A. City Building Permit: Generally, ring cellars are considered by local Building & Safety 
Departments to be part of the oil well and, as such, are not permitted separately. However, 
PXP will review potential permitting requirements for ring cellars with LA City Building & 
Safety upon approval by City Planning. PXP will adhere to all construction requirements from 
the respective agencies. 

DOGGR approval: Should LA City Building & Safety require separate permitting of the ring 
cellars, DOGGR review and approval of the construction plans will be secured. 







 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT H 



UNN K.WYATT 
CHIEF ZONING ADMINISTRATOR CITY OF Los ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF 

CITY PLANNING 
VINCENT P. BERTONI, AICP 

DIRECTOR 
ASSOCIATE ZONING ADMINISTRATORS 

JACK CHIANG 
HENRY CHU 

LOURDES GREEN 
ALETA D. JAMES 

JAE H. KIM 
CHARLES J. RAUSCH, JR. 

FERNANDO TOVAR 
DAVIDS. WEINTRAUB 
MAYA E. ZAITZEVSKY 

June 30, 2016 

Steven P. Rusch, Vice President (A) 
Freeport-McMoRan Oil & Gas, LLC 
5640 South Fairfax Avenue 
Los Angeles, CA 90056 

The Roman Catholic Archbishop of 
Los Angeles (0) 

3424 Wilshire Boulevard 
Los Angeles, CA 90010 

L. Rae Connet (R) 
PetroLand Services 
3625 Del Amo Boulevard, Suite 330 
Torrance, CA 90503 

CALIFORNIA 

OFFICE OF 
ZONING ADMINISTRATION 

200 N. SPRING STREET, 7'" FLOOR 

Los ANGELES, CA 90012 
(213) 978-1318 

ERIC GARCETTI 

FAX: (213) 978-1334 
www.planning.lacity.org 

MAYOR 

CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) 
APPROVAL OF PLANS 
2126 West Adams Boulevard 
South Los Angeles Planning Area 
Zone [Q]R4-1-0-HPOZ 
D. M. 1238193 
C. D. : 10 
CEQA : ENV 2014-2482-CE 
Legal Description: Lot A, Tract 9454 

Pursuant to Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 13.01, I hereby DENY: 

methods and conditions for the installation and use of a Clean Enclosed Burner 
("CEB800") and appurtenant sound attenuation wall at an existing oil drilling site 
located within Oil Drilling District U-37, and modification of Condition No. 49 of 
Section 13.01-F with respect to hours of operation during project construction to 
allow delivery of oversized loads between the hours of 8:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

After thorough consideration of the statements contained in the application, the plans 
submitted therewith, and the statements made at the public hearing on May 12, 2015, all of 
which are by reference made a part hereof, as well as knowledge of the property and 
surrounding district, I find as follows: 

BACKGROUND 

The subject site, known as the Murphy Controlled Drilling Site, is located on a slightly 
sloping, approximately 3.25 acre, irregular-shaped parcel with a frontage of 323 feet along 
the southerly side of Adams Boulevard, between Cimarron Street to the west and 
Manhattan Place to the east, and a frontage of 165 feet along the northerly side of 27th 
Street. The site is zoned [Q]R4-1-0-HPOZ and located within Urbanized Oil Drilling District 
U-37 as established in 1959 by Ordinance No. 114,701. The present use of the site is oil 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE2 

production. At the north, the drill site is enclosed with a concrete block wall which is set 
back from Adams Boulevard approximately 25 feet. Along 27th Street, the property is 
enclosed by a 6-foot high wrought iron fence with approximately 44,900 square feet (1.03 
acre) of landscaped area immediately behind it. A block wall, varying in height from 21 feet 
to 29 feet because of topographical variations, is located a distance of 265 feet from 27th 
Street. In addition to the landscaped area, the site is developed with tanks, well cellars, 
pumps, generators, compressors, operational buildings, and a parking area. The property 
is accessed via a pair of gates and driveways on Adams Boulevard and via a gate and 
driveway on 27th Street. 

The applicant is requesting an Approval of Plans to consider methods and conditions for 
the installation and use of a Clean Enclosed Burner ("CEB800") and appurtenant sound 
attenuation wall ("Sound Wall") at the subject premises, as well as the modification of 
Condition No. 49 of Section 13.01-F to allow for delivery of oversized loads between the 
hours of 8:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. during project construction, if such hours of delivery are 
required by traffic law enforcement officials. The proposed location of the CEB800 and 
Sound Wall installation is on the southerly landscaped portion of the site, affixed to the 
south side of the existing block wall. The total footprint of the proposed installation, 
including the Sound Wall enclosure, is 1,500 square feet (60 feet in width and 25 feet in 
depth). The Sound Wall will be approximately 245 feet from 27th Street at its nearest point. 
An 8-foot high chain link fence surrounds a portion of the Sound Wall, which will be planted 
with climbing vines. A 10-foot high concrete block wall and gate separates the proposed 
installation area from the existing landscaped area. As part of the project, the applicant 
proposes changes in landscaping, including new trees, shrubs, and groundcover, to 
accommodate and disguise the new enclosure. No new drilling of oil wells is proposed as 
part of the subject application. 

Properties to the north, across Adams Boulevard, are zoned R4-1-0-HPOZ and developed 
with a library (LA84 Foundation Library) and apartment buildings. Properties to the south, 
across 27th Street, are zoned RD2-1-0-H POZ and developed with single-family dwellings 
and apartment buildings. The adjoining property to the east is zoned [Q]R4-1-0-HPOZ and 
developed with an apartment complex (St. Andrews Gardens). The adjoining properties to 
the west are zoned [Q]R4-1-0-HPOZ and developed with a convent (Servants of Mary, 
Ministers to the Sick) and a healthcare center (AIDS Healthcare Foundation). 

West Adams Boulevard, adjoining the property to the north, is a Major Highway Class II 
dedicated to a width of 100 feet with asphalt roadway, concrete curb, gutter, and parkway. 

West 27th Street, adjoining the property to the south, is a Local Street dedicated to a width 
of 60 feet and fully improved with asphalt roadway, concrete curb, gutter, and parkway. 

Previous zoning related actions on the site include: 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA4)-1A- On June 3, 2014, the South Los Angeles Area 
Planning Commission denied appeals from two appellants without prejudice. Based 
on the agreements, the parties involved agreed to on the record that any issues will 
be raised at the public hearing for a subsequent Plan Approval. 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA4) - On December 26, 2013, the Zoning Administrator 
approved the installation of the CEB800 and Sound Wall subject to specific 
conditions. On March 11, 2014, the Zoning Administrator issued a communication 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE3 

clarifying that the determination is appealable and established a fifteen day appeal 
period pursuant to the provisions of Los Angeles Municipal Code Section 13.01-H. 

Ordinance No. 181,769-0n June 28, 2011, the Los Angeles City Council passed 
an ordinance amending Section 12.04 of the Los Angeles Municipal Code to 
establish the Jefferson Park Historic Preservation Overlay Zone (HPOZ). 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA4) - On December 26, 2007, the Zoning Administrator 
approved the expansion of an existing gas plant on the facility, subject to specific 
conditions. Equipment additions included six vertical absorbers, a gas compressor, 
a recirculation pump, a heat exchanger, and sound enclosures, all manufactured 
off-site, to be installed on the premises. 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA4) - On September 14, 2007, the Zoning Administrator 
approved methods and conditions controlling drilling and production operations for 
the expansion of the existing well cellar with a maximum of twelve new well slots, 
including the drilling of two new Class "A" oil wells and one Class "B" well, 
respectively identified as M-28, M-29, and M-30 of the Murphy Drill Site within 
Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-37 and M-30 respectively, and the future 
drilling of nine additional wells for a maximum total of 38 well slots. 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA3) - On March 13, 2006, the Zoning Administrator 
approved methods and conditions controlling drilling and production operations for 
the re-drilling of three Class "A" oil wells, including the conversion of two Class "B" 
wells into Class "A" wells, identified as M-2RD1, M-12RD1, and M-14RD2 of the 
Murphy Drill Site within Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36, U-37, and U-82 
respectively. 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA2) - On April 15, 2005, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for a Plan Approval pursuant to the instruction of the Chief 
Zoning Administrator, relative to initiating Council Motions (Ludlow-Reyes and Perry
Parks), dated April 13, 2004, in which it has been determined that the subject use 
poses no significant nuisance to adjoining or neighboring properties. The subject of 
the Council Motions was, in part, concerning resident complaints of oil fumes and 
noise arising from recent oil drilling operations at the existing oil drilling site at 2126 
West Adams Boulevard. 

Case No. ZA 15227(0)(PA 1) - On August 1, 2003, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for an approval of plans to temporarily modify Condition No. 12 
of Case No. ZA 15227 to allow the re-drilling of two oil wells on a 24-hour, seven 
day per week basis for approximately 40 days. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On February 15, 1994, the Zoning Administrator approved a 
request for methods and conditions for the expansion of an existing well cellar at the 
Murphy Drill Site in order to provide additional space for the future drilling of six 
Class "A" oil wells. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 16182 - On June 22, 1993, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for methods and conditions for the re-drilling of three Class "A" 
oil wells identified as 26RD2, 16RD, and 5RD of the Murphy Drill Site involving 
Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-82 and U-37. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE4 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15890 - On January 22, 1993, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for an approval of plans to remove and distribute 366 cubic 
yards of dirt at the Murphy Drill Site in order to provide additional space for the re
drilling of three Class "A" oil wells. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15890 - On December 29, 1992, the Zoning 
Administrator approved a request for methods and conditions for the re-drilling of 
three Class "A" oil wells identified as 1 ORD2, 22RD, and 21 RD of the Murphy Drill 
Site involving Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36 and U-37. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15890 - On February 4, 1992, the Zoning Administrator 
approved a request for methods and conditions for the re-drilling of one Class "A" oil 
well identified as Murphy No. 7 involving Urbanized Oil Drilling District Nos. U-36 
and U-37. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On July 18, 1985, the Zoning Administrator approved plans 
for the installation and operation of gas treating equipment to extract carbon dioxide 
from natural gas on property identified as the Murphy Drill Site. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 20385 - On April 4, 1972, the Zoning Administrator 
approved plans for construction of an approximately 10 feet by 40 feet enlargement 
onto the easterly side of the well cellar on the Murphy Drill Site, with the new 
construction containing space for four additional oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 20385- On November 25, 1970, the Zoning Administrator approved a 
request for methods and conditions for the re-drill of Murphy No. 18 oil well 
bottomed under Oil Drilling District No. 36 and for drilling of Murphy No. 22 
bottomed under U-82, and for temporary relaxation of Condition Nos. 1, 3, 6, 7, 8 
and 12 of extant ZA Case No. 15227. 

Case No. ZA 19951 - On September 10, 1969, the Zoning Administrator approved 
a request for methods and conditions for the resumption of drilling operations for oil 
wells to be bottomed in the involved Oil Drilling District U-37 and adjoining Districts 
U-36, U-38 and U-82. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On November 14, 1966, the Zoning Administrator approved 
plans for alternations primarily in the way of a new door and vent in the existing 
electric switch house on the southerly side of the subject property. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227, 15891, and 15973 - On April 13, 1966, the Zoning 
Administrator approved the temporary installation and operation of an enclosed 
hydraulic pumping unit only for Well No. 10 on the controlled drill site. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On April 9, 1963, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for 
an addition to the compressor building, a new Glycol generator and absorber 
installation, and a clean-up tank. 

Case No. ZA 16218 - On June 15, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre 
District No. U-82 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE 5 

Case No. ZA 16185 - On June 15, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre 
District No. U-81 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case No. ZA 16184-0n June 7, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 153-acre District 
No. U-84 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case No. ZA 16183 - On June 7, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 150-acre District 
No. U-83 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15937 - On June 1, 1962, the Zoning Administrator 
approved plans for the permanent production facilities, including additional gas-oil 
separators, a vapor compressor, tanks, gas scrubbers, and accessory buildings. 

Case No. ZA 16182 - On May 24, 1962, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre District 
No. U-82 for the bottoming of an exploratory oil well. 

Case Nos. ZA 15227 and 15937 - On December 27, 1961, the Zoning 
Administrator approved plans for limited production facilities on the site such as 
drain and skimmer pits, gas-oil separators, relief line scrubber and well manifolding. 

Case No. ZA 15937 - On November 1, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved 
the use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 776-acre 
District No. U-36 to U-40 for the bottoming of not to exceed 16 oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15912 - On October 2, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 158-acre 
District No. U-40 for the bottoming of not to exceed eight oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15911 - On September 29, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved 
the use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 146-acre 
District No. U-39 for the bottoming of not to exceed seven oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15891 - On August 31, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 153-acre 
District No. U-38 for the bottoming of not to exceed seven oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15890 - On August 30, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the 
use of the subject drill site and use of the subsurface underneath the 160-acre 
District No. U-36 for the bottoming of not to exceed eight oil wells. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On May 9, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for 
landscaping, camouflage for the derrick acoustical quilt, derrick, DC converter 
house, mud pump, and shaker house. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On May 2, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved plans for 
drilling equipment and various facilities, grading, retaining walls, masonry walls, 



I I 

CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE6 

drainage concrete structures, drilling cellar, drilling pad, and gates on the subject 
property. 

Case No. ZA 15227 - On April 5, 1961, the Zoning Administrator approved the use 
of the subject property as a controlled drilling site not to exceed five oil wells under 
certain prescribed conditions and methods of operation with the understanding that 
additional wells may later be permitted. 

Ordinance No. 114,701 -On October 6, 1959, the Los Angeles City Council passed 
an Ordinance amending Sections 12.04 and 13.01 of the Los Angeles Municipal 
Code, establishing Oil Drilling District No. U-37. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

A public hearing was held on May 12, 2015, and was attended by the applicant's 
representatives, L. Rae Connet, the applicant's attorney, approximately 100 members of 
the public and applicant employees and a representative of Council District 10. 

The applicant's representatives stated the following: 

Amy Forbes representing the applicant stated: 

• Project is not related to drilling activities on the site; 

• Project supports previously approved operations; 

• All wells have been authorized since 1961; specifics of those were approved over 
time; 

• The CEB is 24 feet in height; 

• This is not a split project. Project's which add new machinery for the operations of 
the site are typically handled through a "review of plans"; 

• This is not an expansion of the footprint of the site. In 1961, the original site which 
is leased from the Catholic Archdiocese of Los Angeles was 2.83 acres in size and 
was described as running from West Adams Boulevard to 27th Street. There was 
an addition in later years which was used for a parking lot on the east side of the 
site. There was no restriction in any of the Plan Approvals for the site which 
restricted to use the area to the south of the wall which separates the upper level 
along Adams from the lower level adjacent to 27th; 

• There have historically been buildings or uses in the landscaped area on the 
southern portion of the property. It is not a designated park either historically or in 
the Conditions of Approval for the drill site. It is part of the Archdiocese's land and 
was rented in its entirety for the drill site. There are pipes under the surface of the 
landscaped area and there are pipes which extend through the wall which separates 
the upper and lower section of the site. There is no public access to the landscaped 
area because it is a part of an active and operating oil field. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE7 

• Work has begun on the site which is to the location of the CEB. Some of the 
landscaping has been removed, and it is not visible from 27th Street because the 
work area is screened by existing trees and shrubs that are in front of the work site; 

• Opponents of the proposed project have said that we are out of compliance with our 
permits but we believe that we are in compliance with all of our conditions both 
those imposed by the Zoning Administrator and those required by other agencies. 
We have not been cited by Code Enforcement agencies and are in compliance with 
EPA, SCAQMD and DOGGER regulations; 

• Among our safety measures are fire monitor cannons which can cover any fire with 
foam which is the accepted substance for controlling oil fires. We can cover the 
entire drill site and will be able to cover the new CEB site also. We have extensive 
gas detection monitors and an Emergency Response Plan for both the site and the 
nearby neighborhood; 

• The rational for installing the CEB is for redundancy in removing natural gas which 
cannot be either sold to Southern California Gas Company, burned in our micro
turbines or reinjected into the ground by our injection well. We believe that 
Condition No. 46 in our Conditions of Approval permit this. Condition 46 says that 
"proven technological improvements in drilling and production methods shall be 
adopted as they may become, from time to time, available, if capable of reducing 
factors of nuisance and annoyance." The CEB that we want to install is classified 
as Best Available Control Technology by the SCAQMD, it will be completely 
obscured from view and it will be placed at appropriate distance from adjacent 
residences and other uses; 

• State regulations on quality of natural gas produced as a by-product of oil drilling 
have changed so not all of the gas produced by the on-site wells can be sold to the 
Gas Company. The existing volume of gas which cannot be sold to the Gas 
Company exceeds the capacity of our micro-turbines. The CEB cannot be located 
elsewhere on the site because of the height of our existing structures and 
regulations that will not permit us to place flames near our micro-turbines which are 
powered by natural gas. The height of our existing sheds is 16 to 18 feet high. The 
CEB is 24 feet high. We would need to take one of our existing equipment sheds 
out of operation, demolish it and then construct a new one as well as find a new 
location for the displaced use. This would be far more impactful to the area than 
installing the burner at the location we desire; and 

• We cannot install more micro-turbines because our Department of Water and 
Power contract limits us to the generation of 350 killowatts of power generation. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE8 

Those opposed to the project: 

Laura Myers 

• The United Neighborhoods Neighborhood Council voted not to support the project. 
We are opposed to the expansion of equipment into the southerly landscaped 
portion of the site; 

• We are opposed to the use of a Categorical Exemption for a CEQA clearance and 
believe that an Environmental Assessment should be filed and that a full 
Environmental Impact Report should be the proper CEQA clearance; 

• We support the use of the CEB 800, the current BACT, but we are opposed to its 
location outside the wall which separates the landscaped southern portion of the 
site from the main drilling site. We, again, believe that an Environmental Impact 
Report should be processed for the project; 

• We support the imposition of conditions of approval which were proposed at a 
series of public meetings which were noticed and were not included in the 
application; 

• In the matter of the reading of case history, we interpret differently some of the 
conditions and findings for the case over time from the applicant. The location of 
the wall which surrounds the active drilling site with a masonry wall which hides the 
active portion of the site from view. The subject site is outlined in previously 
adopted plans with a wall which matches the existing perimeter of the masonry wall 
and stops at the upper level of the plateau on the site. It does not include the 
landscaped area facing 27th Street; 

• The Jefferson Park neighborhood is located in the historic bed of the Los Angeles 
River which used to flow into the Pacific Ocean in Playa Del Rey not Long Beach. 
The upper plateau in the site is granite and differs geologically from lower part of the 
site adjacent to 27th Street; 

• Trees planted in the landscaped area have died over time. The UNNC has 
requested for additional landscaping including trees in the front of the site. The 
operator should meet with all local parties to try and open the landscaped area to 
the public in this park poor area. There should be an annual landscape review 
placed in the conditions for the site; 

• There are no fire fighting measures for the lower portion of the site, and it is not safe 
to place the CEB 800 in it; 

• Three reasons have been provided for the installation of the CEB: the micro
turbines on the site are at the end of their useful life; for expanded oil production on 
the site; and for redundancy. We ask for the production of an Environmental Impact 
Report to address and analyze these disputed items; and 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE9 

• The Historic Preservation Zone's Board does matter, and they have not been given 
a chance to approve the new sound wall treatment. 

Michael Salman 

• The appeals to the South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission on the original 
grant for the Gas Flare were never heard by the APC. They were settled by 
agreement between the applicant and the appellants; 

• In 1961, the city council passed the ordinance for creating the Oil Drilling District 
Supplemental Use District and set up the approval of controlled site approvals. It 
requires that every drilling of a well has to be approved by the Zoning Administrator 
through a discretionary review process and a public hearing; 

• They are not following procedures of abandoning wells after they cease being used 
and removing equipment. For instance well f-46 is not in an active condition on the 
site, and they are not removing equipment or replacing it. They just add more 
equipment to the site without removing old unused equipment; 

• They currently have cogeneration electric turbines on the site which are powered by 
waste natural gas. These turbines provide some level of autonomy to the site as 
the turbines provide up to one-fifth of the electricity needed for the site. Their 
Department of Water and Power contract does not specify a 350 kw. limit. They 
can install more turbines if they wanted to. There are 1-2 megawatt facilities in the 
south bay which use waste natural gas flow; 

• This project is illustrative of a pattern of errors and a revolving door of stories in the 
changes to the project description. The master land use application does not 
request expansion of work facility or relief from conditions pertaining to hours of 
operations. It does request a change to hours of delivery of equipment. The 
applicant does not require a conditional use permit. They are requesting a height 
exemption basically for a chimney for the flare. The micro-turbines were not 
approved by a Zoning Administrator as nothing was found in the case files 
approving them. There are a number of plan approvals with site plans but none with 
micro-turbines. The Code has no prohibitions for having micro-turbines. The 
footprint for the micro-turbines was approved but no document can be found for an 
application; and 

• The applicant submitted the form for a Categorical Exemption for a CEQA 
clearance. The application stated that the burner is "not required for previously 
approved wells but required for environmental control and efficient operation". 

Steve Peckman 

• Stated that this is a "densely packed neighborhood that needs green space"; 



. ' 

CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE 10 

• The boundaries of the drilling site were set to demonstrate respect for the 
surrounding community. Condition 22 of the original determination calls out for 
setbacks from surrounding residential uses. Condition No. 5 requires that all 
portions of the drilling site be enclosed within a wall. The upper level section 
adjacent to Jefferson Boulevard was to be the single location for the drilling 
operation. There have been no discussions about opening the rear, landscaped 
part of the site to the public; 

• There are apartments directly adjacent to the proposed CEB location. They are 
only 35 feet away; 

• 27th Street should never be used for operations or truck traffic except in an extreme 
emergencies; 

• There are inadequate scientific or legal justifications for the installation of the burner 
nor are there any technical assessments available to the public about the need for 
it. It is unclear if the location of the CEB would impede firefighting equipment or if 
there is access to firefighting equipment if it is placed behind a wall downslope of 
the remainder of the drilling site; and 

• They need to show respect for our community which we do not believe that they 
have shown. We request that the United Neighborhood Council's conditions be 
approved or the case should be denied. 

Other comments in opposition: 

• I support the Neighborhood Council's proposed conditions and the processing of an 
environmental impact report for the project. We are concerned that the applicant 
has changed their story on the need for the burner too many times to the point that 
they are contradicting themselves. We are concerned about the community's safety 
as there is no known evacuation plan for an emergency. The site is surrounded by 
homes, apartments and a convalescent home; 

• I helped to design the open space or the park. The community has safety concerns 
as well as believing that this will set a precedent for non-oil drilling equipment being 
placed on the site. We do not want additional traffic and trucks accessing the site 
from 27th Street which is a local residential street not designed for being occupied 
or used by heavy construction vehicles; 

• There has been no environmental review of the project even though it is surrounded 
by sensitive uses; 

• The National Resources Defense Council's local office objects to the use of a 
Categorical Exemption for this project. We believe that the applicant is segmenting 
the project which is illegal under CEQA. There are permitting irregularities. We 
believe that the integrity of the process is key in any approval of this use on the site 
and believe that an environmental impact report is required so that there is full 



' . 
CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE 11 

public disclosure of the effects of the project and better information for both the 
decision maker and any appeal body; 

Amy Forbes in Rebuttal: 

• The installation of the CEB is not for replacement of any existing infrastructure. 
Because of a change in the rules for the quality of off-spec gas, we cannot sell as 
much of this gas to Southern California Gas Co. as we have in the past. We will 
need the CEB even if we withdrew some of our existing wells from production. We 
have no intention to expand our approved drilling wells with the purchase of the 
CEB. The CEB does have a higher internal operating temperature so we cannot 
place it close to the existing gas well head whereas the existing turbines operate at 
a lower temperature and can be closer to the well head; 

• We originally thought that a review of plans for the installation of the CEB was 
appropriate, but we now believe that the Plan Approval process is more appropriate 
after the appeal of the review of plans and community outreach; 

• We do not believe that the approval of the installation of the CEB triggers a CEQA 
review as the oil drilling field is a pre-existing use and the baseline would include it 
as an existing use. We are not exempting health and safety requirements as the 
installation has already been approved by the SCAQMD and the Los Angeles City 
Fire Department; and 

• Testimony has been received about the drill site boundaries. The 1963 
determination included the full legal description of the site which stretched from 
Adams Boulevard to 27th Street. The back acreage, though landscaped, does have 
existing infrastructure related to the drill site including both a gas and an oil pipeline. 
The CEB will be 55 to 65 feet from the southern property line and 90 feet from the 
nearest residential use. 

Sylvia Lacy speaking on behalf of Council District No. 10 stated that she would like to see 
the case's record kept open for an additional 30 days and would like time to see if she can 
bring the oil company and the community together to work out a solution to this problem. 

ISSUES BEFORE THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR 

CEQA CLEARANCE: 

Much of the testimony and letters to the file dealt with the environmental clearance for the 
project. The clearance in the file is a Categorical Exemption which was refiled on 
February 18, 2015 based on Article Ill, Section 1, Class 1, Categories 2, 6 and 32, and 
Class 3, Category 4 of the City's CEQA guidelines. These exemptions are for Class 1, 
Category 2: "The operation, repair, maintenance or minor alteration of existing facilities of 
both investor and publicly owned utilities, electrical power, natural gas, sewage, water, 
telephone and mechanical systems serving existing facilities, including alteration to 
accommodate a specific use; Class 1, Category 6: "Adoption of safety, security, health or 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE12 

environmental protection devices for use during construction of or in conjunction with 
existing structures, facilities or mechanical equipment, or topographical features; Class 1, 
Category 32: "Installation, maintenance or modification of mechanical equipment and 
public convenience devices and facilities which are accessory to the use of the existing 
structures or facilities and involve the negligible or no expansion of use; and Class 3, 
Category 4: "Installation of new equipment and/or industrial facilities involving negligible or 
no expansion of use if required for safety, health, the public convenience or environmental 
control". Those in opposition to the project claimed that, at the least, an Initial Study 
should be filed for the project and that the Initial Study should lead to the filing of an 
Environmental Impact Report. 

The Zoning Administrator did not require that an Initial Study be filed for the case because 
he denied the case which does not require an environmental clearance. In this case, if an 
approval was to be granted, I would agree that an Initial Study should be filed. As stated in 
the findings, testimony at the public hearing from the applicant declared that the project 
was for redundancy in the systems to remove excess natural gas from the oil stream which 
could not be cleaned for use by the Southern California Gas Company. The backup 
information for the Categorical Exemption did not contain any information on why the 
installation of the CEB would not reach a level of insignificance but was based on legal 
reasoning on why a Categorical Exemption was valid and why the applicant believed that 
the installation merely was adding "proven technological improvements" to the existing 
facility consistent with Condition 46 of Section 13.01 of the Municipal Code. 

Environmental Clearances arising from Initial Studies (Negative Declarations, Mitigated 
Negative Declarations, and Environmental Impact Reports) have a dual purpose. They 
are for the use of decision makers so that they may make informed decisions on the 
environmental effects of projects on the surrounding area, and they are also necessary for 
the public so that the public is informed of the effects of a project on the area in which they 
live. The environmental information in the case file for the case had no such information. 
In fact, the Zoning Administrator had to go through three separate case files to find the 
information on the Southern California Air Quality Management District's (SCAQMD) 
permit to construct the CEB and on the effects of the sound wall in reducing noise 
generated by the facility. The SCAQMD's information was not final as it was contained in 
a preliminary permit. The information was expressed in parts per million on an hourly 
basis. Unfortunately, CEQA thresh holds for air pollution from green- house gasses and air 
quality impacts are expressed in pounds per day. This information was not in the file. The 
Zoning Administrator received this information in the form of the final SCAQMD permit 
which expressed that the CED would meet its emission standards for the District's various 
rules on emissions for both green- house gasses and toxics. This was obtained in a letter 
to the file from a constituent who was opposed to the project. The final permit included the 
average pounds per day, pounds per year as well as tons per year. Thus, the total 
emissions of criteria pollutants expressed in pounds not parts per million from the 
SCAQMD's permit are: 

Nitrous Oxide 
Reactive Organic Gases 
Carbon Monoxide 
PM 10 

11.83 lbs/day 
3.24 lbs/day 
5.831bs/day 

.78 lbs/day 

4,318 lbs/year 
1,182.6 lbs year 
2,128.7 lbs/year 

946 lbs/year 

2.16 tons/year 
. 59 tons/year 

1 . 18 tons/year 
.4 7 tons/year 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE13 

An Initial Study would have changed the look of the available data and expressed the data 
in a form more familiar to those using the information. It also would have expressed the 
data in a form which is expressed in CEQA thresh holds. While the data from the 
SCAQMD still would not have reached the thresholds of significance of both the City and 
the SCAQMD, they do show a rather large amount of pollutants emitted into the air less 
than 100 feet away from a residential building which is a part of a 192 unit residential 
complex. An Initial Study would also have looked into the Public Safety elements of the 
project and would have looked at the fire safety elements of an open flare placed in a 
residential neighborhood. The Fire Department has expressed concern over the fire safety 
of an open air flare during Santa Ana wind conditions when debris from nearby palm trees 
and other jetsam could blow through the flare, ignite and become flaming missiles in a 
residential neighborhood during high wind conditions. None of this was available to either 
the Zoning Administrator or the public during the consideration of the case. 

USE OF SOUTHERN PORTION OF PROPERTY: 

Issues were raised at the public hearing and in letters in the file regarding the use of the 
southern portion of the site in which the proposed CEB is to be located. The current site is 
divided roughly in half with the northern portion adjacent to Adams Boulevard containing 
the active drilling site and its appurtenant structures as well as a landscape buffer on the 
Adams Boulevard frontage. The rear portion of the lot is lower in elevation and contains a 
landscaped area which was required in a previous permit because this portion of the lot is 
surrounded on three sides by either residential or institutional uses. There is a masonry 
wall which surrounds the active drilling site and is placed at the top of the plateau above 
the lower portion of the lot. Though the landscaping is a requirement, there is a condition 
in one of the previous permits which required Plains Energy, one of the corporate 
precursors to Freeport-McMoRan, to negotiate with the neighbors over opening this 
landscaped area to the public for use as a privately owned park. Whatever occurred in the 
negotiations, if they even occurred, the landscaped area has not been open. 

Though landscaped, there are no conditions in the previous approvals that prohibit the use 
of this area by Freeport-McMoRan. The entire site, except for a parking area on the 
northeast corner of the site, was leased from the Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Los 
Angeles. The leased area was 2.83 acres in size and was described as running from 
Adams Boulevard to 27th Street. There were no restrictions in the previous conditions 
from using the area to the south of the wall. It was only to be landscaped. There are 
currently pipes running under the surface of the landscaped area and there are currently 
pipes which extend through the wall at the top of the plateau and into the ground southerly 
of the wall. Thus, this area has had uses for the entire drilling site. It was leased by the 
owner in toto to the precursors of Freeport-McMoRan for the use as an active, operating oil 
field, and thus, public access to this portion of the site is prohibited by the lessee. The 
Zoning Administrator can find nothing in the previous conditions that would disprove this. 

FINDINGS 

1. The site, known as the Murphy Drill Site is located on a slightly sloping, irregular 
shaped property fronting on the south side of Adams Boulevard, between Cimarron 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE14 

Street to the west and Manhattan Place to the east. The site overlays a portion of 
the Las Cienegas Oil Field. The property has dimensions of 323 feet along the south 
side of Adams Boulevard, 165 feet along the north side of 27th Street and a non
uniformed depth of 588 feet and an overall square footage of 3.25 acres. The 
Drillsite is located in the [Q]R4-1-HPOZ Zone and is within Urbanized Oil Drilling 
District U-37 as established in 1959 by Ordinance No. 114,701. 

The portion of the Drillsite containing the existing drilling and production equipment is 
enclosed with a concrete block wall that is set back from Adams Boulevard by 
approximately 25 feet. The portion of the Drillsite within the block wall is accessed 
through one of two gates and driveways from Adams Boulevard. The easterly portion 
of the Drillsite, located outside of the block wall, is utilized for parking and has a 
separate driveway off of Adams. The southerly portion of the Drillsite fronts along 
27th Street and is enclosed by a 6-foot wrought iron fence. This southerly area is 
landscaped and can be accessed from the drilling and production area enclosed by 
the block wall via an existing gate. Vehicular access to the landscaped area is 
through an existing driveway on 27th Street. Set back approximately 270 feet from 
27th Street is the southerly line of the block wall which encloses the drilling 
machinery. The area to the south of the block wall is landscaped with mature 
landscaping and a circular driveway. There are also some pipes which extend 
through the block wall and go underground about one third of the way across the wall 
going from west to east. 

The site is improved with tanks, vessels, well cellars, pumps, generators, 
compressors and various pieces of equipment for operating the facility. There are 
also some generators which are powered by excess natural gas which is a byproduct 
of the oil drilling. These generators are used to generate approximately one-third of 
the power used for site operations. There are a small number of operational 
buildings on the site located in the R4 zoned portion of the site. 

The owner of the site is the Roman Catholic Archbishop of Los Angeles who leases 
the site to the Freeport-McMoRan Oil and Gas (FMO&G). FMO&G is the leaseholder 
of the entire Drillsite which extends from Adams to 27th Street. This has been 
indicated as such on the plot plan for the site which has existed from 1959 to the 
present. Existing entitlements and Zoning Administrator actions have never 
restricted the operational portion of the Drillsite to the operating area of the Drillsite 
between Adams Boulevard and the block wall which encircles the current operating 
area. Though not currently used except for the fore-mentioned pipes extending from 
the block wall, the area to the south of the wall has been required to be landscaped. 
Thus, the full 3.25 acre site has been preserved as the Drillsite by Office of Zoning 
Administration determinations from 1959 to the present. 

2. The site is surrounded by residential and institutional uses. To the immediate east of 
the site is the 191 unit Saint Andrews Gardens apartment complex in the [Q]R4-1-
HPOZ Zone. Properties to the south comprise a number of single-family homes, 
duplexes and triplexes in the RD2-1-HPOZ Zone. Properties to the west are 
occupied by a convent of Roman Catholic Nuns adjacent to 27th Street and an Aids 
Healthcare Foundation convalescence home on Adams Boulevard also in the [Q]R4-
1-HPOZ Zone. 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE15 

3. A review of the past record and information attached to the file indicates that oil 
drilling and oil production have occurred on the site since it was first authorized to be 
operated at this location on April 5, 1961 under ZA Case No. 15227, subject to 24 
Conditions of Approval. Development of the site for oil and gas drilling and 
production operations has been subject to a zoning approval process referred to as a 
"Review of Plans" for the construction of buildings and the installation of equipment 
necessary for the production of oil on the site. In addition, subsequent cases have 
also regulated oil drilling and production on the property, mainly addressing the need 
for occasional drilling and re-drilling of new or existing wells. The last such submittals 
were approved by the Zoning Administrator on September 14, 2007 for the 
expansion of the well cellar and approval of the drilling of 3 new wells, the future 
drilling of 9 additional wells in ZA 15227(0)(PA4), the related December 26, 2007 
Review of Plans for the expansion of gas handling facilities, the August 26, 2008 
Review of Plans for the approval to drill Well M-31 and the May 14, 2013 Review of 
Plans for approval to drill Wells M-37, M-33 and M-40 all as part of the 9 additional 
wells approved on September 14, 2007. It should be pointed out that a further review 
of the approvals for the gas handling facilities was to clean the by- product natural 
gas which was released by the oil drilling in order to sell the natural gas to the 
Southern California Gas Company. 

4. Part of the operation of a site for oil drilling and production includes installation and 
operation of mechanical equipment necessary for the safe processing of oil and gas 
at the site. The installation, operation and maintenance of equipment for handling 
natural gas at a Controlled Drill Site is normal and expected as a consequence of drill 
site operations and does not constitute either a change in land use or an expansion 
of the operations of the facility. The Zoning Administrator disagrees with the need 
for, whether such a piece of equipment is normal and expected for a drill site in a 
residential neighborhood and the advisability of placing such a use in a residential 
neighborhood. 

The operating company (Freeport-McMoRan) has been disposing of natural gas 
which is a byproduct of oil pumped from this location by three methods. Freeport
McMoRan cleans a majority of the gas produced by the wells on the site by cleaning 
it of impurities and selling it to the Southern California Gas Company as a part of the 
Gas Company's natural gas supply. Freeport-McMoRan has been using it on-site to 
power a cogeneration electrical generating system which powers about one third of 
the electricity use on the site. It also has an approved Class B re-injection well for 
the disposal of unused gas back into the ground. A problem has arisen in the gas 
elimination system because of the Southern California Gas Company and the State 
of California revising the rules for the gas that that the Gas Company purchases 
which has taken away the grandfathering rights that Freeport-McMoRan has 
operated under for the amount of impurities in the gas. This change in rules required 
additional removal of impurities. Ostensibly, the gas burner, as mentioned at the 
hearing, is needed to provide redundancy in the disposal of natural gas which cannot 
be cleaned, burned in the turbines used for electricity production or returned to the 
ground by the re-injection well. It also provides backup if any of these systems are 
off-line due to routine maintenance. 

The question is - is redundancy the equivalent of "essential to and a part of the 
implementation of previously approved wells." as was stated in written testimony to 
the South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission on a previous appeal of an 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE16 

Approval of Plans which permitted the installation of the burner without a public 
hearing. After Freeport-McMoRan agreed at the South Los Angeles Area Planning 
Commission meeting on the appeal to submit to a Public Hearing, testimony was 
presented to this Zoning Administrator that the need for the burner was for 
redundancy not for essential operation. The definition of the word "redundant" 
contained in Webster's Seventh New Collegiate Dictionary is "exceeding what is 
necessary or normal". The same dictionary's definition of "essential" is "of the utmost 
importance: basic, indispensable, necessary". This use of the two terms has resulted 
in confusion in the neighborhood as to what Freeport-McMoRan is trying to do with 
the installation of the burner and whether or not the installation of the burner was to 
burn off excess gas from not only the Murphy Drill Site but from an additional field on 
Jefferson Boulevard which has similar gas problems and is currently furloughed. 
While neighborhood confusion over a moving target is not the best public policy, it is 
not the reason that the Zoning Administrator is denying this project. 

The M3 Zone is the City's least restrictive manufacturing zone. It includes such uses 
as blast furnaces, coke ovens, chemical manufacturing and petroleum product 
manufacturing. Though called the least restrictive zone, it includes the most intense 
industrial uses permitted by the City. The City's oil refineries are included in M3 
Zones. Though the M3 Zone permits these uses by right, the most intense such as 
acid manufacturing, cement manufacturing, drop forges, petroleum refining, cattle 
pens, garbage dumps and metal smelting are not permitted within 500 feet of a 
residential zone because of these uses' ability to "be obnoxious or offensive by 
reason of emission of odor, dust, smoke, gas, noise, vibration and the like". 

Section 13.01 of the LAMC permits the operation of Oil Drilling Districts throughout 
the City including in residential zones. The City of Los Angeles has historically been 
a major producer of oil as it sits on what was once one of the largest oil pools in the 
country. In order to maintain the continued production of active and new wells, the 
City developed the Oil Drilling District Supplemental Use District. Though the 
production of crude oil was permitted in the Districts, there was to be no refining of 
hydro-carbon products within the districts. Crude oil could only be stored for a short 
time on the site and then removed from the drill site by pipeline. Sub-section F of 
Section 13.01 lays out the Code required conditions for oil drilling in these districts. 
These Code conditions must be followed in Drilling Districts as well as any other 
conditions issued by the City Council in establishing the District and the Zoning 
Administrator in approving individual wells within the District. Condition 18 of Sub
section F requires that: 

... "all production equipment used shall be so constructed and operated that 
no noise, vibration, dust , odor or other harmful or annoying substances or 
effect which can be eliminated or diminished by the use of greater care shall 
ever be permitted to result from production operations carried on at any 
drilling site or from anything incident thereto to the injury or annoyance of 
persons living in the vicinity; nor shall the site or structures thereon be 
permitted to become dilapidated, unsightly or unsafe. Proven technological 
improvements in methods of production shall be adopted as they, from time to 
time, become available if capable of reducing factors of nuisance or 
annoyance." 

Similarly, Condition 46 of Section F requires that: 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE17 

"That all oil drilling and production operations shall be conducted in such a 
manner as to eliminate, as far as practicable, dust, noise, vibration or noxious 
odors, and shall be in accordance with the best accepted practices incident 
to drilling for and production of oil, gas and other hydrocarbon substances. 
Proven technological improvements in methods of production shall be 
adopted as they, from time to time, become available if capable of reducing 
factors of nuisance or annoyance." 

Both of these conditions were used as a justification for the installation of the burner 
as a best available technology in the application for the burner when no public 
hearing was proposed. After agreeing to the public hearing, the installation was 
justified at the hearing as a redundant system which was not required for production, 
but which would make it easier to dispose of gas through either using it for electricity 
co-generation, reinjection through the Class 8 well, sales to the Gas Company or 
burning on site. This Zoning Administrator does not believe that a gas flare or burner 
within 100 feet of an adjacent residential building is reducing a nuisance or 
annoyance to the nearby residences, nor from the testimony at the hearing and from 
language in the application is it needed for production of oil on the site. Thus, 
though it may be the best available technology for disposing of excess gas, it is not 
needed for the production of oil in the District. It constitutes an industrial use not 
needed for oil production and, thus, belongs in an M3 industrial zone not in an R4 
residential zone. 

The Southern California Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) in their permit to 
install the CEB 800 admitted in the specifications for the project that the burner could 
not exceed the following limits for pollutant emissions: 

NOX (AS N02 
co 
voe 
PARTICULATE 

MATTER 

15 PPMV @ 3% 02, 1 HOUR AVERAGE 
10 PPMV @ 3% 02, 1 HOUR AVERAGE 
10 PPMV@ 3% 02, 1 HOUR AVERAGE 

0.0930 GRAINS/DSCF, APPROVED AVERAGEING 

It further calculated that the emissions from the CEB would amount to: 

Nitrous Oxide 
Volatile Organic Gases 
Carbon Monoxide 
PM 10 

11.83 lbs/day 
3.24 lbs/day 
5.83 lbs/day 

.78 lbs/day 

4,318 lbs/year 
1, 182.6 lbs/year 
2,128.7 lbs/year 

946 lbs/year 

2.16 tons/year 
.59 tons/year 

1 . 18 tons/year 
.4 7 tons/year 

The SCAQMD also limited the flare to burn no more than 443 Million Cubic Feet of 
natural gas per day or 13,290 Million Cubic Feet per month. Since the SCAQMD 
did not put an hourly limit on the use of the burner, but only on the cubic feet of gas 
which could be burned during a 24-hour period, it is conceivable that up to 11.83 
pounds of Nitrous Oxide, 3.24 pounds of Volatile Organic Gases and 5.83 pounds of 
Carbon Monoxide would be loosed on nearby residences, including a convalescence 
home run by the AIDS Healthcare Foundation, over a daily period. As previously 
mentioned in the discussion about the need for a CEQA clearance other than a 
Categorical Exemption in the Zoning Administrator's Comments above, though the 
emissions of green-house gasses and other air pollutants do not meet the City's or 



CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE18 

the SCAQMD's thresholds for a significant impact, the Zoning Administrator has 
major concerns with the level of emissions in such close proximity to residential 
structures which in this case include a low income housing development, a convent 
and the fore mentioned convalescence home. The air quality impacts of oil drilling 
operations in the neighborhoods of South Los Angeles have become a major issue 
in the past two years. Another issue has been the odors which also come with such 
uses. While an argument may be made for those additions to drill sites which are 
necessary to the operation of the wells to not have additional CEQA clearance, it has 
been established by the above finding that the installation of the CEB 800 burner is 
not necessary for the operation of the subject drill site and is thus fully discretionary 
under CEQA and subject to environmental review. 

It should also be pointed out that Condition No. 52 contained in Section 13.01 of the 
LAMC requires that: 

"no oil, gas, or other hydrocarbon substances may be produced from any 
well hereby permitted unless all equipment necessarily incident to such 
production is completely enclosed within a building, the plans for said 
building to be approved by the Department of Building and Safety and the 
Fire Department. This building shall be of a permanent type, of attractive 
design and constructed in a manner that will eliminate as far as practicable, 
dust, noise, noxious odors and vibrations or other conditions which are 
offensive to the senses, and shall be equipped with such devices as are 
necessary to eliminate the objectionable features mentioned above. The 
architectural treatment of the exterior of such building shall also be subject to 
the review of the Administrator." 

The plans for the proposed burner do not show it to be placed within a building. It is 
to be placed behind a proposed sound wall which would surround the equipment on 
four sides, but it would not be fully enclosed as it does not have a roof. The 
definition of a building in the LAMC is "any structure having a roof supported by 
columns or walls, for the housing, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals, chattels 
or property of any kind." While the application for the CEB 800 includes a Zoning 
Administrator approval for a sound wall, it does not include the approval for a 
building to enclose said piece of equipment. While it would be difficult to enclose the 
24-foot high burner, there was no request to alter the published conditions of 
approval nor was it included in the Public Hearing Notice. Unfortunately for the 
applicant, there is no language in Section 13.01 which gives an out for an applicant 
to not comply with the conditions of approval listed in the Code. While the 
equipment could be placed in a covered structure and protrude from it similar to a 
chimney, it is problematic as to whether the Fire Department would sign off on such 
a facility within an enclosed building in a residential neighborhood. The Zoning 
Administrator did have a conversation with the Chief of the Fire Department's Fire 
Prevention and Public Safety Bureau who expressed grave concerns over the 
approval of a CEB or a flare such as this in a residential neighborhood. Such a use 
could not be placed in the interior of a building for fire safety reasons and of even 
more concern, was the effects of blowing debris during Santa Ana Wind events 
which could come into contact with the flare, catch fire and result in blowing burning 
embers, palm fronds from the numerous palm trees in the area and other plant 
material. The open air nature of a flare in a residential neighborhood with its emitting 
of green- house gasses, toxic substances, odors and noise within 100 feet of a large 



' r t ' I 

CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE19 

housing development was also a concern to the Chief. For these and the previously 
stated reasons above, the Zoning Administrator has denied the request for the 
installation of the CEB 800 burner and has determined that this proposal is not in the 
interests of the public's health, welfare and safety. 

ADDITIONAL MANDATORY FINDINGS 

5. The National Flood Insurance Program rate maps, which are a part of the Flood 
Hazard Management Specific Plan adopted by the City Council by Ordinance No. 
172,081, have been reviewed and it has been determined that this project is located 
in Zone C, areas of minimal flooding. 

6. On February 19, 2015, the project was issued a Notice of Exemption (Subsection c, 
Section 2, Article II, City CEQA Guidelines), log reference ENV 2014-2482-CE, for a 
Categorical Exemption, Class 1, Category 1, Category 2: "The operation, repair , 
maintenance or minor alteration of existing facilities of both investor and publicly 
owned utilities, electrical power, natural gas, sewage, water, telephone and 
mechanical systems serving existing facilities, including alteration to accommodate 
a specific use; Class 1, Category 6: "Adoption of safety, security, health or 
environmental protection devices for use during construction of or in conjunction 
with existing structures, facilities or mechanical equipment, or topographical 
features; Class 1, Category 32: "Installation, maintenance or modification of 
mechanical equipment and public convenience devices and facilities which are 
accessory to the use of the existing structures or facilities and involve the negligible 
or no expansion of use; and Class 3, Category 4: "Installation of new equipment 
and/or industrial facilities involving negligible or no expansion of use if required for 
safety, health, the public convenience or environmental control". For the reasons 
listed above, I hereby do not adopt that action. 

APPEAL PERIOD - EFFECTIVE DATE 

The Zoning Administrator's determination in this matter will become effective after JULY 
15, 2016, unless an appeal therefrom is filed with the City Planning Department. It is 
strongly advised that appeals be filed early during the appeal period and in person so that 
imperfections/incompleteness may be corrected before the appeal period expires. Any 
appeal must be filed on the prescribed forms, accompanied by the required fee, a copy of 
the Zoning Administrator's action, and received and receipted at a public office of the 
Department of City Planning on or before the above date or the appeal will not be 
accepted. Forms are available on-line at http://planning.lacity.org. Public offices are 
located at: 

Figueroa Plaza 
201 North Figueroa Street, 

4th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 
(213) 482-7077 

Marvin Braude San Fernando 
Valley Constituent Service Center 

6262 Van Nuys Boulevard, Room 251 
Van Nuys, CA 91401 
(818) 37 4-5050 

If you seek judicial review of any decision of the City pursuant to California Code of Civil 
Procedure Section 1094.5, the petition for writ of mandate pursuant to that section must be 



. ' 
CASE NO. ZA 15227(0)(PA5) PAGE 20 

filed no later than the 90th day following the date on which the City's decision became final 
pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1094.6. There may be other time 
limits which also affelwl""'tl'f!i~r ability to seek judicial review. 

CHARLES J ........... -..CH, JR. 
Associate Zoning Administrator 
Direct Telephone No. (213) 978-1306 

CJR:aln 

cc: Councilmember Herb Wesson, Jr. 
Tenth District 

Adjoining Property Owners 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July 19, 2023 
  
Re:  Murphy drill site and Case ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 

 
Dear South Los Angeles Area Planning Commissioners: 
  
The Neighborhood Council Sustainability Alliance voted at our June 11 meeting to ask the South Los 
Angeles Area Planning Commission to uphold City Planning’s February 28, 2023 Letter of Determination 
on Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6, which requires E&B Natural Resources, the operator of the Murphy 
oil-drilling site, to improve conditions in order “to increase the protection of and to preserve the health, 
safety and general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of the neighborhood” if they want to keep 
operating on the site. 

 
It is unfortunate that E&B Natural Resources subsequently filed an appeal of the City’s Letter of 
Determination, presumably with the support of the Archdiocese of Los Angeles, which owns the site. We 
have already expressed our concern (in Council File 17-0447) that under the City’s December 2022 
ordinance to phase out oil-drilling operations, some active drilling sites might remain in operation for up 
to 20 years. Protections mandated through City Planning’s letter of determination such as facility 
enclosure and electrification of both workover rigs and onsite power supply have been implemented at 
oil drilling sites in wealthier communities, but not at the Murphy site, which is not equitable. 

 
It is far past time for such inequities to be eliminated.  

 
 
Thank you,  

 
Lisa Hart 
Executive Director 
 
Cc: Mayor Karen Bass 
      City Attorney Hydee Feldstein Soto 
      Vincent P. Bertoni, Director of Planning 
      Jessica Brown, Deputy City Attorney 
      Lisa M. Webber, Deputy Director of Planning 
      Erica Blyther, Petroleum Administrator 
      Nancy Sutley, Deputy Mayor for Energy and Sustainability 
      Councilmember Heather Hutt, District 10 

 

https://planning.lacity.org/pdiscaseinfo/document/MjE2OA0/fe3b456d-e5a5-4f0e-9fa7-879f1ff43502/pdd
https://planning.lacity.org/pdiscaseinfo/search/encoded/MjUwNTQx0
https://clkrep.lacity.org/onlinedocs/2017/17-0447_PC_M_09-13-2022.pdf


 

Bel Air-Beverly Crest Neighborhood Council  Palms Neighborhood Council 
Brentwood Community Council  South Robertson Neighborhoods Council 
Del Rey Neighborhood Council Venice Neighborhood Council 
Mar Vista Community Council  West LA-Sawtelle Neighborhood Council 
Neighborhood Council of Westchester-Playa Westside Neighborhood Council 

 North Westwood Neighborhood Council  Westwood Community Council 
westsidecouncils.com Pacific Palisades Community Council Westwood Neighborhood Council 

 
 

 

August 16, 2023     
 
South LA Area Planning Commission 
Hon. Karen Bass, Mayor, City of Los Angeles  
Vincent P. Bertoni, Director, Los Angeles City Planning Dept. 
 

Via email to all addressees  
 
Re:   Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 – Murphy Drill Site:  SUPPORT Director’s Determination Letter 
 
Honorable City officials: 
 
The Westside Regional Alliance of Councils (WRAC) is a coalition of all fourteen neighborhood and community 
councils on the Westside of Los Angeles, located in CDs 5 and 11 and portions of CDs 4 and 10. 
 
WRAC’s member councils have long expressed concern about the environmental impacts of oil drilling in or near 
the Westside’s residential neighborhoods.  To protect the health and welfare of Westside constituents, WRAC’s 
member councils and other Westside organizations have historically had the resources in many instances to 
prevent or achieve mitigation of the impacts oil drilling.  We are also aware of the City’s discriminatory and 
disparate treatment of Los Angeles neighborhoods in terms of protections from oil drilling operations.  Now, it has 
come to WRAC’s attention that fellow Angelenos in West Adams have similar concerns about the environmental 
impacts of the above-referenced drill site. 
 
As a result, more than a majority of WRAC member councils (9 councils) have adopted the following motion (or 
modified versions in keeping with its spirit), which is an adopted position of WRAC: 
 

“Whereas, the City of Los Angeles has a history of discriminatory and disparate treatment in its oil 
drilling environmental compliance requirements whereby some communities are afforded greater 
protections from pollution and noise from oil drilling operations while other communities are not;  

 
“Whereas, the Murphy Drill site location in West Adams is an example of a community that has been 
exposed to toxic fumes and noise pollution that could be partially abated through facility enclosure and 
electrification of workover rigs and power supply, as has been done in wealthier communities, but have 
not been;  
 
“Whereas, on February 28, 2023, the City’s Planning Department issued a Letter of Determination on 
Case No. ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6 requiring additional and modified conditions for the continued 
operation of the Murphy Oil Drill Site “to increase the protection of and to preserve the health, safety and 
general welfare of the residents and stakeholders of the neighborhood”;  
 
“Whereas, on March 13, 2023, E & B Natural Resources the operator of the Murphy Drill site filed an  
appeal to the City’s Letter of Determination; 
 
“Therefore, WRAC calls on the City of Los Angeles to uphold its February 28 Letter of Determination.” 
 

The language of the above motion has been approved by the following WRAC member councils:  Bel Air-Beverly  



 

 
 

2 

Page Two 
Westside Regional Alliance of Councils 
South LA Area Planning Commission and City officials 
August 16, 2023 
____________________________________________ 
 
 
Crest Neighborhood Council, Brentwood Community Council, Del Rey Neighborhood Council, Neighborhood 
Council Westchester-Playa, Mar Vista Community Council, Pacific Palisades Community Council,* Palms 
Neighborhood Council, Westside Neighborhood Council and Westwood Neighborhood Council  (*modified 
version maintaining the spirit of the motion).    
 
No member councils have opposed the WRAC motion or submitted a minority letter to accompany this position. 
 
For these reasons, we respectfully urge the South LA Area Planning Commission to uphold the Director’s 
Determination Letter of February 28th in the above-referenced matter and to implement its requirements as soon 
as possible for the health and welfare of the West Adams community. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

Robin Greenberg 
Robin Greenberg 
Chair 
Westside Regional Alliance of Councils 
 
cc (via email): 
Hon. Katy Yaroslavsky, CD 5 
Hon. Traci Park, CD 11 
Hon. Nithya Rama, CD 4 
Hon. Heather Hutt, CD 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Item 05 - EB Murphy Supplemental Appeal Letter - final 09.25.23.pdf
	Exhibit A (Appeal Murphy Site).pdf
	Appeal Application - ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A.pdf
	Justification for Appeal - ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A.pdf

	Exhibit E (EB's supp appeal submission to ZAI w exhibits).pdf
	EXHIBIT A
	EXHIBIT B
	EXHIBIT C
	EXHIBIT D
	EXHIBIT E
	EXHIBIT F
	EXHIBIT G
	EXHIBIT H


	Item 05 - DRNC-Murphy Drill Site letter final 4-19-2023.pdf
	Neighborhood Council Governing Board

	Item 05 - 2023-09-25_Redeemer Murphy Appeal Comments.pdf
	I. Standard of Review and Deference to the Zoning Administrator’s Findings and Conclusions
	II. The Record Demonstrates that the Murphy Drill Site is a Nuisance
	III. The Record Supports the Zoning Administrator’s Revisions to Existing Operating Conditions to Address Nuisances at the Murphy Drill Site
	A. The Zoning Administrator Properly Determined that Revised Conditions are Necessary to Protect Residents Surrounding the Murphy Drill Site
	i. Obnoxious Odors and Fumes
	ii. Harmful Noise Levels

	B. The Zoning Administrator Properly Determined that Revised Conditions to Improve Accountability and Reporting are Necessary based on E&B’s Non-Compliant Operation of the Murphy Drill Site



	Day of the Week, Month Date, Year: June 20, 2023 after 4:30 p.m.
	00:00 x: 
	m: South Los Angeles Area Planning Commission

	Map: 
	Location: Council District 8 Constituent Service Center
	Address: 8475 S. Vermont Avenue, Community Room B
	City, State, Zip: Los Angeles, CA 90044
	Actions Requested 1: A partial appeal of the Zoning Administrator's decision.  Specifically the following conditions: Condition Numbers:  5, 7, 16, 17, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 32 and 33 Refer to the Letter of Determination dated February 28, 2023. Apelación parcial de la decisión del Administrador de Zonificación. Específicamente, las condiciones siguientes:  Números de condiciones: 5, 7, 16, 17, 19, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 32 and 33  Refiere a la Carta de Determinación con la fecha, 28 de febrero, 2023. 
	Rendering: 
	Case Number(s): ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6-1A
	Overlays: Jefferson Park Historic Preservation Overlay Zone; South Los Angeles Alcohol Sales
	Environmental Case Numbers: ENV-2021-7445-CE
	Land Use Designation: Medium Residential
	Related Case Number: ZA-1959-15227-O-PA6; ZA-1959-15227-O-PA4
	Zone: [Q]R4-1-O-HPOZ
	Council District: 10
	Applicant: Ted Cordova, E&B Natural Resources
	Applicant Representative: N/A
	Community Plan Area: South Los Angeles
	Assigned Staff Contact Info: Edber Macedo, City Planning Associateedber.macedo@lacity.org(213) 978-1198200 North Spring Street, Room 763Los Angeles, CA  90012
	Appelant: E&B Natural Resources
	Appellant Representative: Nicki CarlsenAlston & Bird LLP
	Phone Number 1: (818)374-3384
	Email:       apcsouthla


